
BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Tuesday, November 18, 2025 at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #10-25, Next Resolution #25-06, Next Agenda Bill #25-052 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Roll call 
3. Agenda Modifications 
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations 

 
B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign 

up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting) 
 
C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

1. Mayor’s Report      Burkett 
2. Senior Citizens Advisory Commission   Bergerson 

 
D. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approve Minutes of August 12, 2025, City Council Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of August 26, 2025, City Council Meeting 
c. Approve Minutes of September 9, 2025, City Council Meeting 
d. Claims & Payroll 
 

E. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
1. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

a. 2026 Property Tax Levy and 2026 EMS Tax Levy 
 
2. ORDINANCE 

a. ORD No. ___-25: Adopting 2026 Regular Property Tax Levy 
b. ORD No. ___-25: Adopting 2026 EMS Tax Levy 
c. ORD No. ___-25: Setting the 2026 Levy Amount Required for the 2010 Unlimited 

General Obligation Bonds Used for the Fire Station Construction 
 
3. RESOLUTIONS  

a. RES No. 25-___: Repealing and Replacing the City of Buckley Personnel Policies & 
Administrative Procedures Manual 

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Adoption of the 2026 Legislative Priorities 
 

F. STAFF REPORTS 
1. City Administrator Update 

 
G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes  
 
H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS & GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
3



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
5



 

City Council Minutes –August 12, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
August 12, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Anderson (via Zoom), 
Arsanto, Burbank, Bergerson, Bender, and Green. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell (via Zoom), City Engineer Miller, Finance 
Director Hines, Public Services Director Banks, Parks & Rec Director Snograss, Fire Chief 
Skogen, Police Chief Alfano, Police Records Clerk Burkett, Senior Planner Farnsworth, 
and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council 
member Burbank seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Announcements, Appointments, and Presentations: 
 
Appointment of Nancy Moriarty to a Three-Year Term on the Senior Citizen Advisory 
Commission 
Council member Arsanto moved to appoint Nancy Moriarty to a Three-Year Term on the 
Senior Citizen Advisory Commission.  Council member Bergerson seconded the motion. 
Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Steve Harris – Mr. Harris came to share his concerns regarding a neighbor dumping pea 
gravel in the NE Sergeant ditch. H stated that this is already an issue with this ditch and 
with all the new housing it is only going to get worse. He requested that signage be put 
up stating that no dumping in the ditch is allowed. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee: 
Council member Smith shared that their meeting was brief as not all departments were 
able to be present.  They reviewed policies and received a budget update which will all 
be discussed at a future Study Session. 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
6



 

City Council Minutes –August 12, 2025 2 
  
 

Planning Commission: 
Council member Arsanto shared that he was unable to attend the meeting so did not 
have an update tonight. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Burbank seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

a. Approve Minutes of February 4, 2025, City Council Study Session 
b. Approve Minutes of March 4, 2025, City Council Study Session 
c. Approve Minutes of March 25, 2025, City Council Meeting 
d. Approve Minutes of April 8, 2025, City Council Meeting 
e. Approve Minutes of April 22, 2025, City Council Meeting 
 
f. Claim check numbers 69753 through 69836 in the amount of $ 622,988.17 for 

July 8, 2025, through July 22, 2025; and payroll check numbers 41911 
through 41948 in the amount of $158,749.84 and ACH payroll in the amount 
of $525,781.16 for July 23, 2025, through August 12, 2025, and Claim check 
numbers 69838 through 69921 in the amount of $400,371.89 for July 
23,2025, through August 12, 2025,are hereby approved and ordered paid 
this 12th day of August 2025. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORD No. 04-25: Amending the 2025-2026 City of Buckley Biennial Budget 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Ordinance No. 04-25 Amending the 2025-
2026 City of Buckley Biennial Budget. Council member Burbank seconded the motion.  
Upon roll call vote, motion carried 7/0. 
 
ORD No. 05-25: Adopting the Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
Council member Burbank moved to Approve Ordinance No. 05-25 Adopting the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment. Council member Green seconded the motion.   
 
Council member Burbank amended her motion to Approve Ordinance No. 05-25 
Adopting items 1-8 listed except for number 5.  Council member Arsanto seconded the 
Motion.  Upon roll call vote, motion carried 7/0. 
 
ORD No. 06-25: Amending the 2025 City Employee Salary Scale  
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Ordinance No. 06-25 Amending the 2025 
City Employee Salary Scale. Council member Bergerson seconded the motion. Upon 
roll call vote, motion carried 7/0. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
7



 

City Council Minutes –August 12, 2025 3 
  
 

Adoption of New City of Buckley Logo 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the Adoption and Moderate Phased 
Implementation of the new City logo. Council member Green seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 
Client Services Contract with DSHS for Campus Patrol and Security at Rainier State 
School 
Council member Green moved to Approve the Client Services Agreement with DSHS 
for Campus Patrol and Security at Rainier State School. Council member  Bergerson 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Granting of Blueberry Farms Trail Easement – Relinquishment of Public Pedestrian 
Access Easement and Granting of Private Trail Easement to D.R. Horton for a 
Pedestrian Trail Across Spiketon Ditch 
Council member Burbank moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Documents to 
Relinquish the Existing Easement and Grant a new Easement for a Pedestrian Trail 
Across the Spiketon Ditch. Council member Smith seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
2025-2030 Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Fire Chief Skogen shared a memo that was included in the Council packet.  He shared 
that this is just informational at this time and more information will come forward to 
the Council at a future meeting. 
 
Development Projects Update 
Senior Planner Farnsworth shared a list of current development projects and was 
available to answer any Council questions. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Bergerson shared that she thought the Doc Tait opening went very well 
and was very well attended. 
 
Council member Green shared that he thought the City Hall grand opening was also a 
great event. 
 
Council member Bergerson moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:56 PM. 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
8



 

City Council Minutes –August 12, 2025 4 
  
 

 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
9



 

City Council Minutes –August 26, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
August 26, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Anderson, Arsanto, Burbank, 
Bergerson, Bender (via Zoom), and Green. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Public Services Director Banks (via Zoom), 
City Engineer Miller (via Zoom), Parks & Rec Director Snodgrass, Fire Chief Skogen, 
Police Chief Alfano, Police Records Clerk Burkett, and City Clerk Zumek. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
amended agenda. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Carolyn Harding – Ms. Harding shared that she was there representing the Chamber of 
Commerce.  She started by wishing the Mayor a Happy Birthday.  She also shared that 
the Wine Walk is on September 13th. The Chamber will be turning in receipts for LTAC 
reimbursement and are hoping that can get expedited.  Ms. Harding also shared the 
impacts to local businesses with the bridge closure.  
 
Meri Schiller – Ms. Schiller shared that she thinks the Hometown Market on Tuesdays is 
great and she would also like the speed sign moved for September. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Burkett gave an update from WSDOT regarding the bridge 
closure.  
 
Citizens Advisory Commission 
Council member Anderson shared that the Commission met on August 18th and 
discussed the following: 

· Doc Tait Grand Opening  
· Miller Park 
· Beautify Buckley 
· Wayfinding and signage 

She also shared that their next meeting is scheduled for September 15th. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
10



 

City Council Minutes –August 26, 2025 2 
  
 

Planning Commission: 
Council member Arsanto shared that the Planning Commission meeting was cancelled 
so there is no update. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
Engineering Services Proposal – Buckley/Rainier School Water System Consolidation 
Feasibility Study 
Council member Smith moved to Approve the Engineering Services Proposal – 
Buckley/Rainier School Water System Consolidation Feasibility Study. Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Update – City Administrator Brunell wanted to thank PGH for the 
donation of the lights down by the bridge. Pierce County is working on a permanent 
solution. She also shared that there are about 300 cars parking down there and we are 
looking into additional parking options. King County Metro is expanding the 915 line to 
get it closer to the bridge on the Enumclaw side. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Smith shared his concerns with information about the bridge being 
shared that is not coming directly from WSDOT. 
 
Mayor Burkett shared that there has been some calls with WSDOT that stated that no 
elected officials were allowed on the calls so that is being investigated to figure out who 
made that call and why it was made. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:39 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
11



 

City Council Minutes – September 9, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
September 9, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, Bergerson, 
Bender, and Green (via Zoom). 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Police Chief Alfano, Police Records Clerk 
Burkett, City Engineer Miller, Youth Activities Coordinator Kyllonen, and City Clerk 
Zumek. 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council member Anderson council member 
Arsanto seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council 
member Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Carolyn Harding – Ms. Harding wanted to thank Jalen Johansen for installing the reader 
board by Match Mart to advertise Buckley Chamber events.  The first event to be 
advertised will be the wine walk. She also wanted to thank the Mayor for reaching out 
to Aaron Crawford who will be playing at the Wine Walk from 5:00 PM – 9:00 PM.  She 
also wanted to share a video that Visit Rainier had created about the businesses in 
Buckley. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Burkett gave a brief update on the bridge closure and shared 
information on the new Pierce Transit Shuttle service that will be provided during the 
bridge closure. 
 
Senior Citizen Advisory Commission: 
Council member Bergerson shared that the Commission met on September 3rd and 
heard from Court Administrator Cash on why the Court would like to move court days 
from Thursday to Wednesday. Senior Center Coordinator Lund shared that the Senior 
Wellness Fair is scheduled for September 27th, they are expecting approximately 25 
vendors. Ms. Lund also provided a Senior Center calendar for the next few months.  It 
was also shared that the Senior Center is looking for a few more volunteer drivers. They 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
12



 

City Council Minutes – September 9, 2025 2 
  
 

also learned that on the 1st and 3rd Fridays of the month, the Senior Center will have a 
new visitor, Louie the Pug who is a Certified Therapy Dog. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Bender seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of April 1, 2025, City Council Study Session 
Approve Minutes of May 13, 2025, City council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of May 27, 2025, City Council Meeting 
 
Claim check numbers 69922 through 70011 in the amount of $474,083.98 for 
August 13, 2025, through August 26, 2025; Payroll check numbers 41949 
through 41986 in the amount of $154,377.59 and ACH Payroll in the amount of 
$504,820.28, and Claim check numbers 70012 through 70071 in the amount of 
$142,716.24 for August 27, 2025, through September 9, 2025, are hereby 
approved and ordered paid this 9th day of September 2025. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORD No. 07-25: Amending BMC 6.04.050(8) Related to Business Licensing 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Ordinance No. 07-25 Related to Business 
Licensing.  Council member Burbank seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, motion 
carried 6/0. 
 
Donation and Construction Agreement with Pedals for the People for a Pump Track 
Facility 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the Donation and Construction 
Agreement with Pedals for the People for Pump Track Facility. Council member Smith 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Brunell shared that City Hall is now open to the public. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
 
Council member Burbank asked about the parking on River and whether we were going 
to put up no parking on either side past Dieringer. It was shared that once the Shuttle 
starts, they will put up the signs. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
13



 

City Council Minutes – September 9, 2025 3 
  
 

Council member Smith asked about the relationship with the City and Armory regarding 
parking being available there. 
 
Mayor Burkett shared that he and Public Services Director Banks had discussed putting 
some striping out for parking at the Log Show grounds during the bridge closure. 
 
Rescheduling of November 11, 2025, City Council Meeting 
Council member Arsanto moved to reschedule the November 11, 2025, City Council 
meeting to November 18, 2025. Council member Smith seconded the motion. Motion 
carried. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Burbank seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:35 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
 
Prepared by: Treva Zumek, City Clerk/HR Administrator 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
14



CITY OF BUCKLEY

Payroll and Claims/Treasurer Checks -October  2025

November 11, 2025 Council Meeting

FUND # FUND NAME AMOUNT ITEM

001 General Fund 430,864.47$             Payroll
242,076.91$             Claims/Treasurer Checks

003 GF Cumulative Reserve -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

004 Cemetery 38.33$                      Claims/Treasurer Checks

007 Police Equip. Maintenance Reserve -$                          Payroll
-$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

008 Railroad ROW -$                          Payroll
-$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

030 Fire Equipment & EMS Reserve -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

035 Park Construction 2,592.31$                 Claims/Treasurer Checks

101 Street Operations 7,574.44$                 Payroll
22,797.61$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

102 Street Capital Improvement 45,768.66$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

103 Transportation Benefit District -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

105 EMS 56,158.26$               Payroll
32,017.68$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

109 Criminal Justice Payroll
Claims/Treasurer Checks

134 Fire Dept Facility Maint & Cap Imp -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

136 Visitor Promotion 21,945.40$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

202 Fire Station Construction Bond -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

307 Capital Improvement 13,838.95$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

308 Comp Plan Capital Improvements Payroll
30,779.83$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

401 Natural Gas Operations -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

402 Water Sewer Operations 115,250.87$             Payroll
74,728.53$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

403 Solid Waste 7.03$                        Claims/Treasurer Checks

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
15



FUND # FUND NAME AMOUNT ITEM

405 Sewer Construction 22,890.51$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

406 Water Construction 37,820.67$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

407 Storm Drain Operation & Maint 33,782.68$               Payroll
6,555.33$                 Claims/Treasurer Checks

408 Stormwater Construction 8,908.84$                 Claims/Treasurer Checks

430 Utility Equipment Reserve -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

631 Municipal Court Trust -$                          Claims/Treasurer Checks

632 Custodial Activities 18,485.47$               Claims/Treasurer Checks

Total Payroll 643,630.72$             

Total Claims & Treasurer Checks 581,252.06$             

Date Approved by Council - Finance Director, Sandi Hines

Payroll = October - mid-month draw & end of month
Claims = October - all batches

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
16



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. REGULAR AGENDA 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
17



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  November 18, 2025        AB25-052 

 
Public Hearing for Proposed Revenue 
Sources, including 2026 Property Tax 
and EMS Levies 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor   X 
City Administrator   X 
City Attorney   X 
City Engineer    
City Clerk  X X 
Finance Dept    
Building Official    

 Fire Dept    
Cost Impact: N/A Parks & Recreation   
Fund Source:  N/A Building & Planning   
Timeline: N/A Police Dept    
 Municipal Court    
  PW/Utilities    
Staff Contact: Sandi Hines, Finance Director   
Attachments: Public Hearing Notice       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  Pursuant to RCW 84.55.120, the City Council is required to conduct a Public 
Hearing on revenue sources for the coming year’s budget, including consideration of possible increases 
in property tax revenues. 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Public Hearing Only 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
18



City of Buckley 
P.O. Box 1960   Buckley, WA   98321  (360) 829-1921 ext. 7801 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
2026 PROPERTY TAX LEVY 

2026 EMS TAX LEVY 
CITY OF BUCKLEY 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Buckley City Council will hold a Public Hearing shortly 
after 6:00 PM at the City Council meeting on Tuesday, November 18, 2025, at the Multi-Purpose 
Center located at 811 Main Street, Buckley, WA 98321. The purpose of the Public Hearing is to 
solicit public input and comment on the proposed increase under the 2026 Regular Property Tax 
Levy and the 2026 Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Property Tax Levy. 
 
 Each person wishing to speak at this Public Hearing will take the podium, clearly state 
their name for the record and will be allowed three (3) minutes in which to voice their comments 
and/or concerns on the matter at hand. Speakers are asked to avoid repetitious or irrelevant 
comments, and personal attacks will not be tolerated. Questions will not be taken at this time. 
If you have questions, please contact the City as indicated below, in advance of the Public 
Hearing. 
 
 Buckley does not discriminate based on disabilities. If you need special accommodations, 
please contact City Hall within three business days prior to the public hearing at 360-761-7801. 
 
 Comments for or against may be presented orally at the Public Hearing or submitted in 
writing to Treva Zumek, City Clerk, PO Box 1960, Buckley, WA 98321, or by email at 
tzumek@cityofbuckley.com prior to 5:00 PM on Monday, November 17, 2025. For questions or 
to view a copy of the levy certification, please stop by City Hall at 933 Main Street, or call 360-
761-7801. 
 
DATED this 22nd day of October 2025 
 
Posted: October 22, 2025 
Published: October 29, 2025 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
19

mailto:tzumek@cityofbuckley.com


 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
20



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
21



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
22



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
23



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
24



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
25



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
26



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
27



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
28



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
29



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
30



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: November 18, 2025         AB25-056 

 
RES No. 25-___: Repealing and 
Replacing the City of Buckley 
Personnel Policies & Administrative 
Procedures Manual 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor   X 
City Administrator   X 
City Attorney   X 
City Engineer    
City Clerk  X X 
Finance Dept    
Building Official    

 Fire Dept    
Cost Impact: N/A Parks & Recreation   
Fund Source:  N/A Building & Planning   
Timeline: Effective upon adoption. Police Dept    
 Municipal Court    
  PW/Utilities    
Staff Contact: City Clerk/HR Administrator Treva Zumek   
Attachments: Current Personnel Policy & Administrative Procedures, Resolution and Exhibit A       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  In 2004, the City of Buckley adopted the Personnel Policy & Administrative 
Procedures Manual.  Over the years this document has been amended several times.  Over the past two 
years, the City Clerk has been updating, adding, and reformatting City policies in an easier to use 
manner.  This Resolution would repeal the current Personnel Policy & Administrative Procedures 
Manual and adopt the attached policies in its place.  Adopting these as individual policies, allows us to 
amend just the policy we need to without amending the entire document.  This new format also makes 
it easier should the City need to add, replace or amend policies. 
 
Please note that Financial and IT Policies will be coming forward at a later date for adoption. 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Finance Committee and Full Council at Study 
Session. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  MOVE to Adopt Resolution No. 25-06 Repealing and Replacing the City of 
Buckley Personnel Policies and Administrative Procedures Manual. 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
31



 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
 

PERSONNEL POLICY 

& 

  Administrative  

PROCEDURES MANUAL 

 

                               Beau Burkett, Mayor 
 

City Council 
 

♦  position #1 ………………..….. Ron smith             
♦  position #2 ……………..…….. Mackenzie ANDERSON 
♦  position #3 …………….…….. Kenny arsanto          
♦  position #4 …………….…….. AMANDA BURBANK 
♦  position #5 ………….……….. DENICE BERGERSON             
♦  position #6 …………….…….. CONNIE BENDER 
♦  position #7 ………….……….. brandon green 

 
  

♦♦♦ 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
32



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

2 

City of Buckley 
 

Administrative and Personnel  
Policies and Procedures 

Table of Contents                                                                                    page 

Section 1 Introduction ......................................................................................................6 
  

1.01 Purpose  
1.02 Policy 
1.03 Goals  
1.04 Administration & Responsibility 
1.05 Distribution & Maintenance  
1.06 Employees Covered  
1.07 Supersedes Definitions General Policies & Procedures 

 
Section 2 Definitions .........................................................................................................9 
 
Section 3 General Policies and Procedures ..................................................................14 
 

3.01 Appointing Authority  
3.02 Equal Employment Opportunity  
3.03 Recruitment and Selection 
3.04 Nepotism  
3.05 Position Designation 
3.06 Appointments 
3.07 Appointment Status  
3.08 Probationary Period  
3.09 Employee Performance Evaluation Program  
3.10 Reduction in Force (RIF)  
3.11 Reemployment  
3.12 Resignation  
3.13 Exit Interview  
3.14 Personnel Records  
3.15 Employment References  
3.16 Retention of Personnel Records  
3.17 Identification of Employees  
3.18 Education & Training Policy  
3.19 Suggestions  

 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
33



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

3 

Section 4 General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal ...............................23 
 

4.01 Personal Appearance, Conduct & Attitude  
4.02 Standard Work Day and Normal Operating Hours 
4.03 Standard Work Week 
4.04 Attendance  
4.05 Break Periods  
4.06 Disciplinary Action & Rules of Conduct  
4.07 Forms of & Procedures for Disciplinary Action 
4.08 Termination  
4.09 Pre-disciplinary Meeting  
4.10 Personnel Grievance Procedure  
4.11 Communication Use 
4.12 City Credit Card Use 
4.13 Use of City Property 
4.14 Use of Vehicles on City Business 

 
Section 5 Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan ........................................47 
 

5.01 General Provisions 
5.02 Classification Plan  
5.03 Salary Plan 
5.04 Payment of Salaries Benefits  

 
Section 6 Benefits .............................................................................................................55 
 

6.01 Applicability 
6.02 Legal Holidays  
6.03 Floating Holidays 
6.04 Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith or Conscience   
6.05 Vacation Leave  
6.06 Sick Leave 
6.07 Sick Leave Payments  
6.08 Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave 
6.09 Medical Leave of Absence  
6.10 Family and Medical Leave  
6.11 Family Care Leave 
6.12 Workers Compensation 
6.13 Bereavement Leave  
6.14 Military Leave  
6.15 Jury Duty  
6.16 Leave Without Pay 
6.17 Leave Due to Inclement Weather, other Significant Disruptions of the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
34



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

4 

Transportation System or State of Emergency 
6.18 Unauthorized Absence 
6.19 Insurance Benefit Plans 
6.20 Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) 
6.21 Health Insurance Opt-Out Program 
6.22 Retirement  
6.23 Optional Benefit or Investment Plans  

 
Section 7 Substance Abuse Policy …………………………………………………... 85 
 

7.01 Purpose  
7.02 Scope  
7.03 Policy  
7.04 Assistance Program/Voluntary Referral 
7.05 Compliance with Drug Free Workplace Act  
7.06 Compliance with Federal Regulations Applicable to Commercial  
Drivers 
7.07 Procedures for Drug/Alcohol Testing of Employees Other than  
Commercial Drivers 
7.08 Confidentiality and Record Retention 

 
Section 8 Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper 
Governmental Action and Protecting Employees against Retaliation (Whistle 
Blower) ..............................................................................................................................97 
 

8.01 Purpose  
8.02 Policy Statement  
8.03 Definitions  
8.04 Prohibited Conduct  
8.05 Prohibited Conduct After Leaving City 
8.06 Procedures for Reporting Improper Governmental Actions 
8.07 Complaints, Investigations, Review and Enforcement 
8.08 Protection Against Retaliatory Actions  
8.09 Responsibilities  
8.10 List of Agencies  

 
Section 9 - Sexual Harassment Prevention ................................................................111 
 

9.01 Purpose  
9.02 Policy and Objectives  
9.03 Definitions  
9.04 Reporting Procedures 
9.05 Violations of Policy 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
35



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

5 

 
Section 10 - Resource Conservation Guidelines ……………………………..……118 
 

10.01 Purpose  
10.02 Organization Affected 
10.03 Definitions  
10.04 Responsibilities 
10.05 Statements of Policy & Procedure 
10.06 Materials Use and Disposal 
10.07 Water and Sewer Conservation 

 
Section 11 - City of Buckley Wellness Program Policy…………………....………121 
 

11.01 Purpose  
11.02 Mission Statement 
11.03 Goals 
11.04 Scope 
11.05 Voluntary Participation 
11.06 Wellness Program Committee 
11.07 Program Budget 
11.08 Program Activities 
11.09 Program Involvement 

 
Acknowledgement of Receipt……………………………………………….………125 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
36



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

6 

Section 1 
Introduction 

1.01 Purpose  
1.02 Policy  
1.03 Goals  
1.04 Administration & Responsibility  
1.05 Distribution & Maintenance  
1.06 Employees Covered  
1.07 Super Seder  

1.01 Purpose  

The purpose of this Personnel Manual is to provide for a personnel management 
system within the City of Buckley government that deals with all employees in a 
fair and equitable manner while facilitating efficient service to the citizens of the 
community.  

1.02 Policy  

a) The City of Buckley will assure that recruitment, selection, retention and 
separation of city employees is based on qualifications and fitness, and is in 
compliance with federal and state laws.  

b) The city will provide for equal opportunity in employment practices and 
standards.  

c) The city will clarify through policies and procedures the rights and 
responsibilities of its employees.  

d) Employment with the City of Buckley depends on the need for work to be 
performed, the availability of funds, and the effective performance, good 
conduct, and continuing fitness of the employee for the position.  

1.03 Goals  

The goals of the policies established by this Manual include:  

a) To have city services as nearly perfect as it is possible to make them by 
encouraging employees to perform their duties to the best of their ability and 
to provide city services to the citizens of Buckley in a courteous and 
professional manner.  

b) To facilitate harmonious relations and clear communication between 
elected officials, administrators, managers, supervisors and employees.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
37



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

7 

c) To provide fair compensation for duties performed by its employees within 
the financial capacity of the city, including the provision of benefits and 
adequate working conditions.  

d) To provide a fair and open process for employees to air grievances or 
complaints without fear of recrimination, and a process for handling 
employee disciplinary matters.  

e) To provide an efficient personnel management system that deals with all 
employees in an equitable and uniform manner.  

1.04 Administration & Responsibility  

The City of Buckley is a second class code city of the State of Washington, 
operating under the Council-Mayor form of government.  

a) City Council - The City Council provides for uniform personnel policies 
and procedures through appropriate Council action. The City Council also 
determines the budgetary appropriations for all personnel costs, and 
approves personnel levels and positions through the budgetary process.  

b) Mayor - The Mayor is the Chief Administrative Officer of the city and is 
responsible for the initiation and administration of personnel policies for all 
employees. The Mayor may delegate the administration of policies as 
deemed appropriate. Where these policies specify Mayoral authority, those 
duties may be performed by the Mayor’s designee as assigned.  

c) City Administrator - The City Administrator supervises all departments in 
the best interests of the city and its employees.  

d) Department Managers - The Department Managers are responsible for 
specific departmental provisions of the personnel program. These provisions 
include, but are not limited to assignment of duties, scheduling, performance 
evaluation, training and discipline.  

e) Individual Employee - The City of Buckley strives to provide efficient, 
professional and courteous service to all city residents. To accomplish this 
goal, the Mayor and the City Council ask that every employee perform their 
duties to the best of their ability as a representative of the city.  

Each employee should understand these personnel policies keeping in mind 
the City’s public service mission. It is the employee’s responsibility to meet 
desirable levels of performance of these public duties. Employees are 
encouraged to ask their Department Manager any questions about the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
38



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

8 

Personnel Policies & Procedures, and discuss concerns or suggestions 
regarding the employee’s job.  

1.05 Distribution & Maintenance  

Each employee will be issued one copy of this Manual and will be responsible for 
reviewing the policy and procedures and verifying such by signing the 
confirmation statement in Appendix A.  

Three official copies will be maintained by the City Clerk’s Office and open to 
employee and public inspection on request.  

1.06 Employees Covered  

These personnel rules apply to all city employees except elected officials, 
independent contractors, or employees specified as exempt by the Mayor or as 
otherwise exempted by other contract /agreements or as specified in these 
policies; provided however, in cases where these personnel policies conflict with 
collective bargaining agreements duly agreed upon between authorized employee 
organizations or unions and the city, the provisions of the collective bargaining 
agreements shall govern.  

1.07 Super Seder  

The city specifically reserves the right to repeal, modify or amend these policies at 
any time, with or without notice. As the need arises, the Mayor may modify these 
policies, except that the City Council, by resolution, shall enact any changes in 
compensation or benefit levels. None of these provisions shall be deemed to create 
a vested contractual right in any employee or to limit the power of the Mayor or 
City Council to repeal or modify these rules. The policies are not to be interpreted 
as promises of specific treatment.  

All prior rules, regulations, policies and manuals of the city, which may be in 
conflict, are superseded by this manual, unless otherwise specified.  

Should any conflict arise between the rules established in this Manual and any 
ordinance of the city, such ordinance shall take precedence. If any section, sub-
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Manual is found by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or illegal, such findings shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Manual.  

These policies and procedures are subject to all applicable existing or future laws 
or regulations of the State of Washington and the Federal government (as 
amended from time to time). Wherever there is a conflict between the provisions 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
39



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

9 

of these policies and procedures and any applicable law or regulation, the 
provision of the law or regulation shall govern.  

 

Section 2 
Definitions 

2.01 Anniversary Date: The anniversary date shall be the first day of the month 
closest to the date of initial appointment to a regular budgeted position, and shall 
be used to calculate sick and annual leave accrual, and years of service. For years 
of service, employment must be continuous or broken only by approved leave of 
absence. The calendar month shall be divided from the 1st to the 15th and the 16th 
to the last day, with the anniversary date established by determining in which half 
the date of appointment occurred. For salary adjustments and step increases, 
“anniversary date” shall mean the first day of the month closest to the date of 
appointment to the position that the employee is currently serving. 

2.02 Appointing Authority: The Mayor of the City of Buckley. 

2.03 Appointment Status – Regular Full-Time: Those who are not in a temporary 
or probationary status and who are regularly scheduled to work a 40-hour week. 
Generally, they are eligible for the City’s benefit packages, subject to the specific 
terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefit package. 

2.04 Appointment Status - Probationary: Those whose performance is being 
evaluated to determine whether further employment in a specific position or with 
the City is appropriate. Employees who satisfactorily complete the probationary 
period will be notified of their new classification. Generally, they are eligible for 
the City’s benefit packages, subject to the specific terms, conditions, and 
limitations of each benefit package.  
 
2.05 Appointment Status – Regular Part-Time (with benefits): Those who are not 
assigned to a temporary or probationary status and who are scheduled to work 30 
hours or more, but less than 40 hours per week. These employees are eligible for 
the City’s full benefit packages, subject to the specific terms, conditions, and 
limitations of each benefit package. 
 
2.06 Appointment Status - Part Time (partial benefits):  Those who are not 
assigned to a temporary or probationary status and those who are regularly 
scheduled to work less than thirty (30) hours per week.  These employees are 
eligible for the City’s benefit package on a pro-rata basis, subject to the specific 
terms, conditions, limitations of each benefit package.  Part-time employees who 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
40



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

10 

are not regularly scheduled, regardless of the number of hours, are not entitled to 
benefits under this personnel manual, provided, however, that the employees will 
be entitled to all benefits required to be provided in accordance with state and 
federal law and under the provisions of the City’s insurance policies.   

 
2.07 Appointment Status – Temporary or Seasonal: Those who are hired as 
interim replacements, to temporarily supplement the work force or to assist in the 
completion of a specific project or as seasonal staff. Staff assignments in this 
category, while they may be of either a full-time or part-time nature, are of a 
specified and limited duration, not to exceed eight months in any 12-month 
period. Employment beyond any initially stated periods does not in any way 
imply a change in staff status. Temporary staff retains that status unless and until 
notified in writing of a change. The City may offer healthcare coverage to certain 
temporary employees and their dependents on a self-pay basis. In order for a 
temporary employee to be eligible for this benefit on a self-pay basis the employee 
must be appointed to a temporary position that is intended to continue for at least 
6 months.  

2.08 Appointment Status - Acting: An appointment for a limited period of time of 
a current employee to a higher classification to fill a temporary or emergent need. 

2.09 Chemical Dependency: Addiction to alcohol or chemical substances of a 
prescription or illegal nature. 

2.10 City: The municipal corporation of the State of Washington known as the City 
of Buckley. 

2.11 City Council: The elected legislative body of the City, composed of seven 
members. 

2.12 Classification Specification: A written documentation of all job duties and 
responsibilities for each position classification in the City, in the form of a 
classification specification for each authorized classification. 

2.13 Classification Plan: A written documentation of all job duties and 
responsibilities for each position classification in the city, in the form of a 
classification specification for each authorized classification. 

2.14 Controlled Substances: Those substances whose dissemination is regulated 
by state or federal law including, but not limited to, narcotics, depressants, 
stimulants, hallucinogens, cannabis and other drugs. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
41



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

11 

2.15 Drugs: Any substance which, in the opinion of his or her supervisor, impairs 
an employee's ability to perform his or her job or which poses a threat to the safety 
of others. This definition includes prescription and over-the-counter medications. 

2.16 Day: Means a twenty-four (24) hour period. 

2.17 Days: Means consecutive calendar days, unless otherwise specified. 

2.18 Demotion: The movement of an employee from a position in one pay grade 
to a position with a lower pay grade; or the movement of an employee from one 
pay step within a pay grade to a lower pay step within the same pay grade. 

2.19 Department Manager: An employee of the City who, for the purpose of this 
manual, serves as the department supervisor or who has been designated by the 
City Administrator as a member of the city's management team. 

2.20 Early Retirement Incentive Program. An arrangement for Retirement before 
PERS and/or Social Security Full Retirement Age with incentives as provided in a 
written contract between the City and the retiree, consistent with the provisions of 
this policy. 

2.21 Employee - Individual: Any individual appointed to a position of service 
with the City. 

2.22 Employee - Full Time: An employee who has received an appointment to a 
budgeted position on a full work week, year around basis. 

2.23 Employee - Part Time: An employee who has received an appointment to a 
budgeted position on less than 40-hour work week basis. 

2.24 Exemptions (Exempt Employees): An employee determined to be exempt 
from the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act. 
 
2.25 Family - Immediate: A relative by blood or marriage, or legal adoption, who 
is a member of the employees household under the same roof; or, regardless of 
residence, any parent, step-parent, grandparent, spouse, state registered domestic 
partner, child, brother, sister, or grandchild of the employee. 

2.26 Grievance: An employee's verbal or written expression of dissatisfaction with 
some aspect of these rules and regulations affecting him or her, for the purpose of 
resolving their concern. 

2.27 Holiday: Those special days off granted to the employees in addition to 
vacation and sick leave. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
42



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

12 

2.28 Impaired: A deterioration of an individual’s judgment and decrease in his or 
her physical ability. Used primarily in criminal law; driving under the influence 
of alcohol/drug law in regards to a person’s physical or mental impairment. 

2.29 Lateral Transfer: An employee transfer from one classification to another 
classification with the same pay grade, or within the same classification or pay 
grade from one department to another. 

2.30 Layoff: Non-disciplinary termination of an employee, either permanently or 
for a specified period of time, due to financial circumstances or a change in the 
need for which the position held was created. 

2.31 Leave: An authorized absence from regularly scheduled work hours which 
has been approved by the proper authority. 

2.32 Letter of Appointment: The document officially assigning a person to a 
position within the City which may also be a two-party agreement or contract if 
signed by the employee and approved by the Mayor and City Council. 

2.33 Merit Increase Date: The date on which the employee receives the annual pay 
increment within the current salary range. 

2.34 Overtime: Time a non-exempt employee is directed or authorized to work in 
excess of the regular week. Sick leave, vacations and holidays shall be counted as 
time worked for the purpose of computing overtime. 

2.35 Performance Evaluation: A written appraisal of work performance of an 
employee designed to inform management and the employee of the manner in 
which the employee is meeting established work standards and to offer 
constructive suggestions or requirements for improvement. 

2.36 Position: A combination of duties and responsibilities assigned to and 
performed by an individual. 

2.37 Probationary Period: An extension of the selection process during which an 
employee is required to demonstrate ability to perform the duties of the position. 

2.38 Promotion: The movement of an employee from a position in one pay grade 
to a position requiring duties and responsibilities of higher qualifications and a 
higher pay grade. 

2.39 Reallocation: The movement of a position from one pay grade to another pay 
grade found to be more appropriate as a result of an analysis of the duties of the 
position and classification specification. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
43



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

13 

2.40 Reclassification: The revision of a classification specification as a result of 
analysis of the duties, responsibilities, minimum qualifications, and salary 
requirements; may include classification title change. 

2.41 Resignation: A voluntary separation from employment initiated by or 
submitted by an employee. 

2.42 Retirement. The full or partial termination of regular compensated service as 
an Employee concurrently with the initiation of the receipt of retirement benefit 
payments or annuities under an applicable retirement program such as but not 
limited to IRC 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plans, PERS, LEOFF, Social Security, 
etc. 

2.43 Salary Plan: A series of salary ranges for each classification of the City, setting 
forth each pay step for each pay grade and adopted by the City Council. 

2.44 Sexual Harassment: Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
and other verbal or physical conduct as defined in State and Federal Laws. 
 
2.45 Sexual Orientation: Actual or perceived male or female heterosexuality or 
homosexuality including a person's attitudes, preferences, beliefs and practices 
pertaining thereto. 

2.46 Spouse: The wife or husband of an employee, not legally separated from the 
employee. 

2.47 State registered domestic partners: means two adults who meet the 
requirements for a valid state registered domestic partnership as established by 
section 4 of SB - 5336 and who have been issued a certificate of state registered 
domestic partnership by the Secretary of State. 

2.48 Supervisor: An employee having the authority to direct another employee or 
employees within their department and recommend the hiring, transfer, 
suspension, layoff, promotion, dismissal, assignment, reward, or discipline of 
another employee, and the responsibility to adjust the employee's grievances. 

2.49 Suspension: A temporary removal from duty with or without pay of an 
employee for disciplinary purposes or for the purpose of investigating accusations 
brought against an employee. 

2.50 Termination: Involuntary separation of an employee from employment with 
the City. 

2.51 Work Week: The total of scheduled work hours in a calendar week. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
44



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

14 

Section 3 
General Policies and Procedures 

3.01 Appointing Authority  
3.02 Equal Employment Opportunity  
3.03 Recruitment and Selection  
3.04 Nepotism  
3.05 Position Designation  
3.06 Appointments  
3.07 Appointment Status  
3.08 Probationary Period  
3.09 Employee Performance Evaluation Program  
3.10 Reduction-In-Force  
3.11 Re-Employment  
3.12 Resignation  
3.13 Exit Interview  
3.14 Personnel Records  
3.15 Employment References  
3.16 Retention of Personnel Records  
3.17 Identification of Employees  
3.18 Education and Training  
3.19 Suggestions  

3.01 Appointing Authority  

The Mayor is the appointing authority with power of appointment, discipline or 
removal of all employees. The Mayor may delegate the authority to approve the 
appointment, discipline or removal of employees as deemed appropriate, subject 
to any applicable Civil Service Rules or provisions of valid labor contracts.  

3.02 Equal Employment Opportunity 

The City is an equal employment opportunity employer. The City employs, 
retains, promotes, terminates and otherwise treats all employees and job 
applicants on the basis of merit, qualifications, and competence. This policy shall 
be applied without regard to any individual's sex, race, color, religion, national 
origin, pregnancy, age, marital status, medical condition, physical handicap or 
disability. 

The City will not discriminate against applicants or employees with a sensory, 
physical or mental impairment, unless the impairment cannot be reasonably 
accommodated and prevents proper performance of an essential element of the 
job.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
45



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

15 

Employees with life threatening illnesses, such as cancer, heart disease, or 
AIDS/HIV conditions, or communicable diseases such as tuberculosis or 
influenza, are treated the same as all other employees. They are permitted to 
continue working so long as they are able to maintain an acceptable level of 
performance and medical evidence shows they are not a threat to themselves or 
their co-workers. The City will work to preserve the safety of all of its employees 
and reserves the right to reassign employees or take other job actions when a 
substantial and unusual safety risk to fellow City employees or the public exists. 

3.03 Recruitment and Selection  

Available positions are publicized for a reasonable period by announcements 
posted on city department bulletin boards and by such other means as deemed 
appropriate. Announcements may specify the title, rate of pay, duties to be 
performed and required minimum qualifications. 

When filling a vacancy, the City will, whenever possible, promote a qualified 
employee to the position before considering outside applicants. Job openings will 
be posted in-house on designated bulletin boards, and employees who can meet 
the requirements of the position will be encouraged to apply  

3.04 Nepotism  

Members of the immediate family of city employees or elected officials members 
will not be hired if one or more of the following applies, as determined by the 
Mayor:  

a) One member would have the authority or practical power to supervise, 
hire, remove or discipline the other; or  

b) One member would be responsible for financially auditing the work of the 
other; or  

c) One member would handle confidential material which may create the 
appearance of improper or inappropriate access to that material by the other.  

3.05 Position Designation  

All budgeted positions are designated as either full-time or part-time. Employees 
in part-time positions that work less than a 20-hour work week are not entitled to 
benefits, unless otherwise specified in the letter of appointment, employment 
contract or bargaining agreement, and approved by the Mayor.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
46



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

16 

Those employees who are not assigned to a temporary or probationary status and 
who are scheduled to work 20 hours or more, but less than 40 hours per week are 
eligible for the City’s benefit packages on a pro rata basis, subject to the specific 
terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefit package.  

Those employees who are assigned to full-time positions and who are scheduled 
to work 40 hours or more per week are eligible for the City’s benefit packages, 
subject to the specific terms, conditions, and limitations of each benefit package. 
 
3.06 Appointments  
 

a) All appointments to vacancies are made solely on the basis of merit, 
efficiency and fitness for the position as determined through evaluation 
and/or testing procedures appropriate for the position.  

b) All appointments to positions in the City of Buckley will be by letter of 
appointment or employment contract, setting forth conditions of 
employment and appointment status. The employment relationship is at will 
of the parties and may be terminated at any time in accordance with 
applicable personnel rules, contract or Civil Service Rules and Regulations.  

3.07 Appointment Status  

3.07.01 Regular. All appointments to full-time and part-time positions in the 
City of Buckley are regular status unless special employment conditions are 
necessary. If it is determined that special conditions apply, they will be 
specified in the appointment letter and made a condition of employment.  

3.07.02 Probationary. All new employees appointed to regular positions are 
in probationary status and subject to the conditions of the probationary 
period.  

3.07.03 Temporary. A temporary appointment may be made to any position 
in the City of Buckley. Temporary appointments are for a limited period of 
time and employees are not entitled to city benefits unless authorized by the 
Mayor as special conditions. All conditions of a temporary appointment will 
be specified in the letter of appointment or contract. Seasonal employment is 
considered temporary appointment status. Temporary employees do not 
attain regular status in the classification, have no grievance rights and may 
be terminated at will.  

3.07.04 Acting. When the need arises to fill a position due to approved leave 
of absence, disciplinary actions or when a vacancy exists, a current regular 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
47



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

17 

status employee may be appointed "acting" to a position of higher pay grade 
or to a position of differing classification. Such appointments are for a limited 
time to fill a temporary vacancy. Employees will not attain regular status in 
the higher position from an acting appointment and will be returned to the 
previous classification. No probationary period is required for an acting 
appointment.  

3.07.05 Trial Performance. A regular status employee promoted to a position 
of changed responsibility, new duties, or higher pay within the city will serve 
a six-month trial performance period in the new position. This trial 
performance is to ensure the employee meets the desired performance levels 
of the higher position which will be determined through written performance 
evaluations. If it is determined that the promoted employee cannot for any 
reason perform the duties of the higher position as required, they will be 
returned to the former position, if vacant, or similar vacant position within 
the same department.  

3.08 Probationary Period.  

3.08.01 All regular status employees with the exception of a Department 
Manager, whether part-time or full-time, will be required to serve a 
probationary period for six months from the date of employment. A current 
employee in any appointment status may be placed on probation for 
disciplinary reasons after the initial six month probationary period has been 
served.  

Department Managers will be required to serve a probationary period for 
twelve months from the date of employment.  

3.08.02 At appropriate intervals, the Department Manager will determine 
through a written Employee Performance Evaluation whether each employee 
is performing the job satisfactorily. If the employee's performance is 
satisfactory after the appropriate probation period the Department Manager 
will recommend to the Mayor through the final written evaluation that the 
employee be taken off probation and placed on regular status.  

3.08.03 If an employee's performance is not satisfactory during the 
probationary period, the Department Manager may recommend termination 
of employment at any time during the probation or, in special circumstances, 
request that the Mayor extend the probationary period up to an additional 
six months, and shall be specified in writing to the employee. In the event the 
employee's performance is still unsatisfactory, the employee may be 
terminated at any time within the extended probationary period.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
48



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

18 

3.08.04 A probationary status employee will accrue vacation and sick leave 
and receive all other benefits of regular status employees. However, vacation 
leave will not be taken during any probationary period.  

3.08.05 A probationary status employee has no grievance rights and may be 
terminated at will.  

3.08.06 Provisions for length of probationary period and termination during 
the probationary period are subject to any applicable Civil Service rules for 
those classifications covered under Civil Service Rules and Regulations.  

3.09 Employee Performance Evaluation Program  

An employee performance evaluation program, as authorized by the City 
Administrator, will be conducted for all employees as determined necessary by 
the supervisor/rater, but not less than yearly. Probationary status employees will 
be evaluated per Section 3.08.  

3.10 Reduction-In-Force  

Fluctuating revenue and budget conditions may from time to time force the city to 
reduce personnel in one or more departments or programs. This reduction may be 
accomplished by either of the following methods:  

3.10.01 Lateral Transfer: This is a method of employee transfer from one 
classification to another classification with the same pay grade or within the 
same classification or pay grade from one department to another. When done 
for budgeting purposes, such transfer would normally be for the duration of 
the financial problem only. A lateral transfer must be approved by the Mayor.  

3.10.02 Layoff: A layoff is a method of permanent termination of the 
employee due to financial circumstances or a change in the need for which 
the position or positions was created. A layoff must be approved by the 
Mayor. No regular employee shall be laid off while another person in the 
same classification is employed on a probationary, temporary, acting or part-
time basis. In determining which employees in any classification are to be 
laid off, consideration is to be given to individual performance and then to 
seniority in the positions to be affected.  

3.11 Re-Employment  

Regular full-time employees terminated as a result of lay-off may be offered the 
first opportunity to fill comparable vacant positions that become available. These 
employees will be placed on the City's job announcement mailing list for a period 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
49



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

19 

of one year from the effective date of lay-off to assist them in applying for other 
job vacancies with the city for which they are qualified.  

3.12 Resignation  

3.12.01 An employee wishing to leave city service in good standing will file 
with the Department Manager a written resignation, including a statement 
as the reasons for resigning and the effective date of resignation. The written 
resignation notice will be completed at least two weeks prior to the effective 
date of resignation. Notice requirements may be waived by the Department 
Manager.  

3.12.02 The City Administrator and Department Managers shall be subject to 
Rule 3.11.01 except that they shall be required to give at least four weeks 
notice to the Mayor. Notice requirements may be waived by the supervisor.  

3.12.03 A copy of the resignation notice and a final performance evaluation 
report shall be placed in the personnel file of the employee.  

3.13 Exit Interview  

3.13.01 In the event of separation from employment of a regular status 
employee, an exit interview shall be conducted with the employee. All 
terminating employees will receive an Exit Questionnaire prior to the exit 
interview. The exit interview will be conducted on the employee’s last work 
day.  

1. In the case of any separation from employment, the exit interview will 
be conducted by the Department Manager and will consist of a discussion 
of:  

a) The reasons for separation from employment, i.e. resignation, 
termination, and lay-off including re-employment options, if any.  

b) Determination of any complicating factors of the separation, 
including whether work related injuries have been sustained by the 
employee.  

c) Arrangement for the return of all City-owned uniforms, equipment 
and other City-owned items.  

d) An explanation to the employee of the effects of separation of 
employment on benefits provisions and contributions to the Public 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
50



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

20 

Employees Retirement System, the amount of vacation leave accrued 
and the method and amount of payment.  

2. The employee will be afforded the opportunity to constructively 
comment on city employment through a discussion with the department 
Manager, City Administrator or Mayor.  

3.13.02 A summary of the exit interview will be placed in the personnel file 
of the employee.  

3.14  Personnel Records  

3.14.01 Personnel records will be maintained for each employee and are the 
property of the city. Personnel records will show the employee's name, title 
of position held, the department assigned, salary, change in appointment 
status, training received, with the exception of Police and Fire Department 
in-service training maintained in Departmental files, performance 
evaluations, fringe benefits administration, including vacation and sick leave 
rates of accumulation and use, notes regarding disciplinary action or other 
counseling sessions, and such other information as may be considered 
pertinent.  

3.14.02 Employee Records are confidential and accessible only to the 
employee, the employee's Department Manager, the City Administrator and 
the Mayor, or other staff assigned to the personnel file.  

3.14.03 Employees are entitled to review their own personnel file at least once 
annually, or otherwise upon approval of the Department Manager. Employee 
review will be conducted in the presence of authorized personnel.  

3.14.04 Confidential personnel records will not be released to any 
unauthorized individuals except with the written consent of the employee or 
in response to valid court orders or government requests directing the 
provision of information from personnel records.  

3.14.05 Employees have the opportunity to submit a letter of rebuttal 
regarding any information contained in their file that is in dispute.  

3.15  Employment References  

3.15.01 Unless otherwise required by a valid court order, the city will furnish 
only the following information about past or present city employees to 
persons outside city government.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
51



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

21 

1. Dates of Employment  
2. Current job title or job title at date of termination.  
3. Verification of salary information  
4. Employment references  

3.15.02 All requests for any information regarding past or present city 
employees will be directed immediately to the City Administrator. All other 
personnel will not respond directly to any requests for information. Due to 
potential liability to the city, all requests for employment references are to be 
referred to the appropriate Department Manager, the City Administrator or 
Mayor.  

3.16  Retention of Personnel Records  

Personnel records that are not confidential will be maintained and destroyed in 
accordance with established policy regarding public records. Confidential 
personnel records and payroll records may be destroyed five (5) years after the 
employee has ceased to work for the city, or at an earlier date as determined by 
the Mayor.  

3.17 Identification of Employees  

3.17.01 It is the policy of the city that when on duty, all employees be visible 
and identifiable to the public to the maximum extent compatible with 
assigned work duties. All city furnished uniforms or work clothing are to be 
maintained in a presentable manner by the employee. "Presentable manner" 
will be determined by the Department Manager.  

3.17.02 City-furnished uniforms remain the property of the city at all times. 
Uniforms will be worn only on duty or during additional approved volunteer 
activities that are identical to those performed while on duty. Wearing of 
uniform items while commuting between a home and the work location may 
be permitted providing that the wearer does not participate in any interim 
activity where the image and good name of the city might be negatively 
affected. For example, city uniforms are not to be worn in an establishment 
while consuming alcoholic beverages.  

3.17.03 The outer garment of each uniform furnished by the city will bear the 
official insignia of the city and other such markings or emblems as each 
Department Manager may specify, except that rain gear may be identified 
otherwise. The Department Manager will determine the appropriateness of 
the employee name on the uniform. Proper location of such insignia and 
names on the uniform will be determined by the Department Manager.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
52



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

22 

3.17.04 All employees who come in direct contact with the public outside the 
City-owned buildings may be required to carry an identification card issued 
by the city. If issued the card will contain name, title, department, address 
and telephone number of work location; and in some circumstances, a head 
and shoulders photograph and certification that said person is an employee 
of the City of Buckley.  

3.17.05 All City-issued identification, uniforms and other City-owned 
materials or property in the employee's possession must be surrendered to 
the city before issuance of a final paycheck upon termination of that 
employee.  

3.18  Education and Training  

It is the intent of the city to provide maximum flexibility as well as good budgetary 
control of schooling and training for employees. All training must be job related 
and included in departmental budgets.  

3.18.01 Education and Training  
 

a) Education and training as required by the Department Manager will 
be paid wholly by the city.  

b) Funding for education expenses or training costs requested by the 
employee for job enhancement may be wholly paid by the city or shared 
with the employee, depending on the nature of the training and the job-
related need, as approved by the Department Manager.  

c) When training is paid by the city, an employment agreement may be 
required specifying length of employment duration with the city.  

d) Education or training requested by the employee, where expenses are 
approved for payment by the city, will be reimbursed provided a 
satisfactory grade of "C" or above, or certification of satisfactory 
completion, is received and that proof of completion is presented with 
request for reimbursement. Expenses which may be approved by the 
Department Manager and included in requests for city reimbursement 
are tuition, books, and training registration fees, or a combination of 
those costs.  

e) Compensation for time spent by employees on training programs will 
be in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
53



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

23 

3.19 Suggestions  

All employees are encouraged to make suggestions which will improve efficiency 
of city operations, or employee job satisfaction. Even ideas for other departments 
of the city are helpful. Suggestions may be written or verbally given to the 
employee's supervisor at any time. The supervisor will then discuss the idea with 
the appropriate person or group.  

 

Section 4 
General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 

4.01 Personal Appearance, Conduct & Attitude  
4.02 Hours of Work  
4.03 Standard Work Week  
4.04 Attendance  
4.05 Work Breaks  
4.06 Disciplinary Action  
4.07 Forms of and Procedures for Disciplinary Action  
4.08 Termination  
4.09 Pre-disciplinary Meeting  
4.10 Personnel Grievance  
4.11 Communication Use 
4.12 City Credit Card Use 
4.13 Use of City Property 
4.14 Use of Vehicles on City Business 

4.01 Personal Appearance, Conduct & Attitude  

Employees shall wear appropriate attire for their position and department, as 
determined by the Department Manager. Most City jobs involve contact with the 
public and other employees. Dress, grooming, and hygiene standards which are 
compatible with a professional, business-like atmosphere and which demonstrate 
respect for co-workers should be observed. A neat and presentable appearance is 
required at all times while on the job and representing the City of Buckley. 
Employees are expected to be positive in attitude even when dealing with citizens 
under strained or emotional conditions. 

4.01.01 Uniforms. Should uniforms, safety apparel, or equipment be required 
for a particular position, they will be provided at City expense as provided 
for in administrative regulations. Except for exigent circumstances, uniforms 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
54



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

24 

identifiable with the City of Buckley shall only be worn to and from work 
and during hours of work or duty. 

4.01.02 Aromatic Sensitivities. Some employees may be sensitive and/or 
have allergies to smells and/or fragrances. Please be courteous to those 
around you when cooking strong smelling foods, such as fish, in common 
areas not designated as the lunchroom, and/or eating such food at your desk, 
as well as when using scented products, such as air fresheners, sprays, 
potpourri, lotions, makeup and colognes/perfumes. Scents linger and travel 
from workspace to workspace affecting those that may have sensitivities. 

4.01.03 Jewelry and Personal Decoration.  Accessories should be in good 
taste, with limited visible body piercing and no visible tattoos that may be 
offensive to others. The City prohibits any visible tattoo that is offensive. 
“Offensive” tattoos include, but are not limited to, any body tattoo or decal 
depicting nudity, violence, sexually explicit or vulgar art or words, or that is 
objectionable or demeaning to the image of the City. In general, if the City’s 
other policies (e.g., Harassment Prevention) or Conduct (e.g., Respect) would 
prohibit the speaking of the words, or display of the art, in the workplace 
then the tattoos, jewelry or body piercing(s) may not be visibly worn at work. 
Employees may wear jewelry or body piercing(s) that does not detract from 
the overall professional appearance or that does not interfere with or diminish the 
effectiveness of personal protective equipment that may be required to perform the 
duties of their job position.  Supervisors have the sole discretion to decide 
whether visible tattoos, jewelry or body piercing(s) are appropriate for the 
job position.  
 
Hats and head covers that are required for medical or religious purposes or 
to honor cultural tradition are allowed and may also be worn upon prior 
approval of the Mayor and Department Head. 
 
If clothing fails to meet these standards, as determined by the employee’s 
supervisor and Department Head, employees may be sent home to make 
appropriate changes. Failure to return to work in compliance with the request 
will also be considered a violation of this policy. Progressive disciplinary 
action will be applied if dress code violations occur. 
 

4.02 Hours of Work  
A standard work day and normal operating hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., 
with a 1 hour unpaid lunch period, or 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. with a ½ hour unpaid 
lunch period, Monday through Friday, except those days designated as official 
holidays. Alternative work schedules pursuant to Section 4.03.02 may be jointly 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
55



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

25 

considered by the employee and the department manager subject to final approval 
by the Mayor.  

4.03 Standard Work Week  

4.03.01 Full-time city employees work 40 hours per week. Unless otherwise 
approved in writing by the City the 7 day work week for each employee will 
be 12:00 midnight Sunday through 11:59 p.m. Saturday.  
 
4.03.02 Alternative work schedules. The purpose of this provision is to 
establish guidelines for alternate work schedules and hours of work for City 
employees, keeping in mind that the use of alternative work schedules is 
offered in the City’s discretion, and is not an entitlement for any employee. 
 
An alternative work schedule may have several advantages, including: 

 
♦ Increased ability to serve the public who need extended hours  
♦ Employees travel to and from work with less stress during off-peak 

hours 
♦ Less use of leave time due to greater flexibility in planning personal 

and medical appointments 
♦ Increased employee morale 
♦ Employees can choose to work during their most productive hours 

(flextime) 
♦ Changes can be implemented city-wide or by department, 

depending on need 
♦ Flex time allows employees the option of adjusting their starting and 

ending times for the purpose of adapting their schedules to optimize 
use of mass transit, vanpools, and carpools. 

♦ Reducing congestion on the highways and saving energy from 
reduced commute times 

 
4.03.03  Organizations Affected. All Departments. Should any provision of 
a collective bargaining agreement (CBA) conflict with this policy, the 
provisions of the CBA shall apply and govern.  
 
4.03.04   Work Schedules.  The normal work schedule of the City is the 
Five/Eight Schedule. Depending on the needs of the City and the interests 
of the employees, employees may be authorized to work one of the 
schedules listed below: 

 
1. Five/Eight (5/8) Schedule.  Eight hours per day, five days per week. 
Generally, employees will be assigned to work either 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
56



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

26 

with a ½ hour unpaid lunch period, or 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., with a 1 hour 
unpaid lunch period.   
 
2. Four/forty (4/40) Schedule.  Under this schedule, employees work four 
10-hour days. The fifth day is a day off.  Generally the schedule will be 
Monday-Thursday, or Tuesday-Friday, but may be varied depending on 
the needs of the City. Generally, employees will be assigned to work 7:00 
a.m. to 5:30 p.m. with a ½ hour unpaid lunch period, or 7:30 a.m. to 6:00 
p.m. with a ½ hour unpaid lunch period.   
 
3. Nine/eighty (9/80) Schedule.  This schedule allows employees to work 
their usual number of hours in a 2 week period (80 hours in 9 days). The 
tenth day is off. Generally, employees will be assigned to work four (4) nine 
(9) hour days during a seven (7) day period and four (4) nine (9) hour days 
and an eight (8) hour day for the adjoining seven (7) day period. Normal 
working hours are either 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. with a ½ hour unpaid lunch 
period, 8:30 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. with a ½ hour unpaid lunch period, 7:00 a.m. 
to 5:00 p.m., with a 1 hour unpaid lunch period, or 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., 
with a 1 hour unpaid lunch period.  This schedule normally provides every 
other Friday off.  To earn the 10th day off, employees work nine-hour days 
Monday through Thursday, giving them 36 hours. Then on Friday, they 
work a regular eight-hour day, four hours of which count for the first week 
and the other four for the next week. On the second week, they again work 
Monday through Thursday for nine hours each day, giving them 80 hours 
for the two weeks, and the 10th day (Friday) off. 

 
a) 9/80 Work Schedule Explanation. Consideration of the option for 
an employee to operate under a 9/80 work schedule shall be subject to 
the discretion of the Department Head and Mayor. For clarification 
purposes a 9/80 work schedule as referred to in this document is a work 
schedule covering a 14-day work cycle period in which an employee is 
assigned to work four (4) nine (9) hour days during a seven (7) day 
period and four (4) nine (9) hour days and an eight (8) hour day for the 
adjoining seven (7) day period.  
 
Shifts will be scheduled with starting and stopping times as directed by 
the Department Head. Only those employees authorized by the Mayor 
will be able to participate in the 9/80 work schedule.  The City reserves 
the right to schedule personnel on or off of the 9/80 work schedule as 
necessary.  Should any employee on the 9/80 plan become ill or injured 
requiring time off from the job or modified job duties, that employee 
may be assigned to a five (5) day, forty (40) hour work week.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
57



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

27 

In compliance with Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), the City will 
establish a new work period for employees participating in the 9/80 
work schedule. For the purposes of FLSA compliance, the work week is 
defined as beginning at the mid-point of the eight (8) hour day  
during the first seven (7) day work period, whether Friday or Monday. 
The second seven (7) day work period begins at the mid-point of the 
scheduled day off, whether Friday or Monday.  
 
The purpose of defining the workweek as beginning in the middle of an 
8-hour shift is to allocate hours so that the employee is not working 
more than 40 hours per workweek, and thus, is not accruing an 
entitlement to overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per 
week.  The employee will be required to acknowledge that he or she 
understands this allocations of hours, and that no overtime hours will 
be accrued, before being allowed to work this shift 

 
4. Accruing and Using Sick Leave, Vacation Leave and Holiday Pay While 
On An Alternative Work Schedule.  

 
a)   Sick leave and vacation leave will continue to accrue at the regular 
rate. When an employee takes a full day of sick or vacation leave, the 
time charged will be equivalent to the full number of hours the 
employee was scheduled to work. 
 
This compensates for actual time absent for regularly scheduled work 
hours. For example, an employee accruing eight (8) hours per month in 
sick leave is absent for a full day that he/she is scheduled to work ten 
(10) hours. The time charged for sick leave would be ten (10) hours. 
 
b)   When a paid holiday falls on an employee's regularly scheduled 
work day, the employee will be paid ten (10) hours of holiday pay. Any 
accrued paid holiday hours must be utilized in the calendar year in 
which they have been earned. Accrued holiday hours not used by 
December 31st of each year will be lost to the employee; however 
accrued holiday hours earned in November and December of each 
calendar year may be carried over into the following year but must be 
used by January 31 of that following year. 

 
5. Lunch and Break Periods. The current practice of two (2) fifteen (15) 
minute paid breaks and one-half (1/2) hour unpaid lunch period shall 
remain in effect.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
58



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

28 

6. Limitations. Service under any alternate schedule will NOT result in the 
employee’s working more than 40 hours per work week and no entitlement 
to overtime pay shall accrue on account of working this schedule. The 
employee may be asked to sign an acknowledgement that he or she will not 
be accruing overtime simply on account of working this schedule, before 
the City authorizes this schedule. 

 
7. Modifications. Modifications in shifts are made at the sole discretion of 
the Department Head and should the 9/80 or 4/40 prove to be financially 
or otherwise unfeasible or not the most efficient means of service delivery, 
the City reserves the right to immediately cancel the 9/80 or 4/40, upon 
notifying the employee of such an intent. 

 
4.03.05   Flex Time - Staggered Work Hours.  Depending on the needs of the 
City and the interests of the employee, employees may adjust their arrival 
and departure times from 15 minutes to 1 hour under any of the authorized 
schedules. The may be done for a single day, or on a recurring basis. Flex 
time requires approval of the Department Head and coordination with the 
City Administrator.   
 
4.03.06   Telework.  Regular telework, also known as telecommuting or 
working-at-home, is defined as a mutually agreed-upon work option 
between the City and the employee where the employee works at a 
telework site (home or an alternative work site) on specified days and/or 
hours, and at the central work site the remainder of the time, retaining 
flexibility as necessary to meet the needs of the work unit. Regular telework 
may be scheduled for up to two days per week as agreed upon by the Mayor 
or designee and the employee.  

 
4.03.07   Criteria for Approval.  In determining whether to consider a 
request for an alternate work schedule, flex time, or telework, department 
heads shall be guided by the following criteria. The primary criterion shall 
be customer service. Will a change from the normal 5/8 work schedule:  

 
♦ Maintain or increase access by and service to the citizenry; 
♦ Facilitate teamwork; 
♦ Facilitate supervisory assistance; 
♦ Increase productivity; 
♦ Reduce traffic congestion; 
♦ Reduce commuting time; or 
♦ Promote Energy conservation? 

 
4.03.08   Attendance - Notices.  Employees are expected to be ready to begin 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
59



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

29 

work at the start of the shift.  Advance notice of anticipated tardiness is 
expected; notice of unavoidable tardiness is expected when possible.  
Failure to do so may be construed as an unexcused absence, and the day 
missed treated as unpaid leave.  Tardiness must be made up during the pay 
period in which it occurs.  Notification by another employee, friend, or 
relative is not considered proper except in an emergency situation where 
the employee is physically unable to make the notification. Nonattendance 
records should be maintained by each department, including date, time 
absent and reason for absence.  The appointing authority will consider 
attendance in determining promotions, transfers, satisfactory completion of 
probationary periods, and continued employment with the City.  Frequent 
tardiness or other attendance irregularities is cause for disciplinary action.   
 
4.03.09   Temporary, Part-Time, or Special Project Employees.  Work 
schedules and hours for part-time, temporary or special project employees 
may vary from the alternate work schedules listed in this policy depending 
on the nature of the duties, and will be determined by the appropriate 
Department Head in consultation with the employee and City 
Administrator.   

 
4.03.10   Scheduling Commitment. Employees who have requested and 
been approved for alternate work scheduling must maintain the new work 
schedule for a minimum of 90 days before requesting a change from the 
new schedule. Employees who have elected to continue with a normal 
schedule may request an alternate schedule at any time subject to the 
provisions above.  

4.04 Attendance  

Employees must be in attendance at their work station in accordance with the rules 
regarding hours of work, holidays and leaves as set forth in these policies. 
Employees are expected to be at their work station and prepared to begin work at 
the starting time. Abuse of attendance or hours of work rules may result in 
disciplinary action.  

4.05 Break Periods  

4.05.01 Rest Breaks: Employees are entitled to one 15-minute paid work break 
per four hours of work time. While rest breaks are authorized in accordance 
with applicable State law, break schedules are flexible so as not to interrupt 
the operations of the city. The Department Manager has the authority to 
revise break schedules as necessary.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
60



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

30 

4.05.02 Meal Breaks: Employees are entitled to a maximum one-hour unpaid 
break for meals for each 8-hour work day. Arrangements of meal breaks will 
be approved by the Department Manager in consideration of work schedules 
of the department.  

 

4.06 Disciplinary Action and Rules of Conduct  

City employees should be informed of rules of conduct and specific causes for 
disciplinary action, including applicable departmental policies or rules. These 
rules of conduct are formalized for each employee’s information to minimize the 
likelihood of any employee becoming subject to disciplinary action through 
misunderstanding or otherwise. It is the responsibility of the department manager 
and immediate supervisor to ensure employees are informed of these rules of 
conduct.  

4.06.01 Rules of Conduct  

1. The occurrence of any of the following is sufficient justification for 
immediate discharge but is not considered all inclusive:  

a) Theft, misappropriation or removal of city property or the property 
of employees, clients or customers.  

b) Knowing, intentional or repeated falsification of an application for 
employment or any report, time sheet or city record.  

c) Soliciting and/or accepting payments, gifts or any item of value for 
services performed during the regular workday, whether the services 
are performed on behalf of the city and whether city vehicles or 
equipment are used.  

d) Willful alteration, destruction or waste of city property, facilities, 
records or equipment, wherever located, or the destruction of another 
employee’s property.  

e) Using, selling, dispensing, or possessing alcohol (except as 
specifically authorized by the City), marijuana, illegal drugs, narcotics 
or other controlled substances on city property or in city vehicles; 
reporting to work or being impaired and/or under the influence of 
alcohol, marijuana, narcotics or other controlled substances while on 
working time, or while on city property or in city vehicles.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
61



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

31 

f) Giving or taking a bribe of any nature as inducement for obtaining or 
retaining a job or position.  

g) Serious or repeated disorderly conduct, horseplay or 
insubordination. Insubordination includes, but is not limited to: neglect 
of duty, or refusal or failure to obey orders or instructions in the line of 
duty; public disrespect displayed toward a supervisor or the city while 
performing work for the city; and abusive language to any supervisor, 
employee, customers or other persons while working for the city.  

h) Threatening, intimidating, coercing or interfering with supervisors or 
other employees and/or customers or other persons while working for 
the city.  

i) Deliberate attempts to injure another employee or fighting on city 
property or during working hours.  

j) Sleeping during working hours.  

k) Unauthorized possession of fire arms, explosives or any dangerous 
weapons while performing city work or while on city property.  

l) Participating in an unauthorized work stoppage or slowdown.  

m) Recklessness resulting in a serious accident while on duty, whether 
on city property or while driving a city vehicle.  

n) Repeated unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
and other verbal or physical conduct as defined in State and Federal 
Laws. Sexual harassment includes but is not limited to demands for 
sexual favors in exchange for employment, retention of job, promotion 
or other employment benefits.  

o) Willful or intentional behavior or remarks based on race, creed, color, 
national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, or the 
presence of a physical, sensory, or mental disability resulting in 
discrimination against any employee, customer or member of the 
general public.  

p) Willful infraction of any departmental or city rule, regulation or 
policy.  

2. The occurrence of any of the following is sufficient justification for the 
imposition of lesser discipline such as verbal or written warning, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
62



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

32 

suspension without pay or disciplinary probation as set forth in the 
following section, although depending on the seriousness of the offense, the 
city may immediately discharge the offender. These reasons for discipline 
are not intended to be all-inclusive.  

a) Ignoring safety rules or common safety practices.  

b) Engaging in disorderly conduct, horseplay, immoral conduct or 
insubordination; using uncivil, insulting, vile or obscene language.  

c) Failure to report occupational injuries or accidents promptly to the 
employee’s supervisor, including motor vehicle accidents in a city 
vehicle.  

d) Engaging in activities other than assigned work during working 
hours and/or while operating city equipment, without advance 
approval by the employee’s supervisor.  

e) Acting in an insulting, rude, insolent or uncivil manner toward any 
customer or other person while working for the city, or while operating 
city equipment or on city premises.  

f) Failure to exercise the care and attention to one’s work as required by 
the circumstances.  

g) Smoking in restricted or prohibited areas on city property.  

h) Accepting employment with another employer while on leave 
without pay from the city without written authorization from the city.  

i) Acting in any manner inconsistent with common sense rules of 
conduct necessary to the welfare of the city or its employees.  

j) Unexcused or excessive absences or tardiness.  

k) Leaving work before the end of the shift or not being ready to begin 
work at the start of the shift, or working overtime without permission 
of management.  

l) Loafing or spending unnecessary time away from the job.  

m) Unauthorized possession or use of any city property, equipment or 
materials.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
63



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

33 

n) Carrying an unauthorized passenger in a city vehicle.  

o) Contributing to unsanitary conditions or poor housekeeping.  

p) Use of city property or time for personal financial gain.  

q) Any form of discrimination or sexual harassment, as outlined in 
4.06.01 (1), (n) and (o).  

r) Having wages or salary subject to a writ of garnishment for three or 
more separate indebtedness in a continuous 12-month period.  

4.07 Forms of and Procedures for Disciplinary Action  

4.07.01 The degree of disciplinary action administered depends on the 
severity of the infraction and will be carried out in accordance with this 
policy or in accordance with applicable Civil Service Rules and Regulations 
or labor contracts. It is the responsibility of the supervisor to evaluate the 
circumstances and facts thoroughly and objectively. The supervisor will 
then recommend the most suitable form of disciplinary action to the 
Department Manager.  
 
1. Verbal Warning :  Verbal warning should be given to the employees in 
private, if possible. This type of discipline should be applied for infractions 
of a relatively minor degree. Supervisors should inform the employee that 
he or she is administering a verbal warning, that the employee is being 
given an opportunity to correct the condition, and that if the condition is 
not corrected, the employee may be subject to more severe disciplinary 
measures.  
 
2. Written Warning: 

 
a) This notice may be issued by the supervisor or Department Manager 
in the event the employee continues to disregard a verbal warning, or if 
the infraction is severe enough to warrant a written record in the 
employee’s personnel file.  

b) The supervisor or Department Manager will put in writing the nature 
of the infraction in detail and sign the notice. The Department Manager 
will discuss the written warning with the employee and the immediate 
supervisor to be certain that the reasons for the warning are understood.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
64



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

34 

c) A copy of the written warning will be given to the employee at the 
time of the discussion of the warning. The original copy will be placed 
in the employee’s personnel file.  

d) A written warning may be removed at the request of the Department 
Manager from the employee’s personnel file after a period of one year 
(12 calendar months) provided that no further disciplinary action is 
taken during the 12-month period. If subsequent disciplinary action is 
necessary, the written warning becomes a permanent record in the 
employee’s file.  

3. Written Reprimand: 

a) A written reprimand may be issued by the supervisor or Department 
Manager in the event the employee continues to disregard previous 
disciplinary measures of verbal or written warnings, or the severity of 
the infraction is such to warrant a written reprimand be made a 
permanent record in the employee’s file.  

b) The supervisor or Department Manager will put in writing the nature 
of the infraction in detail and sign the notice. The Department Manager 
will discuss the reprimand with the employee and the immediate 
supervisor to be certain that the reasons for the reprimand are 
understood. A copy of the written reprimand will be given to the 
employee at the time of the discussion of the infraction. The original 
copy will be placed in the employee’s personnel file.  

c) A written reprimand becomes a permanent record of the employee’s 
file and may not be removed at the discretion of the Department 
Manager.  

4. Probation: An employee may be required to serve an additional 
probationary period for disciplinary reasons for up to six months, which 
may be extended once for up to an additional six months. If placed on 
probation for disciplinary reasons, all provisions of probationary status 
apply, unless otherwise specified. At the end of the probation, the employee 
may be returned to regular status, demoted or terminated.  
 
5. Demotion: 
  

a) Demotion may be used in rare instances where an employee is 
clearly unable to satisfactorily perform the responsibilities of their 
position but is capable of performing in a position of less responsibility 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
65



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

35 

and otherwise exhibits the qualities of a good public employee. 
Demotions may be recommended by the Department manager or City 
Administrator, with final approval by the Mayor. 
  
b) A pre-disciplinary meeting is required prior to a demotion for 
disciplinary reasons.  

6. Suspension:  

a) This form of discipline must be recommended by a Department 
Manager or the City Administrator and can only be used for a severe 
infraction of rules or standards, or for continued violation after the 
employee has received one or more written warnings and has made 
little or no effort to improve performance. It should be applied only after 
a thorough evaluation by the Department Manager or City 
Administrator, with final approval by the Mayor.  
 
b) The Department Manager will put in writing all facts leading to the 
recommended suspension, and the duration recommended. A pre-
disciplinary meeting will be held with the employee to make certain that 
the employee is fully aware of the reasons for the considered action and 
has an opportunity to respond and supply additional information.  
 
c) A pre-disciplinary meeting is required prior to a suspension for 
disciplinary reasons.  
 
d) Exempt personnel are not subject to unpaid disciplinary suspensions 
except in increments of full work weeks unless the infraction leading to 
the suspension is for a violation of a safety rule of major significance.  

4.08 Termination  

All city employees serve at the pleasure of the Mayor. Subject to any applicable 
state or federal laws, or specific provisions in employment contracts, the Mayor, 
or his designee, may discharge any employee at any time with or without cause. 
Removal from employment should normally follow verbal and/or written 
warnings previously given and made a part of the employee’s personnel file. A 
pre-disciplinary meeting is required for all terminations.  

4.08.01 A regular employee terminated from employment will normally be 
given at least two weeks notice with a letter of dismissal. However, in the 
event the infraction or situation is so serious that it requires "on the spot" 
removal, the employee will leave his work station immediately, if so directed 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
66



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

36 

by the appointing authority or his designee, and later be given a termination 
letter explaining reasons for the action.  

4.08.02 Copies of all disciplinary actions and termination letters are to be 
placed in the appropriate personnel record.  

4.08.03 A final written performance appraisal will be completed on any 
terminated employee.  

4.09 Pre-disciplinary Meeting  

The Department Manager will provide for and arrange a pre-disciplinary meeting 
prior to demotion, suspension or termination of a regular employee.  

4.09.01 An employee will be provided, in writing, with a notice of the 
infraction and an explanation of the reasons for disciplinary action. The 
employee will be given an opportunity to respond verbally or in writing, as 
to why the proposed disciplinary action should not be taken.  

4.09.02 The employee may have a representative present at a pre-disciplinary 
meeting.  

4.09.03 The City’s explanation of the reasons for disciplinary action at the pre-
disciplinary meeting will be sufficient to apprise the employee of the basis 
for the proposed action. This rule, however, will not be construed to limit the 
employer at subsequent hearings from presenting a more detailed and 
complete case, including presentation of witnesses and documents not 
available at the pre-disciplinary meeting.  

4.09.04 Should it be determined that disciplinary action is necessary 
following the pre-disciplinary meeting, written notice of discipline will be 
given to the employee. Such notices are to include the alleged infraction and 
a general statement of the reasons for the action, and become a part of the 
employee’s personnel file.  

4.10 Personnel Grievance Procedure  

The city will strive to assure clear communication, high morale and good will 
among employees, and will attempt to resolve employee concerns through 
discussion or other informal measures. Employees are encouraged to discuss any 
problems or suggestions with their immediate supervisor or Department 
Manager. However, if an employee feels that all informal avenues have been 
exhausted and their complaint or concern has not been resolved, that employee 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
67



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

37 

may follow the grievance procedure. No punitive action will be carried out against 
any employee for utilizing the grievance procedures contained in these policies.  

 

 

4.10.01 Applicability of Grievance Procedure  

This grievance procedure applies to all regular non-probationary status city 
employees with the exception that it does not apply to employees covered by 
a valid collective bargaining agreement which contains a grievance 
procedure. In some cases, uniformed personnel may elect to use either the 
Civil Service Rules & Regulations or the Administrative grievance procedure, 
but not both for the same grievance.  

4.10.02 Subjects of Grievance Procedure  

The following subjects may be grieved: disciplinary action (as previously 
described) and any questions of interpretation as to wages, hours, 
classification, and working conditions in effect.  

4.10.03 Procedure  

All grievances are to be processed in accordance with the following 
procedure, the time limits of which are mandatory and which will be strictly 
enforced (See Definitions, "Days"):  

Step One. The aggrieved employee will submit the grievance in writing 
to the immediate supervisor within 10 days of its occurrence. The 
immediate supervisor will respond to the grievance within 10 days. If 
the response is to request more time for investigation of fact, the 
employee may concur with such time extension or may proceed to the 
next step without prejudice. A copy of this response is to be sent to the 
Mayor, City Administrator, Department Manager and personnel office.  

Step Two. If after receiving the response of the immediate supervisor 
the employee remains aggrieved, the decision may be appealed within 
10 days, in writing, to the Department Manager stating the facts of the 
grievance, and remedy requested by the employee. The Department 
Manager’s response to the grievance will be within 15 days. A copy of 
this response is to be sent to the Mayor, City Administrator and 
personnel office. If the Department Manager is the immediate 
supervisor, step two may be eliminated.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
68



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

38 

Step Three. If after receiving the response of the Department Manager 
the employee remains aggrieved, the decision may be appealed within 
10 days, in writing, to the Mayor. It is necessary for the written grievance 
to state the nature of the grievance, along with reference to the policy (if 
any) violated, and all pertinent correspondence, records and 
information accumulated to date. Within 15 days of receipt of the 
grievance, the Mayor will hear the appeal and render a decision in 
writing within 20 days. The decision of the Mayor will be final. A copy 
of the decision is to be sent to the City Clerk’s Office.  

4.11  Communication Use 

The City of Buckley provides or contracts for the communications services and 
equipment necessary to promote the efficient conduct of its business. 
 
Most communications services and equipment have toll charges or other usage-
related expenses. Employees should be aware of these charges and should 
consider cost and efficiency needs when choosing the proper mode for business 
communication. Employees should consult their supervisor if there is a question 
about the proper mode of communication. 
 
All City of Buckley communications services and equipment, including the 
messages transmitted or stored by them, are the sole property of the City of 
Buckley. Department Managers may access and monitor employee 
communications and files as it considers appropriate. Communication services 
and equipment include mail, electronic mail (“e-mail”), courier services, 
facsimiles, telephone systems, personal computers, computer networks, on-line 
services, Internet connections, Intranet connections, computer files, video 
equipment and tapes, tape recorders and recordings, pagers, cellular phones, voice 
mail, and bulletin boards. 
 

4.11.01 Computer Usage 
 

As a City employee, you may use computers extensively in your job. A few 
rules are necessary so that everyone can get the maximum benefit from the 
City’s investment in technology. 
 

Software. In order to protect the City of Buckley’s computer system from 
viruses and ensure that the software used in compatible with City 
computers, only software purchased or approved by the City may be 
installed on City computers. Before installing any software not 
purchased by the City, you must check with the Systems Administrator. 
Games and other non-business related software may not be installed on 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
69



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

39 

City computers or used on City time. Software purchased by the City is 
for legitimate City business use only. It may not be copied or taken 
home. 
 
Copyright Compliance. Software is protected from unauthorized 
duplication by law. The City of Buckley respects the legal rights of 
software developers and expects employees to do the same. No 
employee may duplicate software, or otherwise use software other than 
in accordance with the terms of its license. Software that has been 
duplicated without authorization may not be installed on City 
computers. Copyrighted material should not be sent via City e-mail or 
on the Internet. 
 
Internet.  Only employees specifically authorized by the City of Buckley 
may access on-line services and the Internet. Authorized employees 
must disclose all passwords to the City of Buckley and their supervisors 
but should not share the passwords with other employees. Employees’ 
personal on-line use is allowed during approved breaks. Employees 
should not duplicate or download from the Internet or from any e-mail 
any software or materials that are copyrighted, patented, trademarked, 
or otherwise identified as intellectual property without express 
permission form the owner of the material. When appropriate Internet 
material or e-mail files are downloaded, they should be scanned using 
the City of Buckley anti-virus software. 
 
E-mail.  Employees must bear in mind that email is not private and its 
source is clearly identifiable. Email messages may remain part of City 
business records long after they have been supposedly deleted. Email 
may not be used for external broadcast messages or to send or post chain 
letters, messages of a political or religious nature, or messages that 
contain obscene, profane, or otherwise offensive material or language. 
 
Employees should not use e-mail, facsimiles, or any other insecure 
communication system to communicate confidential information. 
Electric records, including e-mail messages, are public records subject 
to Washington State’s Public Disclosure Records Act (RCW 42.17). There 
are also other legal issues related to e-mail communications. In general, 
e-mail is subject to discovery. 
 
Monitoring. Users should be aware that electronic records are not 
private records. All messages and activity should be composed with the 
expectation that they will be made public. Please understand that by 
using the City’s computer equipment to access electronic mail or the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
70



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

40 

Internet, all users have given their consent to permit the City, at its 
discretion, to inspect, use or disclose any Internet email or other 
electronic communications and/or data without further notice. 
Inspection is not systematic, and the city encourages and depends upon 
users to report offensive or inappropriate use. The City reserves the 
right to monitor all electronic records at any time and without prior 
notice, to assure compliance with this policy.  

 
4.11.02 Personal Use of Communication Systems 
 
City communication systems and networks are provided for the conduct of 
City business. However, personal use by employees of City telephone, and 
voicemail, email, and Internet systems is permitted within the following 
guidelines 
 
• The use is of reasonable duration and frequency during approved breaks 

or lunch periods. 
• The City incurs no added costs, such as long-distance telephone charges. 
• The use is not related to any illegal activity or the conduct of an outside 

business. 
• The use must not adversely affect the City or its public image. 
• The use is not in support of any religious, political, or outside 

organization activity. 
• The use does not interfere with the performance of City business, the 

employee’s assigned duties, or the assigned duties of other employees 
and does not adversely affect the performance of the employee or the 
employee’s organization. 

 
Employees should ensure that no personal correspondence appears to be an 
official communication of the City of Buckley since employees may be 
perceived as representatives of the City of Buckley and, therefore, damage 
or create liability for the City of Buckley. All outgoing messages, whether 
by mail, facsimile, e-mail, Internet transmission, or any other means, must 
be accurate and appropriate. Employees may not use City of Buckley 
stationary or postage for personal letters. In addition, only the City of 
Buckley may issue personalized City of Buckley stationary and business 
cards. 

 
4.11.03 Cellular Phones  
 
The City may require certain employees to use a cellular telephone in the 
performance of their job or in emergency situations. In either case, the City 
shall pay the expenses related to the purchase, lease or rental of a cellular 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
71



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

41 

phone when this is required. Department Managers shall be responsible for 
purchasing the cellular telephones and related equipment and maintaining 
them in the City’s inventory. Employees are responsible for taking reasonable 
precautions to prevent equipment theft and vandalism, including securing 
the equipment in a proper manner at all times. 
 
The City provides cellular telephones to certain employees to improve both 
the services provided to the community and the communications with other 
City employees for City business. Therefore, City owned cellular phones 
should be used “only” for City purposes and/or in the event of an 
emergency. Please limit incoming and outgoing personal cellular phone calls 
to necessary calls and keep them to a minimum. When personal, long 
distance use is unavoidable; employees should, if possible, log the user 
charges and reimburse the City for them. Employees are responsible for all 
charges incurred and are required to reimburse the City for long distance 
charges in the following billing cycle. 
 
Please remember that cellular telephones are not a secure method of 
transmitting information. Employees are therefore expected to use discretion 
in relaying confidential or sensitive information. The City reserves the right 
to monitor the use of all City owned telephones.  
 
4.11.04 Emergency Contact.  
 
Employees who do not have direct access to a City of Buckley telephone 
should make provisions to have emergency or other necessary incoming calls 
routed to a department approved telephone or to City Hall. Although the 
City of Buckley will attempt to deliver personal messages to employees, it 
cannot and does not accept responsibility for the prompt or accurate relay of 
these messages. 

 
4.11.04 Improper Communication Use.  
 
Improper use of City of Buckley communications services and equipment 
will result in discipline, up to and including termination. Improper use 
includes any misuse as described in this policy as well as any harassing, 
offensive, demeaning, insulting, defaming, intimidating, or sexually 
suggestive written, recorded, or electronically transmitted messages.  

 
4.12  City Credit Card Use 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
72



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

42 

The City of Buckley recognizes that the use of credit cards is a customary and 
economical business practice used to improve work flow, reduce costs and 
increase efficiency. 
 
The criteria for having a Purchasing Card issues is that it has been established by 
the City Official that the Employee needs a Purchasing Card for official travel or 
has been instructed to make purchases on the City’s behalf. City Officials may 
request issue of Purchasing Cards only to individual permanent, regular 
employees. City Officials should establish a system for responsibility, control and 
distribution of Purchasing Cards within their departments, according to this 
policy. 
 
Purchasing cards are designed to provide an alternative, convenient and efficient 
method for Purchasing of goods and services for official city use.  They are not 
intended to be used to avoid or bypass purchasing policies, rather, they are to be 
used within the same statues, rules, policies and procedures as purchases by any 
other means of payment. The City’s Purchasing Card program is established and 
authorized by RCW 43.09.2855. 
 
The City Administrator approves the following City of Buckley Purchasing Card 
Policy and hereby delegates and authorizes City Officials and Employees 
authority to use Purchasing Cards described in this policy. 
 
The Director of Finance or designee(s) shall be responsible for implementing, 
monitoring, and administering this policy. 
 
The use of a Purchasing Card is a privilege that has been granted to Employees. 
Certain responsibilities are associated with that privilege. 
 
This program is an enhancement to the purchasing process and a delegation of 
purchasing authority. The Purchasing Card is designated with built-in spending 
controls to help prevent inappropriate purchases. 
 
Finance manages the Purchasing Card program (onboarding, off-boarding, and 
training), Cardholders make purchases in accordance with this policy, City 
Directors ensure their Department/Divisions adhere to this policy, Finance 
audits for compliance, processes payments to US Bank and maintains required 
accounting records in conjunction with the department or division. 
 
Each City Official is responsible for management of the Purchasing Card 
accounts in their department and may establish additional controls and 
restrictions as deemed appropriate within their department. In addition, audit 
for compliance of the charges on each receipt by each Cardholder is required by 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
73



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

43 

the City Official before the Transaction Log is submitted to Finance for 
processing. 
 
Each City Official will be responsible to designate a Purchasing Card Custodian 
within their department that will oversee, collect Transaction Logs, track 
purchases, monitor disputes, and reconcile statements monthly for each 
Purchasing Card issued to and within their department. This individual will be 
the primary department contact for the program. 
 
The City Official requesting the Purchasing Card will determine the single 
transaction limit and monthly transaction limit at the time of application. 
Cardholders shall not exceed these limits without prior written approval from 
the City Official. 
 

a. Single Purchase Limit:  Is the limit established for each Purchasing card 
that no single purchase may exceed. This limit on purchasing authority 
is delegated to the Cardholder by the Purchasing Card Administrator. 
This limit cannot be exceeded unless pre-approved by the Finance 
Director. A “single purchase” may include multiple items purchased in a 
single transaction. If the dollar amount exceeds the single purchase limit, 
a Purchase Order shall be used instead of the Purchasing Card. 

 
b. Spending Limit Per Cycle: The budgetary spending limit imposed by the 

Approving Official on cumulative Cardholder purchases in a given 
month. The total cumulative dollar value of Cardholder purchases for 
any single month shall not exceed this limit. It is the sum of unbilled 
prior month purchases, prior month disputed payments carried 
forward, plus current month purchases. 

 
c. Merchant Category Codes: (MCC) codes established on the account, 

which define the type of merchant from which a Cardholder may or 
may not purchase certain types of goods and/or services. 

 
d. Authorizations/Transaction: The number of transactions allowed on an 

account per billing cycle, as well as, the number of authorizations per 
day. 

 
Purchasing Card purchases have the same documentation and voucher 
requirement as any other City purchase. The Cardholder making a purchase 
must retain the original receipt for the transaction. Receipts must be submitted 
within twenty-four (24) hours after purchase is made or conclusion of travel to 
the Purchasing Card Processing Officer in the Cardholder’s department. The 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
74



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

44 

Purchasing Card Processing Officer is required to submit all receipts to Finance 
for auditing purposes and processing, pursuant to these procedures. 
 
Purchasing Card Use Violations 
 

• Regardless of what is determined to be a material level for 
reconciliation and audit purposes, all violations of Purchasing 
Card/account use (Purchasing Card/account used for 
fraudulent use, personal purpose, or other violation) shall 
immediately be reported to the responsible City Official, the 
Finance Director, the Cardholder’s Supervisor, and the 
Purchasing Card Administrator. 

 
• Discipline for improper use of Purchasing Cards or violations of 

City policies or procedures will be the responsibility of the 
responsible City Official. Disciplinary actions will be processed 
in accordance with established personnel policies and/or 
collective bargaining agreements. A violation may be cause for 
corrective action and/or discipline, depending on the severity 
of the violation, which could include termination of 
employment and/or criminal prosecution. 

 
• Immediately following an investigation that results in a 

determination that charges were fraudulent and/or that misuse 
of the Purchasing Card/account has occurred, the offender will 
be required to reimburse the City of inappropriate or fraudulent 
charges, including interest, (if applicable). 

 
• Said reimbursement may, at the sole discretion of the 

responsible City Official; (a) be made by direct payment, (b)be 
withheld from the Employee’s next succeeding paycheck, or (c) 
be repaid pursuant to a repayment plan (e.g., deduction of 
equal amounts from Employee’s paychecks). Direct repayments 
shall be submitted to Accounts Receivable. 

 
• By signing the Purchasing Card Agreement form, an individual 

Cardholder agrees to all the conditions in the policy. 
 
4.13  Use of City Property 
 
City supplies and equipment must be conserved for the authorized conduct of 
official business. By state law, they are not for personal use. City stationary, 
supplies and postage may not be used for personal mail. Personal mail should be 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
75



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

45 

delivered at an employee’s home address; however, occasional package deliveries 
will be allowed. Please do not use the City cash drawer for cashing personal 
checks. 
 
If you are entrusted with City equipment, materials or property to use in your job, 
you are responsible for its proper use, care and maintenance. If you need to borrow 
or take home City property for City business, you must have authorization from 
your supervisor. 
 
All communications technology including but not limited to computers, internet, 
email, phone service (telephones and cellular) are the property of the City and may 
be used only for official business (see Section 4.11). Other City equipment, 
including vehicles, should be used by employees for City business only, except as 
allowed under other provisions of this policy. An employee’s misuse of City 
services, telephones, vehicles, equipment or supplies can result in disciplinary 
action up to and including termination. 
 
The City may provide a locker, cabinet, or desk for your personal belongings. The 
City reserves the right to inspect City owned property with or without notice, for 
legitimate business reason.  
 
The City encourages its employees to avoid bringing private articles or property 
for work related purposes. The City reserves the right to restrict or limit private 
property in City facilities. Employees who do choose to bring private property to 
City facilities should clearly identify all their private property to include tools for 
identification purposes. The City will not be responsible for loss, stolen, damaged 
or misplaced personal possessions brought onto City property. 
 
4.14   Use of Vehicles on City Business 
 

4.14.01 Use of City Vehicles  
 
City vehicles are available for employees to use while conducting City 
business. Except for incidental personal business which may be 
accomplished along the route (such as stopping at a bank), City vehicles are 
to be used only for City business. 
 
With the approval of the Mayor, selected emergency response (fire & police) 
and designated on-call employees may drive a City vehicle back and forth 
between work and their private residence.  
 
Unless otherwise authorized by the city, only employees and/or qualified 
volunteers holding valid Washington state Driver’s License and/or 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
76



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

46 

commercial vehicle endorsement, if applicable will be allowed to operate city 
vehicles. 
 
Employees who drive a vehicle on city business must exercise due diligence 
to drive safely and to maintain the security of the vehicle and its contents. 
Employees are also responsible for any driving infractions or fines as a result 
of their driving. 
 
Employees must report any accident, theft, or malicious damage involving a 
city vehicle to their supervisor and the appropriate personnel within the city 
police department, regardless of the extent of damage or lack of injuries. Such 
reports must be made as soon as possible but no later than forty-eight hours 
after the incident. Employees are expected to cooperate fully with authorities 
in the event of an accident. 
 
Employees shall not operate any city vehicle at any time or operate any 
personal vehicle while eligible for mileage reimbursement and on city 
business while using or consuming alcohol, illegal drugs, or prescription 
medications that may affect their ability to drive. The city prohibits operators 
of vehicles from drinking alcohol, consuming illegal drugs, and 
taking prescription medications that affect ability to drive, and driving. 
Smoking inside any City vehicle is prohibited. 
 
4.14.02 Use of Personal Vehicles 
 
Employees may opt to use their personal vehicles for City business when 
approved by their supervisor. Use of personal vehicles by employees is 
preferred when attending conferences and training.  
  
Employees who use their personal vehicles for approved business purposes 
will receive a mileage allowance equal to the Internal Revenue Service 
optional mileage allowance for such usage. This allowance is to compensate 
for the cost of gasoline, oil, depreciation, and insurance. Therefore, 
employees who operate personal vehicles for city business must maintain 
auto liability coverage as required by State law. 
 
If an employee using a personal vehicle is involved in an accident or any 
damage is incurred to the vehicle, claims should be made to the employee’s 
personal automobile insurance carrier. 

 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
77



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

47 

Section 5 
Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 

5.01 General Provisions  
5.02 Classification Plan  
5.03 Salary Plan  
5.04 Payment of Salaries  

5.01 General Provisions  

A position classification plan will be maintained by the City, based on 
investigation and analysis of the duties and responsibilities of each position. The 
completed plan will consist of a classification specification for each position, 
including appropriate title, description of duties and responsibilities, and 
minimum requirements and/or desirable training, experience or other 
qualifications.  

5.02 Classification Plan  

5.02.01 Preparation of Classification Plan: The Mayor is responsible to assure 
the preparation of a plan which includes a specification for each classification. 
Specifications will be prepared after consultation with supervisors and other 
persons technically familiar with the duties and responsibilities of the job to 
be performed.  

5.02.02 Classification of Positions: Each position will be assigned by the 
Mayor to one of the classifications of the approved classification plan. 
Employees will be notified of the classification of their position. The title, as 
it appears on the specification, will be used to designate the position on 
official records and payroll.  

5.02.03 Classification Specification: The classification specifications are 
hereby declared to have the following definition and scope:  

a) They are explanatory only and not restrictive.  

b) In determining a position classification, the specification will be 
considered as a whole, comparing general duties, responsibilities, 
minimum qualifications and relationship to other positions in order to 
obtain an inclusive picture of the position and place it in the appropriate 
classification.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
78



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

48 

c) The outline of principal duties of work performed applies to general 
duties or tasks and is not intended to prescribe the specific duties of a 
given position, or to limit the alteration or modification of detailed tasks 
involved in the duties of any position, so long as they remain within the 
general definition of the classification.  

d) The classification specification may include additional requirements 
which are determined to be necessary for the best interests of the City. 
These requirements may include possession of a valid motor vehicle 
operator's license, physical ability, or any other bona fide occupational 
qualifications pertinent to the positions covered.  

e) Nothing in the classification specification is to be interpreted as 
restricting a supervisor from assigning an employee of one classification 
to perform some of the duties of a higher or lower classification for a 
limited period of time.  

5.02.04 New Positions  

The Mayor will review any request for a new classification. No new 
classification will be used until there is an approved classification 
specification covering the work to be performed. If none of the existing 
classifications is appropriate, a new classification specification is to be 
prepared in accordance with these policies. Authorization for new positions 
will be approved through City Council adoption and amendments of the 
annual salary resolution and/or budget.  

5.02.05 Classification Plan Revision & Reclassification  

A classification may be reclassified at the request of the department manager, 
employee, or City Administrator when it appears that the duties and 
responsibilities of an existing classification are changed. Reasons for the 
reclassification request are to be stated in writing and the Mayor will 
determine whether the present classification is correct or whether a 
reclassification is necessary. New or revised classification specifications will 
be prepared as provided in these policies and will become a part of the 
classification plan.  

5.02.06 Incumbents of Reclassification Positions  

a) When reclassification occurs, an employee occupying the position 
may be retained in the position provided that the Mayor determines that 
the reclassification results from an official recognition of a change in 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
79



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

49 

duties and responsibilities which has already occurred and is a long-
term inequity of classification.  

b) If the reclassification results in a higher maximum salary, this 
constitutes a promotion and the rules governing promotion with regard 
to salary apply. If the reclassification results in a lower maximum salary, 
this constitutes a demotion and the rules governing demotion with 
regard to salary apply.  

5.02.07 Reallocation  

A reclassification may be reallocated to a new pay range at the request of the 
department manager, employee, or the City Administrator when it appears 
that the duties and responsibilities of an existing classification are changed. 
Reasons for the reallocation request are to be stated in writing and the Mayor 
will determine whether the present allocation is correct or whether a 
reallocation is necessary.  

5.02.08 Incumbents of Reallocation Classifications  

a) When a classification is reallocated, the employee occupying the 
position may be retained after it has been reallocated, without 
examination.  

b) If the reallocation results in a higher salary range, the employee's 
salary will be adjusted, if necessary, to the step in the new range 
resulting in a salary nearest that existing salary which will not result in 
a salary decrease.  

c) If the reallocation results in a lower salary range, the employee's 
salary will be adjusted downward to the next lowest step in the new 
range that will result in an equal salary or the least reduction in salary.  

d) Nothing in the classification specifications is to be interpreted as 
restricting a supervisor from assigning an employee of one classification 
to perform some of the duties of a higher or lower classification for a 
limited period of time.  

5.02.09 Use of Classification Titles: The classification title is the official title of 
every position assigned to the classification for the purpose of personnel 
actions and is to be used on all payrolls, budget documents, and official 
records and reports relating to the position. Any other working title desired 
and authorized for use by the Mayor may be used as a designation of any 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
80



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

50 

position for the purpose of internal administration or in contacts with the 
public.  

5.02.10 Appeals of Classification:  Any department manager or employee 
affected by the classification of a position may file a written request for 
reconsideration with the Mayor. The Mayor will review the classification of 
the position. The decision of the Mayor is final.  

5.03 Salary Plan  

5.03.01 Adoption of Salary Plan: The Mayor is responsible to recommend to 
the City Council for adoption of a Salary Plan for the City of Buckley. The 
Plan will include salaries for non-bargaining unit personnel, as well as salary 
grades negotiated by employee representatives.  

5.03.02 Salary Plan Review: The Salary Plan is to be reviewed annually by the 
City Council, usually as part of the normal budgetary process for the City. 
Any changes to the Salary Plan as part of the annual review process are 
distinguished from merit increases and are not intended to give recognition 
to length or quality of service, but to general labor market salary 
requirements and internal relationships.  

5.03.03 Qualified Payroll Period: When an employee has ten (10) or less days 
in a non-pay status in any given calendar month, the payroll period will be 
considered qualified to accrue benefits, serve out probation, and for 
computation of merit increase dates. A new employee may be credited with 
the first payroll period if employed prior to the 15th of the month.  

5.04 Payment of Salaries  

All employees are paid at an hourly or monthly rate, as specified in the Position 
and Salary Resolution. Hourly employees are paid on the basis of actual number 
of hours worked, including authorized absences with pay and authorized 
holidays.  

Salary rates for temporary or part-time employees will be based on the pay for 
full-time positions in the same classification.  

5.04.01 Beginning Salary: Each employee will be appointed at the first step of 
the range established for the classification, with the exception of management 
classification, which shall be negotiated within the assigned range. If it is 
determined that appointment of non-management employees above the first 
step may be warranted, the following procedures will apply:  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
81



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

51 

a) The factors to be reviewed in approving appointment beyond the first 
step are: availability of applicants meeting the qualifications for the 
vacant position, relationship to other similar classifications, prior 
experience of a candidate in a comparable position, time available to 
continue the recruitment process, and budget consideration.  

b) The department manager will submit a request for appointment at a 
higher step to the Mayor, stating justification for the request. The Mayor 
will make a decision based upon the factors as outlined in 5.04.01 (a).  

5.04.02 Merit Step Increases - Regular Status Employees  

a) When a regular status employee has performed satisfactorily, as 
determined through the Performance Evaluation process, a merit step 
increase may be granted at the completion of six (6) qualified payroll 
periods from the employee's anniversary date, but not before the 
satisfactory completion of the employee's initial six-month probationary 
period.  

In the case of an employee placed at the time of hire above Step One of 
the pay range, the initial in-class merit step raise will be considered 
upon the completion of twelve (12) months in class and at intervals 
thereafter defined within a separate bargaining unit agreement or salary 
plan adopted by the City Council.  

b) The annual merit step increase date for an employee will change only 
if:  

1) the employee is promoted or otherwise moved to a position 
assigned to another job class and is required to serve a trial 
performance period;  

2) the employee receives a merit step adjustment as authorized by 
the City Administrator; or  

3) the employee has used more than 15 calendar days of leave 
without pay in one month. For each month in which more than 
15 calendar days of leave without pay has been used, the 
employee's annual merit increase date shall be advanced by one 
month.  

5.04.03 Promotion:  A promotion is an appointment to a position in a 
classification which has a higher maximum salary rate than the employee's 
present classification. The City Administrator will determine the salary step 
of the promoted employee in the new salary range on the date of the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
82



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

52 

promotion. The salary step of the promoted employee will be set so that the 
promoted employee’s pay level is no more than two salary steps higher than 
the employee’s step prior to the promotion. If step one of the salary range to 
which the employee has been promoted is a pay level more than two steps 
higher than the promoted employee’s previous salary step, then the 
employee shall be assigned to step one of the higher salary range. When the 
date of promotion and the merit increase date coincide, the merit increase is 
paid prior to the promotional increase.  

5.04.04 Demotions: A demotion is an appointment to a position in a 
classification which has a lower maximum salary rate than the employee's 
present classification. When a demotion occurs, the department manager will 
recommend to the Mayor a salary for the demoted employee within the 
salary range of the lower classification which is less than or equal to the 
employee's present salary. The employee will retain the same anniversary 
date.  

5.04.05 Transfer:  

a) A position transfer is an appointment to a position in the same or 
different classification of the same pay grade.  

b) When an employee is transferred to a position in a different 
classification with the same pay grade, or is transferred to another 
department with the same classification, the employee's pay remains the 
same. The employee will retain the same anniversary date for leave and 
length of service purposes.  

5.04.06 Temporary Change of Classification  

a) A current employee assigned to a classification with a differing rate 
of pay in an "acting" appointment status will be compensated at the next 
higher step in the new range according to policy on promotion.  

b) If the employee is promoted to the higher class with regular 
appointment status, all policies apply from the date of promotion.  

5.04.07 Overtime: Any City employee may be required, as a condition of 
employment, to work overtime when necessary as determined by his or her 
supervisor.  

a) All overtime is to be approved by the employee's supervisor in 
advance of being worked. In the case of emergencies, the employee is 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
83



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

53 

responsible to notify the supervisor as soon as possible of the need to 
work overtime.  

b) Overtime is considered as time worked in excess of forty (40) hours 
per week, except in the case of non-standard work schedules. A non-
standard work day and work week shall be established by the 
department manager, or by applicable bargaining agreements, 
employee contracts or letters of appointment, and approved by the 
Mayor. The work day or work week may be changed to accommodate 
the efficient operation of the department.  

c) Time worked as overtime will not be used to earn employee benefits 
or to serve out probation or merit increase periods. 

d) All overtime worked and compensated will be in accordance with the 
Fair Labor Standards Act.  

5.04.08 Compensatory Time  

Non-Exempt Employees 

A regular full-time or regular part-time non-exempt employee may 
request compensatory time off in lieu of overtime payment. 
Compensatory time off must be requested by the employee and 
authorized by the appropriate supervisor. An employee who does not 
request compensatory time will be paid overtime, and the supervisor 
can deny a compensatory time request (if time off is not practical) and 
instead overtime will be paid. 

Compensatory time is earned at the rate of 1.5:1 or one and one-half 
hours for each hour of overtime worked. Compensatory time may be 
accrued to a maximum of eighty (80) hours. Compensatory time in 
excess of eighty (80) hours will be paid as overtime within the same 
period that the eighty (80) hour limit has been exceeded. Employees 
should be encouraged to use compensatory time accrued within ninety 
(90) days of earning it whenever possible. Upon termination, unused 
compensatory time will be paid at the current rate on the final paycheck. 

 

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
84



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

54 

5.04.09 Executive Administrative Time  

Exempt Employees 

An employee in an exempt position shall not be entitled to overtime 
compensation.  

However, the City recognizes that, due to operational needs, exempt 
employees are frequently required to work additional hours for special 
projects, evening meetings and emergency situations and therefore 
desires to establish a method to compensate exempt employees for this 
extra time by granting executive administrative time. 

Executive administrative time is earned at the rate of 1:1 or one hour for 
each hour of time worked in excess of 40 hours for the week. Exempt 
employees earning executive administrative time shall be allowed to 
accrue administrative time “only” during the calendar year in which 
earned. Administrative time in excess of one-hundred twenty (120) 
hours that has not been used by December 31st of each calendar year 
shall be paid at the straight time hourly rate at which the time was 
earned. Employees are encouraged, whenever possible, to use 
administrative time accrued within ninety (90) days of earning it. Upon 
termination, unused administrative time in excess of one-hundred 
twenty (120) hours shall be paid at the straight time hourly rate at which 
the time was earned.  

5.04.10 Exemptions:  The Mayor may recommend to the City Council, 
positions to be exempt from overtime provisions on the basis of the nature of 
work, conditions of employment or by definition of administrative, 
supervisory and professional classifications as provided by State and Federal 
laws. Such exemption is based upon special conditions to work or 
assignment, in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.  

5.04.11  Pay Periods: Paychecks will be issued on the last business day of the 
month.  Draw checks shall be issued on the fifteenth (15th) of the month.   
  

• Draw day on Saturday or Friday holiday – check issued the 
preceding City-scheduled workday. 
 
• Draw day on Sunday or Monday holiday – check issued the 
following City-scheduled workday. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
85



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

55 

Section 6 
Benefits 

6.01 Applicability 
6.02 Legal Holidays 
6.03 Floating Holiday 
6.04 Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith or Conscience 
6.05 Vacation Leave 
6.06 Sick Leave 
6.07 Sick Leave Payments 
6.08 Paid Family & Medical Leave 
6.09 Medical Leave of Absence 
6.10 Family and Medical Leave 
6.11 Family Care Leave 
6.12 Worker's Compensation 
6.13 Bereavement Leave 
6.14 Military Leave 
6.15 Jury Duty 
6.16 Leave Without Pay 
6.17 Leave Due to Inclement Weather or other Significant Disruptions of the 
Transportation System 
6.18 Unauthorized Absence 
6.19 Insurance Benefit Plans 
6.20 Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) 
6.21 Health Insurance Opt-Out Program 
6.22 Retirement 
6.23 Optional Benefit or Investment Plans 
 

6.01 Applicability 

6.01.01 Eligibility.  Benefits as defined in this section are applicable only to 
regular-status employees of the City of Buckley, unless otherwise stated in a 
letter of appointment or employment contract, or as otherwise authorized.  
Part-time employees who are scheduled for on-call assignment are not 
regular status employees of the City and shall receive only those benefits 
required by state or federal law or the provisions of an applicable insurance 
agreement.    

6.01.02 Prorating: Part-time, regular status employees shall receive benefits 
as defined in this section on a pro rata basis. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
86



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

56 

6.02 Legal Holidays 

6.02.01 All regular status employees are entitled to an ten (10) hour paid 
holiday on the following days, observed in accordance with the official state 
calendar: 

HOLIDAYS DATES 
New Years Day January 1st 
Martin Luther King Jr’s Birthday Third Monday in January 
Presidents Day Third Monday in February 
Memorial Day Last Monday in May 
Independence Day July 4th 
Juneteenth June 19th 
Labor Day First Monday in September 
Veterans' Day November 11th 
Thanksgiving Day and The day 
after Thanksgiving 

Fourth Thursday in November 
& the day after 

Christmas Day December 25th 

6.02.02 For all employees regardless of their work schedule, holidays will be 
observed in the following manner: 

a) When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be 
considered the holiday. 

b) When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be 
considered the holiday. 

6.02.03 Any employee on vacation or sick leave during a holiday will not be 
charged vacation or sick leave for that day. 

6.02.04 An employee who would otherwise be entitled to a holiday but is on 
leave without pay or on unpaid family and medical leave will receive 
compensation for the holiday, provided the employee has satisfied the 
qualifying payroll period provision outlined in 5.03.03.  

6.02.05 An employee on the payroll for less than a full month is eligible for a 
paid holiday provided the employee is in pay status a minimum of one 
working day immediately preceding or immediately following the holiday. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
87



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

57 

 

6.03 Floating Holiday(s) 

6.03.01 In addition to the above-listed holidays, all regular status employees 
who have completed at least six months of employment with the city may 
take two ten (10) hour "floating" holidays each calendar year, at the request 
of the employee and with the approval of the department manager. 

6.03.02 The floating holiday(s) must be taken during the calendar year or 
entitlement to the day(s) will lapse, except when an employee has requested 
a personal holiday(s) and the request has been denied due to workload or 
scheduling. 

6.04 Unpaid Holidays for Reasons of Faith or Conscience  

Employees are entitled to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for a reason 
of faith or conscience or an organized activity conducted under the auspices 
of a religious denomination, church, or religious organization. 

The employee may select the days on which he or she desires to take the two 
unpaid holidays after consultation with his or her supervisor. If an employee 
prefers to take the two unpaid holidays on specific days, then the employee 
will be allowed to take the unpaid holidays on the days he or she has selected 
unless the absence would unduly disrupt operations, impose an undue 
hardship, or the employee is necessary to maintain public safety. The term 
“undue hardship” has the meaning contained in the rule established by the 
Office of Financial Management. 

If possible, an employee should submit a written request for an unpaid 
holiday provided for by this section to the employee’s supervisor a minimum 
of 14 (days/weeks) prior to the requested day. The written notice shall 
include the name of the employee, the date that the employee seeks to take 
unpaid leave, the amount of unpaid leave (whole shift or partial shift), and a 
description of the reason for the leave that is sufficient for the City to 
determine whether it qualifies under the new law, SB 5173. Approval of the 
unpaid holiday shall not be deemed approved unless it has been authorized 
in writing by the employee’s supervisor. The employee’s supervisor shall 
evaluate requests by considering the desires of the employee, scheduled 
work, anticipated peak workloads, response to unexpected emergencies, the 
availability, if any, of a qualified substitute, and consideration of the meaning 
of “undue hardship” developed by rule of the Office of Financial 
Management. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
88



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

58 

The two unpaid holidays allowed by this section must be taken during the 
calendar year, if at all; they do not carry over from one year to the next. 

6.05 Vacation Leave 

6.05.01 All regular status non-union employees of the city accrue annual 
vacation with full pay according to the following schedule: 

Vacation Leave Schedule 

TIME EMPLOYED 
BY THE CITY 

VACATION TIME 
ACCRUED PER YEAR 

0 – 12 months 12 days 
1 year 12 days 
2 years 13 days 
3 years 14 days 
4 years 14 days 
5 years 15 days 
6 years 15 days 
7 years 16 days 
8 years 16 days 
9 years 18 days 
10 years 18 days 
11 years 19 days 
12 years 19 days 
13 years 20 days 
14 years 20 days 
15 years 22 days 

20+ years 25 days 

6.05.02 Paid vacation may be taken only after the eligible employee has 
worked continuously for the city for at least six months. Requests for vacation 
are to be submitted at least two weeks in advance unless waived by the 
department manager or as part of Family Care Leave as permitted in section 
6.10. 

6.05.03 All vacations must be approved by the appropriate department 
manager. Department manager vacations are approved by the City 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
89



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

59 

Administrator. City Administrator vacations are approved by the Mayor. 
Vacations used as part of Family Care Leave are subject to the provisions of 
section 6.10. 

6.05.04 Vacation time may be accrued only to a maximum of 240 hours (30 
days), except under unusual circumstances and with approval of the 
department manager and the City Administrator. With the exception of 
section 6.05.05 below, any unapproved accrual beyond the 240 hour limit will 
be forfeited by the employee. 

6.05.05 In cases where the Mayor and/or City Administrator have 
determined that city operations have made it impractical for an employee to 
use vacation time, those non-union employees may elect to take a portion of 
their annual carryover balance of vacation time in cash as opposed to taking 
the time off. The Salary Schedule will be used to determine the hourly rate of 
when the time was earned and the employee will be paid that equivalent in 
cash. When authorized, the employee may exercise the option to buy back 
vacation hours up to two times in each calendar year. The employee may elect 
to buy back up to forty (40) hours in June and forty (40) hours in December 
or the full eighty (80) hours in December. The decision to exercise the option 
must be made and submitted to the Finance Director prior to May 30 for a 
June buy back or November 30 for a December buy back. The buy/back 
payment(s), if chosen, will occur in June and/or December of the year in 
which the request is submitted. The maximum hours that may be exercised 
for vacation buy-back is eighty (80) hours in any calendar year, on an hour 
for hour basis. 

6.05.06 Upon separation from city employment, any regular status employee 
with more than the equivalent of six months of service shall be paid for up to 
a maximum of 240 hours of accrued vacation. Compensation shall be based 
upon the employee's salary at the time of separation and shall be subject to 
applicable withholding under state and federal law. 

6.05.07 Any holiday occurring during an approved vacation is not counted as 
a day of vacation taken. 

6.06 Sick Leave 

6.06.01 Each regular status employee of the city not represented by a 
bargaining agreement shall accrue sick leave at the rate of one day per month. 
Maximum accrual for sick leave is 1760 hours. Accrual beyond the 1760 hour 
limit will be forfeited by the employee. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
90



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

60 

6.06.02 All regular status employees not represented by a bargaining 
agreement are eligible to use accrued sick leave for: 

a) An illness or injury incapacitating the employee to perform the 
required work; 
 
b) preventative health care of the employee; or 
 
c) An illness, injury or preventative health care of an immediate member 
of the employee's family which requires the employee's attendance 
subject to 6.05.03 below; or 
 
d) needs pursuant to Family Care Leave as outlined in section 6.10.  

6.06.03 Use of accrued sick leave to care for an immediate family member, 
who is ill, injured or in need of the employee's assistance to receive 
preventative health care, shall be limited to 10 days per year unless additional 
use is authorized by the department head or the use is pursuant to Family 
Care Leave as stated in section 6.10. 

6.06.04 Employees unable to report to work because of illness or injury are to 
notify their immediate supervisor as soon as possible, but not later than 15 
minutes prior to the start of his/her regularly scheduled shift, except in the 
case of a bona fide emergency. Sick leave with pay may not be allowed, at the 
discretion of the supervisor, unless such report has been made. 

6.06.05 The City may require the employee to provide certification of illness 
or a written release to return to work from a qualified health care provider 
for any sick leave taken after three (3) consecutive days of sick leave, 
provided that the request of a certificate from a health care provider be made 
at the time the employee requests sick leave. Abuse of sick leave privileges 
may be cause for disciplinary action, including dismissal. 

6.06.06 Substitution of accrued vacation leave for sick leave may be allowed 
subject to Personnel Policy 6.04 above. 

6.07  Sick Leave Payments 

6.07.01 Sick Leave Payments Upon Retirement or Separation: Upon 
retirement in a recognized retirement system, as defined in Section 2 of this 
policy, an employee shall receive pay at his/her regular wage rate for 25% of 
unused accumulated sick-leave as severance pay; provided, however, upon 
termination from City employment for any reason other than for cause, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
91



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

61 

twenty-five percent (25) of unused sick leave shall be paid to an employee 
with five years or more of city employment. Employees shall be eligible for 
this benefit as a result of retirement, death, voluntary separation or 
involuntary layoff but shall not be eligible if terminated for cause. 
Compensation shall be based upon the employee’s salary at the time of 
separation. Moneys received under this section shall not be included for the 
purpose of computing a retirement allowance under any public retirement 
system in this state. Every three (3) months a list shall be posted of all sick 
leave earned. 

Employees who are choosing to retire or separate from City service and wish 
to receive a sick leave payment, must provide a resignation letter and 
appropriate documentation of their decision to retire to the City 
Administrator. 

6.08  Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave 

 Effective immediately, the City of Buckley shall remove the Sick Leave 
Sharing Policy based on the Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave, 
which pays employees who qualify, for family medical leave based on a 
qualifying event.  

 Paid Family and Medical Leave Overview: Paid Family and Medical Leave, 
RCW 50A.04 is a mandatory statewide insurance program that will provide 
almost every Washington employee with paid time off to give or receive 
care.  If you qualify, this program will allow you to take up to 12 weeks, as 
needed, if you: 

• Welcome a child into your family (through birth, adoption or 
foster placement. 

• Experience a serious illness or injury. 
• Need to care for a seriously ill or injured relative. 
• Need time to prepare for a family member’s pre- and post-

deployment activities, as well as time for childcare issues related 
to a family member’s military deployment.  

For specifics on military-connected paid leave, visit 
www.dol.gov/whd/regs/compliance/whdfs28mc.pdf 

 If you face multiple events in a year, you might be eligible to receive up to 
16 weeks, and up to 18 weeks if you experience a serious health condition 
during pregnancy that results in incapacity. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
92



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

62 

 6.08.01 Payment of Premiums: The program is funded by premiums paid 
by both employees and employers. It will be administered by the 
Employment Security Department (ESD).  

 Premium collection started on January 1, 2019, the premium is 0.4 percent 
of wages. Employers can either pay the full premium or withhold a portion 
of the premium from their employees. Employers who choose to withhold 
premiums from their employees may withhold up to about 63 percent of 
the total premium, or $2.44 per week for an employee making $50,000 
annually. The employer is responsible for paying the other 37 percent. 
Businesses with fewer than 50 employees are exempt from the employer 
portion of the premium but must still collect or opt to pay the employee 
portion of the premium.  

 Premium collection began January 1, 2019. Your employer will calculate 
and withhold premiums from your paycheck and send both your share and 
theirs to ESD on a quarterly basis. 

 6.08.02 Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave Coordinated with Other 
Leaves: Employees who have accrued vacation, sick or other paid time off 
may choose to take such leave or receive paid family and medical leave 
benefits, as provided for in RCW 50A.04.020. 

 An employee receiving Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave 
payments during a family and/or medical related leave shall use only the 
number of leave hours that, together with the Washington Paid Family & 
Medical Leave benefits payments, represents the employee’s normal pay 
for the same period. Payroll will calculate use of paid leave hours on a 
retroactive basis back to the first day in which the employee was off work. 
In no event shall the accumulation of leave and Washington Paid Family 
Medical Leave income result in an employee receiving income in excess of 
100% of their regular straight-time income for the same period. 

 If the employee elects to use paid leave to supplement the employee’s 
earnings, the employee must notify Payroll at the start of his/her 
Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave. Once the employee elects to use 
paid leave to supplement his/her earnings, the employee may not reverse 
the election. An employee may not elect to use only a portion of his/her 
accrued leave. 

 Employees who elect to use his/her accrued leave to supplement their 
wage while on family and/or medical leave shall notify payroll each pay 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
93



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

63 

period how many hours of sick and or vacation they are using to 
supplement their wage. 

 6.08.03 Taking Leave: Starting January 1, 2020, employees who have 
worked 820 hours in the qualifying period (equal to 16 hours a week for a 
year) will be able to apply to take paid medical leave or paid family leave. 
The 820 hours are cumulative, regardless of the number of employers or 
jobs someone has during a year. All paid work over the course of year 
counts toward the 820 hours, including pat-time, seasonal and temporary 
work. 

 While on leave, you are entitled to partial wage replacement. That means 
you will receive a portion of your average weekly pay. The benefit is 
generally up to 90 percent of your weekly wage, with a minimum of $100 
per week and a maximum of $1,000 per week.  You will be paid by the 
Employment Security Department rather than your employer. 

 Unlike the federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), employees of 
small businesses may take Paid Family and Medical Leave if they meet the 
standard eligibility requirements. 

 Please go to paidleave.wa.gov for more information. 

 6.08.04 Leave Protection: Employees who return from leave under this law 
will be restored to a same or equivalent job if they work for an employer 
with 50 or more employees, have worked for this employer for at least 12 
months, and have worked 1,250 hours in the 12 months before taking leave 
(about 24 hours per week, on average). 

 You can keep your health insurance while on leave. If you contribute to the 
cost of your health insurance, you must continue to pay your portion of the 
premium cost while on leave. 

 Your employer is prohibited from discriminating or retaliating against you 
for requesting or taking paid leave. 

6.09  Medical Leave of Absence 

6.09.01 Sick leave may be used by employees who are unable to perform their 
job duties due to illness or temporary disability. Medical leave may also be 
used for a period of actual disability caused or contributed to by pregnancy, 
miscarriage, abortion, childbirth or recovery therefrom. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
94



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

64 

6.09.02 In the event sick leave is not accrued by the employee, or there is not 
sufficient accumulated sick leave, use of vacation or leave without pay will 
be allowed for the actual period of illness or temporary disability. 

6.09.03 A certificate from a qualified health care provider may be required to 
provide certification of illness or temporary disability, and may be required 
to provide written release to return to work. 

6.09.04 An employee will be returned to the same position, or similar position 
of the same pay, if leave has been taken only for the actual period of illness 
or disability relating to pregnancy or childbirth. The total medical leave 
period granted under this policy may not exceed 180 calendar days. 

6.10  Family and Medical Leave 

6. 10.01 Eligibility for Leave: Any city employee who has been employed for 
at least twelve (12) months by the city and has worked for at least 1250 hours 
during the previous twelve (12) months, may receive up to twelve (12) weeks 
of unpaid leave in a twelve (12) month period to care for: 

(a) A newborn child, newly adopted child, newly placed foster child; 

(b) a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition; or 

(c) a personal, serious health condition that leaves the employee unable 
to perform the essential functions of his/her job. 

If both spouses are city employees, the city reserves the right to restrict 
family and medical leave to a total of up to twelve (12) work weeks of 
unpaid leave in a twelve (12) month period for the birth or adoption of 
a child or to care for a parent with a serious health condition. The city 
may opt to limit the use of the family and medical leave to one spouse 
at a time. 

Part-time, regular status employees shall receive family leave on a pro 
rata basis. If the number of working hours varies, the average hours over 
the course of the past 12 months prior to the family medical leave period 
shall be utilized as the basis for calculation the employee's normal work 
week. 

Family and medical leave taken to care for a newborn or newly adopted 
child must be completed within twelve (12) months of the child's birth 
or placement for adoption. This leave is in addition to maternity 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
95



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

65 

disability leave as provided above in 6.08, which is allowed for the 
actual period of the disability associated with pregnancy or childbirth. 

6.10.02 Definitions. For purposes of the family medical leave policy in section 
6.09, the following terms are defined: 

(a) "Twelve Month Period" - means a rolling 12-month period measured 
backward from the date taken and continuous with each additional 
leave day taken. 

(b) "Child" - means a child either under 18 years of age or older who is 
incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability. An 
employee's "child" is one for whom the employee has actual day to day 
responsibility for care and includes a biological, adopted, foster or step-
child. 

(c) "Serious Health Condition" - means an illness, injury impairment, or 
physical or mental condition that involves either: 1) inpatient care; or 2) 
any period of incapacity requiring absence from work for more than five 
calendar days AND that involves continuing treatment by a health care 
provider; or 3) continuing treatment by a health care provider for a 
chronic or long-term health condition which, if left untreated, would 
likely result in a period of incapacity of more than five calendar days; or 
4) prenatal care by a health care provider. 

In determining whether a serious health condition exists, the term 
"continuing treatment" shall mean either: 1) two or more visits to a health 
care provider; or 2) two or more treatments by a health care practitioner 
or referral from, or under the direction of, a health care provider; or 3) a 
single visit to a health care provider that results in a regimen of 
continuing treatment; or 4) in the case of serious, long-term or chronic 
condition or disability that cannot be cured, being under the continuing 
supervision of, but not necessarily being actively treated by, a health 
care provider. 

(d) "Medically Necessary" means there must be a medical need for the 
leave and that the leave can best be accomplished through an 
intermittent or reduced leave schedule. 

6.10.03 Procedures:  

(a) Notice Requirement: An employee must request the use of family 
and medical leave for the birth, placement or adoption of a child by 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
96



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

66 

submitting a written statement of the specific reasons for the leave at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the anticipated date of delivery, placement 
or adoption. If a scheduled medical treatment for the employee or a 
spouse, child or parent of the employee is the basis for the request, the 
employee must, if practicable, provide thirty (30) days written notice. It 
is the responsibility of the employee who has a planned medical 
treatment to make a reasonable effort to schedule treatment so as not to 
unduly disrupt city operations. The notice must be presented to the 
department head, who will review and forward the written statement 
to the City Administrator. 

(b) Confirmation Requirement: The city may require an employee 
requesting family and medical leave to provide confirmation from a 
health care provider of the need for and probable duration of the leave 
requested. The confirmation must be provided in an approved city 
format available from the City Administrator within fifteen (15) days of 
the date that confirmation is requested by the city. The city reserves the 
right to obtain, at its expense, an opinion from a second health care 
provider of the city's choosing. Should the recommendations of the 
city's health care provider differ from that of the employee's, the opinion 
of a third health care provider, chosen jointly by the employee and the 
city, will be obtained at the expense of the city, to review the request.  

All documentation related to the employee's or family member's medical 
condition will be treated in confidentiality and maintained in the employee's 
medical records file within the City Clerk’s office. 

6.10.04 Duration and Use of Family and Medical Leave: 

(a) Consecutive and Intermittent Use of Family and Medical Leave: An 
employee will normally be granted up to twelve (12) consecutive weeks 
of family and medical leave in a twelve month period. Intermittent use of 
up to twelve (12) weeks of family and medical leave may be allowed by 
the city when the employee has established, through the confirmation 
process in 6.08.03, that it is medically necessary to use the leave 
intermittently.  

Intermittent use of up to twelve (12) weeks of family and medical leave 
in a Twelve Month Period may be allowed for care of a spouse, child or 
parent who has a serious health condition. The medical certification of the 
need for intermittent leave provided by the employee's health care 
provider must specify the expected duration of the intermittent leave. 
In granting the use of intermittent family and medical leave, the city 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
97



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

67 

may require an employee to temporarily transfer to an available 
alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits to better 
accommodate the employee's modified work hours. 

(b) Status Reports While Using Family and Medical Leave: The city may 
require an employee using family and medical leave to periodically 
report their status and intention to return to work. The city may also 
require an employee to obtain additional, written medical certification 
for the need to continue the leave. 

(c) Use of Paid Leave as Part of a Family and Medical Leave Period 
Required: Employees requesting the use of unpaid family and medical 
leave for a personal serious health condition shall normally be required to 
exhaust sick leave accruals and to utilize up to four work weeks of their 
accrued vacation leave as part of the leave period. Employees with less 
than four work weeks of accrued vacation leave shall normally be 
required to use their entire leave accrual.  

(d) Employees requesting the use of unpaid family and medical leave to 
care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition must 
exhaust their vacation leave and may be required to exhaust their sick 
leave subject to section 6.10.  

Accrued vacation and sick leave must be taken at the beginning of the 
family and medical leave period. Exceptions to the mandatory use of 
sick and annual leave as part of a family and medical leave period may 
be requested, in writing, to the Mayor when the family and medical 
leave is requested. 

The city may, at its discretion, grant leave without pay pursuant to 
Personnel Policy 6.08 or 6.15 to extend the duration of a family and 
medical leave period beyond 12 weeks. 

6.10.05 Employee Benefits During Periods of Family & Medical Leave: The 
city will continue the employer's share of the premiums for medical and 
dental coverage for up to twelve (12) weeks of approved family and medical 
leave. However, city payment of the employer's share of coverage is 
conditioned upon return to work. Except in certain circumstances, if the 
employee terminates employment before returning from family and medical 
leave, the city may recover all insurance payments made while the employee 
was on family and medical leave.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
98



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

68 

If an employee is normally required to pay for part of the medical and dental 
insurance premiums, mutually acceptable arrangements for payment of the 
employee's share of the premiums must be made to ensure continuation of 
coverage.  

Sick and vacation leave shall not accrue during a period of unpaid family and 
medical leave, unless earned by meeting the requirements of 5.03.03. Paid 
holidays shall not be provided to employees on unpaid family and medical 
leave, unless earned by meeting the requirements of 6.02.04 or 6.02.05.  

6.10.06 Job Protection Provisions: If an employee returns to work within the 
agreed upon time period of family and medical leave, he/she will be 
reinstated to his/her former position or an equivalent position with 
equivalent pay, benefits, status and authority. The employee's restored status 
will be the same as it would have been had the employee not been on leave. 
Thus, if the employee's position would have been eliminated or the employee 
would have been terminated but for the leave, the employee would not have 
any new right to be reinstated upon return from leave. 

If an employee fails to return to work following twelve weeks of family and 
medical leave, he/she will be reinstated to the same or a similar position only 
if a position is available. If the same or similar position is not available the 
employee may be terminated.  

6.11 Family Care Leave 

6.11.01 Definitions. For the purposes of the family care leave policy in section 
6.10, the following terms are defined: 

(a) "Child" means a biological, adopted, or foster child, a stepchild, a 
legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis who is: 

(1) Under eighteen years of age; or 

(2) Eighteen years of age or older and incapable of self-care because 
of a mental or physical disability. 

(b) "Emergency condition" means a health condition that is a sudden, 
generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances related to one's 
health demanding immediate action, and is typically very short term in 
nature. 

(c) "Grandparent" means a parent of a parent of an employee. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
99



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

69 

(d) "Health condition that requires treatment or supervision" includes: 

(1) Any medical condition requiring treatment or medication that the 
child cannot self-administer; 

(2) Any medical or mental health condition which would endanger 
the child's safety or recovery without the presence of a parent or 
guardian; or 

(3) Any condition warranting treatment or preventive health care 
such as physical, dental, optical or immunization services, when a 
parent must be present to authorize and when sick leave may 
otherwise be used for the employee's preventive health care. 

(e) "Incapable of self-care" means that the individual requires active 
assistance or supervision to provide daily self-care in several of the 
"activities of daily living" (ADLs) or "instrumental activities of daily 
living" (IADLs). Activities of daily living include adaptive activities 
such as caring appropriately for one's grooming and hygiene, bathing, 
dressing and eating. Instrumental activities of daily living include 
cooking, cleaning, shopping, taking public transportation, paying bills, 
maintaining a residence, using telephones and directories, using a post 
office, etc. 

(f) "Parent" means a biological parent of an employee or an individual 
who stood in loco parentis to an employee when the employee was a 
child. 

(g) "Parent-in-law" means a parent of the spouse of an employee. 

(h) "Physical or mental disability" means a physical or mental impairment 
that limits one or more activities of daily living or instrumental activities 
of daily living. 

(i) "Serious health condition" means an illness, injury, impairment, or 
physical or mental condition that involves any period of incapacity or 
treatment connected with inpatient care (i.e., an overnight stay) in a 
hospital, hospice, or residential medical care facility, and any period of 
incapacity or subsequent treatment or recovery in connection with such 
inpatient care; or that involves continuing treatment by or under the 
supervision of a health care provider or a provider of health care 
services and which includes any period of incapacity (i.e., inability to 
work, attend school or perform other regular daily activities). 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
100



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

70 

(j) "Spouse" means a husband or wife, as the case may be. 

(k) “State registered domestic partners” means two adults who meet 
the requirements for a valid state registered domestic partnership as 
established by section 4 of SB - 5336 and who have been issued a 
certificate of state registered domestic partnership by the Secretary of 
State. 

(l) All other words have definitions as provided for in Section 2 of this 
policy manual or, in the absence of a definition, utilize the most common 
meaning of the word. 

6.11.02 An employee may use any or all of the employee's choice of sick leave 
or other paid time off to care for: 

(a) A child of the employee with a health condition as defined in 6.10.01. 

(b) An immediate family member or parent-in-law of the employee who 
has a serious health condition or emergency condition, as defined in 
6.10.01. 

6.11.03 Permitted use of Family Care Leave 

Type of Illness / 
Medical condition 

Applicability to 
Children 

Applicability to 
Immediate Family 
Members 

Health Condition 
Requiring treatment 
or supervision 

Applies Does not apply 

Serious Health 
Condition 

Applies Applies 

Emergency 
Condition 

Applies Applies 

6.11.04 An employee may not take leave until it has been earned.  

6.11.05 Employees unable to report to work because of the need to take family 
care leave are to notify their immediate supervisor within fifteen (15) minutes 
of the official start time, except in the case of a bona fide emergency. Use of 
paid leave may not be allowed, at the discretion of the supervisor, unless such 
report has been made. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
101



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

71 

6.11.06 The employee taking leave under the circumstances described in this 
section must comply with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement 
or employer policy applicable to the leave, except for any terms relating to 
the choice of leave.  

6.11.07 Use of leave other than sick leave or other paid time off to care for a child, 
spouse, state registered domestic partner, parent, parent-in-law, or grandparent 
under the circumstances described in this section shall be governed by the terms 
of the appropriate collective bargaining agreement or employer policy, as 
applicable. 

6.12  Worker's Compensation 

6.12.01 When an employee is receiving industrial insurance compensation, 
the City shall continue to pay the employee’s regular salary from the 
employee’s accumulated sick-leave, provided the employee shall reimburse 
the City the amount of such industrial insurance compensation immediately 
upon receipt by the employee. 

6.12.02 The employee will continue to receive all applicable benefits while 
receiving industrial insurance compensation until such time as all sick-leave 
benefits have been exhausted. The employee will retain the right to self-pay 
medical and dental insurance premiums at the group rate to the City while 
on industrial insurance compensation. 

 

6.13  Bereavement Leave 

6.13.01 In the event of death in the immediate family, or aunt, uncle, niece, 
nephew, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law or daughter-in-law, of an 
employee, up to five (5) days paid leave may be approved by the department 
manager, for an employee to attend to family matters and the funeral. An 
additional two (2) days leave for extended travel in conjunction with family 
bereavement leave if extended travel is required. This request must be 
approved by the City Administrator and will be charged to: a) sick leave, if 
accrued; or in its absence, b) vacation leave if accrued; otherwise c) leave 
without pay.  

6.13.02 An employee requesting bereavement leave under section 6.12.01 
may be required to substantiate the request by providing documentation or 
verification to the City upon request.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
102



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

72 

6.13.03 Family bereavement leave shall be non-accumulative and only 
available within 15 days of the occurrence. 

6.14  Military Leave 

6.14.01  A regular status employee who is a member of the Washington 
National Guard or a federal military unit is entitled to leave from his or her 
duties for up to fifteen (15) work days each calendar year (using an October 
1 to September 30 year) for official military duty in accordance with RCW 
38.40.060. "Day", for purposes of this section, shall be defined as a twenty-
four hour period. Such leaves are in addition to any other leave or vacation 
benefits. During the fifteen (15) work day period of military duty, the 
employee shall continue to receive his or her normal rate of pay. 

6.14.02 An employee who is called to or volunteers for service with the armed 
forces of the United States or the Washington National Guard, may be 
entitled to reinstatement in his or her position upon completion of service, 
pursuant to state and federal laws. 

An employee promoted or hired to fill a vacancy created by a person on 
military leave is appointed to the position subject to the return of the absent 
employee. Upon such return, a promoted employee is restored to his or her 
original position or an equivalent position subject to the provisions of state 
and federal law. 

6.14.03 Active Military Duty Shared Leave.  The intent of this shared leave 
provision is to provide short-term financial stability to allow an employee to 
adjust to a different income and benefit level under military pay. 

Any employee who is ordered to report for active military duty for a 
significant military event such as "Operation Enduring Freedom: as 
determined by the Mayor and is unable to perform the duties of his or her 
City position may be eligible to receive donated hours. This may include an 
employee who is a member of the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, 
Coast Guard and their reserves; the Army and Air National Guards, the 
Public Health Service commissioned corps, and other categories designated 
by the President in a time of emergency. 

Any regular full-time or part-time City employee may donate accrued 
vacation leave hours to provide financial assistance to employees who are 
called to active military duty and who are unable to perform the duties of 
their position. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
103



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

73 

Donations of leave shall be in hourly increments. Vacation leave shall be 
transferred on a dollar for dollar basis. The value of the leave shall be 
determined at the current hourly wage of the donator and the leave available 
to the receiving employee shall be calculated at the receiving employee's 
wage. 

An eligible employee may receive up to 50% of their regular pay per pay 
period as shared leave to supplement military pay for a total not to exceed 
100% of their regular pay. The employee must turn over military paycheck 
stubs to the City so the City can determine the correct supplemental pay and 
donated leave amounts. An employee can receive shared leave for active 
military duty for up to six (6) consecutive pay periods. 

While receiving shared leave, the City will continue to pay its portion of the 
employee and family health insurance benefits, and the employee will pay 
his or her portion. Employees will not accrue vacation, sick leave or other 
leave benefits while receiving shared leave. Other regular benefit deductions, 
such as retirement, will continue and will be based on the amount of pay 
received or number of hours of shared leave paid as appropriate. 
Continuation of optional benefits deductions is at the discretion of the 
employee receiving active military duty shared leave. 

Any donated leave of less than $100 value which is unused because an 
employee returns to work will be forfeited and used to cover the costs of 
administering the shared leave program. If the value of unused donated leave 
exceeds $100, the unused leave will be returned to the donors on a pro rata 
basis, proportional to the donation, to the extent administratively feasible. 

6.15  Jury Duty 

6.15.01 A regular status employee summoned for jury duty is granted leave 
for such duty with city payment of the difference between his normal city 
salary and compensation received for jury duty; provided that the employee 
shall reimburse the City the amount of fees received from such excused duty 
immediately upon receipt of said fees, exclusive of travel allowance.  The 
employee's department manager is to be informed immediately by the 
employee upon receipt of a summons for jury duty. 

6.15.02 An employee called for jury duty who is temporarily excused from 
attendance at court must report to his/her place of work at least one-half of 
his/her normal work day, in order to be eligible for payment of regular 
wages under this section. The employee must furnish a written statement 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
104



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

74 

from the appropriate public official showing the date and time served and 
the amount of jury duty pay received. 

6.16  Leave Without Pay (Leave of Absence) 

The Mayor or his/her designee may grant leaves without pay for absence 
from work not covered by any other type of leave or if other leave balances 
are exhausted.  Only regular full-time and regular part-time employees who 
have satisfactorily completed their probationary period are eligible for leave 
without pay. The following requirements apply: 

6.16.01 Leave without pay may be granted to an employee for a period of up 
to six calendar months, upon the approval of the Mayor or his/her designee. 
Leave without pay may be allowed when such leave will not operate to the 
detriment of the city. 

6.16.02 Leave without pay may be authorized for any reasons applicable to: 

a) Leave with pay. 
b) Educational leave. 
c) Adoptive/Paternity Leave. 
d) Leaves granted for government service in the public interest upon 
specific request of any employee. 
e) Medical Leave or Family Medical Leave 
 f) Military Leave 

6.16.03 Upon written request of the employee and approval of the 
department manager, the Mayor may grant a regular status employee a leave 
of absence without pay not to exceed six months. Normally, leave without 
pay will not be granted until all accrued vacation time has been exhausted. 

6.16.04 Vacation and sick leave accrual is suspended during periods of leave 
without pay. The anniversary date of the employee will be adjusted by the 
length of leave granted. Any employee on approved leave of absence may 
continue medical and/or dental insurance coverage by paying the full cost to 
the city in advance for each month or portion thereof in which the employee 
is to be absent. 

6.16.05 Upon expiration of a regularly approved leave without pay, the 
employee will be reinstated in the position held at the time the leave was 
granted or to a similar position, provided that return to employment is not in 
conflict with any rule relating to re-employment following layoff. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
105



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

75 

6.16.06 The City reserves the right to recall an employee from a previously 
authorized leave of absence when operational needs dictate. 

6.16.07  An employee who fails to report promptly at the end of the leave 
without pay is presumed to have voluntarily resigned.  

6.17  Leave Due to Inclement Weather, other Significant Disruptions of the 
Transportation System or State of Emergency 

6.17.01 Absence due to an employee's inability to report for scheduled work 
because of severe inclement weather, conditions caused by severe inclement 
weather or other significant disruptions of the transportation system shall be 
charged to the following in the order listed: 

• Accrued vacation leave, annual leave (floating holiday(s)) or 
compensatory time;  
• Accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 24 hours in any calendar year;  
• Leave without pay.  

Although the types of time off shall be used in the order listed in this policy, 
and each type of paid time off shall be exhausted before the next is used, 
employees shall be permitted to use leave without pay rather than paid time 
off at their request. 

6.17.02 Tardiness due to an employee's inability to report for scheduled work 
because of severe inclement weather, conditions caused by severe inclement 
weather or significant disruptions of the transportation system will be 
allowed up to one and one-half hour at the beginning of the work day. 
Tardiness under this policy in excess of one and one-half hour shall be 
charged as provided above. 

6.17.03 State of Emergency – Mandatory Leave 

The Mayor or the Mayor’s designee may place an employee on mandatory 
leave with pay for an indefinite period of time under the following 
circumstances: 

• Public health emergency or warning that may involve the employee or 
the City; or 

• Inclement weather or natural disaster that the Mayor or Mayor’s 
designee determines would make it unsafe for an employee to report 
to work; or 

• Other situations that are in the best interests of the City, as determined 
by the Mayor or Mayor’s designee. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
106



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

76 

All employees on mandatory leave shall be on standby to return to the 
workplace. Employees on mandatory leave may be required to perform 
certain work tasks from home or other localities depending on the nature of 
their work and other circumstances. The Mayor or Mayor’s designee shall 
have the discretion to attach such conditions to the granting of mandatory 
leave as is determined to be appropriate and/or necessary under the 
circumstances at the time. 
 

6.18  Unauthorized Absence 

6.18.01 Unauthorized absence is treated as leave without pay and may be 
grounds for disciplinary action. Upon return from unauthorized absence, the 
employee is required to provide a written statement to the department 
manager explaining the reason for the absence. 

6.18.02 An unauthorized absence for a period of three days will be considered 
as a resignation from employment of the city. 

6.19  Insurance Benefit Plans 

6.19.01  The city will offer to full-time status and regular part-time status 
employees and their eligible dependents, working at least thirty (30) hours 
per week, unless otherwise specified in bargaining unit agreements, 
insurance plans as identified in the Table below, for medical, hospital, vision 
and dental benefits, to be used at the option of the employee, subject to the 
carrier’s underwriting rules. Unless otherwise specified in bargaining unit 
agreements, part-time status employees who are scheduled to work less than 
30 hours per week are eligible for the City’s insurance plan for medical, 
hospital, vision and dental benefits on a self-pay basis. 
 
 

Employee Unit Medical Plan Dental Plan Orthodontia 
Plan Vision Plan 

Exempt & 
Hourly 

AWC 
Healthfirst 250 

Delta Dental – 
Plan E 

Delta Dental – 
Plan IV 

AWC – VSP 

Union Local 
#302 

AWC 
HealthFirst 250 

Delta Dental – 
Plan E 

Delta Dental – 
Plan IV 

AWC – VSP 

Police Guild LEOFF Trust 
“A” 

Delta Dental – 
Plan E 

Delta Dental – 
Plan IV 

LEOFF Trust 
“A” 

 
The City may offer healthcare coverage to certain temporary and/or seasonal 
employees and their dependents on a self-pay basis. In order for a temporary 
employee to be eligible for this benefit on a self-pay basis the employee must 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
107



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

77 

be appointed to a temporary position that is intended to continue for at least 
6 months and be eligible subject to the carrier's underwriting rules.  

 
Beginning July 1, 2012 employees shall begin contributing 10% of the cost of 
the employee(s) premium through payroll withdrawal to maintain current 
levels of healthcare coverage.  
 
Beginning July 1, 2012 employees with dependent(s) that have elected to 
enroll their dependents under the City’s sponsored healthcare coverage (i.e. 
spouses or children) shall begin contributing 12.5% of the cost of the 
employee(s) dependents premium through payroll withdrawal to maintain 
current levels of healthcare coverage for their dependents All insurance 
premiums will be subject to applicable payroll taxes as required by the 
Internal Revenue Service. 
 
The City will not provide duplication of health care coverage to an employee 
who is married to another employee of the City. One spouse or state 
registered domestic partner may be named as the policy holder and the other 
as a covered spouse or state registered domestic partner; OR each may be a 
policy holder, but in that case neither may be listed as a covered spouse or 
state registered domestic partner. Their children may be listed as covered 
dependents on one policy or the other, but not on both. In this circumstance 
primary coverage of the dependent children may be dictated by the insurance 
under State statute. 
 
6.19.02 Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) Contribution – Unless 
otherwise specified in bargaining unit agreements, beginning January 1, 2018 
the City will activate a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) for eligible 
employees.  The City will provide annual contributions to each employee’s 
HRA account according the schedule in the Table below: 

 
 
 

HRA Contribution City Contribution 
Amount/Employee 

Employee $1,100 
Spouse $500 
Dependent (2 maximum) $250 

 
*Note: In addition to the annual contributions, the City will fund any 
administrative costs that the HRA provider charges to manage each account. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
108



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

78 

HRA accounts are being established for each eligible employee to assist with 
additional out-of-pocket expenses resulting from the change on AWC 
healthcare benefits taking place January 1, 2018. Therefore contributions to 
an employee’s HRA account are not eligible for any type of payment under 
the City’s Health Insurance Opt-Out Program in Section 6.21.. 

 
These HRA contributions are subject to funding by the City Council in the 
annual budget and the City retains the right to, in its sole discretion, modify, 
adjust or terminate the contribution amounts for any fiscal year if insufficient 
funding is provided in the budget, provided however that such change shall 
not impact the rights or benefits of any employee for the prior fiscal year. 
   
6.19.03 Newly hired regular-status employees and their dependents shall 
generally be eligible for benefit coverage within 30 days of hire, subject to 
enrollment and processing by the carrier. 
 
6.19.04 In compliance with COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act), the City offers continuing health care coverage on a self-
pay basis to employees and their dependents, except for employees covered 
under the Police Officer’s Guild CBA, following termination (for reasons 
other than gross misconduct), unpaid leave of absence, reduction in hours, 
retirement or death. These health benefits will be identical to the coverage 
offered to regular employees. For terminated employees or employees whose 
hours are reduced below that of a regular employee, the coverage may last 
up to eighteen (18) months or until they become eligible for other health 
insurance coverage, whichever is earlier. 
 
Employees eligible for the City’s ERIP under Section 6.20 may be eligible for 
enhanced benefits as specified under Section 6.20. 

 
(a) Employees covered under AWC Healthfirst. In the event of the 

employee’s retirement, divorce, separation or death, the coverage may 
last up to thirty-six (36) months for the employee and/or qualified 
beneficiary; if provided, identical health benefit coverage (medical, 
dental and vision) shall only be provided for the initial eighteen (18) 
months of COBRA at which time the coverage shall convert to a retiree 
with no Medicare coverage for any remaining “eligible” period up to 
the full thirty-six (36) months. The second tier coverage for the periods 
beyond 18 months shall provide reduced benefit AWC Retiree medical 
coverage “only” with no dental or vision. The full policy monthly 
premium plus a two percent (2%) administration fee will be paid by the 
employee or the beneficiary to the City or designated benefit 
administrator.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
109



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

79 

 
(b) Non-Police Guild CBA Employee’s covered under LEOFF Trust. In the 

event of the employee’s retirement, divorce, separation or death, the 
coverage may last up to thirty-six (36) months for the employee and/or 
qualified beneficiary; if provided, identical health benefit coverage 
(medical, dental and vision) shall only be provided for the initial 
eighteen (18) months of the COBRA period. Eligible coverage periods 
beyond 18 months up to the full thirty-six (36) months shall provide 
continued medical coverage that includes LEOFF Trust vision benefits, 
but no dental benefit. The fully policy monthly premium plus a two 
percent (2%) administration fee will be paid by the employee or the 
beneficiary to the City or designated benefit administrator. 

 
(c) The employee or beneficiary may waive all rights to continuation 

coverage according to notification procedures and time limits outlined 
in a continuation coverage “Notification of Rights” letter.  

6.19.05 Industrial Accident Insurance is provided for all employees, except 
full-time uniformed employees who are covered under the LEOFF Act as set 
forth in RCW 41.26. 

6.20 Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) 

6.20.01 Applicability.  The Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) applies 
to all FLSA exempt regular full or part-time status City employees, and 
regular full or part-time status City employees covered under collective 
bargaining agreements once the ERIP is authorized by the separate employee 
organizations or union(s).  
 
6.20.02 Purpose. The purpose of the City’s new Early Retirement Incentive 
Program (ERIP) is (1) to afford those long term City employees who desire to 
retire prior to either PERS, LEOFF and/or Social Security Full Retirement 
Age an opportunity to do so with some financial assistance until eligible for 
PERS/LEOFF retirement and/or social security benefits, and (2) to encourage 
some measure of staffing flexibility, consistent with overall City and 
individual department needs. 
 
The City’s Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) is strictly voluntary 
and provides an insurance incentive that allows an employee to retire early 
prior to being eligible for Medicare benefits. Under the ERIP employees that 
have at least 10 years of service with the City shall be eligible for 1 year (12 
months) of City paid continuing health care coverage for the employee 
“only” under COBRA. Employee electing to take early retirement under this 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
110



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

80 

program who have more than 10 years of service with the City shall receive 
an additional 1.5 months of City paid continuing health care coverage 
(medical, dental & vision) for the employee for every year of service over the 
10 year initial threshold, up to the maximum allowed under COBRA which 
is 36 months, except that City contributions to COBRA under ERIP will cease 
before the end of the eligible period, if:  
 

• the participant becomes eligible for medical care coverage through 
another employer; or 
• the participant becomes eligible for Medicare benefits; or 
• the participant elects coverage through a spouse/domestic partner 
employed by the City; or 
• the participant dies. 

 
Participation in the City’s ERIP provides coverage under the City’s insurance 
plan as outlined in Section 6.19.04 (a) and (b), except under the ERIP the City 
will be responsible for the cost of the administrative fee as well as the 
premium amount. 
 
Employees electing to participate in the City’s ERIP may choose to provide 
health care coverage for their dependents on a self-pay basis following their 
termination/retirement from the City.  

This program is subject to funding by the City Council in the annual budget 
and the City retains the right to designate the number of positions to fund 
annually and the right to deny an application or delay its effective date in the 
best interests of the City. The City may, in its sole discretion terminate the 
program at any time or, suspend it for any fiscal year, if insufficient funding 
is provided in the budget, provided however that such suspension shall not 
impact the rights or benefits of any employee who has retired under the 
program in a prior fiscal year. 

6.20.03 Long term City employees who retire early due to medical reasons 
related to a serious health condition prior to either PERS, LEOFF and/or 
Social Security Full Retirement Age are eligible for the ERIP as outlined in 
6.20.02 above.   

6.20.04 Procedures. Eligible Employees who wish to participate in ERIP must 
contact the Finance Department to determine eligibility. The early retirement 
applicant should file application and submit appropriate paperwork 
supporting eligibility to the Finance Director on or before October 1 of the 
year preceding the proposed date of early retirement. The Mayor may waive 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
111



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

81 

the submittal deadline for application when unforeseen and/or unusual 
circumstances warrant.  

The Finance Director will confirm eligibility and forward to the City 
Administrator or Mayor for approval.  

The City shall enroll the eligible employee in COBRA immediately upon 
retirement from City service so that healthcare coverage continues without 
interruption.  

6.21  Health Insurance Opt-Out Program 
 

6.21.01 Eligible employees who can demonstrate and attest to having other 
employer-sponsored group health insurance for their eligible dependent(s) 
may elect to opt out of the City’s sponsored Medical/Prescription, Vision 
and Dental coverage with the Association of Washington Cities Employee 
Benefit Trust or LEOFF Health and Welfare Trust. Employees who elect to 
opt out of dependent(s) coverage will receive a cash payment as follows: 

 
• Employee only (single person, has no spouse or dependents) - $700 
• Employee plus spouse and/or dependents - $700 
• Just Spouse and/or Dependents - $400 
 

Any cash payments made to the employee under the Opt-Out Program will 
be subject to normal withholdings and reported as taxable income and the 
employee will be required to pay any taxes due on them.  

 
The City will review this program on an annual basis during the budget 
process and may cancel the program effective on the first day of the 
“succeeding” plan year, but will not cancel it at any time during the current 
year it is offered.  

 
The opt out will be offered for medical, dental, and vision; an employee 
may not choose to opt out themselves or their dependents from some 
coverages and not others. If an employee and/or dependent opts out, they 
will opt out for medical, dental, and vision. Any employee opting out 
themselves or their dependents will need to provide proof that they are 
covered under another insurance plan annually. 

 
Per AWC, a maximum of 25% of employees may opt themselves out of 
medical coverage across the organization. Applications for opt out will be 
accepted beginning the first day of open enrollment at 7am. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
112



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

82 

Employees who elect to opt-out will continue to receive their full HRA 
benefit.  

 
Employees who elect to opt-out of dependent coverage may do so during 
the Open Enrollment period or with a qualifying life-changing event. In 
return, the employee is eligible for up to twelve (12) months of monetary 
waiver payments, which will be made in twelve (12) pay periods. Employees 
who elect to opt-out of dependent coverage will not be permitted to re-enroll 
until the next annual open enrollment period commencing in November of 
each year and effective in January of the following year unless re-enrollment 
provisions apply. 

 
Employees will not be allowed to waive/reduce existing coverage and 
receive cash payment for their eligible dependent(s) unless they can offer 
proof of coverage under an alternate health insurance plan. 

 
Employees desiring to participate in the Opt-Out Program must complete a 
waiver form and submit it to the Finance Director during the Open 
Enrollment period but no later than December 5th each year. Following the 
submission of the waiver form and the information for the verification of 
alternate insurance coverage found at the end of the waiver form, the current 
City health insurance coverage will terminate on December 31 of the year 
that the form was submitted. Further, an employee may apply to participate 
in the Opt-Out Program during the benefit plan year if, within thirty (30) 
days of a qualifying life-changing event (i.e., marriage, new dependents), 
they notify the Finance Director and complete the necessary forms. 

 
Participants in the program will no longer have a monthly deduction of the 
employee dependent premium co-payments for which the employee has 
opted-out and will receive the waiver payment instead. The waiver payment 
will be made over twelve (12) pay periods during the following plan year. 
All payments are considered income and are subject to normal 
withholdings. Offering this program does not obligate the City to continue 
the program from year–to-year if it is not economically feasible or if in 
conflict with Federal or State law. 

 
6.21.02 New full time employees starting with the City after the beginning 
of a plan year may be eligible to participate in the opt-out program by 
declining health insurance coverage for their eligible dependent(s) during 
the initial enrollment period. The waiver payment received will be prorated 
for the balance of the benefit plan year based on the number of waiver 
payment pay periods remaining in the plan year. Also, new employees must 
also offer proof of coverage for their eligible dependent(s) under another 
health insurance plan. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
113



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

83 

 
6.21.03 Duration. A waiver of health insurance is in effect for twelve months 
(January 1 – December 31). If economically viable and not in conflict with 
Federal or State law, the City may authorize the program for the next benefit 
year. Employees who prefer to continue in the Opt-Out Program for the next 
benefit year must complete a new waiver form (with proof of alternative 
insurance coverage) during the designated open enrollment period. 
Employees desiring not to continue in the Opt-Out Program MUST complete 
all required enrollment forms for City health insurance coverage for their 
eligible dependent(s) at the next open enrollment period and coverage will 
be effective at the start of the next following plan year. 

 
6.21.04 Separation. If an employee participating in the Opt-Out Program 
separates employment with the City during a plan year, waiver payments 
will only continue through the last payroll period he or she is employed. 
NOTE: An employee participating in the program who separates and/or 
retires during the plan year does NOT have health insurance rights to 
participate in a City health insurance plan after separation and/or 
retirement, except as allowed under the City’s COBRA policy, Section 
6.19.04 of the City’s Personnel Manual, on a self-pay basis. 

 
6.21.05 Re-enrollment to a City health insurance plan can only occur during 
the annual open enrollment period or within thirty (30) days of a life-
changing event (e.g., spouse losing insurance coverage). Under a qualifying 
re-enrollment during the plan year, the waiver payment will cease in the 
payroll period that City health insurance coverage becomes effective.  

 
6.22  Retirement 

6.22.01 City employees are covered under the Washington Public Employees 
Retirement System in accordance with State law and all employees in a 
qualifying position, regardless of appointment status, will become members 
of the Retirement System. Payroll deduction for employee contributions is 
required, regardless of anticipated length of service. Employer contributions 
will be made in accordance with applicable State law. 

6.22.02 Uniformed personnel shall be members of the Washington Law 
Enforcement Officers and Fire Fighters Retirement System with employer 
contributions made in accordance with applicable State law. 

6.23 Optional Benefit or Investment Plans 

The city may offer to regular-status employees working at least forty (40) hours 
per week optional benefit plans such as life insurance, income protection, deferred 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
114



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

84 

compensation or other retirement plans, etc. These benefits, when offered, are at 
the option and cost of the employee. 

 

Section 7 
Substance Abuse Policy 

7.01 Purpose  
7.02 Scope  
7.03 Policy  
7.04 Assistance Program /Voluntary Referral  
7.05 Compliance with Drug Free Workplace Act  
7.06 Compliance with Federal Regulations Applicable to Commercial 
Drivers  
7.07 Procedures for Drug/Alcohol Testing of Employees Other than 
Commercial Drivers  
7.08 Confidentiality and Record Retention  

7.01 Purpose  

The City of Buckley recognizes that its employees are its most important resource 
in fulfilling its charge of effective public service. The city has promulgated this 
policy in the interest of the safety and well-being of its employees and the 
efficiency of its workforce. This document outlines the city of Buckley policy 
regarding alcohol and drug abuse and provides guidance to supervisors in 
addressing substance abuse issues. This policy is intended to comply with the 
federal Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 and with federal Department of 
Transportation regulations governing commercial drivers.  

7.02 Scope  

This policy applies to all City of Buckley employees except that employees 
included in bargaining units are subject to drug testing only if: 1) the labor contract 
covering them specifically allows for such testing; or 2) the issue of drug testing 
has been legally bargained to final impasse; or 3) a written agreement between 
management and the employee’s bargaining agent has been signed and executed 
to provide for drug testing.  

All other provisions of this policy, apart from the limits to drug testing as specified 
above, shall apply to all city employees. In cases where the provisions of this policy 
conflict with collective bargaining agreements duly agreed upon between the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
115



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

85 

authorized employee organizations or unions and the city, the provisions of the 
collective bargaining agreements shall govern.  

None of the exclusions mentioned in this Section shall waive or in any way 
diminish the City’s Disciplinary Action and Rules of Conduct Policy (4.06.01, "g") 
which covers all employees.  

Neither the provisions nor the exclusions cited in this policy waive or modify the 
"employment at will" status of any city employee subject to that status either by 
law or as allowed under a collective bargaining agreement.  

7.03 Policy  

7.03.01 The City of Buckley recognizes that alcoholism and drug abuse may 
have an adverse effect on job performance and it is concerned with this 
impact.  

7.03.02 The City of Buckley recognizes that alcoholism and drug abuse can be 
successfully treated, enabling the employee to return to a satisfactory job 
performance level.  

7.03.03 Employees who are concerned about their alcohol and/or drug use 
are strongly encouraged to voluntarily seek assistance.  

Supervisors, department managers and the City Administrator are available 
to all employees as a resource.  

7.03.04 It is the employee’s responsibility to demonstrate satisfactory job 
performance.  

7.03.05 It shall be the responsibility of supervisors at every level to encourage 
employees to use the resources available through city employment when 
deteriorating or unsatisfactory job performance does not respond to usual 
supervisory actions, or when a specific on-the-job incident is cause for 
concern. These resources include employer provided health insurance and 
leave benefits which may be coordinated to enable assistance or treatment for 
the employee. The supervisor’s role is to observe and record behavior and 
performance of employees. Supervisors should not attempt to medically 
diagnose an employee’s problems.  

7.03.06 The employee’s compliance with the recommendations of a health 
care professional is voluntary. Use of a remedial or treatment program does 
not replace normal disciplinary procedures for unsatisfactory job 
performance.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
116



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

86 

7.03.07 The employee’s job security and/or promotional opportunities will 
not be jeopardized by use of a remedial or treatment program. Paid or unpaid 
leave status during participation in a remedial or treatment program will be 
determined on a case-by-case basis, depending upon the circumstances 
involved.  

7.03.08 Confidentiality is an essential element of substance abuse treatment. 
Any employee violating this confidentiality will be subject to disciplinary 
action.  

7.03.09 Reporting to work under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or any 
substance, legal or illegal, which impairs an employee’s mental or physical 
health will not be tolerated.  

When there are reasonable grounds to believe that the employee is under the 
influence of alcohol or drugs, the supervisor may direct the employee to 
submit to drug screening and blood alcohol tests. Refusal to submit to such 
tests can subject the employee to disciplinary action up to and including 
dismissal.  

Under no circumstances will an employee be allowed to operate city 
equipment or drive a city motor vehicle after a supervisor has established 
reasonable grounds to believe that the employee is impaired.  

Any employee using medication or prescribed drugs which may impair job 
performance must report this fact to his/her supervisor prior to accepting an 
assignment which might be adversely affected by the side effects of the 
medication.  

It is the responsibility of employees who are called out to work after regular 
hours to comply with the provisions of this policy. If the employee called out 
to work has been involved in activities that may have left him/her in an 
impaired or intoxicated condition, the employee must inform the person 
making the call out, so that an alternate can be found.  

7.03.10 The unauthorized use, sale, purchase or possession of alcohol or 
controlled substances at the worksite is prohibited and shall be grounds for 
discipline up to and including dismissal. The unauthorized use of the 
employee’s position with the city to make, purchase or sell alcohol, controlled 
substances or illegal drugs is also prohibited and shall be grounds for 
discipline up to and including dismissal.  

7.04 Assistance Program / Voluntary Referral  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
117



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

87 

The City of Buckley supports employees who volunteer for treatment of alcohol 
or drug abuse. Employees are encouraged to seek treatment voluntarily and to 
utilize the Employee Assistance Program. Any employee who comes forth and 
notifies the City Buckley of alcohol or drug abuse problems will be given the 
assistance extended to employees with any other illness. Any such program, 
however, may not interfere with the tests required by these rules. For example, a 
driver may not identify himself/herself as unfit to drive after having been notified 
of a random or reasonable suspicion test and expect to avoid the consequences for 
a positive test or a refusal to test. In addition, voluntarily seeking assistance does 
not excuse any failure to comply with all of the provisions of this policy or other 
policies of the city.  

Sick leave, vacation leave or leave of absence without pay will be granted for 
treatment and rehabilitation as in other illnesses subject to City policy and / or 
contract language governing use of leave. Insurance coverage for treatment will 
be provided to the extent of individual coverage. Confidentiality of information 
will be maintained as much as possible at all times.  

7.05 Compliance with Drug Free Workplace Act  

It is the policy of the City of Buckley to comply with the federal, Drug Free 
Workplace Act of 1988. Toward that end, the following provisions and procedures 
shall be in effect:  

a) In the event that an employee is convicted of any criminal drug statutory 
violation for a violation occurring in the workplace, the employee must 
notify his/her supervisor within 5 working days. The supervisor must 
inform his/her department manager within 24 hours of the notification. 
The department manager will notify the City Administrator immediately. 
If the employee is directly involved in the performance of a contract for 
which the city receives federal funding, the contracting agency must be 
informed of the incident in writing within 10 days of the employer’s notice. 
A copy of the notification shall be sent to the City Administrator.  

The city is responsible to take appropriate disciplinary action and/or to 
require the employee to seek approved drug abuse treatment or 
rehabilitation within 30 days of receiving notice of the employee’s 
conviction.  

b) All employees shall receive a copy of this policy. All employees will be 
required to sign a statement acknowledging that they have received a copy 
of this policy.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
118



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

88 

c) The city will make information and education on the prevention of 
alcohol and drug abuse available to its employees.  

 

7.06 Compliance with Federal Regulations Applicable to Commercial Drivers  

It is the policy of the City of Buckley to comply with the federal Department of 
Transportation regulations (Title 49, CFR subtitle B, chapter 382) which mandate 
prohibited behaviors and employer responsibilities for employee's holding safety 
sensitive positions which require the possession of a valid commercial driver's 
license.  

7.06.01 Definitions - For purposes of this section, the following terms shall be 
defined as following:  

Accident - Accident means an occurrence involving a commercial vehicle on 
a public road which results in a fatality or a citation under state or local law 
for a moving violation and (1) bodily injury to a person who, as a result of 
the injury, immediately receives medical treatment away from the scene of 
the accident; and/or (2) one or more motor vehicles incurring disabling 
damage requiring the vehicle to be transported away from the scene by a tow 
truck or other vehicle.  

Driver - This term includes all employees whose positions may involve 
driving a commercial vehicle and that require the possession of a Commercial 
Driver's License.  

Commercial Vehicle - A commercial vehicle is one that either: 1) has a gross 
vehicle weight of over 26,000 pounds (including combined weight if towed 
unit weighs over 10,000 pounds); 2) is designed to transport 16 or more 
persons, including the driver; or 3) is used to transport hazardous materials.  

Drugs - For the purposes of Section 7.06, in accordance with the applicable 
federal regulations, "drugs" refers to the following five substances: marijuana 
(THC), cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine (PCP), and amphetamines.  

Medical Review Officer (MRO) - The Medical Review Officer is the licensed 
physician responsible for receiving and interpreting laboratory results from 
the urine drug tests.  

Safety Sensitive Position - For purposes of this policy, these are positions 
associated with the driving of commercial vehicles.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
119



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

89 

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) - A Substance Abuse Professional is a 
licensed physician, or a licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, 
employee assistance professional, or addiction counselor (certified by the 
National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors 
Certification Commission) with knowledge of and clinical experience in the 
diagnosis and treatment of alcohol and drug-related disorders. The SAP is 
responsible for evaluating employees with positive test results.  

7.06.02 Prohibited Behaviors. In addition to any other prohibitions on the use 
of alcohol or controlled substances established through city policy or by 
contract, the following behaviors by employees whose positions require the 
possession of a valid commercial driver's license are prohibited:  

a) Alcohol Concentration: Reporting to duty and performing safety-
sensitive functions while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or 
greater.  

b) Alcohol Possession: Unauthorized possession of alcohol while on 
duty or operating a commercial motor vehicle unless the alcohol is an 
insignificant ingredient in a medication that is either prescribed or a 
commonly recognized over-the-counter remedy and notice has been 
given to the employee's manager in advance.  

c) Alcohol Use Following an Accident: Use of alcohol within eight hours 
following an accident or before undergoing a post-accident alcohol test, 
whichever occurs first.  

d) Alcohol Use on Duty: Use of Alcohol while performing safety-
sensitive functions. (This includes alcohol which may be in 
medications).  

e) Alcohol Use Prior to Duty: Performing safety sensitive functions 
within four hours after having used alcohol. An on-call employee who 
consumes alcohol within four hours of being called in must 
acknowledge the use of alcohol and may not report for duty.  

f) Controlled Substance (Drug) Use: Reporting for duty or remaining on 
duty performing safety-sensitive functions after having used any 
controlled substance, except when the use is pursuant to the instructions 
of a physician who has advised the driver that the substance does not 
adversely affect the driver's ability to safely operate a commercial motor 
vehicle. The proper and lawful use of drugs is permitted provided their 
use does not interfere with the individual's ability to perform the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
120



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

90 

essential functions of his/her job. Any employee taking prescribed 
medication that may impair his/her ability to work safely and 
productively must notify his/her manager prior to commencing to 
work. The manager, in consultation with the employee's physician, if 
necessary, will make the determination regarding the employee's 
qualifications to work. Information provided to the manager will be 
treated as confidential. Disclosure by the City will only be required by 
law or in the event of a proceeding initiated on behalf of the employee. 
Failure to notify the manager in advance of commencing to work will 
be cause for disciplinary action up to and including discharge.  

g) Positive Drug Test: Reporting for duty, remaining on duty, or 
performing safety sensitive functions after having tested positive for a 
controlled substance.  

h) Refusal to Submit to a Required Test: Refusing to submit to a post-
accident, random, reasonable suspicion, or follow-up alcohol or 
controlled substance test as directed pursuant to this policy.  

i) Tampering with a Required Test: An employee may not tamper with, 
adulterate, alter, substitute or otherwise obstruct any testing process 
required under this policy.  

7.06.03 Mandatory Training for Commercial Drivers  

The City shall provide all affected employees with copies of this policy and 
any other information as required by the federal regulations.  

Each driver shall sign a receipt upon having been provided the above 
referenced information including a copy of this Plan and accompanying 
procedures for drug testing.  

Managers and supervisors designated to determine whether reasonable 
suspicion exists to require a commercial driver to undergo alcohol or drug 
testing will receive at least 60 minutes of training on alcohol and 60 additional 
minutes of training on substance abuse. The training will convey the physical, 
behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse 
and use of controlled substances.  

7.06.04 Drug and Alcohol Testing Program for Commercial Drivers  

a) Pre-employment Drug Testing: All individuals who are covered by 
this policy must pass a drug test as a post-offer condition of 
employment.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
121



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

91 

b) Reasonable Suspicion Testing: Employees subject to this policy shall 
submit to a drug and\or alcohol test when the City of Buckley 
reasonably suspects that this policy (except the prohibitions against 
unauthorized possession, transfer or sale of alcohol) may have been or 
is presently being violated. A referral for testing will be based on 
contemporaneous, articulable observations. Such referrals will be made 
by supervisory personnel who have received training concerning the 
signs and symptoms of drug and alcohol use.  

Alcohol testing for reasonable suspicion may be conducted at any time 
during working hours. If removed from duty based on reasonable 
suspicion of alcohol use and an alcohol test is not administered within 
eight hours, the employee will not be allowed to perform or continue to 
perform covered functions until:  

1. an alcohol test is administered (normally within 2 hours of the 
determination of reasonable suspicion) and the driver's breath alcohol 
concentration measures less than 0.02; or  
2. 24 hours have elapsed following the determination that there is 
reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee has violated this 
policy concerning the use of alcohol.  

c) Post-Accident Testing: Following an accident (as defined above) 
involving a commercial vehicle, the driver is required to submit to 
alcohol and drug tests when the driver receives a citation under state or 
local law for a moving traffic violation, or where a fatality occurs as a 
result of the accident. Testing should occur as soon as possible, but may 
not exceed eight hours after the accident for alcohol testing and 32 hours 
after the accident for drug testing.  

A driver who is subject to post-accident testing must remain readily 
available for such testing and may not take any action to interfere with 
testing or the results of testing. Drivers who do not comply with post-
accident testing requirements will be considered to have refused to 
submit to testing and will be subject to sanctions for refusal to test as 
provided in this policy.  

While awaiting a post accident test, the driver will be in a paid status.  

d) Random Testing: Employees covered by this policy will be subject to 
random, unannounced alcohol and drug testing.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
122



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

92 

e) Return to Duty Testing: Employees who have violated this policy, 
including those who have tested positive on a drug or alcohol test, and 
who under the discipline policy are allowed to return to work, must test 
negative prior to being released for duty. A return to duty test following 
alcohol misuse shall be less than an alcohol concentration of 0.02.  

f) Follow-up Testing: An employee who is referred for assistance related 
to alcohol misuse and/or use of drugs is subject to unannounced follow-
up testing for a period as directed by a Substance Abuse Professional. 
The number and frequency of follow-up testing will be based on the 
recommendation of the Substance Abuse Professional, but will not be 
less than six tests in the first 12 months following the employee's return 
to duty.  

g) Re-Tests: Employees who test positive for drugs may request a 
second test of the untested portion of the split sample within 72 hours 
of notification of a positive test result by the Medical Review Officer.  

h) Test Results: Test results will be expressed as positive or negative 
based on detection of levels of alcohol or controlled substances as 
established by federal Department of Transportation standards.  

i) Challenges to Test Results: An employee who wishes to challenge a 
positive drug test must do so within 72 hours notification of the positive 
result. The employee must notify the City's medical review officer that 
he/she wishes to challenge the test and must pay for the retest. The 
retest must be processed at a DHHS-NIDA-certified laboratory. If the 
MRO certifies that the second drug test is negative, an employee will be 
reimbursed for the cost incurred including any lost compensation.  

7.06.05 Refusal by a Commercial Driver to Submit to an Alcohol or Drug Test: 
Refusal to submit to a directed test is a prohibited behavior in section 
7.06.02(h) which shall subject the employee to the consequences outlined in 
section 7.06.07. No employee shall refuse to submit to an alcohol or drug test 
as directed under this policy. A refusal to submit shall include:  

a) Failure to provide adequate breath for testing without a valid medical 
explanation after an employee has received notice of the requirement 
for breath testing in accordance with established procedures;  

b) Failure to provide adequate urine for controlled substances testing 
without a valid medical explanation after an employee has received 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
123



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

93 

notice of the requirement for urine testing in accordance with the 
procedures manual; and/or  

c) Engaging in conduct that obstructs the testing process.  

7.06.06 Securing Information from Previous Employers: If a person is to be 
hired into a position subject to this policy and during the previous two years 
has worked as a driver of a commercial vehicle, that person must authorize a 
request of all employers of the driver within the past two years of information 
on the following: a) positive alcohol or drug tests; or b) refusal to be tested.  

This information must be obtained before the person is employed by the City 
of Buckley. However, if the information has not arrived by the anticipated 
start date, and if the person has passed the pre-employment drug test, the 
person may be hired and the requested information must be obtained from 
the previous employers within 14 calendar days of the date of hire. If the 
information has not been received within the 14 calendar days, the person 
will not be permitted to drive commercial vehicles until the information has 
arrived. If the information obtained from previous employer indicates either 
a positive test or that a refusal to be tested occurred within the past two years, 
that person will not be permitted to drive commercial vehicles unless 
subsequent information indicates that an evaluation by a Substance Abuse 
Professional was made and return to duty testing was administered.  

7.06.07 Consequences for Commercial Drivers of Engaging in Prohibited 
Behaviors and/or of Positive Drug or Alcohol Test Results: Employees found 
to have engaged in prohibited behavior as defined in Section 7.06.02 or to 
have tested positive for drugs shall be subject to discipline up to and 
including termination from employment.  

The following provisions apply to those employees who are not terminated 
for their policy violations:  

a) If an employee tests positive for drugs or has an alcohol test that 
indicates a blood alcohol level of .04 or greater from a random, 
reasonable suspicion or post-accident test, or engages in prohibited 
conduct as outlined in Section 7.06.02, the employee will be immediately 
removed from duties requiring the driving of a commercial vehicle. The 
employee will not be permitted to return to work unless he/she:  

1. has been evaluated by a qualified Substance Abuse Professional; 
and,  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
124



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

94 

2. if recommended by a Substance Abuse Professional, has properly 
followed any rehabilitation prescribed; and,  
3. has a verified negative result on a return-to-duty alcohol (<0.02) 
and/or drug test.  

Upon completion of a recommended rehabilitation program and 
successful return to work, an employee will be subject to follow-up 
random testing as recommended by the Substance Abuse Professional, 
with a minimum of six such unscheduled tests within the first twelve 
months of returning to duty.  

b) Employees with a breath alcohol concentration of at least 0.02 but less 
than 0.04 and who have not engaged in any other prohibited conduct, 
shall be removed from the duty requiring the driving of a commercial 
vehicle for at least 24 hours. The time away from work shall be charged 
to vacation, sick leave, or leave without pay at the employee's option, 
and will be considered an unscheduled absence.  

7.07 Procedures for Drug or Alcohol Testing of City Employees other than 
Commercial Drivers  

7.07.01 Supervisory Responsibility. If a supervisor has reasonable grounds to 
believe that an employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs when 
reporting for work or during the work shift, the supervisor must verify the 
employee’s condition and relieve the employee of his/her duties until the 
matter is resolved.  

7.07.02 Observation. If a supervisor observes an employee who seems to be 
under the influence of alcohol or drugs, he/she should, if practical, seek the 
opinion of at least one additional supervisor, the City Administrator or the 
department manager.  

For purposes of this policy, reasonable grounds to believe that an employee 
is impaired and/or under the influence of drugs or alcohol include a 
combination of various factors such as slurred speech, red eyes, dilated 
pupils, incoherence, unsteadiness on feet, smell of an alcoholic beverage or 
marijuana emanating from the employee’s body, inability to carry on a 
rational conversation, carelessness, erratic behavior, inability to perform the 
job, or other unexplained behavioral changes. The supervisor shall document 
these observations in writing and forward his/her report to the department 
manager within 24 hours of the incident. A copy of this document will be 
provided to the employee upon request.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
125



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

95 

7.07.03 Referral for Testing. If the supervisor determines that reasonable 
grounds exist to require a drug test, the supervisor shall direct the employee 
to accompany the supervisor to a testing site designated by the City for a drug 
screening and blood alcohol test to determine fitness for duty. The 
department manager shall be notified before the supervisor and employee 
leave city premises for the drug testing site. The City Administrator shall be 
notified of the incident, in writing, within 48 hours.  

The employee should be informed that the tests will be conducted on city 
time, paid for by the city, and are part of his/her job responsibilities. The 
employee should be informed that refusal to take the test may result in 
disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Additionally, an employee 
who refuses to take the test should be informed that he/she will be sent home 
without pay for at least the rest of the work day.  

Employees will be required to authorize release of test results to the City's 
designated test services provider and to the employer. Refusal to authorize 
release of test results to the city may result in disciplinary action up to and 
including dismissal. The test services provider will contact the City 
Administrator with the results.  

The supervisor should accompany the employee back to the worksite 
pending the results. The supervisor shall notify his/her department manager 
immediately upon returning to the work site.  

Tests which are found to be positive will be verified by an additional test. The 
City's designated test services provider will ensure adequate chain-of-
custody for sample collection and testing.  

7.07.04 Test Results. Employees who test positive shall be considered unfit 
for work and shall be relieved from duty that day. It is the responsibility of 
the City Administrator to notify the employee. The employee should not be 
allowed to drive to the hospital. The employee shall be advised not to drive 
home. Employees who comply with the testing procedures of this policy will 
be on paid leave on "City Business" until the status of the tests and the 
circumstances surrounding the impairment are determined.  

7.07.05 Discipline / Treatment. If tests determine that the employee is under 
the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job, the City Administrator shall 
contact the supervisor within 24 hours of test results notification. The City 
Administrator and/or the supervisor shall, within 48 hours of receiving the 
test results, contact the employee to provide the employee an opportunity to 
respond to the test results.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
126



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

96 

Following the employee’s response opportunity, the City Administrator and 
the supervisor shall meet to discuss the appropriate level of disciplinary 
action for recommendation to the department manager. The degree of 
disciplinary action depends on the factual circumstances and the severity of 
the infraction.  

It is the responsibility of the City Administrator, in conjunction with the 
immediate supervisor, to evaluate the circumstances and facts thoroughly 
and objectively.  

Any disciplinary action shall be in accordance with provisions of the City 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual. If discipline is necessary, the 
discipline to be taken, shall be recommended by the department manager to 
the City Administrator. The City Administrator shall then act on the 
recommendation.  

7.07.06 Sale or Transfer of Drugs. A supervisor who observes an employee 
using alcohol or drugs; or an unauthorized employee selling, purchasing, 
transferring, or possessing alcohol or drugs while on the job should take 
prompt action. Observations about the employee’s behavior, as well as the 
discussions and contacts with him/her, should be documented as soon as 
practicable. The supervisor should report such observations to his/her own 
supervisor and appropriate disciplinary action should be taken in accordance 
with the procedures outlined in this policy.  

In cases involving the unauthorized sale, purchase or transfer of illegal drugs 
or controlled substances at the workplace, the supervisor is required to 
contact the Buckley Police Department immediately.  

7.08 Confidentiality and Record Retention:  

All records related to drug and alcohol testing will be maintained in a secure 
location with controlled access. These records will be kept separate from records 
pertaining to all other employees.  

  

 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
127



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

97 

Section 8 
Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental 

Action and Protecting Employees against Retaliation (Whistle Blower) 

8.01 Purpose  
8.02 Policy Statement  
8.03 Definitions  
8.04 Prohibited Conduct  
8.05 Prohibited Conduct after Leaving City  
8.06 Procedures for Reporting  
8.07 Complaints, Investigations, Hearings and Enforcement  
8.08 Protection Against Retaliatory Actions  
8.09 Responsibilities  
8.10 List of Agencies  

8.01 Purpose  

A. The city finds that the proper operation of government requires that 
employees be independent, impartial, and responsible to the people; that 
government decisions and policy be made in the proper channels of the 
governmental structure; and that the public have confidence in the integrity 
of its government. Accordingly, it is the purpose of this policy to establish 
ethical standards of conduct for all employees of the city; to set forth those 
acts that are incompatible with such standards; to require disclosure by such 
employees of private financial or other interests in matters affecting the city; 
and to provide effective means for enforcement thereof. This policy is not to 
be construed so as to impair the ability of city employees to participate in 
ceremonial, representational or informational functions in the pursuit of their 
official duties.  

B. This policy shall be liberally construed in favor of protecting the public's 
interest in full disclosure of conflicts of interest and promoting ethical 
standards of conduct for city employees.  

C. This policy shall be interpreted and applied to allow inadvertent minor 
violations to be corrected and cured without disciplinary action and in 
conformance with the spirit and purpose of this policy.  

8.02 Policy Statement  

It is the policy of the City of Buckley (1) to encourage reporting by its employees 
of improper governmental action taken by City of Buckley officers or employees 
and (2) to protect City of Buckley employees who have reported improper 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
128



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

98 

governmental actions in accordance with the City of Buckley's policies and 
procedure(s).  

8.03 Definitions  

As used in this policy, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:  

A. "City agency" means every department or any subdivision thereof.  

B. "City employee" means every position of employment in any city agency.  

C. "Immediate family" means:  

1. A spouse or state registered domestic partner;  
2. Any dependent parent, parent-in-law, child or son-in-law or 
daughter-in-law; or  
3. Any parent, parent-in-law, child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, 
sibling, uncle, aunt, cousin, niece or nephew residing in the household of the 
city employee.  

D. "Person" means individual, association, corporation, or other legal entity.  

E. "Improper governmental action" means any action by a City of Buckley 
employee:  

4. That is undertaken in the performance of the employee's official 
duties, whether or not the action is within the scope of the employee's 
employment; and  
5. That (i) is in violation of any federal, state, or local law or rule, (ii) is 
an abuse of authority, (iii) is of substantial and specific danger to the public 
health or safety or (iv) is a gross waste of public funds.  

"Improper governmental action" does not include personnel actions, 
including employee grievances, complaints, appointments, promotions, 
transfers, assignments, reassignments, reinstatements, restorations, 
reemployment, performance evaluations, reductions in pay, dismissals, 
suspensions, demotions, violations of collective bargaining or civil service 
laws, alleged violations of labor agreements or reprimands.  

F. "Retaliatory action" means any adverse change in the terms and conditions 
of a City of Buckley employee's employment.  

G. "Emergency" means a circumstance that if not immediately changed may 
cause damage to persons or property.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
129



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

99 

8.04 Prohibited Conduct  

No current city employee shall:  

A. Disqualification from Acting on City Business.  

1. Engage in any transaction or activity, which is, or would to a reasonable 
person appear to be, in conflict with or incompatible with the proper 
discharge of official duties, or which impairs, or would to a reasonable 
person appear to impair, the employee's independence of judgment or 
action in the performance of official duties and fail to disqualify him or 
herself from official action in those instances where conflict occurs;  
2. Have a financial or other private interest, direct or indirect, personally 
or through a member of his or her immediate family, in any matter upon 
which the employee is required to act in the discharge of his or her official 
duties, and fail to disqualify himself or herself from acting or participating;  
3. Fail to disqualify himself or herself from acting on any transaction 
which involves the city and any person who is, or at any time within the 
preceding twelve (12) month period has been a private client of his or hers, 
or of his or her firm or partnership;  
4. Have a financial or other private interest, direct or indirect, personally 
or through a member of his or her immediate family, in any contract or 
transaction to which the city or any city agency may be a party, and fails to 
disclose such interest to the appropriate city authority prior to the 
formation of the contract or the time the city or city agency enters into the 
transaction; provided, that this paragraph shall not apply to any contract 
awarded through the public bid process in accordance with applicable law.  

B. Improper Use of Official Position.  

1. Use his or her official position for a purpose that is, or would to a 
reasonable person appear to be primarily for the private benefit of the 
employee, rather than primarily for the benefit of the city; or to achieve a 
private gain or an exemption from duty or responsibility for the employee 
or any other person;  
2. Use or permit the use of any person, funds, or property under his or her 
official control, direction, or custody, or of any city funds or city property, 
for a purpose which is, or to a reasonable person would appear to be, for 
other than a city purpose; provided, that nothing shall prevent the private 
use of city property which is available on equal terms to the public generally 
(such as the use of library books or tennis courts), the use of city property 
in accordance with city policy for the conduct of official city business (such 
as the use of a city automobile), if in fact the property is used appropriately; 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
130



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

100 

or the use of city property for participation of the city in activities of 
associations of governments or governmental officials;  
3. Except in the course of official duties, assist any person in any city 
transaction where such city employee's assistance is, or to a reasonable 
person would appear to be, enhanced by that employee's position with the 
city; provided that this subsection shall not apply to: any employee 
appearing on his or her own behalf or representing himself or herself as to 
any matter in which he or she has a proprietary interest, if not otherwise 
prohibited by ordinance;  
4. Regardless of prior disclosure thereof, have a financial interest, direct or 
indirect, personally or through a member of his or her immediate family, in 
a business entity doing or seeking to do business with the city, and 
influence or attempt to influence the selection of, or the conduct of business 
with, such business entity by the city.  

C. Accept Gifts or Loans.  

1. Solicit or receive any retainer, gift, loan, entertainment, favor, or other 
thing of monetary value from any person or entity where the retainer, gift, 
loan, entertainment, favor, or other thing of monetary value has been 
solicited, or received or given or, to a reasonable person, would appear to 
have been solicited, received or given with intent to give or obtain special 
consideration or influence as to any action by such employee in his or her 
official capacity.  

D. Disclose Privileged Information.  

1. Disclose or use any privileged or proprietary information gained by 
reason of his or her official position for the immediate or anticipated 
personal gain or benefit of the employee or any other person or entity; 
provided, that nothing shall prohibit the disclosure or use of information 
which is a matter of public knowledge, or which is available to the public 
on request.  

E. Hold Financial or Beneficial Interest in City Transaction.  

1. Regardless of prior disclosure thereof hold or acquire a beneficial 
interest, direct or indirect, personally or through a member of his or her 
immediate family, in any contract which, in whole or in part, is, or which 
may be, made by, through, or under the supervision of such employee; or 
accept, directly or indirectly, any compensation, gratuity, or reward in 
connection with such contract from any other person or entity beneficially 
interested therein.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
131



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

101 

8.05 Prohibited Conduct after Leaving City  

A. No former employee shall, during the period of one (1) year after leaving 
city office or employment:  

1. Disclose or use any privileged or proprietary information gained by 
reason of his/her city employment for his/her gain or anticipated gain, or 
for the gain or anticipated gain of any person, unless the information is a 
matter of public knowledge or is available to the public on request;  
2. Assist any person in proceedings involving the agency of the city with 
which he/she was previously employed, involving a matter in which he or 
she was officially involved, participated or acted in the course of duty;  
3. Represent any person as an advocate in any matter in which the former 
employee was officially involved while a city employee;  
4. Participate as a competitor in any competitive selection process for a city 
contract in which he or she assisted the city in determining the project or 
work to be done or the process to be used.  

B. The prohibitions of Sections 8.5 A2 and 8.5 A3 shall not apply to former 
employees acting on behalf of a governmental agency unless such assistance 
or representation is adverse to the interest of the city.  

8.06 Procedures for Reporting Improper Governmental Actions  

City of Buckley employees who become aware of improper governmental actions 
should raise the issue first with their supervisor. If requested by the supervisor, 
the employee shall submit a written report to the supervisor, or to some person 
designated by the supervisor, stating in detail the basis for the employee's belief 
that an improper governmental action has occurred. Where the employee 
reasonably believes the improper governmental action involves his or her 
supervisor, the employee may raise the issue directly with the City Administrator 
or such other person as may be designated by the City Administrator to receive 
reports of improper governmental action.  

In the case of an emergency, where the employee believes that damage to persons 
or property may result if action is not taken immediately, the employee may report 
the improper governmental action directly to the appropriate government agency 
with responsibility for investigating the improper action.  

The supervisor, the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee, as 
the case may be, shall take prompt action to assist the City of Buckley in properly 
investigating the report of improper governmental action. City of Buckley officers 
and employees involved in the investigation shall keep the identity of reporting 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
132



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

102 

employees confidential to the extent possible under law, unless the employee 
authorizes the disclosure of his or her identity in writing. After an investigation 
has been completed, the employee reporting the improper governmental action 
shall be advised of a summary of the results of the investigation, except that 
personnel actions taken as a result of the investigation may be kept confidential.  

City of Buckley employees may report information about improper governmental 
action directly to the appropriate government agency with responsibility for 
investigating the improper action if the employee reasonably believes that an 
adequate investigation was not undertaken by the City of Buckley to determine 
whether an improper governmental action occurred, or that insufficient action has 
been taken to address the improper governmental action or that for other reasons 
the improper governmental action is likely to recur.  

City of Buckley employees who fail to make a good-faith attempt to follow the 
City's procedures in reporting improper governmental action shall not receive the 
protections provided by the city in these procedures.  

8.07 Complaints, Investigations, Review and Enforcement  

A. Any person may file a complaint alleging a violation of this policy, as set 
forth in Section 8.07 Procedures for Reporting.  

B. The complaint shall be in writing and shall be signed by the complainant. 
The written complaint shall state the nature of the alleged violation(s), the 
date(s), time and place of each occurrence, and name of the person(s) charged 
with the violation(s). The complaint shall be filed with the City Administrator 
who shall provide a copy to the person charged with a violation. The 
complainant shall provide the City Administrator with all available 
documentation or other evidence to demonstrate a reason for believing that 
a violation has occurred.  

C. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a complaint, the City Administrator 
shall conduct a preliminary investigation.  

D. If the City Administrator determines, after preliminary investigation, that 
there are no reasonable grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, the 
City Administrator shall dismiss the complaint. If the City Administrator 
does so dismiss the complaint, he or she shall do so in writing, setting forth 
the facts and provisions of law upon which the dismissal is based, and shall 
provide a copy of the written dismissal to the complainant and to the person 
charged with the violation.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
133



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

103 

E. Within thirty (30) days from the date that a complaint has been referred to 
the City Administrator for review, the City Administrator shall issue a 
written determination stating whether the policy has been violated and 
setting forth the facts and the provisions of law upon which this 
determination is based. A copy of said determination shall be delivered to the 
complainant, to the person charged with the violation and, where 
appropriate, to the person's superior.  

F. If the City Administrator determines that an employee has violated the 
provisions of this policy, the City Administrator may subject the employee to 
disciplinary action. In addition to any other penalty herein or otherwise 
provided by law, a violation shall be cause for suspension, discharge, or 
removal from employment, or such other disciplinary action as may, by the 
appropriate city authority, be deemed necessary and proper, and consistent 
with personnel ordinances and rules; provided, that this section shall not 
derogate from employee rights under any collective bargaining agreement or 
city personnel ordinance, or rules promulgated thereunto.  

8.08 Protection against Retaliatory Actions  

City of Buckley officials and employees are prohibited from taking retaliatory 
action against an employee because he or she has in good faith reported an 
improper governmental action in accordance with these policies and procedures.  

Employees who believe that they have been retaliated against for reporting an 
improper governmental action should advise in writing their supervisor, the City 
Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee. City of Buckley officials and 
supervisors shall take appropriate action to investigate and address complaints of 
retaliation.  

If the employee's supervisor, the City Administrator, or the City Administrator’s 
designee, as the case may be, does not satisfactorily resolve an employee's 
complaint that he or she has been retaliated against in violation of this policy, the 
employee may obtain protection under this policy and pursuant to state law by 
providing a written notice to the City of Buckley's City Council that:  

a. Specifies the alleged retaliatory action and  

b. Specifies the relief requested.  

City of Buckley employees shall provide a copy of their written charge to the City 
Administrator no later than thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the alleged 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
134



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

104 

retaliatory action. The City of Buckley shall respond within thirty (30) days to the 
written charge of retaliatory action.  

After receiving either the response of the City of Buckley or thirty days after the 
delivery of the charge to the City of Buckley, the employee may request a hearing 
before a state administrative law judge to establish that a retaliatory action 
occurred and to obtain appropriate relief provided by law. An employee seeking 
a hearing should deliver the request for hearing to the City Administrator within 
the earlier of either fifteen (15) days of delivery of the City of Buckley's response 
to the charge of retaliatory action, or forty-five (45) days of delivery of the charge 
of retaliation to the City of Buckley for response.  

Upon receipt of request for hearing, the City of Buckley shall apply within five (5) 
working days to the State Office of Administrative Hearings for an adjudicative 
proceeding before an administrative law judge:  

Office of Administrative Hearings  
PO Box 42488, 4224 Sixth S.E.  
Rowe Six, Building 1  
Lacey, WA 98504-2488  
(206) 459-6353  

The City of Buckley will consider any recommendation provided by the 
administrative law judge that the retaliator be suspended with or without pay, or 
dismissed.  

8.09 Responsibilities  

The City Administrator is responsible for implementing the City of Buckley's 
policies and procedures (1) for reporting improper governmental action and (2) 
for protecting employees against retaliatory actions. This includes ensuring that 
this policy and these procedures (1) are permanently posted where all employees 
will have reasonable access to them, (2) are made available to any employee upon 
request and (3) are provided to all newly-hired employees. Officers, managers and 
supervisors are responsible for ensuring the procedures are fully implemented 
within their areas of responsibility. Violations of this policy and these procedures 
may result in appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.  

8.10 List of Agencies  

Following is a list of agencies responsible for enforcing federal, state and local laws 
and investigating other issues involving improper governmental action. 
Employees having questions about these agencies or the procedures for reporting 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
135



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

105 

improper governmental action are encouraged to contact the General Services 
Director.  

City of Buckley  
City Attorney 
Phil Olbrechts 
Olbrechts & Associates, PLLC 
18833 N.E. 74th St. 
Granite Falls, WA  98252 

Pierce County  
Prosecuting Attorney's Office (Investigative Services) 
930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946  
Tacoma WA 98402-2171  
Main Office - (253) 798-7400 

State of Washington  
Attorney General's Office  
Fair Practices Division  
2000 Bank of California Center  
900 Fourth Avenue, Suite 2000  
Seattle, WA 98164  
(206) 464-6684  

State Auditor's Office  
Legislative Building  
PO Box 40021  
Olympia, WA 98504-0021  
(206) 753-5280  

State Department of Ecology  
3190 - 160th SE  
Bellevue, WA 98008-5852  
(206) 649-7000  

Human Rights Commission  
402 Evergreen Plaza Bldg., FJ-41  
711 South Capitol Way  
Olympia, WA 98504-2490  

State Department of Health  
Health Consumer Assistance  
PO Box 4789  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
136



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

106 

Olympia, WA 98504-7891  
(800) 525-0127  

Dept. of Labor & Industries  
300 West Harrison, Room 201  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 281-5400  

State Liquor Control Board  
Enforcement Office  
2101 Sixth Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98121-2513  
(206) 464-6095  

Dept. of Natural Resources  
PO Box 68  
Enumclaw, WA 98022  
(206) 825-1631  

Puget Sound Water Quality Authority  
PO Box 40900  
Olympia, WA 98504  
(206) 493-9300  

Dept. of Social & Health Services  
Special Investigation Office  
5200 Southcenter Blvd., Suite 23  
Tukwila, WA 98188  
(206) 764-4048  
Fraud Complaints  
(800) 562-6025  

UNITED STATES  

Department of Agriculture  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  

Supervisor Auditor  
(206) 553-8290  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
137



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

107 

Supervisor Special Agent  
Investigation  
(206)553-8286  

Alcohol Tobacco & Firearms  
Criminal Enforcement  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-4485  

U. S. Attorney  
800 Fifth Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-7970  

Department of Commerce  
Office of Inspector General  
Office of Audits  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-0801  

Government Accounting Office  
Fraud Hot Line (800) 424-5454  

Consumer Product Safety Comm.  
Hot line  
(800) 638-2772  

U.S. Customs Service  
Office of Enforcement  
909 First Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-7531  

U.S. Department of Education  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
Audits  
(206) 553-0657  

Investigations  
(206) 553-1482  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
138



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

108 

Environmental Protection Agency  
Criminal Investigations  
1200 Sixth Avenue  
Seattle, WA  

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission  
2815 Second, Suite 500  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 220-6883; (800) 368-9331  

Federal Emergency Mngmt Agency  
130 - 228th Street SW  
Bothell, WA  
(206) 487-4600  

Federal Trade Commission  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-4656  

General Services Administration  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  

Office of Inspector General  
Audits (206)931-7650  

Investigations  
(206)931-7654  

Law Enforcement  
(206) 553-0290  

Dept. of Health & Human Services  
Food & Drug Administration  
22201 - 23rd Drive SE  
Bothell, WA  

Trade Complaints  
(206) 483-4949  

Office of the Regional Secretary  
General Counsel's Office  
Inspector General  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
139



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

109 

Audits  
(206)553-0452  

Investigations  
(206)553-0229  

Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev.  
Office of Counsel  
1321 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-4976  

Office of Inspector General  

Audits  
(206)553-0270  

Investigations 
(206)553-0272  

Interstate Commerce Commission  
915 Second Avenue, Room 1894  
Seattle, WA 98174  
(206) 553-5421  

Department of Interior  
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Services  
Division of Law Enforcement  
121 - 107th NE  
Bellevue, WA  
(206)553-5543  

Department of Justice  
Drug Enforcement Administration  
220 West Mercer, Suite 300  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-5443  

Department of Labor  
Occupational Safety & Health (OSHA)  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 715  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  
(206) 553-5930  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
140



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

110 

Office of Inspector General 
Audits  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 780  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  
(206) 553-4880  

Investigations  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 785  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  

Office of Women's Bureau  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 885  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  

Mine Safety & Health Admin.  
117 - 107th NE  
Bellevue, WA  
(206) 553-7037  

Nat’l Transportation Safety Board  
19518 Pacific Highway South  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 764-3782  

Nuclear Regulatory Commission  
(510) 975-0200  

Securities & Exchange Commission  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98174  
(206) 553-7990  

Department of Transportation  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98178  
(206) 553-5720  

Department of Treasury  
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco & Firearms  
Law Enforcement Division  
915 Second Avenue, Room 806  
Seattle, WA 98174  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
141



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

111 

Department of Veterans Affairs  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98174  

Fraud/Waste/Abuse Hot Line  
(800) 488-8244  

 

Section 9 
Sexual Harassment Prevention 

9.01 Purpose  
9.02 Policy and Objectives  
9.03 Definitions  
9.04 Reporting Procedures  
9.05 Violations of Policy  

9.01 Purpose  

Sexual Harassment of employees is prohibited by the City of Buckley. This policy 
is intended to establish standards for defining and preventing Sexual Harassment 
and offensive behavior of a sexual nature, to establish a means for reporting and 
complaining about Sexual Harassment and to define the range of disciplinary 
action that will be taken by the city in cases where Sexual Harassment has 
occurred.  

Harassment based on unlawful discrimination such as to race, ethnicity, religion, 
marital status, age, disability or national origin is also prohibited and is subject to 
the reporting procedures of this policy.  

9.02 Policy and Objectives  

It is the policy of the City of Buckley:  

9.02.01 To communicate this Sexual Harassment policy to employees and 
supervisors in order to assure that all employees and supervisors understand 
that Sexual Harassment is prohibited.  

9.02.02 To recognize the unique nature of complaints of Sexual Harassment, 
to encourage early reporting by employees, victims or witnesses, and to 
resolve complaints promptly, confidentially, and, when possible, at the 
lowest levels of the organization.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
142



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

112 

9.02.03 To prohibit retaliation against any employee because he or she has 
made a report of alleged Sexual Harassment, or retaliation against any 
employee who has testified, assisted, or participated in any manner in an 
investigation of the allegations.  

9.02.04 To prohibit and prevent actions which unlawfully discriminate on the 
basis of race, gender, religious belief or national origin in areas such as 
compensation, benefits, privileges, transfers, layoffs, returns from layoff, 
training and social programs.  

9.02.05 To provide education to employees or, under some circumstances, to 
non-employees; to raise awareness of Sexual Harassment as a workplace 
issue; to prevent Sexual Harassment by providing information about Sexual 
Harassment in general and about this policy in particular.  

9.03  Definitions  

9.03.01 "Sexual Harassment" means unwelcome sexual advances, requests for 
favors and other offensive verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature 
when:  

a) submission to such conduct is made either explicitly, or implicitly, a 
term or condition of an individual's employment;  

b) submission to, or rejection of, such conduct by an individual is used 
as the basis for employment decisions affecting such individual; or  

c) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering 
with an individual's work performance or creating an intimidating, 
hostile, or offensive working environment.  

9.03.02 "Intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment" means a 
workplace in which: a) repeated, unwelcome, sexually-oriented jokes, 
innuendoes, obscenities, pictures or any action with sexual connotation has 
the cumulative effect of making an employee feel uncomfortable in the 
workplace; or b) aggressive, harassing behavior in the workplace whether or 
not sexual in connotation, is directed toward an employee based on the 
employee's gender.  

9.03.03 "Offensive conduct of a sexual nature" means physical contacts, sexual 
comments, obscenities, gestures, propositions, unnecessary touching, 
sexually explicit, or offensive pictures, discussion of sexual activities, 
commenting on another person's anatomy or attributes, using demeaning or 
diminutive terms toward officers, employees or members of the public such 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
143



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

113 

as "babe", "hunk" or "honey", ostracizing employees of one gender by 
employees of the another, granting job favors to those who participate in 
consensual sexual relationships or activities, or any other action with sexual 
connotation whether at, or away from work, which is unwelcome or which 
makes an employee feel uncomfortable in his/her employment.  

9.03.04 "Management" means the immediate or first level supervisor who is 
not involved in the alleged harassment and other managers in the direct line 
of authority above these supervisors.  

9.03.05 "Retaliation" means acts of reprisal such as: open hostility to the 
complainant, participant or others involved; exclusion/ostracism of the 
complainant or others; creation of or the continued existence of a hostile work 
environment; gender-based negative remarks about the complainant, 
participants or others; special attention to, or assignment of the complainant, 
participant or others to demeaning duties not otherwise performed; tokenism 
or patronizing behavior; discriminatory treatment; subtle harassment; or 
unreasonable, supervisory-imposed time restrictions on employees on 
preparing complaints or compiling evidence of Sexual Harassment activities 
or behaviors.  

9.04 Reporting Procedures  

9.04.01 Complainant's Responsibility:  

An employee who believes he or she has been a victim of Sexual Harassment 
is encouraged to report the incident(s) or working conditions as soon as 
possible after the alleged harassment occurs.  

Prompt reporting is encouraged because the ability of management to 
investigate and act on reports diminishes with time. Employees may bring 
reports to the attention of any or all of the following:  

a) The alleged harasser. When reporting or giving notice to the alleged 
harasser, the employee should clearly request that the action stop 
immediately;  

b) The immediate supervisor or the first level of management who is not 
directly involved in the alleged harassment;  

c) The City Administrator; or  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
144



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

114 

d) The City Attorney may be contacted if the City Administrator is 
unavailable or implicated in the allegation, or if the employee for other 
reasons, is not willing to disclose the matter to the City Administrator.  

It shall be a responsibility of the employee to cooperate with management, 
the City Administrator or the responsible management official in all efforts 
to investigate and verify such reports.  

9.04.02 Management's Responsibility:  

All reports of alleged Sexual Harassment received by management, shall be 
promptly referred to the City Administrator. The City Administrator shall 
immediately initiate an investigation or recommend another appropriate 
management representative to initiate the investigation.  

Any report of Sexual Harassment and its investigation is confidential. 
Dissemination of confidential information shall be limited to persons with a 
need to know to participate in the investigation or implement an action 
resulting from the investigation. If discipline is anticipated, it may be 
necessary to disclose the name of the complaining employee to the employee 
accused of harassment.  

The standard to be applied in evaluating allegations of Offensive Conduct of 
a Sexual Nature or an Intimidating, Hostile or Offensive Working 
Environment shall be that of a reasonable victim. For instance, if an allegation 
is made by a female employee, the standard under this policy shall be 
whether, to a reasonable woman, such conduct would have the effect of 
making a woman feel offended, uncomfortable, threatened or intimidated. If 
the allegation is made by a male employee, the allegation shall be evaluated 
from the perspective of a reasonable male.  

If, as the result of investigation, sufficient facts are gathered to support the 
complaint, management will contact the alleged harasser to obtain a response 
to the complaint. If the alleged harasser denies the allegation, he/she may be 
afforded an opportunity to provide details, witnesses or documentation to 
support his/her denial of the allegation.  

Records pertaining to the investigation shall be maintained in a file separate 
from the complainant's personnel file.  

9.04.03 Employees' Responsibility  

Employees who are not personally victims of Sexual Harassment, but who 
observe actions which they have interpreted to be harassment or offensive 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
145



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

115 

conduct of a sexual nature, are strongly encouraged to immediately report 
such matters to management. Supervisors and members of management 
must report observations which they have interpreted to be harassment or 
offensive conduct of a sexual nature.  

 

9.04.04 Alleged Harasser's Responsibility:  

It shall be the responsibility of any employee accused of sexual harassment 
to fully cooperate with management in its investigation of complaints and to 
refrain from retaliating against the complainant for coming forward with the 
complaint.  

9.05 Violations of Policy  

9.5.01 The investigator of the complaint will determine whether violations of 
this policy have occurred on the basis of facts verified during the 
investigation and after consultation with the City Attorney. If a violation of 
the policy has occurred, the investigator of the complaint will recommend 
disciplinary action to the Mayor or his/her designee.  

9.05.02 Substantiated violations of this policy may result in disciplinary 
action in accordance with Section 4 of the City of Buckley Personnel Policies 
and Procedures Manual. Appropriate discipline may include discharge, if the 
initial violation is sufficiently severe, if the violator's position within the 
organization has had the effect of worsening the harassment, or if lesser 
violations are repeated after discipline or warnings have been given.  

In addition, or as an alternative, to traditional disciplinary actions, violators 
of this policy may be subject to corrective measures such as educating the 
harasser about Sexual Harassment, requiring counseling or reassignment.  

9.05.03 Disciplinary action taken under this policy may be subject to the City's 
grievance policy as described in Section 4 of the City of Buckley Personnel 
Policies and Procedures manual, to applicable civil service rules and 
procedures or to collective bargaining agreements.   

 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
146



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

116 

Section 10 
Resource Conservation Guidelines 

 
10.01 Purpose  
10.02 Organization Affected 
10.03 Definitions  
10.04 Responsibilities 
10.05 Statements of Policy & Procedure 
10.06 Materials Use and Disposal 
10.07 Water and Sewer Conservation 

 
10.01 Purpose  
 
The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the efficient use of 
energy, water, and material resources for the purposes of economical utility and 
environmental conservation. 
 
10.02   Organizations Affected  
 
These policies shall guide all departments of the City.   
 
10.03 Definitions  
 
None. 
 
10.04 Responsibilities  
 
It is the responsibility of department managers and other supervisory employees 
to enforce this policy. 
 
10.05 Statements of Policy and Procedure 
 
It is the policy of the City of Buckley to build and operate city facilities in the most 
cost-effective manner possible, achieving a balance between capital, energy, and 
maintenance costs.  Lifecycle cost analysis may be used to inform this decision, 
enumerating both economic and environmental factors.   

 
10.05.01 “Building Temperatures” - Buildings shall be operated to provide 
occupant comfort and healthy working conditions at seasonally-
appropriate temperatures, as follow: 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
147



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

117 

a)   Offices and public spaces shall, whenever possible, be heated to 68 
degrees, and where applicable, cooled to 76 degrees.  Sufficient 
ventilation air should be provided to ensure a carbon dioxide 
concentration of between 800 and 1200 ppm.   When outside 
temperatures are between 68 and 76 degrees, outside air economizer 
usage should be maximized, including manual opening of windows, 
with chillers and furnaces locked out.  During unoccupied periods, 
heating shall, whenever possible, be set back to 55 degrees, and cooling 
to 80 degrees. 
b)   Workshops and exercise rooms may be heated to a maximum of 65 
degrees and cooled to a maximum of 78 degrees. 
c)  Storage and Mechanical Spaces receive freeze protection and 
ventilation only.   
 

10.05.02 “Operating Schedules” –  
 

a) HVAC should operate for the minimum amount of time required to 
bring a space to the approved conditions, to be set manually or with 
automated optimal start, and shutdown is to occur 30 minutes prior to 
staff departure, or at a time calculated according to the building’s 
thermal curve. 
b) All windows and doors should be closed when the HVAC is turned 
on, as open windows can have the opposite of the intended effect if they 
set up a draft over a thermostat, causing the building to fight the 
outdoors. 
c) All systems should go into unoccupied mode for weekends and 
holidays, with the exception of scheduled events. 
d) Unscheduled use of facilities shall be at unoccupied temperature. 
e) If a facility rental requires conditions beyond those specified in this 
policy, additional costs shall be assessed.   
f) Building lighting in common areas shall be shut down during 
unoccupied times. 
g) Staff is responsible for turning off the lights in their work areas any 
time the space is to be unoccupied for five minutes or more.  Staff is also 
responsible for closing all window coverings each evening. 
h) Building exterior and lot lighting should be started 15 minutes 
before the first scheduled use each day, shut down at dawn, restarted at 
dusk, and shut down 15 minutes after the last scheduled use.  
Exceptions for security reasons may be approved by the City 
Administrator. 

 
10.05.03 “Building Alterations and Decorations” - Alterations or 
renovations to the building shall not be performed without prior approval 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
148



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

118 

from the City Administrator and Department Manager.  Any alterations 
that impact energy usage shall evaluate and report on that impact, and 
should be designed to improve energy efficiency. Any holiday lighting or 
temporary displays shall be operated on a schedule rather than around the 
clock, and displays should be designed with efficiency in mind.   
   
10.05.04 “Building Maintenance” - Maintenance shall be performed 
periodically according to a schedule designed for optimal equipment 
performance, efficiency, and service life.  Maintenance staff should report 
on opportunities to improve facility efficiency.   
 
10.05.05 “Facility Rentals” - Facility rental fees should include a calculated 
cost of providing utilities, and require that users adhere to the city’s 
conservation guidelines.  If additional utility usage is required by the nature 
of the rental, additional fees shall be imposed. 

 
10.06 Materials Use and Disposal. 

 
A. Recycled and environmentally-preferable materials shall be considered 
in procurement decisions, with preference given if price and performance 
are equal or better. 
B. Staff should communicate electronically whenever possible to reduce 
paper use. 
C. All city facilities and functions shall be provided with appropriate 
recycling options. 

 
10.07 Water and Sewer Conservation 

 
A. Irrigation shall only be provided to entry landscaping and summer play 
fields, and only as required to maintain plant viability, not maximal growth.  
Landscaping around city facilities shall be designed for drought-tolerance.   
B. City facilities and operations shall employ water-smart practices so as 
to lead by example.  Active water features should be discouraged in city 
landscapes, and where they exist currently, nonpotable water should be 
considered for use in fountains, waterfalls, and ponds.   

 
Section 11 

City of Buckley Wellness Program Policy 
 

11.01 Purpose  
11.02 Mission Statement 
11.03 Goals 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
149



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

119 

11.04 Scope 
11.05 Voluntary Participation 
11.06 Wellness Program Committee 
11.07 Program Budget 
11.08 Program Activities 
11.09 Program Involvement 

 
11.01    Policy Purpose.  
 
To create an environment that supports healthy lifestyles and offers opportunities 
for employees to optimize their health and well-being. This policy is established 
as a means to provide information and activities to City employees to encourage 
health and safety in the work environment. 
 
11.02    Mission Statement.  
 
The mission of the City of Buckley Wellness Program is to increase the overall 
wellbeing of each employee by sharing tools that create harmony between their 
physical, mental and relational health, thus reducing the cost of health care. 
 
11.03    Goals.  
 
Support wellness in the workplace by creating a program that meets the needs and 
interests of the employees of the City of Buckley. Design and implement a 
Wellness Program that meets the AWC’s Well-City Standards. 
 
11.04   Scope.  
 
All City of Buckley employees including full time, part time, and seasonal. 
 
11.05   Voluntary Participation.  
 
Employee participation in the programs and activities of the Wellness Committee 
is voluntary. 
 
11.06  Wellness Program Committee.  
 

11.06.01  Membership: The Wellness Committee is made up of at least one 
member representing each department, one of which shall be the 
Committee’s Chairperson. Membership on this Committee is voluntary. 
Members of each department shall be appointed by the Department Head. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
150



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

120 

11.06.02 Departments: Fire, Police, Public Works, Administration & 
Finance, Recreation & Community Services. 

 
11.06.03 Duties: The duties of the Committee members are to: 

a) Provide enthusiastic support of the purposes and goal of the 
Wellness Committee. 
b) Act as a liaison between the Wellness Committee and the employees 
to represent the interests, needs, and opinions of the employees. 
c) Help plan, implement, and promote Wellness programs. 
d) Provide peer support and advocacy to boost wellness program 
participation. 
e) Prepare an annual budget for program support. 
f) Share responsibilities to lessen the workload impact on the 
Chairperson. 
g) Perform evaluation of ongoing programs and activities. 
h) Inform another attending member if they cannot attend a meeting. 
i) Assist (as required) other members in the execution of their Wellness 
events. 
j) Represent your department and educate them of the various 
Wellness activities. 
k) Fully support all agreed upon decisions by the Committee. 
l) Attend conferences and retreats established by AWC as operations 
permit. 
m) Assist the Chairperson in grant preparation. The duties of the 
Chairperson include: 

i. Set the time and place of meetings. 
ii. Communicate with all members of the Committee to 

coordinate meeting dates and times. 
iii. Prepare an agenda in advance of the meeting and distribute 

copies to other members. 
iv. Manage the agenda and discussion of the meeting. 
v. Apply for, obtain, and manage annual grant funding 

requirements. 
vi. Manage the budget and financial program requirements. 

vii. Attend conferences and retreats established by AWC. 
 

11.06.04   General Committee Requirements: 
a) All meetings will start and end on time. 
b) All Committee members are equal participants and have equal right 
and responsibility to voice opinions and ideas and share in the success 
in this program. 
c) The Wellness Committee shall meet monthly during the regular 
business hours. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
151



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

121 

d) Members of the Wellness Committee will serve an indefinite term. 
e) If a member has more than four (4) unexcused absences, the 
Committee may vote to remove that member from the Committee. 
f) Confidentiality: Confidentiality is important in all health education 
activities. Because the Wellness Committee may offer programs about 
potentially sensitive issues, the transactions and interaction regarding 
personal and medical information that take place in the wellness 
programs will be confidential and will be respected as such. Each 
Committee member shall sign a Confidentiality Agreement. 

 
11.07   Program Budget. 

a) Apply for the available AWC grants for Wellness programs. 
b) Include the required line item allocations as designated by AWC for the 

wellness program in the annual budget. 
c) Solicit community organizations for other needed resources. 

 
11.08   Program Activities. 

a) Behavior change programs such as nutritional information, stress 
reduction, smoking cessation and weight management. 

b) Motivational programs such as interdepartmental and employee group 
challenges, healthful eating campaigns, exercise and stress reduction 
programs. 

c) Information and awareness programs such as flyers, paycheck stuffers, 
bulletin boards, brown bag lunch sessions, wellness seminars, 
workshops, and classes. 

d) Bi-annual AWC Healthcheck Plus health and fitness testing program. 
e) To explore opportunities to develop and institute additional wellness 

incentives and policies that contributes to the health and well-being of 
employees and their family members.  

 
11.09   Program Involvement.  

a) The City Administrator will provide staff time to the members of the 
Wellness Committee to conduct its activities. 

b) The City Administrator will allow employees to have release time for 
Wellness activities and programs as the normal work demands are 
appropriately met.  

c) Action Groups composed of volunteers from the workforce will be used 
to help implement specific wellness program activities. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
152



 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy Adopted 10/22/2024 
RES No. 24-08 (Revision #25) 

122 

City of Buckley 
Acknowledgement of Receipt 

 
 
I certify that I have read and understand the rules and policies contained in the 
City of Buckley Personnel Policy and Procedures Manual, a copy of which has 
been provided to me. I also understand that the statements of policy contained in 
the Personnel Policy and Procedures Manual is not a contract and that the City of 
Buckley or I may discontinue my employment at any time. I also understand that 
the Personnel Policy and Procedures Manual presents guidelines that may be 
changed by the City, when in its judgment, circumstances so require. This manual 
supersedes any prior policy manuals issued by the City. 
 
 
Date:  _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Employee: _________________________________________________________ 
                                                             (print name) 
 
 
 
Signature: __________________________________________________________ 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
153



Resolution No. 25-_____ Page 1 
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 25- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
REPEALING AND REPLACING THE CITY OF BUCKLEY PERSONNEL POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
PROCEDURES MANUAL. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Buckley adopted a comprehensive Personnel Policy and Administrative 

Procedures Manual in 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, the document has been amended numerous times since adoption; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to simplify the City policies as stand alone polices that can be amended 

individually; and 
 
WHEREAS, over the last two years, the City Clerk has been reformatting and updating policies to 

meet current laws and requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, over the years, the City has realized that some policies need to be added that were 

not previously in the manual; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Buckley hereby repeals and 

replaces the “City of Buckley Personnel Policy & Administrative Procedures Manual” adopted by 
Resolution No. 04-05 with Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by this reference as if set forth in 
full. 
 

Introduced, passed and approved this 18th day of November 2025. 
 
 

     
Beau Burkett, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Treva Zumek, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
     
Phil Olbrechts, City Attorney      
 

Posted:  ___________________ 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
154



 
EXHIBIT 

A 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
155



   
 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Introduction 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.1 Introduction 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.1.1 Purpose: The purpose of this Personnel Manual is to provide for a personnel management 

system within the City of Buckley government that deals with all employees in a fair and 
equitable manner while facilitating efficient service to the citizens of the community.  

 
1.1.2 Organizations Affected: All employees 
 
1.1.3 Policy  

a) T City of Buckley will assure that recruitment, selection, retention and separation of city 
employees is based on qualifications and fitness, and is in compliance with federal and state laws.  
 
b) The city will provide for equal opportunity in employment practices and standards.  
 
c) The city will clarify through policies and procedures the rights and responsibilities of its 
employees.  
 
d) Employment with the City of Buckley depends on the need for work to be performed, the 
availability of funds, and the effective performance, good conduct, and continuing fitness of the 
employee for the position.  
 

1.1.4  Goals  
The goals of the policies established by this Manual include:  
 
a) To have city services as nearly perfect as it is possible to make them by encouraging employees 
to perform their duties to the best of their ability and to provide city services to the citizens of 
Buckley in a courteous and professional manner.  
 
b) To facilitate harmonious relations and clear communication between elected officials, 
administrators, managers, supervisors and employees.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
156



   
 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Introduction 

c) To provide fair compensation for duties performed by its employees within the financial capacity 
of the city, including the provision of benefits and adequate working conditions.  
 
d) To provide a fair and open process for employees to air grievances or complaints without fear 
of recrimination, and a process for handling employee disciplinary matters.  
 
e) To provide an efficient personnel management system that deals with all employees in an 
equitable and uniform manner.  
 

1.1.5  Administration & Responsibility  
The City of Buckley is a second-class code city of the State of Washington, operating under the 
Council-Mayor form of government.  
 
a) City Council - The City Council provides uniform personnel policies and procedures through 
appropriate Council action. The City Council also determines the budgetary appropriations for all 
personnel costs and approves personnel levels and positions through the budgetary process.  
 
b) Mayor - The Mayor is the Chief Administrative Officer of the city and is responsible for the 
initiation and administration of personnel policies for all employees. The Mayor may delegate 
the administration of policies as deemed appropriate. Where these policies specify Mayoral 
authority, those duties may be performed by the Mayor’s designee as assigned.  
 
c) City Administrator - The City Administrator supervises all departments in the best interests of 
the city and its employees.  
 
d) Department Managers - The Department Managers are responsible for specific departmental 
provisions of the personnel program. These provisions include, but are not limited to assignment 
of duties, scheduling, performance evaluation, training and discipline.  
 
e) Individual Employee - The City of Buckley strives to provide efficient, professional and 
courteous service to all city residents. To accomplish this goal, the Mayor and the City Council 
ask that every employee perform their duties to the best of their ability as a representative of 
the city.  
 
Each employee should understand these personnel policies keeping in mind the City’s public 
service mission. It is the employee’s responsibility to meet desirable levels of performance of 
these public duties. Employees are encouraged to ask their Department Manager any questions 
about the Personnel Policies & Procedures and discuss concerns or suggestions regarding the 
employee’s job.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
157



   
 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Introduction 

 
 

1.1.6 Distribution & Maintenance  
Each employee will be issued one copy of this Manual and will be responsible for reviewing the 
policy and procedures and verifying such by signing the confirmation statement in Appendix A.  
Three official copies will be maintained by the City Clerk’s Office and open to employee and public 
inspection on request.  

 
1.1.7  Employees Covered  

These personnel rules apply to all city employees except elected officials, independent 
contractors, or employees specified as exempt by the Mayor or as otherwise exempted by other 
contract /agreements or as specified in these policies; provided however, in cases where these 
personnel policies conflict with collective bargaining agreements duly agreed upon between 
authorized employee organizations or unions and the city, the provisions of the collective 
bargaining agreements shall govern.  
 

1.1.8  Super Seder  
The city specifically reserves the right to repeal, modify or amend these policies at any time, with 
or without notice. As the need arises, the Mayor may modify these policies, except that the City 
Council, by resolution, shall enact any changes in compensation or benefit levels. None of these 
provisions shall be deemed to create a vested contractual right in any employee or to limit the 
power of the Mayor or City Council to repeal or modify these rules. The policies are not to be 
interpreted as promises of specific treatment.  
 
All prior rules, regulations, policies and manuals of the city, which may be in conflict, are 
superseded by this manual, unless otherwise specified.  
 
Should any conflict arise between the rules established in this Manual and any ordinance of the 
city, such ordinance shall take precedence. If any section, sub-section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Manual is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
illegal, such findings shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Manual.  
 
These policies and procedures are subject to all applicable existing or future laws or regulations 
of the State of Washington and the Federal government (as amended from time to time). 
Wherever there is a conflict between the provisions of these policies and procedures and any 
applicable law or regulation, the provision of the law or regulation shall govern.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
158



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.2 Definitions 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.2.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy for definitions. 

 
1.2.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All non-represented departments/divisions. 
 
1.2.3 POLICY: Definitions 
  

This policy provides definitions of various actions, entities, positions, processes, documents, and 
duties employed in the day-to-day operations of the City. 

 
Acting in Capacity Assignment:  Temporary assignment of an employee to perform duties and 
responsibilities of a job classification other than such employees usual job assignment. In the 
event an acting-in-capacity assignment involves increased authority in the workplace, the 
assigned employee shall exercise such increased authority in the workplace. The assigned 
employee shall exercise increased authority in accordance with directions from the Department 
Director with the approval of the City Administrator. 

 
Anniversary Date:  The yearly return of the day and month corresponding with the employee’s 
date of hire or start date in a new position. 

 
Appointment:  A position (authorized by the City Council and Mayor) filled by the Appointing 
Authority. Appointments include full-time, orientation, provisional, and part-time. Status levels 
of employment with the City are as follows: 
 
· Full Time – A position which is scheduled for an average of 40 or more continuous hours per 
week for a period longer than six (6) months or twelve (12) months for identified Civil Service 
positions. The scheduled duration of a full-time position shall not affect an employee’s at-will 
employment status. 
 
· Regular- A full-time employee who has completed the orientation period. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
159



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

· Part-Time Regular – A position in which the employee regularly works less than forty (40) 
hours per week but not less than twenty (20) hours per week.  Part-Time regular employees shall 
accrue vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits in direct ratio to the hours worked. 

 
· Part-Time Non-Regular – A position in which the employee regularly works less than twenty 
(20) hours per week or occasionally may work more than twenty (20) hours per week and up to 
forty (40) hours per week on a seasonal basis.  
 
· Provisional – A limited civil service appointment of a certified or non-certified person to either 
a classified position which is not vacant but is currently unfilled due to an authorized leave-of-
absence or classified position for which there is no current eligible register. 
 
· At-Will – An employee who serves at the pleasure of the Appointing Authority. This includes, 
but is not limited to, Department Directors, orientation, part-time employees, provisional 
employees, and temporary employees. At-will employment can be terminated with or without 
cause, by either the employee or the City. 
 
· Temporary- An assigned position not to exceed nine hundred sixty (960) hours per calendar 
year days and not required to belong to the Union. 
 

Authorized Position: A position authorized through the budget process by the City Council and 
approved by the Mayor. 

 
Classification:  A single position or a group of positions in the City sufficiently alike in duties, 
authority, and responsibilities, that the same qualifications may be required, and the same rate 
of pay can be equitably applied to all positions in the group. 

 
Confidential Employee:  Acting in a confidential capacity, assists a person who formulates, 
determines, and effectuates management policies in the area of collective bargaining. 

 
City Council:  The elected legislative body of the City government. 

 
Continuous Services:  An employee’s work history in a regular budgeted position which has no 
break in service other than approved leave with pay or approved leave without pay for a period 
not exceeding one yar. In an unusual case, because of military service, the time limitation may 
be extended. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
160



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Demotion:  The movement of an employee from a position in one classification to a position in 
another classification having a lower salary range.  A non-disciplinary demotion shall not reflect 
discredit on an employee. 

 
Exempt Employee:  Exempt employees are not eligible to receive overtime compensation based 
upon criteria established by the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and Washington State Law. 

 
Job Description:  The written description of a position containing title, responsibilities, and 
minimum qualifications, to include knowledge, skills, abilities, training, experience, and possible 
licensing. 

 
Job Evaluation:  The process of determining the proper classification, rating, or value of an 
individual job in relation to other jobs within and outside the organization. 

 
Layoff:  A separation from service because of lack of funds, abolishment of a position, or for other 
reasons not reflecting discredit on an employee. 

 
Mayor:  The Mayor is the elected Chief Administrative officer and responsible for the proper 
administration of all City departments and programs. 

 
Personnel Action: Any action taken with reference to appointment, compensation, promotion, 
demotion, transfer, layoff, dismissal, or any disciplinary action affecting status of employment. 

 
Personnel File:  Confidential personnel records of every City employee maintained and controlled 
by Human Resources at City Hall. 

 
Position: A group of current duties and responsibilities assigned by appointing authority requiring 
the employment of one person that is established by the legislative body of the City. 

 
Probationary Period: working test period during which an employee is required to demonstrate 
his/her ability and capacity to perform the duties of the position to which they have been hired. 

 
Promotion:  The movement of an employee from a position in one class to another class requiring 
increased duties and responsibilities, requiring greater pay and qualifications, and providing a 
higher maximum rate of pay. 

 
Reclassification: Change in allocation of an individual position by raising it to a classification 
having a higher salary range, reducing it to a classification having lower salary range, or moving 
it to another classification at the same level on the basis of significant changes in the kind, 
difficulty, or responsibility of work performed in the position. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
161



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Recognized Employee Organization:  Any organization or union which includes employees of the 
City and which has as one of its primary purposes the representation of employees in their 
employment relations with the City and has become recognized by the City under the procedures 
as outlined in the State Collective Bargaining Law, RCW Chapter 41.56/ 

 
Reinstatement: The return of an employee to his/her former position in the service of the City 
within five years after layoff or at any time after successful appeal of a suspension. Reduction in 
rank, termination. If the employee is a union employee, the reinstatement (recall) shall be strictly 
on the basis of seniority to any previously held classification if a vacancy occurs because of a 
layoff or reclassification. 

 
Resignation: The voluntary action by an employee of terminating her/his employment with the 
City. 

 
Seniority:  The priority of an employee based on the length of the employee’s continuous service 
to the City since the employee’s last date of hire. 

 
Severance Pay:  Additional compensation that may be provided by the City at the time of 
separation of employment from the City. 

 
Supervisory Employee: A City employee that reports to management and directs or assigns daily 
activities of one or more employees.  Authority includes recommendations for hiring, 
termination, discipline, and evaluation of employees within the department. 

 
Suspension: A temporary removal from duty without pay of am employee for disciplinary 
purposes or for the purpose of investigation of accusations brought against an employee. 

 
Termination:  The cessation of employment with the City. 
 
Transfer: A change of an employee from one position to another position in the same or different 
classification having the same salary range. 

 
Vacancy:  An established budgeted position which is not occupied. 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
162



   
 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: General Policies and Procedures 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.3 General Policies and Procedures 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.3.1  Appointing Authority  

The Mayor is the appointing authority with power of appointment, discipline or removal of all 
employees. The Mayor may delegate the authority to approve the appointment, discipline or 
removal of employees as deemed appropriate, subject to any applicable Civil Service Rules or 
provisions of valid labor contracts.  

 
1.3.2  Equal Employment Opportunity 

The City is an equal employment opportunity employer. The City employs, retains, promotes, 
terminates and otherwise treats all employees and job applicants on the basis of merit, 
qualifications, and competence. This policy shall be applied without regard to any individual's 
sex, race, color, religion, national origin, pregnancy, age, marital status, medical condition, 
physical handicap, or disability. 
 
The City will not discriminate against applicants or employees with a sensory, physical or mental 
impairment, unless the impairment cannot be reasonably accommodated and prevents proper 
performance of an essential element of the job.  
 
Employees with life threatening illnesses, such as cancer, heart disease, or AIDS/HIV conditions, 
or communicable diseases such as tuberculosis or influenza, are treated the same as all other 
employees. They are permitted to continue working so long as they are able to maintain an 
acceptable level of performance and medical evidence shows they are not a threat to themselves 
or their co-workers. The City will work to preserve the safety of all of its employees and reserves 
the right to reassign employees or take other job actions when a substantial and unusual safety 
risk to fellow City employees or the public exists. 

 
1.3.3  Recruitment and Selection  

Available positions are publicized for a reasonable period by announcements posted on city 
department bulletin boards and by such other means as deemed appropriate. Announcements 
may specify the title, rate of pay, duties to be performed and required minimum qualifications. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
163



   
 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: General Policies and Procedures 

When filling a vacancy, the City will, whenever possible, promote a qualified employee to the 
position before considering outside applicants. Job openings will be posted in-house on 
designated bulletin boards, and employees who can meet the requirements of the position will 
be encouraged to apply.  

 
 
1.3.4  Nepotism  

Members of the immediate family of city employees or elected officials’ members will not be 
hired if one or more of the following applies, as determined by the Mayor:  

 
a) One member would have the authority or practical power to supervise, hire, remove or 
discipline the other; or  

 
b) One member would be responsible for financially auditing the work of the other; or  

 
c) One member would handle confidential material which may create the appearance of 
improper or inappropriate access to that material by the other.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
164



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Appointments, Appointment Status, & Probationary Period  
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.4 Appointments, Appointment Status 
and Probationary Period 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.4.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding appointments, appointment status and probationary 

periods for employees. 
 
1.4.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.4.3 Policy: 
 
1.4.4  Appointments  

a) All appointments to vacancies are made solely on the basis of merit, efficiency and fitness for 
the position as determined through evaluation and/or testing procedures appropriate for the 
position.  

 
b) All appointments to positions in the City of Buckley will be by letter of appointment or 
employment contract, setting forth conditions of employment and appointment status. The 
employment relationship is at will of the parties and may be terminated at any time in accordance 
with applicable personnel rules, contract or Civil Service Rules and Regulations.  

 
1.4.5  Appointment Status  

Regular. All appointments to full-time and part-time positions in the City of Buckley are regular 
status unless special employment conditions are necessary. If it is determined that special 
conditions apply, they will be specified in the appointment letter and made a condition of 
employment.  

 
Probationary. All new employees appointed to regular positions are in probationary status and 
subject to the conditions of the probationary period.  

 
Temporary. A temporary appointment may be made to any position in the City of Buckley. 
Temporary appointments are for a limited period of time and employees are not entitled to city 
benefits unless authorized by the Mayor as special conditions. All conditions of a temporary 
appointment will be specified in the letter of appointment or contract. Seasonal employment is 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
165



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Appointments, Appointment Status, & Probationary Period  
 

considered temporary appointment status. Temporary employees do not attain regular status in 
the classification, have no grievance rights and may be terminated at will.  

 
Acting. When the need arises to fill a position due to approved leave of absence, disciplinary 
actions or when a vacancy exists, a current regular status employee may be appointed "acting" 
to a position of higher pay grade or to a position of differing classification. Such appointments 
are for a limited time to fill a temporary vacancy. Employees will not attain regular status in the 
higher position from an acting appointment and will be returned to the previous classification. 
No probationary period is required for an acting appointment.  

 
Trial Performance. A regular status employee promoted to a position of changed responsibility, 
new duties, or higher pay within the city will serve a six-month trial performance period in the 
new position. This trial performance is to ensure the employee meets the desired performance 
levels of the higher position which will be determined through written performance evaluations. 
If it is determined that the promoted employee cannot for any reason perform the duties of the 
higher position as required, they will be returned to the former position, if vacant, or similar 
vacant position within the same department.  

 
1.4.6  Probationary Period.  

All regular status employees except for a Department Manager, whether part-time or full-time, 
will be required to serve a probationary period for six months from the date of employment. A 
current employee in any appointment status may be placed on probation for disciplinary reasons 
after the initial six-month probationary period has been served.  
 
Department Managers will be required to serve a probationary period for twelve months from 
the date of employment.  

 
At appropriate intervals, the Department Manager will determine through a written Employee 
Performance Evaluation whether each employee is performing the job satisfactorily. If the 
employee's performance is satisfactory after the appropriate probation period, the Department 
Manager will recommend to the Mayor through the final written evaluation that the employee 
be taken off probation and placed on regular status.  

 
If an employee's performance is not satisfactory during the probationary period, the Department 
Manager may recommend termination of employment at any time during the probation or, in 
special circumstances, request that the Mayor extend the probationary period up to an additional 
six months and shall be specified in writing to the employee. In the event the employee's 
performance is still unsatisfactory, the employee may be terminated at any time within the 
extended probationary period.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
166



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Appointments, Appointment Status, & Probationary Period  
 

A probationary status employee will accrue vacation and sick leave and receive all other benefits 
of regular status employees. However, vacation leave will not be taken during any probationary 
period.  

 
A probationary status employee has no grievance rights and may be terminated at will.  
 
Provisions for length of probationary period and termination during the probationary period are 
subject to any applicable Civil Service rules for those classifications covered under Civil Service 
Rules and Regulations.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
167



 

Page 1 of 4 
Subject: Reduction in Force, Re-Employment, Resignation, Exit Interview, Personnel Records, Employment References, & 
Retention of Personnel Records   
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.5 Reduction in Force, Re-Employment, 
Resignation, Exit Interview, Personnel Records, 
Employment References, & Retention of Personnel 
Records 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.5.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding reduction in force, re-employment, resignations, exit 

interviews, personnel records, employment references, and retention of personnel records. 
 
1.5.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.5.3 Policy: 
 
1.5.4  Reduction-In-Force  

Fluctuating revenue and budget conditions may from time to time force the city to reduce 
personnel in one or more departments or programs. This reduction may be accomplished by 
either of the following methods:  

 
1.5.4.01 Lateral Transfer: This is a method of employee transfer from one classification to another 
classification with the same pay grade or within the same classification or pay grade from one 
department to another. When done for budgeting purposes, such transfer would normally be for 
the duration of the financial problem only. A lateral transfer must be approved by the Mayor.  

 
1.5.4.02 Layoff: A layoff is a method of permanent termination of the employee due to financial 
circumstances or a change in the need for which the position or positions was created. A layoff 
must be approved by the Mayor. No regular employee shall be laid off while another person in 
the same classification is employed on a probationary, temporary, acting or part-time basis. In 
determining which employees in any classification are to be laid off, consideration is to be given 
to individual performance and then to seniority in the positions to be affected.  

 
1.5.5  Re-Employment  

Regular full-time employees terminated as a result of lay-off may be offered the first opportunity 
to fill comparable vacant positions that become available. These employees will be placed on the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
168



 

Page 2 of 4 
Subject: Reduction in Force, Re-Employment, Resignation, Exit Interview, Personnel Records, Employment References, & 
Retention of Personnel Records   
 

City's job announcement mailing list for a period of one year from the effective date of lay-off to 
assist them in applying for other job vacancies with the city for which they are qualified.  

 
1.5.6  Resignation  

1.5.6.01 An employee wishing to leave city service in good standing will file with the Department 
Manager a written resignation, including a statement about the reasons for resigning and the 
effective date of resignation. The written resignation notice will be completed at least two weeks 
prior to the effective date of resignation. Notice requirements may be waived by the Department 
Manager.  

 
1.5.6.02 The City Administrator and Department Managers shall be subject to Rule 1.3.11 except 
that they shall be required to give at least four weeks’ notice to the Mayor. Notice requirements 
may be waived by the supervisor.  

 
1.5.6.03 A copy of the resignation notice, and a final performance evaluation report shall be 
placed in the personnel file of the employee.  

 
1.5.7  Exit Interview  

1.5.7.01 In the event of separation from employment of a regular status employee, an exit 
interview shall be conducted with the employee. All terminating employees will receive an Exit 
Questionnaire prior to the exit interview. The exit interview will be conducted on the employee’s 
last workday.  
 
1. In the case of any separation from employment, the exit interview will be conducted by the 
Department Manager and will consist of a discussion of:  
 

a) The reasons for separation from employment, i.e. resignation, termination, and lay-off 
including re-employment options, if any.  
 
b) Determination of any complicating factors of the separation, including whether work 
related injuries have been sustained by the employee.  
 
c) Arrangement for the return of all City-owned uniforms, equipment and other City-owned 
items.  
 
d) An explanation to the employee of the effects of separation of employment on benefits 
provisions and contributions to the Public Employees Retirement System, the amount of 
vacation leave accrued and the method and amount of payment.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
169



 

Page 3 of 4 
Subject: Reduction in Force, Re-Employment, Resignation, Exit Interview, Personnel Records, Employment References, & 
Retention of Personnel Records   
 

2. The employee will be afforded the opportunity to constructively comment on city 
employment through discussion with the department Manager, City Administrator or Mayor.  
 
1.5.7.02 A summary of the exit interview will be placed in the personnel file of the employee.  

 
1.5.8  Personnel Records  

1.5.8.01 Personnel records will be maintained for each employee and are the property of the city. 
Personnel records will show the employee's name, title of position held, the department 
assigned, salary, change in appointment status, training received, with the exception of Police 
and Fire Department in-service training maintained in Departmental files, performance 
evaluations, fringe benefits administration, including vacation and sick leave rates of 
accumulation and use, notes regarding disciplinary action or other counseling sessions, and such 
other information as may be considered pertinent.  

 
1.5.8.02 Employee Records are confidential and accessible only to the employee, the employee's 
Department Manager, the City Administrator and the Mayor, or other staff assigned to the 
personnel file.  

 
1.5.8.03 Employees are entitled to review their own personnel file at least once annually, or 
otherwise upon approval of the Department Manager. Employee review will be conducted in the 
presence of authorized personnel.  

 
1.5.8.04 Confidential personnel records will not be released to any unauthorized individuals 
except with the written consent of the employee or in response to valid court orders or 
government requests directing the provision of information from personnel records.  

 
1.5.8.04 Employees have the opportunity to submit a letter of rebuttal regarding any information 
contained in their file that is in dispute.  

 
1.5.9  Employment References  

1.5.9.01 Unless otherwise required by a valid court order, the city will furnish only the following 
information about past or present city employees to persons outside city government.  

 
1. Dates of Employment  
2. Current job title or job title at date of termination.  
3. Verification of salary information  
4. Employment references  
 
1.5.9.02 All requests for any information regarding past or present city employees will be directed 
immediately to Human Resources. All other personnel will not respond directly to any requests 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
170



 

Page 4 of 4 
Subject: Reduction in Force, Re-Employment, Resignation, Exit Interview, Personnel Records, Employment References, & 
Retention of Personnel Records   
 

for information. Due to potential liability to the city, all requests for employment references are 
to be referred to Human Resources, the City Administrator or Mayor.  

 
1.5.10  Retention of Personnel Records  

Personnel records that are not confidential will be maintained and destroyed in accordance with 
established policy regarding public records. Confidential personnel records and payroll records 
may be destroyed six (6) years after the employee has ceased to work for the city, or at an earlier 
date as determined by the Mayor.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
171



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Prevention of Workplace Violence 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.6 Prevention of Workplace Violence 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.6.1 PURPOSE: The City of Buckley is committed to maintaining a workplace free from violence and 

threats of violence. The City will not tolerate any acts or threats of acts of violence to persons or 
property. Any employee who commits or threatens an act of violence will be subject to discipline, 
up to and including termination. Employees should promptly report any acts of violence or 
threats of violence, including actions of coworkers and members of the public to their 
Department Director, City Administrator, Human Resources, or City Attorney. 

 
1.6.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.6.3 POLICY: Prevention of Workplace Violence 
 “Workplace Violence” means any verbal or physical action that is communicated or reasonably 

perceived as a threat, harassment, abuse, intimidation, or personal contact, and that produces 
fear, or causes bodily harm or damage to property. Workplace violence may involve family, 
friends, strangers, co-workers, or customers. 

 
 Employees are not permitted to bring a weapon into the City workplace, including parking lots, 

and lunch break rooms, unless the weapon is required to fulfill the employee’s job duties, such 
as those of a police officer, unless a request has been granted by management in writing prior to 
the bringing of the weapon into the workplace (this includes but is not limited to stun guns, mace, 
and other personal protection). The weapon will then be registered with the Police Department 
prior to bringing it to work, with a set time frame for its use. If an employee brings a weapon to 
work, they must immediately inform the Police Department that the weapon is on City premises. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
172



   
 

Page 1 of 4 
Subject: Anti-Harassment 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.7 Anti-Harassment Policy 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.7.1 PURPOSE: The City of Buckley expressly prohibits all forms of unlawful harassment of employees 

or job applicants, whether due to gender, marital status, race, color, national origin, citizenship 
status, religion, sexual orientation, age, pregnancy, mental or physical disability or other 
characteristic protected by federal, state or local law. This prohibition encompasses conduct by 
employees or conduct toward employees by third parties. Employees are expected to maintain a 
productive work environment that is free from inappropriate or unlawful conduct. Unlawful 
harassment toward any individual – whether a co-worker, constituent, vendor or other third party 
– is prohibited. Any employee who is found to have violated this anti-harassment policy will be 
subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 
 

1.7.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.7.3 POLICY: Anti-Harassment Policy 
 

1.7.3.01 Prohibited Conduct 
Examples of conduct that is prohibited by the City that could constitute unlawful harassment 
include, without limitation, the following: 
 
1. Epithets, slurs, negative stereotyping or threatening, intimidating, derogatory or hostile 

comments or acts that are related to gender, marital status, race, color, sexual orientation, 
national origin, citizenship status, religion, age, pregnancy, actual or perceived disability, 
or other characteristics protected by law. 

2. Written or graphic material displayed or circulated in the City workplace (including 
vehicles and on email) that denigrates or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual 
or group because of their sex, marital status, race, color, national origin, sexual 
orientation, creed, age, pregnancy, mental or physical disability or other characteristic 
protected by law. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
173



   
 

Page 2 of 4 
Subject: Anti-Harassment 

 
 

1.7.3.02 Sexual Harassment 
Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and 
all other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature where: 
 
1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of 

an individual’s employment. 
2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for 

employment decisions affecting such individual. 
3. Such conduct has the effect of interfering with an individual’s work performance or 

creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. 
 

Examples of conduct that is prohibited by the City’s policy and which could constitute sexual 
harassment include without limitation to the following: 
 
1. Vulgar or sexual comments, jokes and stories. 
2. Graphic or suggestive comments about someone’s body or manner of dress. 
3. Gossip, questions, or comments about someone’s sexual conduct. 
4. Vulgarity, leering, inappropriate touching and obscene or suggestive gestures. 
5. Display or circulation in the workplace (including vehicles) of suggestive photographs, 

cartoons, graffiti, emails, drawings or transmitting or downloading those types of 
inappropriate or offensive messages from the internet. 

6. Solicitation or coercion of sexual activity, dates or similar contact with the implied or 
express promise of rewards or preferential treatment to any employee or with the implied 
or express threat of punishment to any employee. 

7. Sexual assault. 
8. Intimidating, hostile or derogatory conduct or remarks that are directed at a person 

because of that person’s sex, whether or not the remarks themselves are sexual in nature. 
9. Retaliation against an employee for refusing sexual overtures, for complaining about 

sexual harassment or for cooperating with the investigation of a complaint. 
 

1.7.3.03 Management and Supervisory Responsibilities: 
Management and supervisory personnel of the City are responsible for being mindful of the 
potential for unlawful harassment within a work group and for ensuring a work environment 
free from all types of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. Because of the 
potential for miscommunication, the effect on morale, abuses of authority, and conflicts of 
interests, the City prohibits romantic relationships between anyone in a supervisory capacity 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
174



   
 

Page 3 of 4 
Subject: Anti-Harassment 

with an employee in their chain of command. This applies to all employees who have the 
authority or practical power to supervise, hire, terminate, or discipline another employee, or 
who are responsible for auditing evaluation, or reviewing the work of another employee. 
Supervisors who have practical power and whose authority extends over all City employees 
city-wide are similarly prohibited from romantic relationships. Should a romantic relationship 
develop, the City Administrator or City Attorney are to be advised immediately, and a course 
of action will be determined in the best interest of the City. Failure to immediately disclose 
such relationship will result in discipline, up to and including termination of employment. 

 
1.7.3.04 Complaints or Concerns about Discrimination, Unlawful Harassment, or 
Retaliation 
Any employee who believes that they have been subjected to objectionable conduct 
prohibited by this policy is encouraged (but not required) to let the offending person know 
immediately and firmly that the behavior is offensive. 
 
Any employee who believes they may have been subjected to objectionable conduct 
prohibited by this policy, or who observes another employee being subjected to conduct 
prohibited by this policy, must report it immediately to the City Administrator, Human 
Resources, or City Attorney. 
 
Directors, managers, or supervisors who receive any complaint or concern that an employee 
is being subjected to objectionable conduct prohibited by this policy or who observe 
objectionable conduct prohibited by this policy must report it immediately to the City 
Administrator, Human Resources, or the City Attorney. 
 
All reported incidents of unlawful harassment or discrimination will be investigated under the 
following guidelines. 
 
1. The City of Buckley will appoint or retain an investigator who can be neutral and fair to all 

parties to the investigation. The City may bring in an outside investigator if there is no one 
employed by the City who can complete a fair and timely investigation. 
 

2. Although the City cannot guarantee confidentiality, reasonable efforts will be made to 
only disclose information as necessary to allow the City to investigate and respond to the 
complaint, and to the extent allowed by law. Any special concerns about confidentiality 
will be addressed at the time they are raised. Employees have a responsibility to cooperate 
in any investigation of conduct prohibited by this policy, including but not limited to, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
175



   
 

Page 4 of 4 
Subject: Anti-Harassment 

complying with any instructions related to the maintenance of confidentiality during the 
investigation process.  If it is determined that a complaint is valid, appropriate remedial 
action will be taken promptly. When appropriate, the complaining employee will be 
informed that remedial action has been taken but will not be told information that the 
City deems confidential. 
 

3. Any employee who is found to have violated this policy or the law is subject to disciplinary 
action, up to and including termination of employment. 
 

4. Individuals reporting complaints or providing information in good faith in connection with 
an investigation will not be retaliated against for their participation in this process. 
Allegations of retaliation will be investigated separately, and if sustained, will be subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
176



    
 

Page 1 of 4 
Subject: Conflict of Interest 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.8 Conflict of Interest 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.8.1 PURPOSE: To establish a conflict-of-interest policy for employees and Council. 
 
1.8.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees and Council. 
 
1.8.3 POLICY: 
  
Chapter 42.23 RCW prohibits municipal officers from using their positions to secure special privileges or 
special exemptions for themselves or others, and from entering certain contracts or having other 
personal financial interests with their jurisdictions. 

 
RCW 42.23.020(2) defines “municipal officer” rather broadly to include all elected and appointed 
officials, all deputies and assistants of such officials, and anyone exercising or undertaking to exercise 
the powers of those officials (such as city managers, city or county administrators, or special purpose 
district superintendents). 

 
These rules apply to all officers in all types of municipal and quasi-municipal corporations, including 
cities, towns, counties, and special purpose districts.  

 
Violating these rules can bring serious penalties, including monetary fines, nullification of contracts, and 
possible forfeiture of office. 

 
Common sense can be a good guide in this area of law, but sometimes gray areas can create confusion 
and uncertainty. If you are concerned about a specific situation, legal counsel should be consulted. 
 
1.8.4 Prohibited Uses of Public Office 

State law, codified at RCW 42.23.070, governs the ethical conduct of county, city, and special 
purpose district officers and prohibits them from taking the following types of action while in 
office, specifically municipal officers may not: 

 
1) Engage in any transaction or activity, which is, or would be to a reasonable person appear to 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
177



    
 

Page 2 of 4 
Subject: Conflict of Interest 

be, in conflict with or incompatible with the proper discharge of official duties, or which 
impairs, or would to a reasonable person appear to impair, the employee’s independence of 
judgment or action in the performance of official duties and fail to disqualify themselves from 
official action in those instances where conflict occurs; 

 
2) Have a financial or other private interest, direct or indirect, personally or through a family 

member of their immediate family, in any matter upon which the employee is required to act 
in the discharge of their official duties, and fail to disqualify themselves from acting or 
participating. 

 
3) Fail to disqualify themselves from acting on any transaction which involves the City and any 

person who is, or at any time, within the preceding twelve (12) month period has been a 
private client of theirs or of their firm or partnership. 

 
4) Have a financial or other private interest, direct or indirect, personally or through a member 

of his or her immediate family, in any contract or transaction to which the City or any City 
agency may be a party, and fails to disclose such interest to the appropriate City authority 
prior to the formation of the contract or the time the City or City agency enters into the 
transaction; provided, that this paragraph shall not apply to any contract awarded through 
the public bid process in accordance with applicable law. 

 
5) Accept employment or engage in business or professional activity that they might reasonably 

expect would require or induce them by reason of their official position to disclose 
confidential information acquired by reason of their official position; or 

 
6) Disclose confidential information gained by reason of their position, nor may they otherwise 

use such information for their personal gain or benefit. 
 

1.8.5 Prohibited Contract Interests 
RCW 42.23.030 specifically prohibits a municipal officer, or their office, from directly or indirectly 
receiving financial benefit from a contract if the contract is made by, or under the supervision of 
the municipal officer, in whole or part. Any contract entered by a municipality in violation of this 
prohibition is void. 

 
Under RCW 42.23.020(3) “contract” is defined as any contract, sale, lease, or purchase, including 
a contract (written or unwritten) of employment.  

 
A contract is made “by, through or under the supervision of the municipal officer” only when the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
178



    
 

Page 3 of 4 
Subject: Conflict of Interest 

municipal officer has the authority to enter the contract on behalf of the municipality. The 
prohibition applies broadly to members of the governing body, who are generally responsible for 
approving contracts, regardless of whether they voted on the contract or not. 

 
Although there are some exceptions for specific situations (see below) certain contract interests 
are prohibited in any situation. Specifically, a municipal officer who has authority over making 
the contract may never: 

 
· Purchase or lease property from the same municipality. 
· Contract for legal services with the same municipality, except for reimbursement of 

expenses; or 
· Enter any contract with the same municipality if the municipality is a county of 125,000 

or more, a city of 1,500 or more, or an irrigation district encompassing more than 50,000 
acres, or a first class school district. 

 
1.8.6 Exceptions. Contract interests are allowed if the officer entered the contract before assuming 

office. However, any future contract renewals or revisions would be subject to the restrictions of 
Chapter 42.23 RCW, since the contract would effectively be remade at the time. 

 
RCW 42.23.030 contains a number of very specific exceptions, allowing municipal officers to have 
contract interests with their municipalities in certain situations. Some of these exceptions apply 
to certain types of contracts, while others depend on the monetary value or the type and size of 
the municipality. 

 
If an exception applies, the municipal officer must fully disclose the contract interest to the 
governing body, which must note the interest in its official minutes or similar records before 
approving the contract, the municipal officer may not vote on the contract under any 
circumstances. 

 
1.8.7 Remote Interests 

Certain “interests” that municipal officers have in contracts made by, through, or under their 
supervision are not considered to fall under the prohibition in RCW 42.23.030 but rather 
considered “remote” interests under RCW 42.23.040. A municipality may enter contracts in 
which an officer who has authority over the making of the contract has a remote interest, 
provided that certain conditions are met. 

 
 There are four types of remote interests, which exist only where the municipal officer is: 
 

1) A non-salaried officer of a nonprofit corporation that is a contracting party. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
179



    
 

Page 4 of 4 
Subject: Conflict of Interest 

2) An employee or agent of the contracting party, where the salary consists entirely of fixed 
wages or salary. 

3) The landlord or tenant of the contracting party; or 
 
4) Someone who holds less than 1% of the shares of a corporation or cooperative that is a 

contracting party. 
 

 “Contracting party” is defined in RCW 42.23.020(4).  
 
 A remote interest will only apply if all the following conditions are met: 
 

· The municipal officer discloses the remote interest to the governing body of the 
municipality prior to the formation of the contract. 

· The remote interest is noted in the official minutes, or similar records, prior to the formation 
of the contract. 

· The governing body, in good faith, approves the contract without counting the vote of the 
officer with the remote interest; and 

· The officer with the remote interest did not influence or attempt to influence the decision of 
other municipal officers, who serve the same jurisdiction, related to the contract. 

 
1.8.8 Relatives and Spouses 

The prohibition in RCW 42.23.030 does not apply to contracts with relatives of municipal officers 
unless that relative, such as a spouse or a minor child, has a legal interest in the earnings of the 
municipal officer. However, hiring or contracting with spouses may be allowed if the municipal 
officer and their spouse have entered into a separate property agreement. 

 
1.8.9 Penalties 

The consequences of violating chapter 42.23 RCW are severe.  Any municipal officer who violates 
chapter 42.23 RCW is subject to a $500 civil penalty, on top of other possible civil and criminal 
penalties, and may have to forfeit their office. In addition, any contract made in violation of 
chapter 42.23 RCW is void, and acting in good faith is not a defense. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
180



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Workplace Privacy 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.9 Workplace Privacy 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.9.1 PURPOSE: Establishing a Workplace Privacy Policy 
 
1.9.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.9.3 POLICY: Workplace Privacy 
 The City does not assume responsibility for any theft or damage to the personal belongings of 

City employees. Therefore, the City requests that employees avoid bringing valuable personal 
articles or property to work. Employees are solely responsible for ensuring that their personal 
belongings are secure while at work. Employees are also advised that work-related searches of 
an employee’s work area, computer, workspace, and/or locker on the City’s property may be 
conducted without advance notice. Employees who do not consent to inspections may be subject 
to discipline, up to and including termination of employment. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
181



   
 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Background Checks 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.10 Background Checks 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.10.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy on requiring background checks from employees and 

independent contractors that work with children, elderly or vulnerable adults. 
 
1.10.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.10.3 POLICY: Background Checks 
 
Policy Requirements: 
 
Section I. City of Buckley commits to providing a safe environment and will take appropriate steps 

in requiring all employees and those independent contractors who work or volunteer with 
youth, vulnerable adults and/or the elderly to submit to a criminal background check as 
a condition of employment or contract for service with the City of Buckley. 

 
Section II. All potential new/rehired employees and independent contractors who work or contract 

for service with the City of Buckley will be required to complete a national background 
check from prior to the first day of work. Applicants shall be required to complete a 
disclosure form on conviction of crimes along with the national screening request. 
Employment and contract services will be contingent upon acceptable background check.  
Supervisors are responsible for notifying Human Resources of the need for a background 
check and making sure this requirement is met prior to allowing an employee or 
independent contractor to begin assignment. 

 
Section III. All employees working in areas that receive funds from the Department of Social and 

Health Services (DSHS) will be required to complete a DSHS background form in addition 
to the City of Buckley required forms. The City Administrator or designee will be 
responsible for determining positions within the department meeting these 
requirements. 

 
Section IV. Offenses that will result in ineligibility for employment in areas with youth, vulnerable 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
182



   
 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Background Checks 

adults and/or the elderly are as listed in the “DSHS Secretary List of Crimes and Negative 
Actions.” Other positions will be reviewed by Human Resources on a case by case basis as 
it relates to the position. 

 
Administrative Procedures: 
 
A. Background results will be provided by the Human Resources Office. The City of Buckley shall only 

use this record in making initial employment decisions. Supervisors will be notified of the results 
if the background check finds offenses which are cause for ineligibility. The Supervisor shall notify 
the employee of their ineligibility and terminate the employment immediately.  If the employee 
disagrees with the results, they shall be provided the appropriate agency contact information. The 
employee shall be unable to continue working until an acceptable background check is provided. 
Appeals or reviews of special consideration shall be presented and eligibility determined by the 
City Administrator and Human Resources. 

 
B. Partners and service providers not utilizing the City of Buckley process for background checks are 

required to sign a certification stating they utilize a comparable system that meets the City of 
Buckley’s requirements for working with youth, elderly, and/or vulnerable adults. The City of 
Buckley staff member overseeing the contract/partnership is responsible for ensuring the 
requirements are met before enacting a contract/partnership agreement. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
183



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Employee Recognition Program 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.11 Employee Recognition Program 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.11.1 PURPOSE: To ensure that the City is a great place to work by providing opportunities for growth, 

treating all employees equitably and retaining and attracting the best employees. 
 

1.11.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
1.11.3 POLICY:  

The City Administrator or the Mayor are authorized to implement an employee recognition 
program to recognize employees for exceptional work or longevity in City employment through 
the use of recognition events, awards or compensation.  

 
An annual Employee Recognition budget will be adopted by the City Council. The intent of the 
Employee Recognition budget is to reward and recognize employees as a retention and attraction 
tool while balancing being prudent stewards of public funds. Approval of employee recognition 
items are conditioned on the availability of an adequate budget. Employees will be responsible 
to pay applicable payroll taxes on monetary awards and incentives in accordance with Federal 
and state law and the City’s financial policies. 

 
Retirement Department Director – Employees will be provided a plaque and/or key to the City 
in recognition of their years of service.  Up to $200 will be allowed to purchase decorations, light 
snacks, refreshments and cake for a farewell event. 

 
Annual Recognition Events – The City Administration coordinates recognition events that 
contribute to increasing connection and fun to support the workplace culture. The events include 
but are not limited to the Summer Employee Recognition Event and the December Employee 
Recognition Event. 

 
The City may rent a venue, purchase entertainment, decorations, and meals not to exceed $1,250 
per year. 

 
Small Tokens of Appreciation – Verbal or written acknowledgement from the Mayor, City 
Administrator and/or Supervisor is encouraged to recognize notable employee performance. This 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
184



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Employee Recognition Program 

may be accompanied by small tokens of appreciation, e.g. food, pins or coins, city logo wear. 
 

Outstanding Service – The City Administrator along with the Human Resources Department may 
establish programs in recognition of outstanding service by employees and may provide 
appropriate recognition, including a certificate and/or other items of nominal value, or an 
employee may be granted up to four incentive days per year.  “Incentive Day” means a day which 
is available for time off use and is administered in the same way as a floating holiday. 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
185



   
 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Confidentiality Policy 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.12 Confidentiality Policy 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.12.1 PURPOSE: The City of Buckley designed this confidentiality policy to explain how we expect 

employees to treat confidential information. 
1.12.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: This policy affects all employees, including Council members, 

contractors, and volunteers who may have access to confidential information. 
 
1.12.3 POLICY:   
 Employees will unavoidably receive and handle personal and private information about citizens, 

participants, employees, partners, and the City of Buckley. The City wants to make sure that 
information is well-protected. 

 
Confidential and proprietary information is secret, valuable, expensive and/or easily replicated.  
Common examples of confidential information are, but not limited to, the following: 

 
· Unpublished financial information. 
· Data of Customers/Partners/Vendors 
· Participant Information 
· Employee Personnel Information 
· Data entrusted to our City 
· Documents and processes explicitly marked as confidential 
· HIPPA information 
· Unpublished goals, forecasts and initiatives marked as confidential 

 Employees may have various levels of authorized access to confidential information. 
 
What employees should do:   
 

· Lock or secure confidential information at all times. 
· Shred confidential documents when they are no longer needed and have met State retention 

guidelines. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
186



   
 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Confidentiality Policy 

· Make sure they only view confidential information on secure devices. 
· Only disclose information to other employees when it’s necessary and authorized. 
· Keep confidential documents inside the City premises unless it’s absolutely necessary to move 

them. 
 
What employees shouldn’t do: 
 

· Use confidential information for any personal benefit or profit. 
· Disclose confidential information to anyone outside of the City. 
· Replicate confidential documents and files and store them on insecure devices. 

 
When employees stop working for the City, they’re obliged to return any confidential files. 
 
Confidentiality Measures: 
 
The City will take measures to ensure that confidential information is well protected, including: 
 

· Store and lock paper documents. 
· Encrypt electronic information and safeguard databases. 
· Ask for authorization by senior management to allow employees to access certain confidential 

information. 
 
Exceptions: 
 
Confidential information may occasionally be disclosed for legitimate reasons.  An example would be: 
 

· If a regulatory body requests it as part of an investigation or audit. 
 
Disciplinary Consequences: Employees who don’t respect the confidentiality policy will face disciplinary 
action up to and including termination.  
 
Every breach of this policy will be investigated and any employee who willfully or regularly breaches the 
confidentiality policy for personal profit will be terminated.  Unintentional breaches of this policy may 
still result in discipline depending on frequency and seriousness. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
187



   
 

Page 1 of 4 
Subject: Accommodations 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.13 Accommodations 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.13.1 PURPOSE: The City of Buckley is committed to maintaining an inclusive workforce where people 

of all abilities contribute to our workforce. It is the policy of the City of Buckley to comply with all 
federal and state laws concerning the employment of persons with disabilities and to act in 
accordance with regulations and guidance issued by the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (EEOC). 

 
The City will reasonably accommodate qualified individuals with a disability so that they can 
perform the essential functions of a job; unless doing so causes a direct threat to these individuals 
or others in the workplace, and the threat cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation, 
and/or if the accommodation creates an undue hardship to the City. 

 
1.13.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 

All departments/divisions. 
 
1.13.3 POLICY:  
  

1.13.3.01 Disability Accommodation 
The City of Buckley is committed to maintaining an inclusive workforce where people of all 
abilities contribute to our workforce. It is the policy of the City of Buckley to comply with all 
federal and state laws concerning the employment of persons with disabilities and to act in 
accordance with regulations and guidance issued by the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission (EEOC). 

 
The City will reasonably accommodate qualified individuals with a disability so that they can 
perform the essential functions of a job; unless doing so causes a direct threat to these individuals 
or others in the workplace, and the threat cannot be eliminated by reasonable accommodation, 
and/or if the accommodation creates an undue hardship to the City. 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
188



   
 

Page 2 of 4 
Subject: Accommodations 

 
1.13.3.02 Service Animal Accommodation 
The City of Buckley prohibits bringing a pet (a domestic animal kept for pleasure or 
companionship) to work or having a pet in City – controlled buildings and premises, with the 
exception of service animals for a person with disabilities. A person with a disability uses a service 
animal as an auxiliary aid. In compliance with the ADA, service animals are welcome in all 
buildings on City property and may attend any class, meeting, or other event.  There may be an 
exception to certain areas.  Employees requesting accommodation for a disability that includes a 
service animal must contact Human Resources and complete a Documentation of Disability form.  
All service animals must be registered with HR. 

 
A service animal is any dog that is individually trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit 
of an individual with a disability, including a physical, sensory, psychiatric, intellectual, or other 
mental disability.  Other species of animals, whether wild or domestic, trained, or untrained, are 
not considered service animals. 

 
The work or tasks performed by a service animal must be directly related to the individual’s 
disability. Examples of work or tasks include, but are not limited to: 

· Assisting individuals who are blind or have low vision with navigation and other tasks. 
· Alerting individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing to the presence of people or sounds. 
· Providing non-violent protection or rescue work. 
· Pulling a wheelchair. 
· Assisting an individual during a seizure. 
· Alerting an individual to the presence of allergens. 
· Retrieving items such as medicine or the telephone. 
· Providing physical support and assistance with balance and stability to individuals with 

mobility disabilities. 
· Helping individuals with psychiatric and neurological disabilities by preventing or 

interrupting impulsive or destructive behaviors. 
 

The crime deterrent effects of an animal’s presence and the provision of emotional support, well-
being, comfort, or companionship are not considered work or tasks under the definition of a 
service animal. 
 
When and Where a Service Animal is Allowed 
Individuals with disabilities can bring their service animals into all areas of public facilities and 
private businesses where members of the public, program participants, clients, customers, 
patrons, or invitees are allowed.  A service animal can be excluded from a facility if its presence 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
189



   
 

Page 3 of 4 
Subject: Accommodations 

interferes with legitimate safety requirements of the facility (e.g., from a surgery or burn unit in 
a hospital in which a sterile field is required). 

 
A public entity or a private business may ask an individual with a disability to remove a service 
animal if the animal is not housebroken or is out of control and the individual is not able to control 
it. A service animal must have a harness, leash, or other tether, unless the handler is unable to 
use a tether because of a disability or the use of a tether would interfere with the service animal’s 
ability to safely perform its work or tasks.  In these cases, the service animal must be under the 
handler’s control through voice commands, hand signals, or other effective means.  If a service 
animal is excluded, the individual with a disability must still be offered the opportunity to obtain 
goods, services, and accommodations without having the service animal on the premises. 
 
Requirements of Service Animals and Their Owners Include 
 

· All animals need to be immunized against rabies and other diseases common to that type 
of animal.  All vaccinations must be current.  Animals must wear a rabies vaccination tag. 

· All dogs must be licensed per state law. 
· Service animals must wear an owner identification tag which includes the name and 

phone number of the owner at all times. 
· Animals must be in good health. 
· The owner must provide HR with information as to how the animal accommodates the 

individual’s disability. 
 

Reasonable behavior is expected from service animals while on City property.  The owners of 
disruptive and aggressive service animals may be asked to remove them from City facilities. If the 
improper behavior happens repeatedly, the owner my be told not to bring the service animal 
into any facility until the owner takes significant steps to mitigate the behavior. 

 
Cleanliness of the service animal is mandatory.  Consideration of others must be taken into 
account when providing maintenance and hygiene of service animals. The owner is expected to 
clean and dispose of all animal waste. 
 
1.13.3.03 Religious Accommodation 
The City of Buckley will provide reasonable accommodation of the sincerely held religious beliefs 
and practices of our employees.  This may include accommodation of religious beliefs or practices 
regarding diets, work schedules, dress and appearance, or other issues. 
 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
190



   
 

Page 4 of 4 
Subject: Accommodations 

1.13.3.04 Procedure to Request Accommodation 
Any applicant/employee who seeks reasonable accommodation for a disability or a sincerely held 
religious belief and practice should report this request to their supervisor. If the 
applicant/employee does not feel comfortable making the request to the Supervisor, he/she 
should make the request to their Director instead. 

 
A request for reasonable accommodation will trigger the interactive process.  The interactive 
process may involve communications between you, the City, and either your medical providers 
(disability) or clergy (religion) to obtain information on your limitations, the duration of the 
limitations, and what accommodations can reasonable be offered you.  You may be required to 
sign releases or disclosures that will allow your medical providers to communicate with the City 
regarding a medical condition for which you are seeking reasonable accommodation. 

 
The City will decide whether any accommodation can be reasonable offered after obtaining 
relevant information from the applicant/employee, his/her supervisors, and the 
applicant’s/employee’s medical providers or clergy. 

 
Personal information that you submit about your disability will be kept confidential, except for 
cases where (i) your supervisor needs to be informed of work restrictions or necessary 
accommodations, (ii) first aid or safety personnel need to be informed in order to provide 
emergency treatment, or (iii) Government officials need to be informed in compliance with the 
OFCCP, Ability One/Source America requirements, or the Americans with Disabilities Act. In such 
cases, personal information is only released to the minimum extent necessary, and you are 
assured that your information will be used in ways that are consistent with Section 503 of the 
Rehabilitation Act.  Our intention is simply to ensure that the City’s work environment is 
welcoming to all people of all abilities. 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
191



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: GPS Location Devices on City Fleet Vehicles and Equipment 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.14 GPS Location Devices on City Fleet 
Vehicles and Equipment 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.14.1 PURPOSE: The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the implementation and use of 

GPS location devices on City of Buckley fleet vehicles and equipment. The primary focus of this 
policy is to enhance employee safety, protect City assets, and ensure accountability in alignment 
with the City’s commitment to operational excellence. 

 
1.14.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
1.14.3 POLICY:  
 Implementation of GPS Location Devices on City Fleet Vehicles and Equipment 

The City of Buckley is committed to ensuring the safety of its employees and protecting its assets. 
As part of this commitment, GPS location devices will be installed on City fleet vehicles and 
equipment beginning in 2025. This policy outlines the conditions under which GPS location 
devices will be used, the limitations on their use, and the City’s approach to balancing safety and 
privacy considerations. 

 
1. Employee Safety and Asset Protection 
The primary purpose of the GPS location devices is to: 

· Prevent the loss, theft, or misuse of City-owned vehicles and equipment. 

· Enhance employee safety by enabling quicker response in emergencies or accidents. 

2. Monitoring and Use of GPS Data 
· GPS location devices will only be monitored under the following circumstances: 

o Employee safety concerns (e.g., emergencies or accidents). 

o Loss, theft, or suspected misuse of City vehicles or equipment. 

o Verification of concerns stemming from citizen or stakeholder complaints. 

· Routine monitoring of GPS devices for daily productivity purposes will not occur. 

3. Incident-Specific Monitoring 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
192



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: GPS Location Devices on City Fleet Vehicles and Equipment 

Management may review GPS data in the following cases: 
· An employee is involved in an accident or emergency situation. 

· City vehicles or equipment are reported lost, stolen, or misused. 

· Complaints are received from citizens or stakeholders regarding the performance or 
whereabouts of City employees. 

4. Public Disclosure 
· GPS data may be subject to public disclosure requests in accordance with state and federal 

laws, including Washington’s Public Records Act. 

· Employees will be notified if GPS data is included in response to a public disclosure request, as 
appropriate and consistent with legal requirements. 

5. Data Retention and Accessibility 
· GPS data will be stored by the City’s GPS provider for a period of five years. 

· Data can be exported at the five-year mark with assistance from the GPS provider’s support 
team. 

· GPS data is stored in the provider’s secure online portal and can be accessed via a web browser, 
with the system optimized for use with Google Chrome. 

6. Commitment to Employee Privacy 
The City recognizes the importance of employee privacy and will limit the use of GPS data to the 
specific circumstances outlined in this policy. The GPS system is intended solely to promote safety, 
security, and accountability. 
 
7. Technology Implementation 
The installation of GPS location devices is a management right as part of the City’s authority to 
introduce new technology for operational and safety purposes. GPS devices will be installed on all City 
fleet vehicles and equipment as part of this policy. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
193



 

Page 1 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.15 Substance Abuse 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.15.1 PURPOSE: The City of Buckley recognizes that its employees are its most important resource in 

fulfilling its charge of effective public service. The city has promulgated this policy in the interest 
of the safety and well-being of its employees and the efficiency of its workforce. This document 
outlines the city of Buckley policy regarding alcohol and drug abuse and provides guidance to 
supervisors in addressing substance abuse issues. This policy is intended to comply with the 
federal Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988 and with federal Department of Transportation 
regulations governing commercial drivers.  
 

1.15.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
1.15.3 POLICY: Substance Abuse 
  

1.15.3.01 Scope  
This policy applies to all City of Buckley employees except that employees included in bargaining 
units are subject to drug testing only if: 1) the labor contract covering them specifically allows for 
such testing; or 2) the issue of drug testing has been legally bargained to final impasse; or 3) a 
written agreement between management and the employee’s bargaining agent has been signed 
and executed to provide for drug testing.  

 
All other provisions of this policy, apart from the limits to drug testing as specified above, shall 
apply to all city employees. In cases where the provisions of this policy conflict with collective 
bargaining agreements duly agreed upon between the authorized employee organizations or 
unions and the city, the provisions of the collective bargaining agreements shall govern.  

 
None of the exclusions mentioned in this Section shall waive or in any way diminish the City’s 
Disciplinary Action and Rules of Conduct Policy (4.06.01, "g") which covers all employees.  

 
Neither the provisions nor the exclusions cited in this policy waive or modify the "employment 
at will" status of any city employee subject to that status either by law or as allowed under a 
collective bargaining agreement.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
194



 

Page 2 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

 
1.15.3.02 Policy  
The City of Buckley recognizes that alcoholism and drug abuse may have an adverse effect on job 
performance and it is concerned with this impact.  
The City of Buckley recognizes that alcoholism and drug abuse can be successfully treated, enabling 
the employee to return to a satisfactory job performance level.  
 
Employees who are concerned about their alcohol and/or drug use are strongly encouraged to 
voluntarily seek assistance.  
 
Supervisors, department managers and the City Administrator are available to all employees as a 
resource.  
 
It is the employee’s responsibility to demonstrate satisfactory job performance.  
 
It shall be the responsibility of supervisors at every level to encourage employees to use the 
resources available through city employment when deteriorating or unsatisfactory job 
performance does not respond to usual supervisory actions, or when a specific on-the-job incident 
is cause for concern. These resources include employer provided health insurance and leave 
benefits which may be coordinated to enable assistance or treatment for the employee. The 
supervisor’s role is to observe and record behavior and performance of employees. Supervisors 
should not attempt to medically diagnose an employee’s problems.  
 
The employee’s compliance with the recommendations of a health care professional is voluntary. 
Use of a remedial or treatment program does not replace normal disciplinary procedures for 
unsatisfactory job performance.  
 
The employee’s job security and/or promotional opportunities will not be jeopardized by use of a 
remedial or treatment program. Paid or unpaid leave status during participation in a remedial or 
treatment program will be determined on a case-by-case basis, depending upon the circumstances 
involved.  
 
Confidentiality is an essential element of substance abuse treatment. Any employee violating this 
confidentiality will be subject to disciplinary action.  
 
Reporting to work under the influence of alcohol or drugs, or any substance, legal or illegal, which 
impairs an employee’s mental or physical health will not be tolerated.  
 
When there are reasonable grounds to believe that the employee is under the influence of alcohol 
or drugs, the supervisor may direct the employee to submit to drug screening and blood alcohol 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
195



 

Page 3 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

tests. Refusal to submit to such tests can subject the employee to disciplinary action up to and 
including dismissal.  
 
Under no circumstances will an employee be allowed to operate city equipment or drive a city 
motor vehicle after a supervisor has established reasonable grounds to believe that the employee 
is impaired.  
Any employee using medication or prescribed drugs which may impair job performance must 
report this fact to his/her supervisor prior to accepting an assignment which might be adversely 
affected by the side effects of the medication.  
 
It is the responsibility of employees who are called out to work after regular hours to comply with 
the provisions of this policy. If the employee called out to work has been involved in activities that 
may have left him/her in an impaired or intoxicated condition, the employee must inform the 
person making the call out, so that an alternate can be found.  
 
The unauthorized use, sale, purchase or possession of alcohol or controlled substances at the 
worksite is prohibited and shall be grounds for discipline up to and including dismissal. The 
unauthorized use of the employee’s position with the city to make, purchase or sell alcohol, 
controlled substances or illegal drugs is also prohibited and shall be grounds for discipline up to 
and including dismissal.  
 

1.15.3.03 Assistance Program / Voluntary Referral  
The City of Buckley supports employees who volunteer for treatment of alcohol or drug abuse. 
Employees are encouraged to seek treatment voluntarily and to utilize the Employee Assistance 
Program. Any employee who comes forth and notifies the City Buckley of alcohol or drug abuse problems 
will be given the assistance extended to employees with any other illness. Any such program, however, 
may not interfere with the tests required by these rules. For example, a driver may not identify 
himself/herself as unfit to drive after having been notified of a random or reasonable suspicion test and 
expect to avoid the consequences for a positive test or a refusal to test. In addition, voluntarily seeking 
assistance does not excuse any failure to comply with all of the provisions of this policy or other policies 
of the city.  
 
Sick leave, vacation leave or leave of absence without pay will be granted for treatment and 
rehabilitation as in other illnesses subject to City policy and / or contract language governing use of leave. 
Insurance coverage for treatment will be provided to the extent of individual coverage. Confidentiality 
of information will be maintained as much as possible at all times.  
 
1.15.3.04  Compliance with Drug Free Workplace Act  
It is the policy of the City of Buckley to comply with the federal, Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988. Toward 
that end, the following provisions and procedures shall be in effect:  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
196



 

Page 4 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

a) In the event that an employee is convicted of any criminal drug statutory violation for a 
violation occurring in the workplace, the employee must notify his/her supervisor within 5 
working days. The supervisor must inform his/her department manager within 24 hours of the 
notification. The department manager will notify the City Administrator immediately. If the 
employee is directly involved in the performance of a contract for which the city receives federal 
funding, the contracting agency must be informed of the incident in writing within 10 days of the 
employer’s notice. A copy of the notification shall be sent to the City Administrator.  
The city is responsible to take appropriate disciplinary action and/or to require the employee to 
seek approved drug abuse treatment or rehabilitation within 30 days of receiving notice of the 
employee’s conviction.  
 
b) All employees shall receive a copy of this policy. All employees will be required to sign a 
statement acknowledging that they have received a copy of this policy.  
 
c) The city will make information and education on the prevention of alcohol and drug abuse 
available to its employees.  
 

1.15.3.05  Compliance with Federal Regulations Applicable to Commercial Drivers  
It is the policy of the City of Buckley to comply with the federal Department of Transportation regulations 
(Title 49, CFR subtitle B, chapter 382) which mandate prohibited behaviors and employer responsibilities 
for employee's holding safety sensitive positions which require the possession of a valid commercial 
driver's license.  
 
1.15.3.06 Definitions - For purposes of this section, the following terms shall be defined as following:  
 

Accident - Accident means an occurrence involving a commercial vehicle on a public road which 
results in a fatality or a citation under state or local law for a moving violation and (1) bodily injury 
to a person who, as a result of the injury, immediately receives medical treatment away from the 
scene of the accident; and/or (2) one or more motor vehicles incurring disabling damage requiring 
the vehicle to be transported away from the scene by a tow truck or other vehicle.  
 
Driver - This term includes all employees whose positions may involve driving a commercial vehicle 
and that require the possession of a Commercial Driver's License.  
 
Commercial Vehicle - A commercial vehicle is one that either: 1) has a gross vehicle weight of over 
26,000 pounds (including combined weight if towed unit weighs over 10,000 pounds); 2) is 
designed to transport 16 or more persons, including the driver; or 3) is used to transport hazardous 
materials.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
197



 

Page 5 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

Drugs - For the purposes of Section 7.06, in accordance with the applicable federal regulations, 
"drugs" refers to the following five substances: marijuana (THC), cocaine, opiates, phencyclidine 
(PCP), and amphetamines.  
 
Medical Review Officer (MRO) - The Medical Review Officer is the licensed physician responsible 
for receiving and interpreting laboratory results from the urine drug tests.  
 
Safety Sensitive Position - For purposes of this policy, these are positions associated with the driving 
of commercial vehicles.  
 
Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) - A Substance Abuse Professional is a licensed physician, or a 
licensed or certified psychologist, social worker, employee assistance professional, or addiction 
counselor (certified by the National Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors 
Certification Commission) with knowledge of and clinical experience in the diagnosis and treatment 
of alcohol and drug-related disorders. The SAP is responsible for evaluating employees with 
positive test results.  
 
1.15.3.07 Prohibited Behaviors. In addition to any other prohibitions on the use of alcohol 
or controlled substances established through city policy or by contract, the following behaviors by 
employees whose positions require the possession of a valid commercial driver's license are 
prohibited:  
 

a) Alcohol Concentration: Reporting to duty and performing safety-sensitive functions while 
having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater.  
 
b) Alcohol Possession: Unauthorized possession of alcohol while on duty or operating a 
commercial motor vehicle unless the alcohol is an insignificant ingredient in a medication that 
is either prescribed or a commonly recognized over-the-counter remedy and notice has been 
given to the employee's manager in advance.  
 
c) Alcohol Use Following an Accident: Use of alcohol within eight hours following an accident 
or before undergoing a post-accident alcohol test, whichever occurs first.  
 
d) Alcohol Use on Duty: Use of Alcohol while performing safety-sensitive functions. (This 
includes alcohol which may be in medications).  
 
e) Alcohol Use Prior to Duty: Performing safety sensitive functions within four hours after 
having used alcohol. An on-call employee who consumes alcohol within four hours of being 
called in must acknowledge the use of alcohol and may not report for duty.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
198



 

Page 6 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

f) Controlled Substance (Drug) Use: Reporting for duty or remaining on duty performing 
safety-sensitive functions after having used any controlled substance, except when the use is 
pursuant to the instructions of a physician who has advised the driver that the substance does 
not adversely affect the driver's ability to safely operate a commercial motor vehicle. The 
proper and lawful use of drugs is permitted provided their use does not interfere with the 
individual's ability to perform the essential functions of his/her job. Any employee taking 
prescribed medication that may impair his/her ability to work safely and productively must 
notify his/her manager prior to commencing to work. The manager, in consultation with the 
employee's physician, if necessary, will make the determination regarding the employee's 
qualifications to work. Information provided to the manager will be treated as confidential. 
Disclosure by the City will only be required by law or in the event of a proceeding initiated on 
behalf of the employee. Failure to notify the manager in advance of commencing to work will 
be cause for disciplinary action up to and including discharge.  
 
g) Positive Drug Test: Reporting for duty, remaining on duty, or performing safety sensitive 
functions after having tested positive for a controlled substance.  
h) Refusal to Submit to a Required Test: Refusing to submit to a post-accident, random, 
reasonable suspicion, or follow-up alcohol or controlled substance test as directed pursuant 
to this policy.  
 
i) Tampering with a Required Test: An employee may not tamper with, adulterate, alter, 
substitute or otherwise obstruct any testing process required under this policy.  
 

1.15.3.08  Mandatory Training for Commercial Drivers  
The City shall provide all affected employees with copies of this policy and any other information 
as required by the federal regulations.  
 
Each driver shall sign a receipt upon having been provided the above referenced information 
including a copy of this Plan and accompanying procedures for drug testing.  
 
Managers and supervisors designated to determine whether reasonable suspicion exists to require 
a commercial driver to undergo alcohol or drug testing will receive at least 60 minutes of training 
on alcohol and 60 additional minutes of training on substance abuse. The training will convey the 
physical, behavioral, speech, and performance indicators of probable alcohol misuse and use of 
controlled substances.  
 
1.15.3.09  Drug and Alcohol Testing Program for Commercial Drivers  
a) Pre-employment Drug Testing: All individuals who are covered by this policy must pass a drug 
test as a post-offer condition of employment.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
199



 

Page 7 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

b) Reasonable Suspicion Testing: Employees subject to this policy shall submit to a drug and\or 
alcohol test when the City of Buckley reasonably suspects that this policy (except the prohibitions 
against unauthorized possession, transfer or sale of alcohol) may have been or is presently being 
violated. A referral for testing will be based on contemporaneous, articulable observations. Such 
referrals will be made by supervisory personnel who have received training concerning the signs 
and symptoms of drug and alcohol use.  
 
Alcohol testing for reasonable suspicion may be conducted at any time during working hours. If 
removed from duty based on reasonable suspicion of alcohol use and an alcohol test is not 
administered within eight hours, the employee will not be allowed to perform or continue to 
perform covered functions until:  
 

1. an alcohol test is administered (normally within 2 hours of the determination of 
reasonable suspicion) and the driver's breath alcohol concentration measures less than 
0.02; or 
  
2. 24 hours have elapsed following the determination that there is reasonable suspicion 
to believe that the employee has violated this policy concerning the use of alcohol.  
 

c) Post-Accident Testing: Following an accident (as defined above) involving a commercial vehicle, 
the driver is required to submit to alcohol and drug tests when the driver receives a citation under 
state or local law for a moving traffic violation, or where a fatality occurs as a result of the 
accident. Testing should occur as soon as possible, but may not exceed eight hours after the 
accident for alcohol testing and 32 hours after the accident for drug testing.  
 
A driver who is subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available for such testing and 
may not take any action to interfere with testing or the results of testing. Drivers who do not 
comply with post-accident testing requirements will be considered to have refused to submit to 
testing and will be subject to sanctions for refusal to test as provided in this policy.  
 

While awaiting a post accident test, the driver will be in a paid status.  
 
d) Random Testing: Employees covered by this policy will be subject to random, unannounced 
alcohol and drug testing.  
 
e) Return to Duty Testing: Employees who have violated this policy, including those who have 
tested positive on a drug or alcohol test, and who under the discipline policy are allowed to 
return to work, must test negative prior to being released for duty. A return to duty test 
following alcohol misuse shall be less than an alcohol concentration of 0.02.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
200



 

Page 8 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

f) Follow-up Testing: An employee who is referred for assistance related to alcohol misuse 
and/or use of drugs is subject to unannounced follow-up testing for a period as directed by a 
Substance Abuse Professional. The number and frequency of follow-up testing will be based 
on the recommendation of the Substance Abuse Professional, but will not be less than six 
tests in the first 12 months following the employee's return to duty.  
 
g) Re-Tests: Employees who test positive for drugs may request a second test of the untested 
portion of the split sample within 72 hours of notification of a positive test result by the 
Medical Review Officer.  
 
h) Test Results: Test results will be expressed as positive or negative based on detection of 
levels of alcohol or controlled substances as established by federal Department of 
Transportation standards.  
 
i) Challenges to Test Results: An employee who wishes to challenge a positive drug test must 
do so within 72 hours notification of the positive result. The employee must notify the City's 
medical review officer that he/she wishes to challenge the test and must pay for the retest. 
The retest must be processed at a DHHS-NIDA-certified laboratory. If the MRO certifies that 
the second drug test is negative, an employee will be reimbursed for the cost incurred 
including any lost compensation.  
 

1.15.3.10  Refusal by a Commercial Driver to Submit to an Alcohol or Drug Test: Refusal to submit 
to a directed test is a prohibited behavior in section 1.15.3.07 which shall subject the employee to 
the consequences outlined in section 1.15.3.12. No employee shall refuse to submit to an alcohol 
or drug test as directed under this policy. A refusal to submit shall include:  
 

a) Failure to provide adequate breath for testing without a valid medical explanation after an 
employee has received notice of the requirement for breath testing in accordance with 
established procedures;  
 
b) Failure to provide adequate urine for controlled substances testing without a valid medical 
explanation after an employee has received notice of the requirement for urine testing in 
accordance with the procedures manual; and/or  
 
c) Engaging in conduct that obstructs the testing process.  
 

1.15.3.11 Securing Information from Previous Employers: If a person is to be hired into a position 
subject to this policy and during the previous two years has worked as a driver of a commercial 
vehicle, that person must authorize a request of all employers of the driver within the past two 
years of information on the following: a) positive alcohol or drug tests; or b) refusal to be tested.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
201



 

Page 9 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

 
This information must be obtained before the person is employed by the City of Buckley. However, 
if the information has not arrived by the anticipated start date, and if the person has passed the 
pre-employment drug test, the person may be hired and the requested information must be 
obtained from the previous employers within 14 calendar days of the date of hire. If the 
information has not been received within the 14 calendar days, the person will not be permitted 
to drive commercial vehicles until the information has arrived. If the information obtained from 
previous employer indicates either a positive test or that a refusal to be tested occurred within the 
past two years, that person will not be permitted to drive commercial vehicles unless subsequent 
information indicates that an evaluation by a Substance Abuse Professional was made and return 
to duty testing was administered.  
 
1.15.3.12 Consequences for Commercial Drivers of Engaging in Prohibited Behaviors and/or of 
Positive Drug or Alcohol Test Results: Employees found to have engaged in prohibited behavior as 
defined in Section 7.06.02 or to have tested positive for drugs shall be subject to discipline up to 
and including termination from employment.  
 
The following provisions apply to those employees who are not terminated for their policy 
violations:  
 

a) If an employee tests positive for drugs or has an alcohol test that indicates a blood alcohol 
level of .04 or greater from a random, reasonable suspicion or post-accident test, or engages 
in prohibited conduct as outlined in Section 7.06.02, the employee will be immediately 
removed from duties requiring the driving of a commercial vehicle. The employee will not be 
permitted to return to work unless he/she:  
 

1. has been evaluated by a qualified Substance Abuse Professional; and,  
2. if recommended by a Substance Abuse Professional, has properly followed any 
rehabilitation prescribed; and,  
 
3. has a verified negative result on a return-to-duty alcohol (<0.02) and/or drug test.  
 

Upon completion of a recommended rehabilitation program and successful return to work, 
an employee will be subject to follow-up random testing as recommended by the Substance 
Abuse Professional, with a minimum of six such unscheduled tests within the first twelve 
months of returning to duty.  
 
b) Employees with a breath alcohol concentration of at least 0.02 but less than 0.04 and who 
have not engaged in any other prohibited conduct, shall be removed from the duty requiring 
the driving of a commercial vehicle for at least 24 hours. The time away from work shall be 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
202



 

Page 10 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

charged to vacation, sick leave, or leave without pay at the employee's option, and will be 
considered an unscheduled absence.  
 

1.15.4 Procedures for Drug or Alcohol Testing of City Employees other than Commercial Drivers  
 

1.15.4.01 Supervisory Responsibility. If a supervisor has reasonable grounds to believe that an 
employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs when reporting for work or during the work 
shift, the supervisor must verify the employee’s condition and relieve the employee of his/her 
duties until the matter is resolved.  
 
1.15.4.02 Observation. If a supervisor observes an employee who seems to be under the influence 
of alcohol or drugs, he/she should, if practical, seek the opinion of at least one additional 
supervisor, the City Administrator or the department manager.  
 
For purposes of this policy, reasonable grounds to believe that an employee is impaired and/or 
under the influence of drugs or alcohol include a combination of various factors such as slurred 
speech, red eyes, dilated pupils, incoherence, unsteadiness on feet, smell of an alcoholic beverage 
or marijuana emanating from the employee’s body, inability to carry on a rational conversation, 
carelessness, erratic behavior, inability to perform the job, or other unexplained behavioral 
changes. The supervisor shall document these observations in writing and forward his/her report 
to the department manager within 24 hours of the incident. A copy of this document will be 
provided to the employee upon request.  
 
1.15.4.03 Referral for Testing. If the supervisor determines that reasonable grounds exist to 
require a drug test, the supervisor shall direct the employee to accompany the supervisor to a 
testing site designated by the City for a drug screening and blood alcohol test to determine fitness 
for duty. The department manager shall be notified before the supervisor and employee leave city 
premises for the drug testing site. The City Administrator shall be notified of the incident, in writing, 
within 48 hours.  
 
The employee should be informed that the tests will be conducted on city time, paid for by the city, 
and are part of his/her job responsibilities. The employee should be informed that refusal to take 
the test may result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. Additionally, an employee 
who refuses to take the test should be informed that he/she will be sent home without pay for at 
least the rest of the work day.  
 
Employees will be required to authorize release of test results to the City's designated test services 
provider and to the employer. Refusal to authorize release of test results to the city may result in 
disciplinary action up to and including dismissal. The test services provider will contact the City 
Administrator with the results.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
203



 

Page 11 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

The supervisor should accompany the employee back to the worksite pending the results. The 
supervisor shall notify his/her department manager immediately upon returning to the work site.  
Tests which are found to be positive will be verified by an additional test. The City's designated test 
services provider will ensure adequate chain-of-custody for sample collection and testing.  
 
1.15.4.04 Test Results. Employees who test positive shall be considered unfit for work and shall be 
relieved from duty that day. It is the responsibility of the City Administrator to notify the employee. 
The employee should not be allowed to drive to the hospital. The employee shall be advised not to 
drive home. Employees who comply with the testing procedures of this policy will be on paid leave 
on "City Business" until the status of the tests and the circumstances surrounding the impairment 
are determined.  
 
1.15.4.05 Discipline / Treatment. If tests determine that the employee is under the influence of 
alcohol or drugs on the job, the City Administrator shall contact the supervisor within 24 hours of 
test results notification. The City Administrator and/or the supervisor shall, within 48 hours of 
receiving the test results, contact the employee to provide the employee an opportunity to 
respond to the test results.  
 
Following the employee’s response opportunity, the City Administrator and the supervisor shall 
meet to discuss the appropriate level of disciplinary action for recommendation to the department 
manager. The degree of disciplinary action depends on the factual circumstances and the severity 
of the infraction.  
 
It is the responsibility of the City Administrator, in conjunction with the immediate supervisor, to 
evaluate the circumstances and facts thoroughly and objectively.  
 
Any disciplinary action shall be in accordance with provisions of the City Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Manual. If discipline is necessary, the discipline to be taken, shall be recommended by 
the department manager to the City Administrator. The City Administrator shall then act on the 
recommendation.  
 
1.15.4.06 Sale or Transfer of Drugs. A supervisor who observes an employee using alcohol or drugs; 
or an unauthorized employee selling, purchasing, transferring, or possessing alcohol or drugs while 
on the job should take prompt action. Observations about the employee’s behavior, as well as the 
discussions and contacts with him/her, should be documented as soon as practicable. The 
supervisor should report such observations to his/her own supervisor and appropriate disciplinary 
action should be taken in accordance with the procedures outlined in this policy.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
204



 

Page 12 of 12 
 

Subject: Substance Abuse 
 

In cases involving the unauthorized sale, purchase or transfer of illegal drugs or controlled 
substances at the workplace, the supervisor is required to contact the Buckley Police Department 
immediately.  
 
1.15.4.07 Confidentiality and Record Retention:  
All records related to drug and alcohol testing will be maintained in a secure location with 
controlled access. These records will be kept separate from records pertaining to all other 
employees.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
205



 

Page 1 of 4 
Subject: Absences – Weather Related 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.16 Absences – Weather Related 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.16.1 PURPOSE: The City of Buckley is a major employer and the City is responsible for providing many 

crucial services during inclement weather situations.  The city has a responsibility to its 
employees as well as the residents, when conditions become hazardous. This policy describes 
how the City will handle compensation and staffing in these situations where certain City 
functions have been closed. 

 
1.16.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
1.16.3 POLICY: Absences – Weather Related 
 

1.16.3.01 Unless otherwise directed by the Mayor or City Administrator or their designee, 
the City is open for business to deliver municipal services during all scheduled 
hours of operations. Employees, unless otherwise directed or authorized, are 
expected to be at work as scheduled, regardless of weather conditions or other 
emergency situations. 

 
1.16.3.02 All employees will be designated by their Director as “emergency activated” or 

“emergency non-activated” to ensure municipal services and operations are 
delivered and that employee attendance and pay are in accordance with all 
policies and procedures. 

 
1.16.3.03 Each department Director has the responsibility to designate employees as 

“emergency activated” or “emergency non-activated.” This designation is subject 
to change at any time. 

 
1.16.3.04 The Mayor, City Administrator or designee retains authority to determine when 

inclement weather conditions warrant suspension of “emergency non-essential” 
services, essentially, the closure of City facilities. 

 
1.16.4 DEFINITIONS 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
206



 

Page 2 of 4 
Subject: Absences – Weather Related 

1.16.4.01 “Emergency Activated”: All employees are considered emergency workers. 
However, depending on the type and level of event, not all employees may be 
activated to assist with an emergency situation or to supply services deemed 
essential by the Mayor. Those employees that are not identified by their 
department Director, or designee, as “activated” are considered “non-activated” 
for the purpose of this policy. 

 
1.16.4.02 “Emergency Essential”: City services during inclement weather include, but may 

not be limited to, Police, Fire, Emergency Management (includes staff designated 
to support EOC operations), Administration (communications, facilities), portions 
of Parks & Recreation, and Public Works.  Any Director may designate certain 
services within their departments as “emergency essential services” in any event. 

 
1.16.4.03 “Emergency Non-essential”: City services for the purpose of this policy include all 

other City services with the exception of those departments/services listed in 
paragraph 1.16.4.02. 

 
1.16.4.04 “Suspension of Services”: City services may be limited, or determined to be non-

essential, on a day-to-day basis and may result in reduced hours of service short 
of a normally scheduled day. 

 
1.16.4.05 “Inclement Weather Situation”: A situation in which snow, ice, or other conditions 

present a significant hazard to employees and customers in getting to, and from, 
City facilities, as determined by the Mayor, or designee. 

 
1.16.5 PROCEDURE 
 
 Pay When No Suspension of Services Has Been Declared 
 
 1.16.5.01 If an employee is late or does not report to work due to inclement weather 

conditions preventing them from reaching their regular work location as 
scheduled, the employee must use accrued paid leave. Illness leave may 
not be used for absences due to inclement weather. If no accrued paid 
leave is available to the employee, and the employee is late or does not 
report due to inclement weather conditions preventing them from 
reaching their regular work location as scheduled, time off without pay will 
be allowed, after all accrued paid leave is exhausted. 

 
 1.16.5.02 Time off under this section must be requested and approved through the 

approval process determined by the department director, or designee. 
Requests will be honored provided the circumstances reasonably justify 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
207



 

Page 3 of 4 
Subject: Absences – Weather Related 

the employee’s concern and the employee’s presence is not required for 
emergency essential services. 

 
 Pay During Suspension of Services 
 
  1.16.5.03 Emergency Activated Personnel: 
 

a. Personnel are expected to remain and/or report to work at all times that they 
are officially scheduled to work or as directed and may be required to adjust 
their shifts or work longer hours than normally scheduled. 
 

b. Department Directors deeming it necessary to require certain employees to 
work during any hours of an official closing shall be responsible for establishing 
procedures to ensure notification to those employees that they are to report 
to work. 

 
c. Employees designated as “emergency activated” will be required to use 

accrued paid leave for absences on days of the closure. Illness leave may not 
be used for absences due to inclement weather. Time off under this section 
must be requested and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor or 
the person the employee would normally contact for time off.  

 

  1.16.5.03 Emergency Non-Activated Personnel 
 

a. When the determination is made to close a facility or to allow early release 
of employees by the Mayor, or designee, on-duty, regular, full-time and 
regular, part-time employees will be paid for the remainder of their 
scheduled shift and paid leave need not be charged. Employees with pre-
approved time off that begins prior to the closure/early release will be 
required to use their pre-approved leave time. 

 
b. If the closure is announced in advance of the work day and employees do 

not report on that basis, regular, full-time and regular, part-time employees 
will remain in paid status for up to three (3) days, as determined by the 
Mayor, and as the inclement weather conditions persist. The Mayor may 
authorize an extension of the closure beyond three (3) days, depending on 
circumstances.  If the Mayor does not authorize a closure extension after 
three (3) days, and if the inclement weather conditions prevent employees 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
208



 

Page 4 of 4 
Subject: Absences – Weather Related 

from reaching their regular work location as scheduled, employees must 
use accrued paid leave in compliance with section 6.1 above. Illness leave 
may not be used for absences due to inclement weather. However, 
employees with planned or pre-approved leave on these days will be 
required to use their planned, pre-approved leave time. 

 
c. Non-benefited/temporary/seasonal employees not working will not be 

paid during a closure. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
209



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Resource Conservation Guidelines  

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 1: GENERAL 

 
SUBJECT: 1.17 Resource Conservation Guidelines 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
1.17.1 Purpose: The purpose of this policy is to establish general guidelines for the efficient use of 
energy, water, and material resources for the purposes of economical utility and environmental 
conservation. 
 
1.17.2 Organizations Affected: These policies shall guide all departments of the City.   
 
1.17.3 Responsibilities: It is the responsibility of department managers and other supervisory 
employees to enforce this policy. 
 
1.17.4 Statements of Policy and Procedure 
 
It is the policy of the City of Buckley to build and operate city facilities in the most cost-effective manner 
possible, achieving a balance between capital, energy, and maintenance costs.  A lifecycle cost analysis 
may be used to inform this decision, enumerating both economic and environmental factors.   

 
1.17.4.01 “Building Temperatures” - Buildings shall be operated to provide occupant comfort 
and healthy working conditions at seasonally appropriate temperatures, as follow: 
 

a)   Offices and public spaces shall, whenever possible, be heated to 68 degrees, and where 
applicable, cooled to 76 degrees.  Sufficient ventilation air should be provided to ensure a 
carbon dioxide concentration of between 800 and 1200 ppm.  When outside temperatures 
are between 68 and 76 degrees, outside air economizer usage should be maximized, including 
manual opening of windows, with chillers and furnaces locked out.  During unoccupied 
periods, heating shall, whenever possible, be set back to 55 degrees, and cooling to 80 
degrees. 
 
b)  Workshops and exercise rooms may be heated to a maximum of 65 degrees and cooled 
to a maximum of 78 degrees. 
 
c)  Storage and Mechanical Spaces receive freeze protection and ventilation only.   

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
210



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Resource Conservation Guidelines  

1.17.4.02 “Operating Schedules” –  
a) HVAC should operate for the minimum amount of time required to bring a space to the 
approved conditions, to be set manually or with automated optimal start, and shutdown is 
to occur 30 minutes prior to staff departure, or at a time calculated according to the building’s 
thermal curve. 
 
b) All windows and doors should be closed when the HVAC is turned on, as open windows 
can have the opposite of the intended effect if they set up a draft over a thermostat, causing 
the building to fight the outdoors. 
 
c) All systems should go into unoccupied mode for weekends and holidays, with the 
exception of scheduled events. 
 
d) Unscheduled use of facilities shall be at unoccupied temperature. 
 
e) If a facility rental requires conditions beyond those specified in this policy, additional 
costs shall be assessed.   
 
f) Building lighting in common areas shall be shut down during unoccupied times. 
 
g) Staff are responsible for turning off the lights in their work areas any time the space is to 
be unoccupied for five minutes or more.  The staff is also responsible for closing all window 
coverings each evening. 
 
h) Building exterior and lot lighting should be started 15 minutes before the first scheduled 
use each day, shut down at dawn, restarted at dusk, and shut down 15 minutes after the last 
scheduled use.  Exceptions for security reasons may be approved by the City Administrator. 

 
1.17.4.03 “Building Alterations and Decorations” - Alterations or renovations to the building 
shall not be performed without prior approval from the City Administrator and Department 
Manager.  Any alterations that impact energy usage shall evaluate and report on that impact and 
should be designed to improve energy efficiency. Any holiday lighting or temporary displays 
should be operated on a schedule rather than around the clock, and displays should be designed 
with efficiency in mind.   
 
1.17.4.04 “Building Maintenance” - Maintenance shall be performed periodically according to a 
schedule designed for optimal equipment performance, efficiency, and service life.  Maintenance 
staff should report on opportunities to improve facility efficiency.   
 
1.17.4.05 “Facility Rentals” - Facility rental fees should include a calculated cost of providing 
utilities and require that users adhere to the city’s conservation guidelines.  If additional utility 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
211



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Resource Conservation Guidelines  

usage is required by the nature of the rental, additional fees shall be imposed. 
 
1.17.5 Materials Use and Disposal. 

A. Recycled and environmentally preferable materials shall be considered in procurement 
decisions, with preference given if price and performance are equal or better. 
 
B. Staff should communicate electronically whenever possible to reduce paper use. 
 
C. All city facilities and functions shall be provided with appropriate recycling options. 

 
1.17.6 Water and Sewer Conservation 

 
A. Irrigation shall only be provided to entry landscaping and summer play fields, and only as 
required to maintain plant viability, not maximal growth.  Landscaping around city facilities shall 
be designed for drought-tolerance.   
 
B. City facilities and operations shall employ water-smart practices to lead by example.  Active 
water features should be discouraged in city landscapes, and where they exist currently, non-
potable water should be considered for use in fountains, waterfalls, and ponds.   

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
212



 

Page 1 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.1 Leave and Extended Time Off 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.1.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy identifying leave and extended time off. 
 
2.1.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All non-represented departments/divisions. 
 
2.1.3 REFERENCES: 
 
2.1.4 POLICY: Leave and Extended Time Off. 
 
2.1.5 LEAVE WITHOUT PAY 
Upon written request of the employee, the City Administrator may grant a regular employee a leave of 
absence without pay, not to exceed one year. Approval of such leave shall be in writing and signed by 
the City Administrator. No vacation or sick leave benefits or any other fringe benefits shall accrue while 
an employee is on leave of absence without pay. Upon expiration of a regularly approved leave without 
pay, the employee shall be reinstated in the position held at the time the leave was granted or to another 
equivalent position. Unless specified otherwise in a CBA or Civil Service Rules. 
 
2.1.6 ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 
On a case-by-case basis, the City in its discretion may place an employee on administrative leave with 
pay for an indefinite period, interests of the City, during the course of an investigation or other 
administrative proceeding or when the City Administrator or Mayor determines it to be in the best 
interests of the City.  The length of an administrative leave is at the City Administrator, Mayor or 
designee’s discretion. The City may require the employee to be available during their regular work shift 
while on administrative leave. 
 
2.1.7 MEDICAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
Sick leave may be used by employees who are unable to perform their job duties due to illness or 
temporary disability.  Medical leave may also be used for a period of actual disability caused or 
contributed to by pregnancy, miscarriage, abortion, childbirth, or recovery therefrom. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
213



 

Page 2 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

In the event sick leave is not accrued by the employee, or there is not sufficient accumulated sick leave, 
use of vacation or leave without pay will be allowed for the actual period of illness or temporary 
disability. 
 
A certificate from a qualified health care provider may be required to provide certification of illness or 
temporary disability and may be required to provide written release to return to work. 
An employee will be returned to the same position, or similar position of the same pay, if leave has been 
taken only for the actual period of illness or disability relating to pregnancy or childbirth.  The total 
medical leave period granted under this policy may not exceed 180 calendar days. 
 
2.1.8 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE (FMLA) 
Eligibility for leave: any City employee who has been employed for at least twelve (12) months by the 
City and has worked for at least 1250 hours during the previous twelve (12) months, may receive up to 
twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave in a twelve (12) month period to care for: 
 
(a) A newborn child, newly adopted child, newly placed foster child. 
(b) A spouse, child, or parent with a serious health condition; or 
(c) A personal, serious health condition that leaves the employee unable to perform the essential 
functions of his/her job. 
 
If both spouses are City employees, the City reserves the right to restrict family and medical leave to a 
total of up to twelve (12) work weeks of unpaid leave in a twelve (12) month period for the birth or 
adoption of a child or to care for a parent with a serious health condition.  The city may opt to limit the 
use of family and medical leave to one spouse at a time. 
 
Part-time, regular status employees shall receive family leave on a pro rata basis.  If the number of 
working hours varies, the average hours over the course of the past 12 months prior to the family medical 
leave period shall be utilized as the basis for calculating the employee’s normal work week. 
 
Family and medical leave taken to care for a newborn or newly adopted child must be completed within 
twelve (12) months of the child’s birth or placement for adoption. This leave is in addition to maternity 
disability leave as provided above, which is allowed for the actual period of the disability associated with 
pregnancy or childbirth. 
 
2.1.9 DEFINITIONS FOR PURPOSES OF THE FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE POLICY 
(a) “Twelve Month Period” means a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the date taken 

and continuous with each additional leave day taken. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
214



 

Page 3 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

(b) “Child” means a child under 18 years of age or older who is incapable of self-care because of a mental 
or physical disability. An employee’s “child” is one for whom the employee has actual day to day 
responsibility for care and includes a biological, adopted, foster, or stepchild. 

 
(c) “Serious Health Condition” means an illness, injury impairment, or physical or mental condition that 

involves either: 1) inpatient care; or 2) any period of incapacity requiring an absence from work for 
more than five calendar days AND that involves continuing treatment by a health care provider; or 
3) continuing treatment by a health care provider for a chronic or long-term health condition which, 
if left untreated, would likely result in a period of incapacity of more than five calendar days; or 4) 
prenatal care by a health care provider.  

 
In determining whether a serious health condition exists, the term “continuing treatment” shall 
mean either: 1) two or more visits to a health care provider; or 2) two or more treatments by a 
health care practitioner or referral from, or under the direction of, a health care provider; or 3)  a 
single visit to a health care provider that results in a regimen of continuing treatment; or 4) in the 
case of serious, long-term or chronic condition or disability that cannot be cured, being under the 
continuing supervision of, but not necessarily being actively treated by, a health care provider. 

 
(d) “Medically Necessary” means there must be a medical need for the leave and that the leave can be 

best accomplished through an intermittent or reduced leave schedule. 
 
2.1.10 PROCEDURES 
Notice Requirement: An employee must request the use of family and medical leave for the birth, 
placement or adoption of a child by submitting a written statement of the specific reasons for the leave 
at least thirty (30) days prior to the anticipated date of delivery, placement or adoption. If a scheduled 
medical treatment for the employee or a spouse, child or parent of the employee is the basis for the 
request, the employee must, if practicable, provide thirty (30) days written notice. It is the responsibility 
of the employee who has a planned medical treatment to make a reasonable effort to schedule 
treatment so as not to unduly disrupt City operations. The notice must be presented to the department 
head, who will review and forward the written statement to the City Administrator. 
 
2.1.11 WASHINGTON PAID FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE 
Paid Family and Medical Leave Overview: Paid Family and Medical Leave, RCW 50A.04 is a mandatory 
statewide insurance program that will provide almost every Washington employee with paid time off to 
give or receive care. If you qualify, this program will allow you to take up to 12 weeks, as needed, if you: 

· Welcome a child into your family (through birth, adoption or foster placement. 
· Experience a serious illness or injury. 
· Need to care for a seriously ill or injured relative. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
215



 

Page 4 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

· Need time to prepare for a family member’s pre- and post-deployment activities, as well as time 
for childcare issues related to a family member’s military deployment. 

If you face multiple events in a year, you might be eligible to receive up to 16 weeks, and up to 18 weeks 
if you experience a serious health condition during pregnancy that results in incapacity. 
 
Payment of Premiums: The program is funded by premiums paid by both employees and employers. It 
will be administered by the Employment Security Department (ESD). 
 
Employers can either pay the full premium or withhold a portion of the premium from their employees.  
The City of Buckley will calculate and withhold premiums from your paycheck and send both your share 
and the City’s portion to ESD on a quarterly basis. 
 
2.1.12 Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave Coordinated with Other Leaves: Employees who have 
accrued vacation, sick, or other paid time off may choose to take such leave or receive paid family and 
medical leave benefits, as provided for in RCW 50A.04.020. 
 
An employee receiving Washington Paid Family and Medical Leave payments during a family and/or 
medical leave or related leave shall use only the number of leave hours that, together with the 
Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave benefits payments, represents the employee’s normal pay for 
the same period. Payroll will calculate use of paid leave hours on a retroactive basis back to the first day 
in which the employee was off work. In no event shall the accumulation of leave and Washington Paid 
Family Medical Leave income result in an employee receiving income in excess of 100% of their regular 
straight-time income for the same period. 
 
If the employee elects to use paid leave to supplement the employee’s earnings, the employee must 
notify Payroll at the start of their Washington Paid Family & Medical Leave. Once the employee elects to 
use paid leave to supplement their earnings, the employee may not reverse the election.  
 
2.1.13 Taking Leave. Employees who have worked 180 days for the City of Buckley are able to apply to 
take paid medical leave or paid family leave.   
 
While on leave, you are entitled to partial wage replacement.  That means you will receive a portion of 
your average weekly pay.  You will be paid by the Employment Security Department rather than your 
employer. 
2.1.14 Leave Protection: Employee who return from leave under this law will be restored to a same or 
equivalent job if they work for an employer with 50 or more employees and have worked for the City for 
at least 180 days. 
 
You can keep your health insurance while on leave. If you contribute to the cost of your health insurance, 
you must continue to pay your portion of the premium cost while on leave. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
216



 

Page 5 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

Your employer is prohibited from discriminating against or retaliating against you for requesting or 
taking paid leave. 
 
2.1.15 INTERMITTENT OR REDUCED WORK SCHEDULE LEAVE 
In certain circumstances, eligible employees may take FMLA intermittently or by reducing their work 
schedule. If the FMLA is due to the employee’s own serious health condition or to care for a family 
member, the employee may take the leave intermittently or on a reduced work schedule if it is medically 
necessary. Eligible employees may also take FMLA leave on an intermittent or reduced schedule basis, 
when necessary, because of a qualifying exigency arising from a family member’s military service. If 
FMLA leave is to care for a child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care, the employees may 
take their FMLA leave intermittently or on a reduced work schedule only with the City’s permission. 
Where intermittent leave or reduced schedule leave is needed for planned medical treatment, an 
employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule the treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the City’s 
operations. Where an employee needs intermittent or reduced schedule leave based on planned 
medical treatment, the City may transfer the employee to an alternative position with equivalent pay 
and benefits that can better accommodate such recurring leave. 
 
2.1.16 ADDITIONAL LEAVE FOR PREGNANT EMPLOYEES 
Employees are entitled to unpaid leave for the period of time that the female employee is physically 
disabled due to pregnancy and/or childbirth. The period of temporary disability normally lasts six weeks 
if pregnancy and childbirth are without complications. With complications, such as required bed rest 
before childbirth, the period of temporary disability can last longer. 
 
If eligible for FMLA, the pregnancy leave required runs concurrently (at the same time) with the FMLA 
and does not extend the 12 weeks of leave allowed under federal law. 
 
2.1.17 ADDITIONAL LEAVE FOR CAREGIVERS OF MILITARY PERSONNEL 
Per FMLA, eligible employees may receive up to 26 weeks of unpaid leave in a 12-month period to care 
for an injured military service personnel. 
 

· Who is the employee’s spouse, parent, child or next of kin 
· Who is a current member of the armed forces, including National Guard and Reserves; and 
· Who has a serious injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on active duty that may render the 

service member medically unfit to perform his or her duties for which the service member is undergoing 
medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, or is in outpatient status, or is on the temporary disability 
retired list. 
 
For purposes of this kind of leave, the 12-month period begins with the first day the employee takes 
leave. The combined total of leave for all purposes described in this policy may not exceed 26 weeks in 
the applicable year.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
217



 

Page 6 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

2.1.18 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
In the event of death in the immediate family, or aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, father-in-law, mother-in-
law, son-in-law or daughter-in-law, of an employee, up to five (5) days paid leave may be approved by 
the department manager, for an employee to attend to family matters and the funeral. An additional 
two (2) days leave for extended travel in conjunction with family bereavement leave if extended travel 
is required. This request must be approved by the City Administrator and will be charged to: a) sick leave, 
if accrued; or in its absence, b) vacation leave if accrued; otherwise, c) leave without pay.  
An employee requesting bereavement leave under section 6.12.01 may be required to substantiate the 
request by providing documentation or verification to the City upon request.  
 
Family bereavement leave shall be non-accumulative and only available within 15 days of the 
occurrence. 
 
 
2.1.19 MILITARY LEAVE 
A regular status employee who is a member of the Washington National Guard or a federal military unit 
is entitled to leave from his or her duties for up to fifteen (15) workdays each calendar year (using an 
October 1 to September 30 year) for official military duty in accordance with RCW 38.40.060. "Day", for 
purposes of this section, shall be defined as a twenty-four hour period. Such leaves are in addition to 
any other leave or vacation benefits. During the fifteen (15) workday period of military duty, the 
employee shall continue to receive his or her normal rate of pay. 
 
An employee who is called to or volunteers for service with the armed forces of the United States or the 
Washington National Guard, may be entitled to reinstatement in his or her position upon completion of 
service, pursuant to state and federal laws. 
 
An employee promoted or hired to fill a vacancy created by a person on military leave is appointed to 
the position subject to the return of the absent employee. Upon such return, a promoted employee is 
restored to his or her original position or an equivalent position subject to the provisions of state and 
federal law. 
 
2.1.20 JURY DUTY 
A regular status employee summoned for jury duty is granted leave for such duty with city payment of 
the difference between his normal city salary and compensation received for jury duty; provided that 
the employee shall reimburse the City the amount of fees received from such excused duty immediately 
upon receipt of said fees, exclusive of travel allowance.  The employee's department manager is to be 
informed immediately by the employee upon receipt of a summons for jury duty. 
 
An employee called for jury duty who is temporarily excused from attendance at court must report to 
his/her place of work at least one-half of his/her normal work day, in order to be eligible for payment of 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
218



 

Page 7 of 7 
Subject: Leave & Extended Time Off 

regular wages under this section. The employee must furnish a written statement from the appropriate 
public official showing the date and time served and the amount of jury duty pay received. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
219



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Wellness 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.2 Wellness 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.2.1 PURPOSE: To create an environment that supports healthy lifestyles and offers opportunities for 

employees to optimize their health and well-being. This policy is established as a means to 
provide information and activities to City employees to encourage health and safety in the work 
environment. 

 
2.2.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees. 
 
2.2.3 Mission Statement. The mission of the City of Buckley Wellness Program is to increase the overall 
wellbeing of each employee by sharing tools that create harmony between their physical, mental and 
relational health, thus reducing the cost of health care. 
 
2.2.4  Goals. Support wellness in the workplace by creating a program that meets the needs and interests 
of the employees of the City of Buckley. Design and implement a Wellness Program that meets the AWC’s 
Well-City Standards. 
 
2.2.5   Voluntary Participation. Employee participation in the programs and activities of the Wellness 
Committee is voluntary. 
 
2.2.6  Wellness Program Committee.  
 

2.2.6.01  Membership: The Wellness Committee is made up of at least one member representing 
each department, one of which shall be the Committee’s Chairperson. Membership on this 
Committee is voluntary. Members of each department shall be appointed by the Department 
Head. 

 
2.2.6.02 Departments: Fire, Police, Public Works, Administration & Finance, Recreation & 
Community Services. 

 
 2.2.6.03 Duties: The duties of the Committee members are to: 

a) Provide enthusiastic support of the purposes and goal of the Wellness Committee. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
220



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Wellness 
 

b) Act as a liaison between the Wellness Committee and the employees to represent the 
interests, needs, and opinions of the employees. 
c) Help plan, implement, and promote Wellness programs. 
d) Provide peer support and advocacy to boost wellness program participation. 
e) Prepare an annual budget for program support. 
f) Share responsibilities to lessen the workload impact on the Chairperson. 
g) Perform evaluation of ongoing programs and activities. 
h) Inform another attending member if they cannot attend a meeting. 
i) Assist (as required) other members in the execution of their Wellness events. 
j) Represent your department and educate them of the various Wellness activities. 
k) Fully support all agreed upon decisions by the Committee. 
l) Attend conferences and retreats established by AWC as operations permit. 
m) Assist the Chairperson in grant preparation. The duties of the Chairperson include: 

i. Set the time and place of meetings. 
ii. Communicate with all members of the Committee to coordinate meeting dates 

and times. 
iii. Prepare an agenda in advance of the meeting and distribute copies to other 

members. 
iv. Manage the agenda and discussion of the meeting. 
v. Apply for, obtain, and manage annual grant funding requirements. 

vi. Manage the budget and financial program requirements. 
vii. Attend conferences and retreats established by AWC. 

 
2.2.6.04   General Committee Requirements: 

a) All meetings will start and end on time. 
b) All Committee members are equal participants and have equal right and responsibility to 
voice opinions and ideas and share in the success in this program. 
c) The Wellness Committee shall meet monthly during the regular business hours. 
d) Members of the Wellness Committee will serve an indefinite term. 
e) If a member has more than four (4) unexcused absences, the Committee may vote to 
remove that member from the Committee. 
f) Confidentiality: Confidentiality is important in all health education activities. Because the 
Wellness Committee may offer programs about potentially sensitive issues, the transactions 
and interaction regarding personal and medical information that take place in the wellness 
programs will be confidential and will be respected as such. Each Committee member shall 
sign a Confidentiality Agreement. 

 
2.2.7   Program Budget. 

a) Apply for the available AWC grants for Wellness programs. 
b) Include the required line item allocations as designated by AWC for the wellness program in 

the annual budget. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
221



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Wellness 
 

c) Solicit community organizations for other needed resources. 
 
2.2.8   Program Activities. 

a) Behavior change programs such as nutritional information, stress reduction, smoking 
cessation and weight management. 

b) Motivational programs such as interdepartmental and employee group challenges, healthful 
eating campaigns, exercise and stress reduction programs. 

c) Information and awareness programs such as flyers, paycheck stuffers, bulletin boards, 
brown bag lunch sessions, wellness seminars, workshops, and classes. 

d) Bi-annual AWC Healthcheck Plus health and fitness testing program. 
e) To explore opportunities to develop and institute additional wellness incentives and policies 

that contributes to the health and well-being of employees and their family members.  
 
2.2.9   Program Involvement.  

a) The City Administrator will provide staff time to the members of the Wellness Committee to 
conduct its activities. 

b) The City Administrator will allow employees to have release time for Wellness activities and 
programs as the normal work demands are appropriately met.  

c) Action Groups composed of volunteers from the workforce will be used to help implement 
specific wellness program activities. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
222



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Health Benefits 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.3 Health Benefits 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.3.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy identifying benefits for employees. 
 
2.3.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.3.3  Position Designation  

All budgeted positions are designated as either full-time or part-time. Employees in part-time 
positions that work less than a 20-hour work week are not entitled to benefits, unless otherwise 
specified in the letter of appointment, employment contract or bargaining agreement, and 
approved by the Mayor.  
 
Those employees who are not assigned to a temporary or probationary status and who are 
scheduled to work 20 hours or more, but less than 40 hours per week are eligible for the City’s 
benefit packages on a pro rata basis, subject to the specific terms, conditions, and limitations of 
each benefit package.  
 
Those employees who are assigned to full-time positions and who are scheduled to work 40 hours 
or more per week are eligible for the City’s benefit packages, subject to the specific terms, 
conditions, and limitations of each benefit package. 

 
2.3.4 POLICY: Health Benefits 

The City will offer to full-time status and regular part-time status employees and their eligible 
dependents, working at least thirty (30) hours per week, unless otherwise specified in bargaining 
unit agreements, insurance plans for medical, hospital, vision and dental benefits, to be used at 
the option of the employee, subject to the carrier’s underwriting rules. Unless otherwise 
specified in bargaining unit agreements, part-time status employees who are scheduled to work 
less than 30 hours per week are eligible for the City’s insurance plans for medical, hospital, vision 
and dental benefits on a self-pay basis. 

 
 The City may offer healthcare coverage to certain temporary and/or seasonal employees and 

their dependents on a self-pay basis. In order for a temporary employee to be eligible for this 
benefit on a self-pay basis, the employee must be appointed to a temporary position that is 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
223



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Health Benefits 

intended to continue for at least six (6) months and be eligible subject to the carrier’s 
underwriting rules. 

 
 Employees shall contribute 10% of the cost of the employee(s) premium through payroll 

withdrawal to maintain current levels of healthcare coverage. 
 
 Employees with dependent(s) that have elected to enroll their dependents under the City’s 

sponsored healthcare coverage (i.e. spouses or children) shall contribute 12.5% of the cost of the 
employee(s) dependents premium through payroll withdrawal to maintain current levels of 
healthcare coverage for their dependents.  All insurance premiums are subject to applicable 
payroll taxes as required by the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
 The City will not provide duplication of healthcare coverage to an employee who is married to 

another employee of the City. One spouse or state registered domestic partner may be named 
as the policy holder and the other as a covered spouse or state registered domestic partner; OR 
each may be a policy holder, but in that case neither may be listed as a covered spouse or state 
registered domestic partner. Their children may be listed as covered dependents on one policy 
or the other, but not on both. In this circumstance, primary coverage of the dependent children 
may be dictated by the insurance under State statute. 

 
2.3.5 Newly Hired Employees 
 Newly hired benefit eligible employees and their dependents will be eligible for benefits on the 

1st day of the month following their hire date and subject to enrollment and processing by the 
carrier. 

 
2.3.6 COBRA Coverage 
 In compliance with COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act), the City offers 

continuing health care coverage on a self-pay basis to employees and their dependents, except 
for employees covered under the Police Officer’s Guild CBA, following termination (for reasons 
other than gross misconduct) unpaid leave of absence, reduction in hours, retirement or death. 
These health benefits will be identical to the coverage offered to regular employees.  For 
terminated employees or employees whose hours are reduced below that of a regular employee, 
the coverage may last up to eighteen (18) months or until they become eligible for other health 
insurance coverage, whichever is earlier. 

 
 Employees eligible for the City’s ERIP under Section 2.11 may be eligible for enhanced benefits. 
 

a) Employees covered under AWC Healthfirst.  In the event of the employee’s retirement, 
divorce, separation or death, the coverage may last up to thirty-six (36) months for the 
employee and/or qualified beneficiary; if provided, identical health benefit coverage 
(medical, dental and vision) shall only be provided for initial eighteen (18) months of 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
224



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Health Benefits 

COBRA at which time the coverage shall convert to a retiree with no Medicare 
coverage for any remaining “eligible” period up to the full thirty-six (36) months. The 
second tier coverage for the periods beyond 18 months shall provide reduced benefit 
AWC Retiree medical coverage “only” with no dental or vision. The full policy monthly 
premium plus a two percent (2%) administration fee will be paid by the employee or 
the beneficiary to the City or designated benefit administrator. 

 
b) Non-Police Guild CBA Employee’s covered under LEOFF Trust. In the event of the 

employee’s retirement, divorce, separation or death, the coverage may last up to 
thirty-six (36) months for the employee and/or qualified beneficiary; if provided, 
identical health benefit coverage (medical, dental and vision) shall only be provided 
for the initial eighteen (18) months of COBRA. Eligible coverage periods beyond 18 
months up to the full thirty-six (36) months shall provide continued medical coverage 
that includes LEOFF Trust vision benefits, but no dental benefit. The full policy monthly 
premium plus a two percent (2%) administration fee will be paid by the employee or 
the beneficiary to the City or designated benefit administrator. 

 
c) The employee or beneficiary may waive all rights to continuation coverage according 

to notification procedures and time limits outlined in a continuation coverage 
“Notification of Rights” letter. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
225



 

Page 1 of 5 
Subject: Flexible Work Scheduling Program  
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.4 Flexible Work Scheduling Program 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.4.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy and procedures for teleworking, when appropriate, to attract and 

retain a skilled, diverse, dedicated workforce, reduce costs and commute trips, and improve 
productivity among employees while meeting the needs of the City and its customers. 
 

2.4.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.4.3 POLICY: The City of Buckley has approved the use of flex time and compressed work week 

schedules when it benefits both the City and its employees.  The Flexible Work Schedule Program 
can help the City meet its goals for sustainability and reducing commute trips within the region, 
as well as to expand its hours of operation.  Employees gain greater flexibility in balancing their 
work and personal lives, and the extra time off may help to increase morale and productivity. 

 
The Mayor and/or City Administrator may administer the Flexible Work Schedule Program on a 
case-by-case basis to ensure the efficient use of resources to provide effective, quality service to 
our citizens and other internal work groups. Changes in workload, seasonal work changes, 
staffing, funding, legal mandates, peak vacation times, or any other reason that the City deems 
necessary, in its sole discretion, may cause the City or a department to modify, temporarily 
suspend, or cancel a flexible work schedule. Some positions are not suited for flexible work hours 
and the Mayor and/or City Administrator will make that determination for each position. 

 
Employees must complete an agreement to apply for a flexible work schedule. Agreements must 
be submitted to the Department Director for approval first and then will be submitted to the 
Mayor and/or City Administrator and will be kept on file in Human Resources. An approved 
flexible work schedule will remain in effect until the employee submits for a different flexible 
work schedule, or the flexible work schedule approval period expires. Occasional work schedule 
changes due to vacation, illnesses, doctor visits, etc., may be accommodated without completing 
a new agreement. The effectiveness of the flexible work schedule will generally be evaluated at 
least once annually as part of the employee’s performance review. 

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
226



 

Page 2 of 5 
Subject: Flexible Work Scheduling Program  
 

2.4.4 Telework 
The City of Buckley is a government organization and exists to serve the public. With advances in 
technology, there may be greater opportunities for effectively serving the public through 
alternative work modes such as teleworking. The City recognizes that a telework arrangement 
may be a viable, mutually beneficial option when both the employee and the job are suited to 
such an arrangement.  Teleworking may also have a beneficial effect in reducing commute traffic.  
On a case-by-case basis, the City of Buckley will consider employee requests to work from home 
using the criteria set forth in this policy. The City may also request that an employee telework. 

 
 Teleworking is not an entitlement, it is not a benefit, and it in no way changes the terms and 

conditions of employment with the City of Buckley. The City reserves the right to terminate a 
telework arrangement at any time. Unless exigent circumstances exist, reasonable efforts will be 
made to provide fourteen (14) calendar days advance notice of the termination of the telework 
agreement to accommodate commuting and other issues that may arise from the termination of 
the telework arrangement. 

 
 Eligibility 
 When evaluating a request to work remotely, the City will consider the following: 

· Nature of employee’s position and extent to which duties can be performed effectively 
while working remotely. 

· Operational needs, including the impact of the arrangement on other staff members. 
· Employee’s ability to work independently. 
· Equipment needs. 
· Home workspace conditions, including those affecting safety and security. 
· Telework location. 
· Other factors relevant to a particular situation. 

 
Any approval of a telework arrangement will be conditioned on the employee signing a Telework 
Agreement addressing the terms of the arrangement. A template agreement is available from 
Human Resources and may be modified to address the terms of the approved arrangement. 

 
 Equipment, Supplies, and Workspace 

The City of Buckley will determine, based on the information supplied by the employee and the 
department, the appropriate needs for each telework arrangement. Equipment supplied by the 
city will be maintained by the City, and it is the employee’s responsibility to ensure the equipment 
is handled and secured in an appropriate manner to prevent loss, damage, and misuse. If City 
equipment is lost or stolen, the employee must immediately notify the employee’s supervisor 
and Information Technology (IT) staff.  The City reserves the right to make determinations as to 
appropriate equipment and software, subject to change at any time. Equipment supplied by the 
employee, if deemed appropriate and approved by the City will be maintained by the employee. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
227



 

Page 3 of 5 
Subject: Flexible Work Scheduling Program  
 

Any system used to access the City network must be current with the latest security updates and 
antivirus protections. The City does not provide support for and accepts no responsibility for 
damage or repairs to employee-owned equipment. Any software purchased by the City to assist 
the employee shall remain the property of the City, and must be installed by IT staff. At no time 
shall an employee install third party software. Any office supplies needed for performance of 
job duties should be obtained from the office. Equipment and supplies provided by the City are 
to be used for business purposes only, except as permitted under City policy. 
 
Technical support is available via the City’s helpdesk for City issued devices, network connectivity 
issues, and software programs. Support will be provided by IT using remote assistance software, 
telephone assistance, or virtual communication tools such as Microsoft Teams, Zoom, etc. In the 
event of an equipment or software malfunction and/or any downtime related to technical issues, 
the employee must notify their supervisor immediately.  The employee must come into the office 
or use paid time off if technical or software malfunctions result in lost time where the employee 
is unable to complete standard work assignments. 
 
The employee must establish an appropriate work environment within their home for work 
purposes. The city will not be responsible for costs associated with the setup of the employee’s 
home office, such as remodeling, furniture, lighting, rent or insurance, high speed internet access, 
utilities, or for repairs or modifications to the home office space. 
 
Telework requires high speed internet to access the City’s resources. It is the responsibility of the 
employee to obtain and pay for the cost of high-speed internet access. 

 
 Security 

Consistent with the City’s expectations of information security for employees working at he 
office, employees who are working remotely must ensure the protection of proprietary City 
information and confidential information accessible from their home office. Steps include locking 
the computer when leaving the work area, regular password maintenance, installation of updates 
as they become available, secure handling and disposal of physical documentation, ensuring 
secure (password protected) home internet service, and any other measures appropriate for the 
job and the environment. 

 
 Safety 

Employees are expected to maintain their home workspace in a safe and ergonomic manner, free 
from safety hazards. Injuries sustained by the employee in a home office location and in 
conjunction with their regular work duties are normally covered by the City’s worker 
compensation policy. In the case of such an injury, the employee is responsible for notifying the 
supervisor and Human Resources as soon as practicable and must complete all requested 
documents regarding the injury. The employee is liable for any injuries sustained by visitors to 
the employee’s home worksite. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
228



 

Page 4 of 5 
Subject: Flexible Work Scheduling Program  
 

 
 Time Worked 

Employees approved to telework must work their assigned work schedule.  Employees working 
remotely who are not exempt from the overtime requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act 
will be required to accurately record all hours worked. They must also observe regular lunch and 
rest breaks.  Any overtime hours require the advance approval of the employee’s supervisor. 
Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the immediate termination of the telework 
arrangement. An employee working remotely may be required by their supervisor to maintain a 
daily log of work activities. The City will monitor employee activity via remote connection, 
outlook calendar and teams availability. The City may monitor the employee’s activity via meta-
data records. 
 
Leave policies apply to any instance where the employee does not perform work as scheduled. 
Accrued leave shall be requested and approved pursuant to applicable City policies. 
 
A telework arrangement is not designed to be a replacement for appropriate child or dependent 
care, and the employee must make regular dependent care arrangements. Requests for 
exceptions to this will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis by the Mayor and/or City 
Administrator and Human Resources. The employee’s home work environment must be free 
from disruptions and distractions that may affect the performance of job duties. 

 
 Availability 

An employee who is teleworking must be available via telephone and/or email during regular 
hours of work. Regardless of an agreed-upon telework schedule, if an employee’s in-person 
presence is needed in the office, the employee must remain willing and able to come to the office 
to perform job duties. For this reason, and due to tax and employment law implications, the City 
will not approve ongoing telework arrangements where the employee’s remote work location 
would be outside the State of Washington. The City will make a reasonable effort to provide 
advance notice of any deviations in the established remote work schedule, but advance notice 
will not always be possible. 
 
Occasional telework locations other than the regular telework location and locations outside 
Washington State may be allowed and must be approved in advance by the Mayor and/or City 
Administrator. 

 
 Procedure 

An employee who is interested in requesting approval to work remotely is encouraged to confer 
with the employee’s supervisor about what kind of arrangement would meet the needs of the 
employee and the City. A written request to work remotely should be submitted to the 
employee’s supervisor (if applicable) and Department Director and should describe: (1) the 
nature of the proposed arrangement (e.g. whether the employee is seeking to work remotely on 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
229



 

Page 5 of 5 
Subject: Flexible Work Scheduling Program  
 

a full-time or part-time basis); (2) why the employee believes the arrangement will be effective 
and beneficial; and (3) the employee’s home workspace location and any equipment needs. 
 
The Department Director will confer with IT regarding equipment and software needs and will 
then facilitate a discussion with the employee’s supervisor and Human Resources to determine 
whether the telework proposal should be forwarded to the Mayor and/or City Administrator to 
be approved, rejected, or approved with modifications. 
 
If approved, the Department Director will prepare a Telework Agreement addressing the terms 
of the arrangement using the template provided by Human Resources. The Telework Agreement 
must be signed by the employee and signed/approved by the Department Director and the 
Mayor or City Administrator prior to the telework arrangement taking effect. Final approvals will 
be filed in the Employee’s personnel file and sent digitally to the employee and Department 
Director. 
 
Any time there is a significant change to the job, the employee or Department Director change 
positions, or the primary telework location changes, the employee must submit a new written 
telework request, and if approved, a new Telework Agreement is required. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
230



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Holidays (Legal, Floating and Religious) 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.5 Holidays (Legal, Floating & Religious) 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.5.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy outlining the City of Buckley’s holidays. 

 
2.5.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.5.3 POLICY:  
All regular status full-time employees are entitled to a full day (10 hour a day employees will earn 10 
hours and 8 hour a day employees will earn 8 hours) paid holiday on the following days, observed in 
accordance with the official State calendar and Part-Time employees will be paid holiday hours in direct 
ratio to hours worked: 
 

HOLIDAYS DATES 
New Years Day January 1st 
Martin Luther King Jr.’s Birthday Third Monday in January 
Presidents Day Third Monday in February 
Memorial Day Last Monday in May 
Juneteenth June 19th 
Independence Day July 4th 
Labor Day First Monday in September 
Veteran’s Day November 11th 
Thanksgiving Day and the day after 
Thanksgiving 

Fourth Thursday in November & the day after 

Christmas Day December 25th  
 
For all employees regardless of their work schedule, holidays will be observed in the following manner: 
 

a) When a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be considered the holiday. 
b) When a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be considered the holiday. 
c) Holidays that fall on non-work days (such as Friday for employees who work a 4/10 schedule), 

will be added to employees holiday bank hours to be used at a future date. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
231



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Holidays (Legal, Floating and Religious) 

Any employee on vacation or sick leave during a holiday will not be charged vacation or sick leave for 
that day.  An employee who would otherwise be entitled to a holiday but is on leave without pay or on 
unpaid family and medical leave will receive compensation for the holiday, provided the employee has 
satisfied the qualifying payroll period provision.  An employee on the payroll for less than a full month is 
eligible for a paid holiday provided the employee is in pay status one calendar day immediately preceding 
or immediately following the holiday.   
 
2.5.4 Floating Holidays 
In addition to the above-listed holidays, all regular status full-time employees may take two “floating” 
holidays each calendar year, at the request of the employee and with the approval of the Department 
Director.  Part-time permanent employees will receive two floating holidays on a pro rata basis. 
 
The floating holidays must be taken during the calendar year or entitlement to the day(s) will lapse, 
except when an employee has requested a personal holiday(s) and the request has been denied due to 
workload or scheduling. 
 
2.5.5 Religious Holidays 
Employees are entitled to two unpaid holidays per calendar year for reasons of faith or conscience or an 
organized activity conducted under the auspices of a religious denomination, church, or religious 
organization. 
 
The employee may select the days he or she wishes to take the two unpaid holidays after consultation 
with his/her Department Director. If an employee prefers to take the two unpaid holidays on specific 
days, the employee will be allowed to take those days off unless the absence would cause an “undue 
hardship” or the employee is necessary to maintain public safety. The term “undue hardship” has the 
same meaning as defined in WAC 82-56-020, as currently enacted and as amended. 
 
The City will consider the following factors, on a case by case basis, when determining whether granting 
the request would cause an undue hardship: 

· The requesting employee’s department or the City’s financial resources. 
· The number of other employees requesting leave on the same date(s). 
· Impact on the City, the requesting employee’s department, or public safety. 
· Type of operations of the requesting employee’s department. 
· Nature of the employee’s work. 
· Any other impact of the City’s operation or requesting employee’s department due to the 

employee’s absence. 
 

An employee should submit a request for an unpaid holiday to the employee’s Department Director a 
minimum of two weeks before the requested day off.  The Department Director will coordinate with the 
City Administrator to evaluate requests and consider the desires of the employee, scheduled work, 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
232



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Holidays (Legal, Floating and Religious) 

anticipated peak workloads, response to unexpected emergencies, the availability, if any, of a qualified 
substitute, and consideration of the meaning of “undue hardship” as set forth above. These unpaid 
holidays are available only during a single calendar year, and any unused days will not be carried over to 
subsequent years. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
233



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Vacation 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.6 Vacation 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.6.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy outlining the City of Buckley’s vacation accrual and leave. 

 
2.6.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.6.3 POLICY:  
All regular status non-union employees of the City accrue annual vacation with full pay according to the 
following schedule (1 day=your regular workday, e.g. if you normally work 10-hour days, 1 day would 
equal 10 hours; however, if you work 8-hour days, 1 day would equal 8 hours): 
 

Vacation Leave Schedule 
TIME EMPLOYED BY THE CITY VACATION TIME ACCRUED PER YEAR 

0 – 24 months 12 days 
25-36 months 13 days 

37-48 14 days 
4 years 14 days 
5 years 15 days 
6 years 15 days 
7 years 16 days 
8 years 16 days 
9 years 18 days 

10 years 18 days 
11 years 19 days 
12 years 19 days 
13 years 20 days 
14 years 20 days 
15 years 22 days 
16 years 22 days 
17 years 22 days 
18 years 22 days 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
234



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Vacation 
 

19 years 22 days 
20+ years 25 days 

Vacation accrual changes begin the first day of the year of service employed by the City.  
 

Paid vacation may only be taken after the pay period that it is earned in, e.g. vacation earned in January, 
may not be taken in January, it would not be allowed to be used until February. 
 
All vacations must be approved by the appropriate Department Director.  Department Director vacations 
are approved by the City Administrator. 
 
Vacation time may be accrued only to a maximum of 280 hours, unless the employee has an employment 
agreement that specifies otherwise, or under unusual circumstances and with approval of the 
Department Director and the City Administrator.  Without the exception stated below, any unapproved 
accrual beyond the 280-hour limit will be forfeited by the employee. 
 
In cases where the Mayor and/or City Administrator have determined that City operations have made it 
impractical for an employee to use vacation time, those non-union employees may elect to take a 
portion up to 80 hours of their annual carryover balance of vacation time in cash as opposed to taking 
the time off. The employee will be paid these hours at their current salary rate in cash.   
 
When authorized, employees may exercise the option to buy back vacation hours up to two times in 
each calendar year.  Employees may elect to buy back up to forty (40) hours in June and forty (40) hours 
in December or the full eighty (80) hours in December. The leave bank may not go below (10) hours as a 
result of the buyback. The decision to exercise the option must be made and submitted to the Finance 
Director prior to May 30th for June buyback and November 30 for a December buyback. The buyback 
payment(s), if chosen, will occur in June and/or December of the year in which the request is submitted.  
The maximum hours that may be exercised for vacation buyback is eighty (80) hours in any calendar 
year. 
 
Upon separation from City employment, any regular status employee with more than the equivalent of 
six months of service shall be paid for up to a maximum of 240 hours of accrued vacation.  Compensation 
shall be based upon the employee’s salary at the time of separation and shall be subject to applicable 
withholding under state and federal law. 
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
235



 

Subject: Sick Leave  Page 1 of 2 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.7 Sick Leave 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.7.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy outlining the City of Buckley’s sick time accrual and leave. 

 
2.7.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.7.3 POLICY:  
Each regular status employee of the City not represented by a bargaining agreement shall accrue sick 
leave at the rate of one (1) day per month. For example, if your normal work schedule is 10 hour days, 
you will accrue 10 hours each month and if your normal work schedule is an 8 hour day, you will earn 8 
hours each month. Part-time employees will earn sick leave at a pro rata amount. Maximum accrual for 
sick leave is1,760 hours. Accrual beyond the 1,760 limit will be forfeited by the employee. 
 
All full-time and part-time regular employees shall accrue sick leave.  Refer to the CBA/Exempt policy for 
accrual policies.  Temporary employees who are not entitled to sick leave under a CBA or City policy shall 
accrue one (1) hour of sick leave for each forty hours worked and may use the leave as provided by the 
Washington Paid Sick Leave Act.   
 
A doctor’s certificate may be required when an employee is absent for a period more than three (3) days. 
The City may also request the opinion of a second doctor at the City’s expense to determine whether 
the employee suffers from a serious physical or mental condition which impairs her/his ability to perform 
the job. Employees who call in sick and/or leave early unexpectedly (regardless of reason) will be taken 
off “on call” register for 24 hours for each day they call in.  
 
Sick Leave Upon Retirement or Separation 
Employees shall be eligible for this benefit because of retirement, death, voluntary separation or 
involuntary layoff but shall not be eligible if terminated for cause.  Compensation shall be based upon 
the employee’s salary at the time of separation. Moneys received under this section shall not be included 
for the purpose of computing a retirement allowance under any public retirement system in this state.   
 

· Upon retirement in a recognized retirement system, an employee shall receive pay at their regular 
wage rate for 25% of unused accumulated sick leave 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
236



 

Subject: Sick Leave  Page 2 of 2 
 

· Employees with five years or more of City employment who separate for any reason, other than 
termination for cause, shall receive twenty-five percent of unused sick leave up to a maximum of 
720 hours.  Unless the employee falls under a CBA or employment contract that specifies 
something different. 

 
Employees who are choosing to retire or separate from City service and wish to receive a sick leave 
payment, must provide a resignation letter and appropriate documentation of their decision to retire to 
the City Administrator. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
237



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Eligibility for Healthcare Benefits 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.8 Eligibility for Healthcare Benefits 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.8.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy outlining the City of Buckley’s healthcare benefits. 

 
2.8.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.8.3 POLICY: Eligibility for Healthcare Benefits 
When you enroll in the health plans at the City of Buckley, you can also enroll eligible dependents which 
include your custodial children, state registered domestic partners, lawful spouse, your spouse’s 
custodial children and children for whom you are the legal guardian.  Children are eligible up to age 26. 
Eligibility is determined by the City’s health insurance provider and the relevant plan.  
 
To be eligible, you must regularly work at least 30 hours per week. Part-time employees will receive a 
pro rata share of healthcare benefits paid by the City. A change of employment status may result in a 
change in your benefit eligibility. Regular full-time employees whose regular work week is temporarily 
reduced will receive a prorated share of benefits paid by the City. 
 
The City will not provide duplication of health care coverage to an employee who is married to another 
employee of the City. One spouse or state registered domestic partner may be named as the policy 
holder and the other as a covered spouse or state registered domestic partner; OR each may be a policy 
holder, but in that case, neither may be listed as a covered spouse or state registered domestic partner. 
Their children may be listed as covered dependents on one policy or the other, but not on both. In this 
circumstance primary coverage of the dependent children may be dictated by the insurance under State 
statute. 
 
2.8.4 Enrolling in Benefits: 
New employees, who meet the eligibility requirements, are eligible to enroll in the health plans on the 
first day of the month following date of hire. The City offers one medical plan, one dental plan and one 
vision plan.  Human Resources will go over plan details with you during the onboarding process.  
 
Open enrollment is the only time during the year that you may change your benefit elections or 
add/remove dependents from the plan.  You may also change coverage with a qualifying event. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
238



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: HRA Contributions 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.9 HRA Contributions 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.9.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy outlining the City of Buckley’s HRA contributions. 

 
2.9.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.9.3 POLICY: Health Reimbursement Account Contributions 
All employees receiving medical benefits are also provided with a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA). 
The City will provide annual contributions to each employee’s HRA account according to the schedule in 
the Table below:  
 
 

HRA Contribution City Contribution Amount/ Employee 
Employee $1,100 
Spouse $500 
Dependent (2 maximum) $250 

**Unless specified differently in an employee’s Collective Bargaining Agreement** 
 
*Note: In addition to the annual contributions, the City will fund any administrative costs that the HRA 
provider charges to manage each account. 
 
These HRA contributions are subject to funding by the City Council in the annual budget and the City 
retains the right to, in its sole discretion, modify, adjust or terminate the contribution amounts for any 
fiscal year if insufficient funding is provided in the budget, provided however that such change shall not 
impact the rights or benefits of any employee for the prior fiscal year. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
239



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Benefit Opt Out 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.10 Benefit Opt Out 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.10.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy outlining the City of Buckley’s benefit opt-out program. 

 
2.10.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.10.3 POLICY: Opting Out of Benefits  
A maximum of 25% of eligible employees (first come, first serve) may opt out of medical coverage, 
providing that proof of current medical insurance is provided and a waiver of coverage is initiated. Opting 
out of benefits includes opting out of medical, dental, vision and the city’s HRA contribution. The City 
does not provide partial benefits or partial opt outs. Alternate medical coverage must be maintained. 
Proof of current medical coverage will be required at least annually, however, the City may require proof 
at any time. The opt out may include: 
1. Employees and their dependents  
2. All employee dependents  
 
 Employees who choose to opt out themselves and/or dependents will receive an annual flat 
 rate of $8,400, pro-rated based on FTE status (pro-rated per pay period).  
  
 Employees who choose to opt out only their dependents will receive an annual flat rate of 
 $4,800, pro-rated based on FTE status (pro-rated per pay period).  
 
New full-time employees starting with the City after the beginning of a plan year may be eligible to opt 
out of medical insurance coverage. The waiver payment received will be prorated for the balance of the 
benefit plan year based on the number of waiver payment pay periods remaining in a year.  
 
Re-enrollment to a City health insurance plan can only occur during the annual open enrollment period 
or within thirty (30) days of a life-changing event (e.g., spouse losing insurance coverage). Under a 
qualifying re-enrollment during the plan year, the waiver payment will cease in the payroll period that 
City health insurance coverage becomes effective.  
 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
240



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Benefit Opt Out 
 

2.10.4 PROCEDURES: 
 
Employees desiring to participate in the Opt-Out program must complete a waiver form and submit it to 
the City Clerk/HR Administrator During the Opening Enrollment period. Following submission of the 
waiver form and verification of alternate insurance coverage, the City health insurance coverage will 
terminate on December 31 of the year that the form was submitted.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
241



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 2: BENEFITS 

 
SUBJECT: 2.11 Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
2.11.1 PURPOSE: The purpose of the City’s new Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) is (1) to 
afford those long term City employees who desire to retire prior to either PERS, LEOFF and/or Social 
Security Full Retirement Age an opportunity to do so with some financial assistance until eligible for 
PERS/LEOFF retirement and/or social security benefits, and (2) to encourage some measure of staffing 
flexibility, consistent with overall City and individual department needs. 

 
2.11.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
2.11.3 POLICY: Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 
2.11.3.01 Applicability.  The Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) applies to all FLSA exempt regular 
full or part-time status City employees, and regular full or part-time status City employees covered under 
collective bargaining agreements once the ERIP is authorized by the separate employee organizations or 
union(s).  
 
The City’s Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) is strictly voluntary and provides an insurance 
incentive that allows an employee to retire early prior to being eligible for Medicare benefits. Under the 
ERIP employees that have at least 10 years of service with the City shall be eligible for 1 year (12 months) 
of City paid continuing health care coverage for the employee “only” under COBRA. Employee electing 
to take early retirement under this program who have more than 10 years of service with the City shall 
receive an additional 1.5 months of City paid continuing health care coverage (medical, dental & vision) 
for the employee for every year of service over the 10 year initial threshold, up to the maximum allowed 
under COBRA which is 36 months, except that City contributions to COBRA under ERIP will cease before 
the end of the eligible period, if:  
 
· the participant becomes eligible for medical care coverage through another employer; or 
· the participant becomes eligible for Medicare benefits; or 
· the participant elects coverage through a spouse/domestic partner employed by the City; or 
· the participant dies. 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
242



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Early Retirement Incentive Program 
 

Participation in the City’s ERIP provides coverage under the City’s insurance plan except under the ERIP 
the City will be responsible for the cost of the administrative fee as well as the premium amount. 
 
Employees electing to participate in the City’s ERIP may choose to provide health care coverage for their 
dependents on a self-pay basis following their termination/retirement from the City.  

This program is subject to funding by the City Council in the annual budget and the City retains the right 
to designate the number of positions to fund annually and the right to deny an application or delay its 
effective date in the best interests of the City. The City may, in its sole discretion terminate the program 
at any time or, suspend it for any fiscal year, if insufficient funding is provided in the budget, provided 
however that such suspension shall not impact the rights or benefits of any employee who has retired 
under the program in a prior fiscal year. 

Long term City employees who retire early due to medical reasons related to a serious health condition 
prior to either PERS, LEOFF and/or Social Security Full Retirement Age are eligible for the ERIP as outlined 
in 6.20.02 above.   

2.11.3.02 Procedures. Eligible Employees who wish to participate in ERIP must contact the Finance 
Department to determine eligibility. The early retirement applicant should file application and submit 
appropriate paperwork supporting eligibility to the Finance Director on or before October 1 of the year 
preceding the proposed date of early retirement. The Mayor may waive the submittal deadline for 
application when unforeseen and/or unusual circumstances warrant.  

The Finance Director will confirm eligibility and forward to the City Administrator or Mayor for approval.  

The City shall enroll the eligible employee in COBRA immediately upon retirement from City service so 
that healthcare coverage continues without interruption.  

 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
243



 

Page 1 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.1 Employee Code of Ethics and Policy 
for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

3.1.1 Purpose  
A. The city finds that the proper operation of government requires that employees be independent, 
impartial, and responsible to the people; that government decisions and policy be made in the 
proper channels of the governmental structure; and that the public have confidence in the integrity 
of its government. Accordingly, it is the purpose of this policy to establish ethical standards of 
conduct for all employees of the city; to set forth those acts that are incompatible with such 
standards; to require disclosure by such employees of private financial or other interests in matters 
affecting the city; and to provide effective means for enforcement thereof. This policy is not to be 
construed so as to impair the ability of city employees to participate in ceremonial, 
representational or informational functions in the pursuit of their official duties.  
 
B. This policy shall be liberally construed in favor of protecting the public's interest in full disclosure 
of conflicts of interest and promoting ethical standards of conduct for city employees.  
 
C. This policy shall be interpreted and applied to allow inadvertent minor violations to be corrected 
and cured without disciplinary action and in conformance with the spirit and purpose of this policy.  
 

3.1.2 Policy Statement 
It is the policy of the City of Buckley (1) to encourage reporting by its employees of improper 
governmental action taken by City of Buckley officers or employees and (2) to protect City of Buckley 
employees who have reported improper governmental actions in accordance with the City of Buckley's 
policies and procedure(s).  
 
3.1.3 Definitions  
As used in this policy, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:  

A. "City agency" means every department or any subdivision thereof.  
B. "City employee" means every position of employment in any city agency.  
C. "Immediate family" means:  
1. A spouse or state registered domestic partner;  
2. Any dependent parent, parent-in-law, child or son-in-law or daughter-in-law; or  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
244



 

Page 2 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

3. Any parent, parent-in-law, child, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, sibling, uncle, aunt, cousin, niece 
or nephew residing in the household of the city employee.  
 
D. "Person" means individual, association, corporation, or other legal entity.  
 
E. "Improper governmental action" means any action by a City of Buckley employee:  
 
4. That is undertaken in the performance of the employee's official duties, whether or not the 
action is within the scope of the employee's employment; and  
 
5. That (i) is in violation of any federal, state, or local law or rule, (ii) is an abuse of authority, (iii) 
is of substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety or (iv) is a gross waste of public 
funds.  

 
6. "Improper governmental action" does not include personnel actions, including employee 

grievances, complaints, appointments, promotions, transfers, assignments, reassignments, 
reinstatements, restorations, reemployment, performance evaluations, reductions in pay, 
dismissals, suspensions, demotions, violations of collective bargaining or civil service laws, 
alleged violations of labor agreements or reprimands.  

 
F. "Retaliatory action" means any adverse change in the terms and conditions of a City of Buckley 
employee's employment.  
 
G. "Emergency" means a circumstance that if not immediately changed may cause damage to 
persons or property.  
 

3.1.4 Prohibited Conduct  
No current city employee shall:  
 

A. Disqualification from Acting on City Business.  

1. Engage in any transaction or activity, which is, or would to a reasonable person appear to be, 
in conflict with or incompatible with the proper discharge of official duties, or which impairs, or 
would to a reasonable person appear to impair, the employee's independence of judgment or 
action in the performance of official duties and fail to disqualify themself from official action in 
those instances where conflict occurs;  
 
2. Have a financial or other private interest, direct or indirect, personally or through a member 
of their immediate family, in any matter upon which the employee is required to act in the 
discharge of their official duties, and fail to disqualify themself from acting or participating;  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
245



 

Page 3 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

3. Fail to disqualify themself from acting on any transaction which involves the city and any 
person who is, or at any time within the preceding twelve (12) month period has been a private 
client of theirs, or of their firm or partnership;  
 
4. Have a financial or other private interest, direct or indirect, personally or through a member 
of their immediate family, in any contract or transaction to which the city or any city agency may 
be a party, and fails to disclose such interest to the appropriate city authority prior to the 
formation of the contract or the time the city or city agency enters into the transaction; provided, 
that this paragraph shall not apply to any contract awarded through the public bid process in 
accordance with applicable law.  
 

B. Improper Use of Official Position.  
 

1. Use their official position for a purpose that is, or would to a reasonable person appear to be 
primarily for the private benefit of the employee, rather than primarily for the benefit of the city; 
or to achieve a private gain or an exemption from duty or responsibility for the employee or any 
other person;  
 
2. Use or permit the use of any person, funds, or property under their official control, direction, 
or custody, or of any city funds or city property, for a purpose which is, or to a reasonable person 
would appear to be, for other than a city purpose; provided, that nothing shall prevent the private 
use of city property which is available on equal terms to the public generally (such as the use of 
library books or tennis courts), the use of city property in accordance with city policy for the 
conduct of official city business (such as the use of a city automobile), if in fact the property is 
used appropriately; or the use of city property for participation of the city in activities of 
associations of governments or governmental officials;  
 
3. Except in the course of official duties, assist any person in any city transaction where such 
city employee's assistance is, or to a reasonable person would appear to be, enhanced by that 
employee's position with the city; provided that this subsection shall not apply to: any employee 
appearing on their own behalf or representing themself as to any matter in which they have a 
proprietary interest, if not otherwise prohibited by ordinance;  
 
4. Regardless of prior disclosure thereof, have a financial interest, direct or indirect, personally 
or through a member of their immediate family, in a business entity doing or seeking to do 
business with the city, and influence or attempt to influence the selection of, or the conduct of 
business with, such business entity by the city.  

C. Accept Gifts or Loans.  
1. Solicit or receive any retainer, gift, loan, entertainment, favor, or other thing of monetary 
value from any person or entity where the retainer, gift, loan, entertainment, favor, or other 
thing of monetary value has been solicited, or received or given or, to a reasonable person, would 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
246



 

Page 4 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

appear to have been solicited, received or given with intent to give or obtain special 
consideration or influence as to any action by such employee in their official capacity.  
 

D. Disclose Privileged Information.  
 

1. Disclose or use any privileged or proprietary information gained by reason of their official 
position for the immediate or anticipated personal gain or benefit of the employee or any other 
person or entity; provided, that nothing shall prohibit the disclosure or use of information which 
is a matter of public knowledge, or which is available to the public on request.  
 

E. Hold Financial or Beneficial Interest in City Transaction.  
1. Regardless of prior disclosure thereof hold or acquire a beneficial interest, direct or indirect, 
personally or through a member of their immediate family, in any contract which, in whole or in 
part, is, or which may be, made by, through, or under the supervision of such employee; or 
accept, directly or indirectly, any compensation, gratuity, or reward in connection with such 
contract from any other person or entity beneficially interested therein.  

 
3.1.5 Prohibited Conduct after Leaving City  
 

A. No former employee shall, during the period of one (1) year after leaving city office or 
employment:  

1. Disclose or use any privileged or proprietary information gained by reason of their city 
employment for their gain or anticipated gain, or for the gain or anticipated gain of any person, 
unless the information is a matter of public knowledge or is available to the public on request;  
 
2. Assist any person in proceedings involving the agency of the city with which they were 
previously employed, involving a matter in which they were officially involved, participated or 
acted in the course of duty;  
 
3. Represent any person as an advocate in any matter in which the former employee was 
officially involved while a city employee;  
 
4. Participate as a competitor in any competitive selection process for a city contract in which 
they assisted the city in determining the project or work to be done or the process to be used. 
 

B. The prohibitions of Sections 8.5 A2 and 8.5 A3 shall not apply to former employees acting on behalf 
of a governmental agency unless such assistance or representation is adverse to the interest of the 
city.  
 

3.1.6 Procedures for Reporting Improper Governmental Actions  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
247



 

Page 5 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

City of Buckley employees who become aware of improper governmental actions should raise the issue 
first with their supervisor. If requested by the supervisor, the employee shall submit a written report to 
the supervisor, or to some person designated by the supervisor, stating in detail the basis for the 
employee's belief that an improper governmental action has occurred. Where the employee reasonably 
believes the improper governmental action involves their supervisor, the employee may raise the issue 
directly with the City Administrator or such other person as may be designated by the City Administrator 
to receive reports of improper governmental action.  
 
In the case of an emergency, where the employee believes that damage to persons or property may 
result if action is not taken immediately, the employee may report the improper governmental action 
directly to the appropriate government agency with responsibility for investigating the improper action.  
 
The supervisor, the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee, as the case may be, shall 
take prompt action to assist the City of Buckley in properly investigating the report of improper 
governmental action. City of Buckley officers and employees involved in the investigation shall keep the 
identity of reporting employees confidential to the extent possible under law, unless the employee 
authorizes the disclosure of their identity in writing. After an investigation has been completed, the 
employee reporting the improper governmental action shall be advised of a summary of the results of 
the investigation, except that personnel actions taken as a result of the investigation may be kept 
confidential.  
 
City of Buckley employees may report information about improper governmental action directly to the 
appropriate government agency with responsibility for investigating the improper action if the employee 
reasonably believes that an adequate investigation was not undertaken by the City of Buckley to 
determine whether an improper governmental action occurred, or that insufficient action has been 
taken to address the improper governmental action or that for other reasons the improper 
governmental action is likely to recur.  
 
City of Buckley employees who fail to make a good faith attempt to follow the City's procedures in 
reporting improper governmental action shall not receive the protections provided by the city in these 
procedures.  
 
3.1.7 Complaints, Investigations, Review and Enforcement  
A. Any person may file a complaint alleging a violation of this policy, as set forth in Section 8.07 
Procedures for Reporting.  
 
B. The complaint shall be in writing and shall be signed by the complainant. The written complaint shall 
state the nature of the alleged violation(s), the date(s), time and place of each occurrence, and name of 
the person(s) charged with the violation(s). The complaint shall be filed with the City Administrator who 
shall provide a copy to the person charged with a violation. The complainant shall provide the City 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
248



 

Page 6 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Administrator with all available documentation or other evidence to demonstrate a reason for believing 
that a violation has occurred.  

 
C. Within thirty (30) days after receipt of a complaint, the City Administrator shall conduct a preliminary 
investigation.  

 
D. If the City Administrator determines, after preliminary investigation, that there are no reasonable 
grounds to believe that a violation has occurred, the City Administrator shall dismiss the complaint. If 
the City Administrator does dismiss the complaint, they shall do so in writing, setting forth the facts and 
provisions of law upon which the dismissal is based, and shall provide a copy of the written dismissal to 
the complainant and to the person charged with the violation.  

 
E. Within thirty (30) days from the date that a complaint has been referred to the City Administrator for 
review, the City Administrator shall issue a written determination stating whether the policy has been 
violated and setting forth the facts and the provisions of law upon which this determination is based. A 
copy of said determination shall be delivered to the complainant, to the person charged with the 
violation and, where appropriate, to the person's superior.  

 
F. If the City Administrator determines that an employee has violated the provisions of this policy, the 
City Administrator may subject the employee to disciplinary action. In addition to any other penalty 
herein or otherwise provided by law, a violation shall be cause for suspension, discharge, or removal 
from employment, or such other disciplinary action as may, by the appropriate city authority, be deemed 
necessary and proper, and consistent with personnel ordinances and rules; provided, that this section 
shall not derogate from employee rights under any collective bargaining agreement or city personnel 
ordinance, or rules promulgated thereunto.  
 
3.1.8 Protection against Retaliatory Actions  
City of Buckley officials and employees are prohibited from taking retaliatory action against an employee 
because they have in good faith reported an improper governmental action in accordance with these 
policies and procedures.  
 
Employees who believe that they have been retaliated against for reporting an improper governmental 
action should advise in writing their supervisor, the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s 
designee. City of Buckley officials and supervisors shall take appropriate action to investigate and address 
complaints of retaliation.  
If the employee's supervisor, the City Administrator, or the City Administrator’s designee, as the case 
may be, does not satisfactorily resolve an employee's complaint that they have been retaliated against 
in violation of this policy, the employee may obtain protection under this policy and pursuant to state 
law by providing a written notice to the City of Buckley's City Council that:  
 

a. Specifies the alleged retaliatory action and  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
249



 

Page 7 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

b. Specifies the relief requested.  
 
City of Buckley employees shall provide a copy of their written charge to the City Administrator no later 
than thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the alleged retaliatory action. The City of Buckley shall 
respond within thirty (30) days to the written charge of retaliatory action.  
 
After receiving either the response of the City of Buckley or thirty days after the delivery of the charge 
to the City of Buckley, the employee may request a hearing before a state administrative law judge to 
establish that a retaliatory action occurred and to obtain appropriate relief provided by law. An 
employee seeking a hearing should deliver the request for hearing to the City Administrator within the 
earlier of either fifteen (15) days of delivery of the City of Buckley's response to the charge of retaliatory 
action, or forty-five (45) days of delivery of the charge of retaliation to the City of Buckley for response.  
Upon receipt of request for hearing, the City of Buckley shall apply within five (5) working days to the 
State Office of Administrative Hearings for an adjudicative proceeding before an administrative law 
judge:  
 
Office of Administrative Hearings  
PO Box 42488, 4224 Sixth S.E.  
Rowe Six, Building 1  
Lacey, WA 98504-2488  
 
(206) 459-6353  
 
The City of Buckley will consider any recommendation provided by the administrative law judge that the 
retaliator be suspended with or without pay or dismissed.  
 
3.1.9 Responsibilities  
The City Administrator is responsible for implementing the City of Buckley's policies and procedures (1) 
for reporting improper governmental action and (2) for protecting employees against retaliatory actions. 
This includes ensuring that this policy and these procedures (1) are permanently posted where all 
employees will have reasonable access to them, (2) are made available to any employee upon request 
and (3) are provided to all newly hired employees. Officers, managers and supervisors are responsible 
for ensuring the procedures are fully implemented within their areas of responsibility. Violations of this 
policy and these procedures may result in appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.  
3.1.10 List of Agencies  
The following is a list of agencies responsible for enforcing federal, state and local laws and investigating 
other issues involving improper governmental action. Employees having questions about these agencies 
or the procedures for reporting improper governmental action are encouraged to contact the General 
Services Director.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
250



 

Page 8 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

City of Buckley  
City Attorney 
Phil Olbrechts 
Olbrechts & Associates, PLLC 
18833 N.E. 74th St. 
Granite Falls, WA  98252 
 
Pierce County  
Prosecuting Attorney's Office (Investigative Services) 
930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946  
Tacoma WA 98402-2171  
Main Office - (253) 798-7400 
 
State of Washington  
Attorney General's Office  
Fair Practices Division  
2000 Bank of California Center  
900 Fourth Avenue, Suite 2000  
Seattle, WA 98164  
(206) 464-6684  
 
State Auditor's Office  
Legislative Building  
PO Box 40021  
Olympia, WA 98504-0021  
(206) 753-5280  
 
State Department of Ecology  
3190 - 160th SE  
Bellevue, WA 98008-5852  
(206) 649-7000  
 
Human Rights Commission  
402 Evergreen Plaza Bldg., FJ-41  
711 South Capitol Way  
Olympia, WA 98504-2490  
 
State Department of Health  
Health Consumer Assistance  
PO Box 4789  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
251



 

Page 9 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Olympia, WA 98504-7891  
(800) 525-0127  
 
Dept. of Labor & Industries  
300 West Harrison, Room 201  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 281-5400  
 
State Liquor Control Board  
Enforcement Office  
2101 Sixth Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98121-2513  
(206) 464-6095  
 
Dept. of Natural Resources  
PO Box 68  
Enumclaw, WA 98022  
(206) 825-1631  
 
Puget Sound Water Quality Authority  
PO Box 40900  
Olympia, WA 98504  
(206) 493-9300  
 
Dept. of Social & Health Services  
Special Investigation Office  
5200 Southcenter Blvd., Suite 23  
Tukwila, WA 98188  
(206) 764-4048  
Fraud Complaints  
(800) 562-6025  
 
 
 
UNITED STATES  
Department of Agriculture  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
Supervisor Auditor  
(206) 553-8290  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
252



 

Page 10 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Supervisor Special Agent  
Investigation  
(206)553-8286  
 
Alcohol Tobacco & Firearms  
Criminal Enforcement  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-4485  
 
U. S. Attorney  
800 Fifth Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-7970  
 
Department of Commerce  
Office of Inspector General  
Office of Audits  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-0801  
Government Accounting Office  
Fraud Hot Line (800) 424-5454  
 
Consumer Product Safety Comm.  
Hot line  
(800) 638-2772  
 
U.S. Customs Service  
Office of Enforcement  
909 First Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-7531  
 
U.S. Department of Education  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
Audits  
(206) 553-0657  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
253



 

Page 11 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Investigations  
(206) 553-1482  
 
Environmental Protection Agency  
Criminal Investigations  
1200 Sixth Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission  
2815 Second, Suite 500  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 220-6883; (800) 368-9331  
 
Federal Emergency Mngmt Agency  
130 - 228th Street SW  
Bothell, WA  
(206) 487-4600  
 
Federal Trade Commission  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-4656  
 
General Services Administration  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
Office of Inspector General  
Audits (206)931-7650  
Investigations  
(206)931-7654  
Law Enforcement  
(206) 553-0290  
 
Dept. of Health & Human Services  
Food & Drug Administration  
22201 - 23rd Drive SE  
Bothell, WA  
Trade Complaints  
(206) 483-4949  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
254



 

Page 12 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Office of the Regional Secretary  
General Counsel's Office  
Inspector General  
Audits  
(206)553-0452  
Investigations  
(206)553-0229  
 
Dept. of Housing and Urban Dev.  
Office of Counsel  
1321 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-4976  
Office of Inspector General  
Audits  
(206)553-0270  
Investigations 
(206)553-0272  
 
Interstate Commerce Commission  
915 Second Avenue, Room 1894  
Seattle, WA 98174  
(206) 553-5421  
 
Department of Interior  
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Services  
Division of Law Enforcement  
121 - 107th NE  
Bellevue, WA  
(206)553-5543  
 
Department of Justice  
Drug Enforcement Administration  
220 West Mercer, Suite 300  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 553-5443  
 
Department of Labor  
Occupational Safety & Health (OSHA)  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 715  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
255



 

Page 13 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Seattle, WA 98101-3212  
(206) 553-5930  
 
Office of Inspector General 
Audits  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 780  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  
(206) 553-4880  
Investigations  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 785  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  
Office of Women's Bureau  
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 885  
Seattle, WA 98101-3212  
 
Mine Safety & Health Admin.  
117 - 107th NE  
Bellevue, WA  
(206) 553-7037  
 
Nat’l Transportation Safety Board  
19518 Pacific Highway South  
Seattle, WA  
(206) 764-3782  
 
Nuclear Regulatory Commission  
(510) 975-0200  
 
Securities & Exchange Commission  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98174  
(206) 553-7990  
 
Department of Transportation  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98178  
(206) 553-5720  
 
Department of Treasury  
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco & Firearms  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
256



 

Page 14 of 14 
Subject: Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action 

Law Enforcement Division  
915 Second Avenue, Room 806  
Seattle, WA 98174  
 
Department of Veterans Affairs  
Office of Inspector General  
915 Second Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98174  
Fraud/Waste/Abuse Hot Line  
(800) 488-8244  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
257



 

Page 1 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.2 General Conduct, Discipline, 
Identification of Employees, and Termination & 
Appeal 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.2.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy identifying General Conduct, Discipline, Identification of 

Employees and Termination and Appeal 
 
3.2.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All Employees 
 
3.2.3 POLICY:  
 
3.2.4 Identification of Employees  

3.2.4.01 It is the policy of the city that when on duty, all employees be visible and identifiable to 
the public to the maximum extent compatible with assigned work duties. All city furnished 
uniforms or work clothing are to be maintained in a presentable manner by the employee. 
"Presentable manner" will be determined by the Department Manager.  

 
3.2.4.02 City-furnished uniforms remain the property of the city at all times. Uniforms will be 
worn only on duty or during additional approved volunteer activities that are identical to those 
performed while on duty. Wearing of uniform items while commuting between a home and the 
work location may be permitted providing that the wearer does not participate in any interim 
activity where the image and good name of the city might be negatively affected. For example, 
city uniforms are not to be worn in an establishment while consuming alcoholic beverages.  

 
3.2.4.03 The outer garment of each uniform furnished by the city will bear the official insignia of 
the city and other such markings or emblems as each Department Manager may specify, except 
that rain gear may be identified otherwise. The Department Manager will determine the 
appropriateness of the employee name on the uniform. Proper location of such insignia and 
names on the uniform will be determined by the Department Manager.  

 
3.2.4.04 All employees who come in direct contact with the public outside the City-owned 
buildings may be required to carry an identification card issued by the city. If issued the card will 
contain name, title, department, address and telephone number of work location; and in some 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
258



 

Page 2 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

circumstances, a head and shoulders photograph and certification that said person is an 
employee of the City of Buckley.  

 
3.2.4.05 All City-issued identification, uniforms and other City-owned materials or property in the 
employee's possession must be surrender  

 
3.2.5 Personal Appearance, Conduct & Attitude  

Employees shall wear appropriate attire for their position and department, as determined by the 
Department Manager. Most City jobs involve contact with the public and other employees. Dress, 
grooming, and hygiene standards which are compatible with a professional, business-like 
atmosphere and which demonstrate respect for co-workers should be observed. A neat and 
presentable appearance is required at all times while on the job and representing the City of 
Buckley. Employees are expected to be positive in attitude even when dealing with citizens under 
strained or emotional conditions. 

 
3.2.5.01 Uniforms. Should uniforms, safety apparel, or equipment be required for a particular 
position, they will be provided at City expense as provided for in administrative regulations. 
Except for exigent circumstances, uniforms identifiable with the City of Buckley shall only be worn 
to and from work and during hours of work or duty. Please note that shorts are not to be worn 
to work without prior approval from the employee’s supervisor. 
 
3.2.5.02 Aromatic Sensitivities. Some employees may be sensitive and/or have allergies to smells 
and/or fragrances. Please be courteous to those around you when cooking strong smelling foods, 
such as fish, in common areas not designated as the lunchroom, and/or eating such food at your 
desk, as well as when using scented products, such as air fresheners, sprays, potpourri, lotions, 
makeup and colognes/perfumes. Scents linger and travel from workspace to workspace affecting 
those that may have sensitivities. 
 
3.2.5.03 Jewelry and Personal Decoration.  Accessories should be in good taste, with limited 
visible body piercing and no visible tattoos that may be offensive to others. The City prohibits any 
visible tattoo that is offensive. “Offensive” tattoos include, but are not limited to, any body tattoo 
or decal depicting nudity, violence, sexually explicit or vulgar art or words, or that is objectionable 
or demeaning to the image of the City. In general, if the City’s other policies (e.g., Harassment 
Prevention) or Conduct (e.g., Respect) would prohibit the speaking of the words, or display of the 
art, in the workplace then the tattoos, jewelry or body piercing(s) may not be visibly worn at 
work. Employees may wear jewelry or body piercing(s) that does not detract from the overall 
professional appearance or that does not interfere with or diminish the effectiveness of personal 
protective equipment that may be required to perform the duties of their job position.  
Supervisors have the sole discretion to decide whether visible tattoos, jewelry or body piercing(s) 
are appropriate for the job position.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
259



 

Page 3 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

 
Hats and head covers that are required for medical or religious purposes or to honor cultural 
tradition are allowed and may also be worn upon prior approval of the Mayor and Department 
Head. 

 
If clothing fails to meet these standards, as determined by the employee’s supervisor and 
Department Head, employees may be sent home to make appropriate changes. Failure to return 
to work in compliance with the request will also be considered a violation of this policy. 
Progressive disciplinary action will be applied if dress code violations occur. 
 

3.2.6  Disciplinary Action and Rules of Conduct  
City employees should be informed of rules of conduct and specific causes for disciplinary action, 
including applicable departmental policies or rules. These rules of conduct are formalized for 
each employee’s information to minimize the likelihood of any employee becoming subject to 
disciplinary action through misunderstanding or otherwise. It is the responsibility of the 
department manager and immediate supervisor to ensure employees are informed of these rules 
of conduct.  
 
3.2.6.01 Rules of Conduct  
1. The occurrence of any of the following is sufficient justification for immediate discharge but 
is not considered all inclusive:  
 

a) Theft, misappropriation or removal of city property or the property of employees, 
clients or customers.  

 
b) Knowing, intentional or repeated falsification of an application for employment or 

any report, time sheet or city record.  
 

c) Soliciting and/or accepting payments, gifts or any item of value for services performed 
during the regular workday, whether the services are performed on behalf of the city 
and whether city vehicles or equipment are used.  

 
d) Willful alteration, destruction or waste of city property, facilities, records or 

equipment, wherever located, or the destruction of another employee’s property.  
 
e) Using, selling, dispensing, or possessing alcohol (except as specifically authorized by 

the City), marijuana, illegal drugs, narcotics or other controlled substances on city 
property or in city vehicles; reporting to work or being impaired and/or under the 
influence of alcohol, marijuana, narcotics or other controlled substances while on 
working time, or while on city property or in city vehicles.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
260



 

Page 4 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

 
f) Giving or taking a bribe of any nature as inducement for obtaining or retaining a job or 

position.  
 
g) Serious or repeated disorderly conduct, horseplay or insubordination. Insubordination 

includes, but is not limited to: neglect of duty, or refusal or failure to obey orders or 
instructions in the line of duty; public disrespect displayed toward a supervisor or the 
city while performing work for the city; and abusive language to any supervisor, 
employee, customers or other persons while working for the city.  

 
h) Threatening, intimidating, coercing or interfering with supervisors or other employees 

and/or customers or other persons while working for the city.  
 
i) Deliberate attempts to injure another employee or fighting on city property or during 

working hours.  
 

j) Sleeping during working hours. 
 

k) Unauthorized possession of firearms, explosives or any dangerous weapons while 
performing City work or while on City property. 

 
l) Participating in an unauthorized work stoppage or slowdown. 

 
m) Recklessness resulting in a serious accident while on duty, whether on City property 

or while driving a City vehicle. 
 

n) Repeated unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal 
or physical conduct as defined in State and Federal Laws. Sexual harassment includes 
but is not limited to demands for sexual favors in exchange for employment, 
retention of job, promotion or other employment benefits. 

 
o) Willful or intentional behavior or remarks based on race, creed, color, national origin, 

age, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, or the presence of a physical, sensory, or 
mental disability resulting in discrimination against any employee, customer or 
member of the general public. 

 
p) Willful infraction of any departmental or City rule, regulation or policy. 

 
2. The occurrence of any of the following is sufficient justification for the imposition of lesser 
discipline such as verbal or written warning, suspension without pay or disciplinary probation as 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
261



 

Page 5 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

set forth in the following section, although depending on the seriousness of the offense, the city 
may immediately discharge the offender. These reasons for discipline are not intended to be all-
inclusive.  
 

a) Ignoring safety rules or common safety practices.  
 
b) Engaging in disorderly conduct, horseplay, immoral conduct or insubordination; using 
uncivil, insulting, vile or obscene language.  
 
c) Failure to report occupational injuries or accidents promptly to the employee’s supervisor, 
including motor vehicle accidents in a city vehicle.  
 
d) Engaging in activities other than assigned work during working hours and/or while 
operating city equipment, without advance approval by the employee’s supervisor.  
 
e) Acting in an insulting, rude, insolent or uncivil manner toward any customer or other 
person while working for the city, or while operating city equipment or on city premises.  
 
f) Failure to exercise the care and attention to one’s work as required by the circumstances.  
g) Smoking in restricted or prohibited areas on city property.  
 
h) Accepting employment with another employer while on leave without pay from the city 
without written authorization from the city.  
 
i) Acting in any manner inconsistent with common sense rules of conduct necessary to the 
welfare of the city or its employees.  
 
j) Unexcused or excessive absences or tardiness.  
 
k) Leaving work before the end of the shift or not being ready to begin work at the start of 
the shift, or working overtime without permission of management.  
 
l) Loafing or spending unnecessary time away from the job.  
 
m) Unauthorized possession or use of any city property, equipment or materials.  
 
n) Carrying an unauthorized passenger in a city vehicle.  
 
o) Contributing to unsanitary conditions or poor housekeeping.  
 
p) Use of city property or time for personal financial gain. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
262



 

Page 6 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

 
q) Any form of discrimination or sexual harassment, as outlined in 4.06.01 (1), (n) and (o).  
 
r) Having wages or salary subject to a writ of garnishment for three or more separate 
indebtedness in a continuous 12-month period.  
 

3.2.7  Forms of and Procedures for Disciplinary Action  
3.2.6.01 The degree of disciplinary action administered depends on the severity of the infraction 
and will be carried out in accordance with this policy or in accordance with applicable Civil Service 
Rules and Regulations or labor contracts. It is the responsibility of the supervisor to evaluate the 
circumstances and facts thoroughly and objectively. The supervisor will then recommend the 
most suitable form of disciplinary action to the Department Manager.  
 
1. Verbal Warning :  Verbal warning should be given to the employees in private, if possible. This 
type of discipline should be applied for infractions of a relatively minor degree. Supervisors 
should inform the employee that they are administering a verbal warning, that the employee is 
being given an opportunity to correct the condition, and that if the condition is not corrected, 
the employee may be subject to more severe disciplinary measures.  
 
2. Written Warning: 

 
a) This notice may be issued by the supervisor or Department Manager in the event the 
employee continues to disregard a verbal warning, or if the infraction is severe enough to 
warrant a written record in the employee’s personnel file.  
 
b) The supervisor or Department Manager will put in writing the nature of the infraction in 
detail and sign the notice. The Department Manager will discuss the written warning with the 
employee and the immediate supervisor to be certain that the reasons for the warning are 
understood.  
 
c) A copy of the written warning will be given to the employee at the time of the discussion 
of the warning. The original copy will be placed in the employee’s personnel file.  
 
d) A written warning may be removed at the request of the Department Manager from the 
employee’s personnel file after a period of one year (12 calendar months) provided that no 
further disciplinary action is taken during the 12-month period. If subsequent disciplinary 
action is necessary, the written warning becomes a permanent record in the employee’s file.  
 

3. Written Reprimand: 
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
263



 

Page 7 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

a) A written reprimand may be issued by the supervisor or Department Manager in the event 
the employee continues to disregard previous disciplinary measures of verbal or written 
warnings, or the severity of the infraction is such to warrant a written reprimand be made a 
permanent record in the employee’s file.  
b) The supervisor or Department Manager will put in writing the nature of the infraction in 
detail and sign the notice. The Department Manager will discuss the reprimand with the 
employee and the immediate supervisor to be certain that the reasons for the reprimand are 
understood. A copy of the written reprimand will be given to the employee at the time of the 
discussion of the infraction. The original copy will be placed in the employee’s personnel file.  
 
c) A written reprimand becomes a permanent record of the employee’s file and may not be 
removed at the discretion of the Department Manager.  
 

4. Probation: An employee may be required to serve an additional probationary period for 
disciplinary reasons for up to six months, which may be extended once for up to an additional six 
months. If placed on probation for disciplinary reasons, all provisions of probationary status 
apply, unless otherwise specified. At the end of the probation, the employee may be returned to 
regular status, demoted or terminated.  

 
5. Demotion: 

a) Demotion may be used in rare instances where an employee is clearly unable to 
satisfactorily perform the responsibilities of their position but is capable of performing in a 
position of less responsibility and otherwise exhibits the qualities of a good public employee. 
Demotions may be recommended by the Department manager or City Administrator, with 
final approval by the Mayor. 
  
b) A pre-disciplinary meeting is required prior to a demotion for disciplinary reasons.  
 

6. Suspension:  
 

a) This form of discipline must be recommended by a Department Manager or the City 
Administrator and can only be used for a severe infraction of rules or standards, or for 
continued violation after the employee has received one or more written warnings and has 
made little or no effort to improve performance. It should be applied only after a thorough 
evaluation by the Department Manager or City Administrator, with final approval by the 
Mayor.  
 
b) The Department Manager will put in writing all facts leading to the recommended 
suspension, and the duration recommended. A pre-disciplinary meeting will be held with the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
264



 

Page 8 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

employee to make certain that the employee is fully aware of the reasons for the considered 
action and has an opportunity to respond and supply additional information.  
 
c) A pre-disciplinary meeting is required prior to a suspension for disciplinary reasons.  
 
d) Exempt personnel are not subject to unpaid disciplinary suspensions except in increments 
of full work weeks unless the infraction leading to the suspension is for a violation of a safety 
rule of major significance.  
 

3.2.8  Termination  
All city employees serve at the pleasure of the Mayor. Subject to any applicable state or federal 
laws, or specific provisions in employment contracts, the Mayor, or his designee, may discharge 
any employee at any time with or without cause. Removal from employment should normally 
follow verbal and/or written warnings previously given and made a part of the employee’s 
personnel file. A pre-disciplinary meeting is required for all terminations.  

 
3.2.8.01 A regular employee terminated from employment will normally be given at least two 
weeks notice with a letter of dismissal. However, in the event the infraction or situation is so 
serious that it requires "on the spot" removal, the employee will leave his work station 
immediately, if so directed by the appointing authority or his designee, and later be given a 
termination letter explaining reasons for the action.  
 
3.2.8.02 Copies of all disciplinary actions and termination letters are to be placed in the 
appropriate personnel record.  
 
3.2.8.03 A final written performance appraisal will be completed on any terminated employee.  
 

3.2.9  Pre-disciplinary Meeting  
The Department Manager will provide for and arrange a pre-disciplinary meeting prior to 
demotion, suspension or termination of a regular employee.  
 
3.2.9.01 An employee will be provided, in writing, with a notice of the infraction and an 
explanation of the reasons for disciplinary action. The employee will be given an opportunity to 
respond verbally or in writing, as to why the proposed disciplinary action should not be taken.  
 
3.2.9.02 The employee may have a representative present at a pre-disciplinary meeting.  
 
3.2.9.03 The City’s explanation of the reasons for disciplinary action at the pre-disciplinary 
meeting will be sufficient to apprise the employee of the basis for the proposed action. This rule, 
however, will not be construed to limit the employer at subsequent hearings from presenting a 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
265



 

Page 9 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

more detailed and complete case, including presentation of witnesses and documents not 
available at the pre-disciplinary meeting.  
 
3.2.9.04 Should it be determined that disciplinary action is necessary following the pre-
disciplinary meeting, written notice of discipline will be given to the employee. Such notices are 
to include the alleged infraction and a general statement of the reasons for the action, and 
become a part of the employee’s personnel file.  
 

3.2.10  Personnel Grievance Procedure  
The City will strive to assure clear communication, high morale and good will among employees, 
and will attempt to resolve employee concerns through discussion or other informal measures. 
Employees are encouraged to discuss any problems or suggestions with their immediate 
supervisor or Department Manager. However, if an employee feels that all informal avenues have 
been exhausted and their complaint or concern has not been resolved, that employee may follow 
the grievance procedure. No punitive action will be carried out against any employee for utilizing 
the grievance procedures contained in these policies.  
 
3.2.10.01 Applicability of Grievance Procedure  
This grievance procedure applies to all regular non-probationary status city employees with the 
exception that it does not apply to employees covered by a valid collective bargaining agreement 
which contains a grievance procedure. In some cases, uniformed personnel may elect to use 
either the Civil Service Rules & Regulations or the Administrative grievance procedure, but not 
both for the same grievance.  
 
3.2.10.02 Subjects of Grievance Procedure  
The following subjects may be grieved: disciplinary action (as previously described) and any 
questions of interpretation as to wages, hours, classification, and working conditions in effect.  
 
3.2.10.03 Procedure  
All grievances are to be processed in accordance with the following procedure, the time limits of 
which are mandatory and which will be strictly enforced (See Definitions, "Days"):  
 

Step One. The aggrieved employee will submit the grievance in writing to the immediate 
supervisor within 10 days of its occurrence. The immediate supervisor will respond to the 
grievance within 10 days. If the response is to request more time for investigation of fact, the 
employee may concur with such time extension or may proceed to the next step without 
prejudice. A copy of this response is to be sent to the Mayor, City Administrator, Department 
Manager and personnel office.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
266



 

Page 10 of 10 
Subject: General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal 
 

Step Two. If after receiving the response of the immediate supervisor the employee remains 
aggrieved, the decision may be appealed within 10 days, in writing, to the Department 
Manager stating the facts of the grievance, and remedy requested by the employee. The 
Department Manager’s response to the grievance will be within 15 days. A copy of this 
response is to be sent to the Mayor, City Administrator and personnel office. If the 
Department Manager is the immediate supervisor, step two may be eliminated.  
 
Step Three. If after receiving the response of the Department Manager the employee remains 
aggrieved, the decision may be appealed within 10 days, in writing, to the Mayor. It is 
necessary for the written grievance to state the nature of the grievance, along with reference 
to the policy (if any) violated, and all pertinent correspondence, records and information 
accumulated to date. Within 15 days of receipt of the grievance, the Mayor will hear the 
appeal and render a decision in writing within 20 days. The decision of the Mayor will be final. 
A copy of the decision is to be sent to the City Clerk’s Office.  
 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
267



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Outside Employment 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.3 Outside Employment 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.3.1 PURPOSE: This policy sets forth guidelines for outside employment. 
 
3.3.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
3.3.3 POLICY: Outside Employment 
 Regular full-time employees are prohibited from accepting outside employment when it 

interferes with or conflicts with their regular duties and responsibilities with the City. Employees 
will not engage in, accept private employment from, or render services for private interest when 
such activity may: 

 
1. Occur during work hours. 

 
2. Detract from the efficiency of the employee while performing City duties. 

 
3. Constitute a conflict of interest or create an appearance of improperly as determined 

by the City Administrator. 
 

4. Stem from information or contacts made during City employment. 
 

5. Take preference over extra duty required by City employment. 
 

6. Interfere with emergency call-out duty. 
 

7. The judgment or performance of official duties is impaired. 
 

8. Involve the use of any City resources such as copiers, telephones, office supplies, 
materials, other equipment, or City work time. 

 
Only in those circumstances where none of these conditions occur may the employee accept 
outside employment. Engaging in outside employment that interferes with or reduces the 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
268



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Outside Employment 

efficiency of City employment may be grounds for disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment. 

 
 City employees are not eligible to be appointed to a City advisory board or commission. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
269



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Demotion Policy 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.4 Demotion 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.4.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding employee demotions. 

3.4.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
3.4.3 POLICY: Demotion 
 
 Unless governed by a collective bargaining agreement, demotion may be implemented by City 

management, in its sole discretion, including but not limited to the following reasons: 
 

1. In lieu of layoff. 
2. As a disciplinary action. 
3. When an employee’s performance falls below the standard required for effective job 

performance. 

No employee may be demoted to a position for which they do not possess the minimum 
qualifications. Nothing in this policy alters or modifies an employee’s at-will status. Except as 
prohibited by law, unless an employee’s employment is governed by a collective bargaining 
agreement or a specific written contract signed by the City Administrator, an employee’s 
employment with the City is at-will, which means that either the employee or the City may end 
the employee’s employment at any time, for any reason or no reason at all, with or without 
notice. 

  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
270



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Severance Pay 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.5 Severance Pay 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.5.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding severance pay. 
 
3.5.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
3.5.3 POLICY: Severance Pay 
 
 In the event the City Administrator determines that an employee is inappropriately and/or 

ineffectively placed in the organization and no suitable alternative placement is available, the 
City Administrator may terminate the employment of the employee. At that time, the City may 
authorize a lump sum severance payment equal to no more than four months total compensation 
for that employee. The amount of severance pay is based on the discretion of the City 
Administrator after consideration of the length of service, level of job performance, and 
comparable termination benefits in past decisions. 

 
 Severance pay will not be considered “compensation earnable” for purposes of calculating PERS 

entitlement in accordance with WAC 415-8-450-(3)(e). Payment may be in cash or some other 
form of compensation and is subject to Federal Income Tax and Social Security Tax Withholding 
but is not subject to retirement deductions. Payment may be treated as deferred compensation, 
but not salary for PERS or LEOFF purposes. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
271



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Pay Periods and Pay Days 

PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.6 Pay Periods and Pay Days 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.6.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy identifying pay periods and pay days for all employees of the City 

of Buckley. 
 

3.6.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
3.6.3 POLICY: Paychecks will be issued on the last business day of the month.  Draw checks will be 
issued on the fifteenth (15th) of the month. 
 
Draw or pay day on Saturday or Friday holiday – check issued the preceding City-scheduled workday. 
 
Draw or pay day on Sunday or Monday holiday – check issued the following City-scheduled workday. 
 
 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
272



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Time Reporting 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.7 Time Reporting 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.7.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding time reporting for employees. 

 
3.7.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
3.7.3 POLICY:  All employees must complete a time record, recording all hours for holiday, sick, over 

time, floating holidays or comp time. This record allows the City to pay its employees properly 
for their time. 
 
· Each time record covers hours worked from the first day of the pay period through the last 

day of the pay period. 
· Employees are required to record their time accurately, reflecting the hours actually worked. 

Falsifying time records is subject to discipline, up to and including termination. 
· For non-exempt employees, working more than 40 hours per week (overtime) is not 

permitted without prior approval.  Employees who work unauthorized overtime will be 
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 
The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) requires employers to pay nonexempt employees time 
and one half of the employees’ regular rate of pay for all hours worked over 40 in a work 
week. The City of Buckley will count paid holidays, vacation, personal or sick leave hours 
taken by an employee toward the calculation of the overtime requirement 

 
 
 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
273



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Hours of Work, Breaks, and Attendance 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.8 Hours of Work, Attendance, and 
Breaks 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.8.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy identifying hours of work, attendance and breaks for regular full-

time and part-time employees. 
 
3.8.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All non-represented departments/divisions. 
 
3.8.3 POLICY: 
 
 Providing a quality benefit package for our employees is important to the City of Buckley.  It is 

our way of saying “thank you” for pledging your commitment to our vision.  
 
3.8.3.1 Employee Classifications 
The City of Buckley classifies employees as exempt or non-exempt, in accordance with the Fair Labor 
Standards Act and Washington’s Wage and Hour Laws. 
 

· Salaried Exempt employees are certain executive, administrative and professional employees 
who are exempt from the overtime provisions of state and federal law and are paid a salary.  

· Hourly Non-exempt employees are paid on an hourly basis and are eligible for overtime pay 
pursuant to state and federal law. If you are a non-exempt employee who is scheduled to work 
40 hours per week or less, it is your responsibility to keep your hours at or below 40 hours during 
the week unless approved in advance by your Supervisor. 

· Salaried Non-exempt employees are certain professional employees who are paid a salary and 
are eligible for overtime and comp time.  

 
Employees are also classified as full-time, part-time, temporary/seasonal and on-call: 
 

· Full-time employees include both exempt and non-exempt employees who are normally or 
regularly scheduled to work forty hours per week and are eligible for benefits. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
274



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Hours of Work, Breaks, and Attendance 

· Part-time employees include both exempt and non-exempt employees who are normally or 
regularly scheduled to work less than forty hours per week and are eligible for benefits on a pro 
rata basis subject to the provisions in this policy. 

· Temporary employees are non-exempt employees who are employed for a specific assignment 
and work less than 70 hours per month for 4 months of the year and do not exceed a total of 832 
hours per year.   Temporary employees are not eligible for benefits.  

· Seasonal employees are employees who are working on a  short-term position.  Typically, seasonal 
employees are only hired for a specified period that should not last longer than 832 hours per 
calendar year. 

 
Employees are compensated per the following guidelines: 
 
Non-exempt employees are compensated for each regular hour they work based on an hourly rate. 
When non-exempt employees work more than forty (40) hours in a work week, they are paid at one and 
one-half times (1-1/2X) their regular hourly rate, or such other amount as may be required by state and 
federal wage and hour laws or an applicable collective bargaining agreement.  All overtime must be 
authorized in advance. Non-exempt employees entitled to overtime may elect to receive compensatory 
time off instead of cash payment. This is approved on a case-by-case basis by the employee’s 
Department Director. If the compensatory time option is exercised, the employee is credited with one 
and one-half the hours worked as compensatory time. Maximum accruals of compensatory time shall 
be limited to forty (40) hours. After the maximum accrual, overtime compensation shall be paid. 
Employees should use compensatory time within 90 days, unless doing so would unduly disrupt City 
operations. Compensatory time should be used for short-term absences from work during times 
mutually agreed to by the employee and their Department Director. Accumulation of compensatory time 
to be used for extended vacation time off is not normally permitted. If an employee is unable to use 
accrued compensatory time within the calendar year, the employee will be paid their original overtime 
wage.  
 
3.8.3.2 Work Week 
The City of Buckley’s workweek is forty hours within a seven-day work week.  The City’s standard work 
week is Monday through Thursday from 6:30 AM to 5:00 PM, with a 30-minute unpaid lunch period. The 
FLSA work period for City employees who are not subject to the 7(k) exemption to the FLSA is a week in 
length and commences at 12:01 AM Monday morning and concludes on Sunday night at 12 midnight. 
For Police Department employees, the work week shall consist of either four consecutive ten-hour days 
or five consecutive eight-hour days or 9/80 schedule. The work period for police officers subject to the 
7(k) exemption will be set forth in departmental policy or the applicable collective bargaining agreement. 
For the purposes of calculating overtime compensation, hours paid for benefits such as holiday and/or 
vacation or sick leave within any given work week are included in the definition of “hours worked.” 
Supervisors should avoid consistently working their employees beyond their regularly scheduled 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
275



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Hours of Work, Breaks, and Attendance 

workweek hours. City Administrator and Department Directors can change work week and days in 
emergency situations 
 
3.8.3.3 Attendance 
Punctual and consistent, in-person attendance on the job site is a condition of employment. Each 
Department Director is responsible for maintaining an accurate attendance record of their employees. 
Employees unable to work or unable to report to work on time must notify their Supervisor as soon as 
possible, ordinarily before the workday begins or within 30 minutes of the employee’s usual starting 
time. If an absence continues beyond one day, the employee is responsible for reporting in each day 
unless other prior arrangements have been made with the Supervisor. If the Supervisor is unable to be 
reached via phone, the employee may leave them a voice or text message stating the reason for being 
late or unable to report for work. 
 
Employees are expected to be at work even during inclement weather.  Department Directors may allow 
employees to be late, work from home or leave early during severe weather conditions; however, non-
attendance will be counted as absence from work and will be charged to accrued vacation time, unless 
otherwise stated by the Mayor.   
 
An employee who is absent without authorization or notification is subject to disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. 
 
3.8.3.4 Meals and Rest Periods 
Employees who work five (5) or more hours in a day are provided a generally uninterrupted meal break. 
The length of the meal break varies depending on your department but is not less than 30 minutes, nor 
more than 60 minutes in length. Employees who are not able to take a break at their discretion are also 
provided one fifteen-minute break for every four hours worked. All breaks shall be arranged so that they 
do not interfere with City business or service to the public. 
 
Employees who are authorized to work for two or more consecutive hours beyond normal working hours 
as determined by the employee’s department head and who purchase a meal in connection with 
performing such unscheduled, unplanned overtime will be reimbursed in accordance with the City of 
Buckley’s travel, meals, and lodging reimbursement policies. 
 
3.8.3.5 Nursing Mother Breaks 
For one year after the birth of a child, employees who are nursing are entitled to breaks of reasonable 
duration each time the employee has a need to express milk. If the employee utilizes the nursing mother 
break during a standard 15-minute rest break, she will be paid for the time. If the employee is taking an 
additional break for the purpose of expressing milk, the time will be unpaid. The City of Buckley will 
provide a location, free from intrusion from coworkers or members of the public, which may be used for 
this purpose. Employees will not be retaliated against for exercising their rights under this policy. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
276



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Personnel Files 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 3: EMPLOYMENT 

 
SUBJECT: 3.9 Personnel Files 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
3.11.1 PURPOSE: The Human Resources Department is responsible for overseeing the recordkeeping for 

all personnel information and will specify what information should be collected and how it should 
be stored and secured. The Human Resources Department will maintain separate confidential 
medical files according to the requirements of the law. 

3.11.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
3.11.3 POLICY: Personnel Files 
 
 Employees have a responsibility to make sure their personnel records are up to date and should 

notify the Human Resources Department in writing of any changes in the following: 
· Name 
· Address 
· Telephone number 
· Marital status (for benefits and tax withholding purposes only) 
· Number of dependents 
· Addresses and telephone numbers of dependents and spouse or former spouse (for 

insurance purposes only) 
· Beneficiary designations for any of the City’s insurance, disability, and pension plans 
· Persons to be notified in case of emergency 

 Authorized access to employee personnel files is limited to the employee, Human Resources 
staff, City Administrator, City Attorney, the employee’s department director, and/or direct 
supervisor. External requests for information regarding earnings and other personal data will be 
provided only with the employee’s written permission or if required by state or federal law. The 
Public Records Act currently requires certain disclosures of disciplinary records where disciplinary 
action has been imposed.  

 
 Employees may access their file by contacting Human Resources. An employee may request a 

copy of everything in their personnel file at any time. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
277



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Overtime and Compensatory Time     
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 4: COMPENSATION 

 
SUBJECT: 4.1 Overtime and Compensatory Time 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
4.1.1 PURPOSE: To create an environment that supports healthy lifestyles and offers opportunities for 

employees to optimize their health and well-being. This policy is established as a means to 
provide information and activities to City employees to encourage health and safety in the work 
environment. 

 
4.1.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All Departments.  Should any provision of a collective bargaining 

agreement conflict with this policy, the provisions of the CBA shall apply and govern. 
 
4.1.3 POLICY: Overtime and Compensatory Time 
 
 Occasionally non-exempt employees may be asked to work overtime. Overtime is defined as any 

hours worked in excess of 40 hours per work week. All overtime must have prior authorization 
from the employee’s supervisor, Department Director, or the City Administrator. 

 
 A non-exempt employee has the option of receiving compensatory (comp) time in the amount 

of 1.5 times the hours of overtime for time worked in excess of 40 hours for that week. The 
maximum accrual of comp time is 40 hours, unless otherwise specified in a collective bargaining 
agreement. Employees must be paid for any comp time accrued beyond 40 hours. Unauthorized 
overtime worked by an employee may subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment. Represented employees should refer to their collective 
bargaining agreements for overtime policies. 

 
 Non-exempt employees may cash out comp time at any time; however, the cash out will (1) be 

paid by direct deposit on the next regular payday and (2) will be at the hourly rate the employee 
was at six (6) months prior to the cash out. 

 
 Exempt employees are not eligible for overtime pay for hours worked over 40 in one week but 

may be given additional paid time off at the discretion of the Department Director. Exempt 
employees are expected to put in the time necessary to do the work of their position and any 
other duties as assigned. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
278



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Overtime and Compensatory Time     
 

 
 4.1.3.01 Separation and Overtime Pay 
 Employees separating from employment with the City will be paid for any uncompensated 

overtime or accrued compensatory time with the last paycheck. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
279



 

Page 1 of 1 
Subject: Callback  

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 4: COMPENSATION 

 
SUBJECT: 4.2 Callback 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
4.2.1 PURPOSE: To establish a policy regarding call backs. 
 
4.2.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All Departments.  Should any provision of a collective bargaining 

agreement conflict with this policy, the provisions of the CBA shall apply and govern. 
 
4.2.3 POLICY: Callback 
 
 Non-represented Non-exempt Personnel 
 Non-exempt personnel called back to work after working a regular shift, will receive overtime at 

the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times regular pay for hours worked over 40 in a week. 
 
 Non-represented Exempt Personnel 
 Exempt personnel called back to work are not eligible to earn overtime pay or accrue 

compensatory time for hours worked on callback. 
 
 Emergency Response 
 All City employees are expected to support their departments’ emergency operations 

responsibilities per the Reporting to Work During an Emergency Policy. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
280



 

Page 1 of 4 
Subject: Executive Leave, Pay and Leave Practices for Exempt Employees 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 4: COMPENSATION 

 
SUBJECT: 4.3 Executive Leave, Pay and Leave 
Practices for Exempt Employees 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
4.3.1 PURPOSE: To provide executive leave and set forth pay and leave practices to be followed for 

employees employed in a bona fide executive, administrative, or professional capacity. These 
employees are exempt from overtime pay under the federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and 
the Washington Minimum Wage Act (WMWA).  

4.3.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: Employees employed in a bona fide executive, administrative, or 
professional capacity. 

 
4.3.3 POLICY: Executive Leave, Pay and Leave Practices for Exempt, Executive, Administrative and 

Professional Employees 
  
FLSA-exempt employees may be required to work a specified schedule set by their appointing authority 
and, in all cases, are expected to work the hours necessary to satisfactorily perform their jobs. 
 
FLSA-exempt employees are required to work the hours needed to satisfactorily perform their duties 
and will receive their normal rate of pay for the workweek regardless of whether they are on a standard 
or alternative work schedule. 
 
FLSA-exempt employees are compensated on a salary basis generally based on a 40-hour work schedule.  
 
The accrued leave balances of an FLSA-exempt employee are not changed when the employee is absent 
for less than five hours of a workday nor is the employee’s pay reduced. 
 
FLSA-exempt employees who are absent for up to five hours or less are on “leave with pay” status. FLSA-
exempt employees must notify their supervisors in advance to be absent for part of the workday. The 
notification and request shall be made in a manner as determined by the department.  
 
FLSA-exempt employees must submit and have approved by their supervisor a written request (or by 
another documented manner as determined by the department) to use any applicable leave (sick, 
vacation, bereavement, Executive, leave without pay, etc.) when absent from work for one or more full 
days. 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
281



 

Page 2 of 4 
Subject: Executive Leave, Pay and Leave Practices for Exempt Employees 

 
An FLSA-exempt employee who is absent for a full day because of vacation or illness (including School 
Leave that is charged against sick leave) will have their accrual balances charged for the number of hours 
that the employee was generally scheduled to work. For example, an FLSA-exempt employee with a 
general work schedule of five 8-hour days who takes three days of vacation would be charged with 24 
hours (3 days x 8 hours = 24 hours). If the employee has a general work schedule of four 10-hour days 
and takes three days of vacation, the amount charged would be 30 hours (3 days x 10 hours = 30 hours). 
An FLSA-exempt employee may take and be charged for vacation or sick leave only if they are absent for 
more than five hours in their workday. If the vacation or sick leave balance is not sufficient to cover the 
absence, then the time would be taken as unpaid leave. 
 
Use of leave by an FLSA-exempt employee for less than full day absences that are not vacation or sick 
leave will be made in full day increments, regardless of generally scheduled work hours, resulting in no 
reduction of salary, sick leave balance or vacation leave balance. Such absences include Bereavement 
Leave, Jury Duty, Military Leave, Executive Leave, Holiday Pay, and any other paid time off that is not 
vacation or sick leave.  
 
Deductions from the salary of an FLSA-exempt employee cannot be made for absences occasioned by 
the employer or by the operating requirements of the business unless no work is performed in the 
workweek.  If the employee is ready, willing, and able to work, deductions may not be made for time 
when work is not available. For example, if an FLSA-exempt employee’s work unit is closed down in the 
middle of the workweek due to inclement weather and the employee is unable to perform work for the 
rest of that week, the employee will be paid their salary for that entire week. If work is not available but 
the employee has previously requested and has been approved for time off (e.g., vacation , sick leave, 
executive leave, leave of absence), the employee will have hours deducted from their accruals as 
approved in accordance with established policies for leave use. If the closure extends beyond that 
workweek, the FLSA-exempt employee need not be paid for future workweeks in which no work is 
performed. 
 
FLSA-exempt employees are not eligible for overtime pay or compensatory time. 
 
Executive Leave 
All directors/department heads will be granted up to forty (40) hours of executive leave each calendar 
year. The City Administrator and/or Mayor may increase this amount as they see fit. 
 
Executive Leave is usually granted at the beginning of the calendar year. New and transferred employees 
may also be granted executive leave during the calendar year. 
 
The City Administrator shall report annually to the Finance Director, or designee, by December 31st of 
each year, the executive leave to be granted the following calendar year to current employees. The 
report shall include the employee name and the number of hours to be granted. In addition, any 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
282



 

Page 3 of 4 
Subject: Executive Leave, Pay and Leave Practices for Exempt Employees 

executive leave which was granted to newly hired or transferred employees during the past calendar 
year must also be included in the report.  Should executive leave be granted to employees at other times 
of the year, the City Administrator shall supplement and update the report throughout the year as 
executive leave is granted. 
 
FLSA-exempt employees must schedule and receive approval for use of executive leave in accordance 
with departmental policies. 
 
Executive leave may be used for any reason and must be used in full-day increments. 
 
Executive leave must be used in the calendar year for which it was granted and shall not be carried into 
the next calendar year or cashed out. 
 
Executive leave must be used prior to any transfer, promotion or demotion during the calendar year or 
it will be forfeited unless the new position meets the criteria for granting of executive leave and the 
supervisor agrees to the transfer of any unused executive leave in writing.. When an FLSA-exempt 
employee granted executive leave is approved for a change in FLSA-exempt status, the employee may 
not use executive leave during the time period in an FLSA non-exempt status.  Executive leave not used 
prior to separation from employment will be forfeited. There shall be no cash-out value of executive 
leave. 
 
Salary Deductions 
The City of Buckley’s policy is to comply with the salary basis requirements of the FLSA and the WMWA 
and therefore prohibits supervisors from making any improper deductions from the salaries of FLSA-
exempt employees. Deductions from pay are permissible when an FLSA-exempt employee is absent from 
work for one or more full days for personal reasons other than sickness or disability (i.e., the FLSA-
exempt employee has no vacation leave accruals but needs to attend a family function for two full work 
days and the employee’s request for two unpaid leave days has been approved); for absences of one or 
more full days due to sickness or disability if the deduction is made in accordance with a bona fide plan, 
policy, or practice of providing compensation for salary lost due to sickness or disability (i.e., the FLSA-
exempt employee has no sick leave accruals but, due to a serious health condition, needs to take unpaid 
leave); or for unpaid disciplinary suspensions for one or more full days imposed in good faith for 
violations of safety rules of major significance. 
 
City of Buckley employees must be made aware of this policy by their supervisor and must be made 
aware that the City of Buckley does not allow deductions that violate the FLSA or the WMWA. When an 
employee believes that an improper deduction has been made to their salary, they should report this to 
the Finance Director, Human Resources Director, or designee as soon as possible.  Concerns of improper 
deductions will be promptly investigated.  Human Resources shall consult with payroll personnel when 
investigating the report. If it is determined that an improper deduction has occurred, the Finance 
Department shall ensure reimbursement for any improper deductions made and the City will take 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
283



 

Page 4 of 4 
Subject: Executive Leave, Pay and Leave Practices for Exempt Employees 

appropriate steps to ensure future compliance. 
 
The City of Buckley does not tolerate retaliation for reporting concerns of alleged violations of this policy. 
Such action is misconduct in violation of this policy and may be subject to discipline, up to and including 
termination. 
 
This policy does not constitute an express or implied contract. It is a general statement of City policy that 
cannot form the basis of a private right of action. 
 
  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
284



 

Page 1 of 2 
Subject: Job Categories 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 5: CLASSIFICATION 

 
SUBJECT: 5.1 Job Categories 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
5.1.1 PURPOSE: To establish job categories for City employees. 
 
5.1.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
5.1.2 POLICY: Job Categories 
 
 City positions are categorized in one or more of the following ways: 
 

· Exempt employee: Any employee who meets the criteria outlined under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA). Exempt employees are paid on a salary basis and are not paid 
overtime for working more than 40 hours in one week. 

 
· Non-Exempt employee:  Any employee who does not meet the criteria outlined under 

the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) for exempt status. Non-Exempt employees are paid on 
an hourly basis and are paid overtime wages or sometimes may request compensatory 
time, which they may take at a rate of 1-1/2 times their regular hourly rate for any hours 
worked over 40 in one week. 

 
· Represented employee: Any employee who is employed in a position subject to a 

collective bargaining agreement. 
 

· Full-time employee FTE): Any person hired for an indefinite period of time who works 
37.5 or more hours a week on a regular schedule.  This is a budgeted full-time equivalent 
FTE) position. 

 
· Part-time employee: Any person hired for an indefinite period of time who works 20 to 

37.4 hours per week on a regular schedule. Compensation and eligible benefits accrue 
according to the number of hours worked per month. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
285



 

Page 2 of 2 
Subject: Job Categories 
 

o In order to accrue prorated insurance, vacation, sick leave, and holiday benefits 
as described elsewhere in this Handbook, regular part-time employees must 
work a minimum of 20 hours per week. In order to receive retirement benefits 
through the State Retirement System, regular part-time employees must work in 
an eligible position for a minimum of 70 hours per month for more than 5 
months in any 12-month period. Regular part-time employees who are hired to 
fill an authorized position generally become eligible to receive prorated benefits 
the first of the month following their date of hire. 
 

o If a regular part-time employee works a variable schedule, vacation, sick leave, 
holiday, medical, dental and vision benefits may be prorated based on the 
average number of hours worked in a 6-month period. This may include 
employees who share a full-time regular position. 

 
· Limited-term employee (LTE): Any non-represented employee, hired for a limited period 

of time with set starting and ending dates, who compensation is salary. This employee is 
eligible for benefits. 

 
· Temporary employee: Any non-represented employee, hired for a limited period of time 

with set starting and ending dates, whose compensation is hourly. This employee may or 
may not be eligible for benefits. 

 
· Seasonal employee: Any employee hired for a limited period of tine who works a flexible 

schedule consistent with Fair Labor Standards Act provisions and is compensated by an 
hourly wage. These employees are not eligible for benefits. 

 
· Working under an Employment Agreement: Any person hired for a defined period of time 

under the terms of a written contract regarding scope of work and length of services. This 
person receives those benefits set forth in the written agreement. 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
286



 

Page 1 of 3 
Subject: Job Classification 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 5: CLASSIFICATION 

 
SUBJECT: 5.2 Job Classification 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
5.2.1 PURPOSE: To establish job classifications. 
 
5.2.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All departments/divisions. 
 
5.2.3 POLICY: Job Classification 
 
 Employee Positions 
 All employee positions are subject to available funding. In the adopted budget, City Council 

approves the number and type of funded positions and a list of classifications. The City 
Administrator has the authority, subject to available funds within the approved budget, to 
approve limited term and temporary workers. 

 
 Employee Classification 
 It is the policy of the City to maintain an Employee Classification and Salary Plan designed to pay 

salaries that provide incentives for excellence in job performance and that are equitable 
internally, that is, salaries in a proper relationship to all other jobs within the City. It is also the 
policy of the City to pay salaries that compare favorably with other similar cities and the local 
area for comparable jobs within budget limitations and with full consideration for the public it 
serves. The City Council adopts a Classification Plan and approves the salaries to be paid as part 
of the biennial budget. The current Classification Plan and salary structures are maintained by 
Human Resources. 

 
 General Salary Increase 
 Based upon available funds within the budget approved by City Council, the City Administrator 

may implement a cost-of-living increase for non-represented employees once per calendar year, 
which adjusts the salary structure by an approved percentage or flat dollar amount. Salary 
structure adjustments for bargaining units are determined by collective bargaining agreements. 

  
 Acting Appointments 
 When a vacancy or extended absence occurs, the City may assign an employee to temporarily 

perform the duties of the vacant position. If the employee’s “acting appointment” is at a higher 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
287



 

Page 2 of 3 
Subject: Job Classification 

classification than their regular position and extends thirty (30) or more calendar days, the 
employee shall receive at least 4% increase in their regular rate of pay and be placed in the step 
closest to a 4% increase in the new range without going below the 4%. 

 
 Employee Reclassification 
 It is the responsibility of supervisors to ensure that Human Resources review significant changes 

in duties to a position in advance of assigning the work to an employee. The City Administrator 
has the authority to approve re-classifications that can be covered by available funds as approved 
by the City Council in the biennial budget when: 

 
· Changed duties result from additions, expansions or reductions of responsibilities, 

and/or;  
· Changed qualifications or training required for the position, and/or; 
· Consolidation or reassignment of duties which significantly change the position, 

and/or 
· A change in the department’s future organizational structure and service delivery 

needs, and/or; 
· The City Administrator determines that labor market conditions exist that have 

placed the classification pay grade outside of similar or like classifications in 
comparable organizations. 
 

Re-classification where budgeted funds are not available must be submitted to the City Council 
for approval. 

 
All new classification requests must be approved by the City Administrator and confirmed by the 
City Council as part of the budget process or budget amendment. 
 
The procedure for Evaluating Classifications and Implementing Re-classifications: 
 
1. The Department Director/Head initiates a re-classification by filling out a Re-classification 

Request Form and submitting it to the Human Resources Department. 
2. A job analysis is conducted by Human Resources to determine whether a re-classification is 

warranted. 
3. The proposed re-classification will be submitted to the Finance Department for review to 

determine if budgeted funds are available. 
4. The Human Resources Department will review the results of the analysis with the Department 

Director. 
5. Recommendations for re-classification are submitted to the City Administrator by the Human 

Resources Administrator, along with the concurrence or appeal of the Department Director 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
288



 

Page 3 of 3 
Subject: Job Classification 

and the Finance Director. 
6. The City Administrator’s decision regarding a reclassification is final. 
7. Upon approval of a reclassification to a higher salary range, the employee shall receive at least 

4% increase in the regular rate of pay and be placed in the step closest to a 4% increase in the 
new range without going below 4%. 

8. Upon approval of a reclassification to a lower salary range, the employee will be placed at a 
step on the lower salary range that most closely matches their current salary rate. If the last 
step in the new range is lower than the employee’s current salary rate, the employee’s salary 
will be frozen (unaffected by cost-of-living increases) until the employee’s “frozen” rate of pay 
falls within the new range as a result of market or cost of living adjustments to the salary 
schedule. 

9. An approved re-classification will, become effective at the start of the payroll period after 
approval.  

10. The classification will be update in the next biennial budget submitted for approval to the City 
Council. 

 
 Job Descriptions. 
 

Department Directors are responsible for ensuring that the job descriptions for all the positions 
within their department are up-to-date and that each employee in their department is properly 
classified. It is also management’s right and responsibility to determine how work will be 
distributed and performed. In doing this, management and supervisors have the right and 
responsibility to assign work, limit or reassign job duties to avoid “classification creep” which 
results in positions “creeping” into a classification in a higher pay range without first determining 
the need for such advancement. Changes to an existing job description or new job descriptions 
shall be reviewed by Human Resources and approved by the City Administrator. 
 

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
289



 

Page 1 of 6 
Subject: Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 
 

 PERSONNEL 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

 
SECTION 5: CLASSIFICATION 

 
SUBJECT: 5.3 Employee Position Classification & 
Salary Plan 
 

Effective Date: 
 
 
 

City Administrator Approval: Mayor Approval: 

 
5.3.1 PURPOSE: To establish an employee classification and salary plan for City employees. 
 
5.3.2 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED: All employees 
 
5.3.3 POLICY 
 
5.3.3.1 General Provisions  
A position classification plan will be maintained by the city, based on investigation and analysis of the 
duties and responsibilities of each position. The completed plan will consist of a classification 
specification for each position, including appropriate title, description of duties and responsibilities, and 
minimum requirements and/or desirable training, experience, or other qualifications.  
 
5.3.4 Classification Plan  
 

5.3.4.1 Preparation of Classification Plan: The Mayor is responsible for the preparation of a plan 
which includes a specification for each classification. Specifications will be prepared after 
consultation with supervisors and other persons technically familiar with the duties and 
responsibilities of the job to be performed.  
 
5.3.4.2 Classification of Positions: Each position will be assigned by the mayor to one of the 
classifications of the approved classification plan. Employees will be notified of the classification of 
their position. The title, as it appears on the specification, will be used to designate the position on 
official records and payroll.  
 
5.3.4.3 Classification Specification: The classification specifications are hereby declared to have 
the following definition and scope:  
 

a) They are explanatory only and not restrictive.  
 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
290



 

Page 2 of 6 
Subject: Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 
 

b) In determining a position classification, the specification will be considered as a whole, 
comparing general duties, responsibilities, minimum qualifications, and relationship to other 
positions in order to obtain an inclusive picture of the position and place it in the appropriate 
classification.  
c) The outline of principal duties of work performed applies to general duties or tasks and is 
not intended to prescribe the specific duties of a given position, or to limit the alteration or 
modification of detailed tasks involved in the duties of any position, so long as they remain 
within the general definition of the classification.  
 
d) The classification specification may include additional requirements which are determined 
to be necessary for the best interests of the city. These requirements may include possession 
of a valid motor vehicle operator's license, physical ability, or any other bona fide 
occupational qualifications pertinent to the positions covered.  
 
e) Nothing in the classification specification is to be interpreted as restricting a supervisor 
from assigning an employee of one classification to perform some of the duties of a higher or 
lower classification for a limited period of time.  
 

5.3.4.4 New Positions  
The mayor will review any request for a new classification. No new classification will be used until 
there is an approved classification specification covering the work to be performed. If none of the 
existing classifications is appropriate, a new classification specification is to be prepared in 
accordance with these policies. Authorization for new positions will be approved through City 
Council adoption and amendments of the annual salary resolution and/or budget.  
 
5.3.4.5 Classification Plan Revision & Reclassification  
A classification may be reclassified at the request of the department manager, employee, or City 
Administrator when it appears that the duties and responsibilities of an existing classification are 
changed. Reasons for the reclassification request are to be stated in writing and the mayor will 
determine whether the present classification is correct or whether reclassification is necessary. 
New or revised classification specifications will be prepared as provided in these policies and will 
become a part of the classification plan.  
 
5.3.4.6 Incumbents of Reclassification Positions  

a) When reclassification occurs, an employee occupying the position may be retained in the 
position provided that the mayor determines that the reclassification results from an official 
recognition of a change in duties and responsibilities which has already occurred and is a long-
term inequity of classification.  
b) If the reclassification results in a higher maximum salary, this constitutes a promotion and 
the rules governing promotion with regard to salary apply. If the reclassification results in a 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
291



 

Page 3 of 6 
Subject: Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 
 

lower maximum salary, this constitutes a demotion and the rules governing demotion with 
regard to salary apply.  
 

5.3.4.7 Reallocation  
A reclassification may be reallocated to a new pay range at the request of the department manager, 
employee, or the City Administrator when it appears that the duties and responsibilities of an 
existing classification are changed. Reasons for the reallocation request are to be stated in writing 
and the mayor will determine whether the present allocation is correct or whether a reallocation 
is necessary.  
 
5.3.4.8 Incumbents of Reallocation Classifications  

a) When a classification is reallocated, the employee occupying the position may be retained 
after it has been reallocated, without examination.  
 
b) If the reallocation results in a higher salary range, the employee's salary will be adjusted, 
if necessary, to the step in the new range resulting in a salary nearest that existing salary 
which will not result in a salary decrease.  
 
c) If the reallocation results in a lower salary range, the employee's salary will be adjusted 
downward to the next lowest step in the new range that will result in an equal salary or the 
least reduction in salary.  
 
d) Nothing in the classification specifications is to be interpreted as restricting a supervisor 
from assigning an employee of one classification to perform some of the duties of a higher or 
lower classification for a limited period of time.  
 

5.3.4.9 Use of Classification Titles: The classification title is the official title of every position 
assigned to the classification for the purpose of personnel actions and is to be used on all payrolls, 
budget documents, and official records and reports relating to the position. Any other working title 
desired and authorized for use by the mayor may be used as a designation of any position for the 
purpose of internal administration or in contacts with the public.  
 
5.3.4.10 Appeals of Classification:  Any department manager or employee affected by the 
classification of a position may file a written request for reconsideration with the mayor. The mayor 
will review the classification of the position. The decision of the mayor is final.  
 

5.3.5 Salary Plan  
5.3.5.1 Adoption of Salary Plan: The Mayor is responsible for recommending to the City Council 
for adoption of a Salary Plan for the City of Buckley. The Plan will include salaries for non-bargaining 
unit personnel, as well as salary grades negotiated by employee representatives.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
292



 

Page 4 of 6 
Subject: Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 
 

5.3.5.2 Salary Plan Review: The Salary Plan is to be reviewed annually by the City Council, usually 
as part of the normal budgetary process for the city. Any changes to the Salary Plan as part of the 
annual review process are distinguished from merit increases and are not intended to give 
recognition to length or quality of service, but to general labor market salary requirements and 
internal relationships.  
 
5.3.5.3 Qualified Payroll Period: When an employee has ten (10) or less days in a non-pay status 
in any given calendar month, the payroll period will be considered qualified to accrue benefits, 
serve out probation, and for computation of merit increase dates. A new employee may be credited 
with the first payroll period if employed prior to the 15th of the month.  
 

5.3.6 Payment of Salaries  
 
All employees are paid at an hourly or monthly rate, as specified in the Position and Salary Resolution. 
Hourly employees are paid on the basis of the actual number of hours worked, including authorized 
absences with pay and authorized holidays.  
Salary rates for temporary or part-time employees will be based on the pay for full-time positions in the 
same classification.  
 

5.3.6.1 Beginning Salary: Each employee will be appointed at the first step of the range established 
for the classification, with the exception of management classification, which shall be negotiated 
within the assigned range. If it is determined that appointment of non-management employees 
above the first step may be warranted, the following procedures will apply:  
 

a) The factors to be reviewed in approving appointment beyond the first step are: availability 
of applicants meeting the qualifications for the vacant position, relationship to other similar 
classifications, prior experience of a candidate in a comparable position, time available to 
continue the recruitment process, and budget consideration.  
 
b) The department manager will submit a request for appointment at a higher step to the 
mayor, stating justification for the request. The mayor will make the final decision.  
 

5.3.6.2 Merit Step Increases - Regular Status Employees  
a) When a regular status employee has performed satisfactorily, as determined through the 
Performance Evaluation process, a merit step increase may be granted at the completion of 
six (6) qualified payroll periods from the employee's anniversary date, but not before the 
satisfactory completion of the employee's initial six-month probationary period.  
 
In the case of an employee placed at the time of hire above Step One of the pay range, the 
initial in-class merit step raise will be considered upon the completion of twelve (12) months 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
293



 

Page 5 of 6 
Subject: Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 
 

in class and at intervals thereafter defined within a separate bargaining unit agreement or 
salary plan adopted by the City Council.  
 
b) The annual merit step increase date for an employee will change only if:  

1) the employee is promoted or otherwise moved to a position assigned to another job 
class and is required to serve a trial performance period;  

2) the employee receives a merit step adjustment as authorized by the City 
Administrator; or  

3) the employee has used more than 15 calendar days of leave without pay in one 
month. For each month in which more than 15 calendar days of leave without pay 
have been used, the employee's annual merit increase date shall be advanced by one 
month.  
 

5.3.6.3 Promotion:  A promotion is an appointment to a position in a classification which has a 
higher maximum salary rate than the employee's present classification. The City Administrator will 
determine the salary step of the promoted employee in the new salary range on the date of the 
promotion. The salary step of the promoted employee will be set so that the promoted employee’s 
pay level is no more than two salary steps higher than the employee’s step prior to the promotion. 
If step one of the salary range to which the employee has been promoted is a pay level more than 
two steps higher than the promoted employee’s previous salary step, then the employee shall be 
assigned to step one of the higher salary range. When the date of promotion and the merit increase 
date coincide, the merit increase is paid prior to the promotional increase.  
 
5.3.6.4 Demotions: A demotion is an appointment to a position in a classification which has a lower 
maximum salary rate than the employee's present classification. When a demotion occurs, the 
department manager will recommend to the mayor a salary for the demoted employee within the 
salary range of the lower classification which is less than or equal to the employee's present salary. 
The employee will retain the same anniversary date.  
 
5.3.6.5 Transfer:  

a) A position transfer is an appointment to a position in the same or different classification of 
the same pay grade.  
b) When an employee is transferred to a position in a different classification with the same 
pay grade or is transferred to another department with the same classification, the 
employee's pay remains the same. The employee will retain the same anniversary date for 
leave and length of service purposes.  

 
5.3.6.6 Temporary Change of Classification  

a) A current employee assigned to a classification with a differing rate of pay in an "acting" 
appointment status will be compensated at the next higher step in the new range according 
to policy on promotion.  

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
294



 

Page 6 of 6 
Subject: Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan 
 

b) If the employee is promoted to the higher class with regular appointment status, all policies 
apply from the date of promotion.  
 

5.3.6.7 Overtime: Any City employee may be required, as a condition of employment, to work 
overtime, when necessary, as determined by his or her supervisor.  
a) All overtime is to be approved by the employee's supervisor in advance of being worked. 
In the case of emergencies, the employee is responsible for notifying the supervisor as soon 
as possible of the need to work overtime.  
b) Overtime is considered as time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week, except in 
the case of non-standard work schedules. A non-standard workday and work week shall be 
established by the department manager, or by applicable bargaining agreements, employee 
contracts or letters of appointment, and approved by the mayor. The workday or work week 
may be changed to accommodate the efficient operation of the department.  
c) Time worked as overtime will not be used to earn employee benefits or to serve out 
probation or merit increase periods. 
d) All overtime worked and compensated will be in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards 
Act.  
 

5.3.6.8 Compensatory Time  
Non-Exempt Employees 
A regular full-time or regular part-time non-exempt employee may request compensatory 
time off in lieu of overtime payment. Compensatory time off must be requested by the 
employee and authorized by the appropriate supervisor. An employee who does not request 
compensatory time will be paid overtime, and the supervisor can deny a compensatory time 
request (if time off is not practical) and instead overtime will be paid. 
 
Compensatory time is earned at the rate of 1.5:1 or one and one-half hours for each hour of 
overtime worked. Compensatory time may be accrued to a maximum of eighty (80) hours. 
Compensatory time in excess of eighty (80) hours will be paid as overtime within the same 
period that the eighty (80) hour limit has been exceeded. Employees should be encouraged 
to use compensatory time accrued within ninety (90) days of earning it whenever possible. 
Upon termination, unused compensatory time will be paid at the current rate on the final 
paycheck. 
 

5.3.7 Exemptions:  The Mayor may recommend to the City Council, positions to be exempt from 
overtime provisions on the basis of the nature of work, conditions of employment or by definition 
of administrative, supervisory, and professional classifications as provided by State and Federal 
laws. Such exemption is based upon special conditions to work or assignment, in accordance with 
the Fair Labor Standards Act.  

 

 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
295



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
296



 
City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025

 
297



City Council Agenda Packet - November 18, 2025 298


	City Council Agenda - 11.18.2025
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	Committee Reports - Senior Citizen Advisory Commission 11-05-2026
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Minutes 08-12-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 08-26-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 09-09-2025 (Draft)
	Claims and Payroll
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Agenda Bill 25-052 (2026 Property Tax and EMS Tax Levy Public Hearing)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	Notice of Public Hearing (2026 Property Tax Levy and 2026 EMS Tax Levy)
	Regular Agenda Item 2 (ORD Adopting Property Tax Levy)
	Regular Agenda Item 3 (ORD Adoption of EMS Tax Levy)
	Regular Agenda Item 4 (ORD Adoption Fire Station Bond)
	Agenda Bill 25-056 (RES No. 25-___ Repealing and Replacing Personnel Policy & Administrative Procedures)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	2025 City of Buckley Personnel Policy and Administrative Procecdures Manual (Revision #25)
	CITY OF BUCKLEY
	PERSONNEL POLICY
	&
	Administrative
	PROCEDURES MANUAL
	Beau Burkett, Mayor
	City of Buckley
	Administrative and Personnel
	Policies and Procedures
	Section 1 Introduction
	Section 2 Definitions
	Section 3 General Policies and Procedures
	Section 4 General Conduct, Discipline, Termination & Appeal
	Section 5 Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan
	Section 6 Benefits
	Section 7 Substance Abuse Policy
	Section 8 Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action and Protecting Employees against Retaliation (Whistle Blower)
	Section 9 Sexual Harassment Prevention
	Section 10 Resource Conservation Guidelines


	RES Repealing Admin Policies
	EXHIBIT A
	1.1 Introduction
	1.2 Definitions Policy
	1.3 General Policies and Procedures
	1.4 Appointments, Appointment Status, and Probationary Period
	1.5 Reduction in Force, Reemployment, Resignation, Exit Interview
	1.6  Prevention of Workplace Violence
	1.7 Anti-Harassment Policy
	1.8 Conflict of Interest
	1.9 - Workplace Privacy
	1.10 - Background Checks
	1.11 - Employee Recognition
	1.12 - Confidentiality Policy
	1.13 - Accommodations
	1.14 - GPS Location Devices on City Fleet Vehicles
	1.15 - Substance Abuse
	1.16 - Absences Weather Related
	1.17 Resource Conservation Guidelines
	2.1 -  Leave and Extended Leave
	2.2 - Wellness policy
	2.3 -  Health Benefits
	2.4  - Flexible Work Scheduling Program
	2.5 - Legal Holidays
	2.6  - Vacation
	2.7 - Sick Leave
	2.8 - Eligibility for Healthcare Benefits
	2.9 - HRA Contributions
	2.10  - Opting Out of Benefits
	2.11  - Early Retirement Incentive Program
	3.1 - Employee Code of Ethics and Policy for Reporting Improper Governmental Action
	3.2 - General Conduct, Disipline, Termination & Appeal
	3.3 - Outside Employment
	3.4 - Demotion Policy
	3.5 - Severance Pay Policy
	3.6 - Pay Periods and Pay Days
	3.7  - Time Reporting
	3.8 - Hours of Work, Attendance, and Breaks
	3.9 Personnel Files
	4.1 - Overtime and Comp Time
	4.2 - Callback Policy
	4.3 - Executive Leave, Pay and Leave Practices for Exempt Employees
	5.1 - Job Categories
	5.2 - Job Classifications Policy
	5.3 -  Employee Position Classification & Salary Plan
	Regular Agenda Item 6 (Legislative Priorities)



